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CHAIRVMAN SM TH. W&’ Il go on the record right now.
Starting a little late waiting for Senator Young
and Senator Rankin but Ms. Mlver noves that we
go into executive session. Al in favor say,
aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RMAN SM TH. The ayes have it. W’'IlIl be in
executive session,

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: Al right. M. Strom noves that we
cone out of executive session, seconded by Ms.
Mclver . Al in favor say aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Ayes have it. So we are out of
executive session. Let ne state we were in there
for a legal briefing and while we were in
executive session no matters were decided and no
votes were taken. Judge, appreciate you being
here today. Sorry for, as usual -- |’ ve spent
two weeks now apol ogi zing to everybody for the

del ay and us starting, so -- oh, only five
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m nutes, oh, okay. | was 20 mnutes |late so --
| " m supposed to be here early. They do that to
me on purpose, you know. They tell nme to be here
like 30 mnutes early, you know, and I’ m al ways

30 mnutes | ate.

JUDGE NORTON: | under st and.
CHAIRVMAN SM TH: | hope | don’t have to go in front of
your courtroom | guess |'Il be getting

sanctioned. Judge, wll you raise your right
hand, pl ease, sir.

JUDGE NORTON: Yes, sir.

THE HONORABLE RONALD NORTON, havi ng been duly sworn,
testifies as follows:

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  Al'l right. Judge Norton, before you
you have you PDQ and your Sworn Statenent. Are
t hose both docunents you submtted to the
Comm ssi on?

JUDGE NORTON: Yes, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  Are they correct?

JUDGE NORTON: They are correct.

CHAl RMAN SM TH.  Any changes or updates that you need

to make at this tine?

JUDGE NORTON: One pos- -- | don't know if this
I ncludes cases that | listed. |If so, there's
been one case of mne that was on appeal. The
Garber Reporting
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State Suprene Court affirnmed nme, thank goodness,
but they are -- there’'s also a notion to
reconsider. But at the time | filled out the
questionnaires it had not been heard by the
Supremnme Court.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH:  Well, to the extent that it’s
necessary, we'll make that an oral amendnent to
your PDQ and then if there’'s -- w thout any
objection to that. Al right. Do you have any
obj ection to us nmaki ng those docunments and t hat
oral anmendment an exhibit to your sworn testinony
here today?

JUDGE NORTON: No objection.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Wthout objection, we're
going to enter those into the record. Judge
Norton, the Judicial Merit Selection Conm ssion
has thoroughly investigated your qualifications
for the bench. Qur inquiry has focused on nine
eval uative criteria and has included a ballot box
survey, a thorough study of your application
materials, verification of your conpliance with
state ethics laws, a search of newspaper articles
I n which your name appears, study of previous
screeni ngs and checks for econom c conflicts of

interest. W’'ve received no affidavits filed in
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opposition to your election. There are no

W t nesses present here today to testify. Do you
wi sh to nake a brief opening statenent to the
Conm ssi on?

(Exhi bit Nunber 1 was marked for identification

purposes - (13 pages) Personal Data Questionnaire for

The Honorabl e Ronald R Norton.)

(Exhi bit Nunmber 2 was marked for identification

purposes - (5 pages) Sworn Statement of The Honorable

Ronald R Norton.)

JUDGE NORTON: | do not, other than to thank you for
all the hard work. | know this is hopefully your
| ast day, but | appreciate everything y all have
done.

CHAIRMAN SM TH:  Yes, sir. Well, hopefully it is,
too. Never -- it'Il be the first tine in a few
years it’s that way. Al right. Answer any
questions that counsel may have for you, please,
sir.

JUDGE NORTON:  Yes, sir.

JUDGE NORTON - EXAM NATI ON BY MR, HI NSON

Q Good norning, Judge Norton

A Yes, sir.

Q Judge Norton, after serving over ten years on the

Fam |y Court bench, why do you want to continue

Garber Reporting
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serving as a Fam |y Court judge?
Vel l, hopefully | do a good job. | like to think
| do. | feel like |I’mhel ping people. | know

half of the tinme sonme are not satisfied with the
rulings that | have to nmake. | always try to be
fair and | hope that what was submtted to this
Comm ttee by those on the outside will support

t hat .

Thank you. Judge Norton, please explain one or
two brief acconplishnments that you feel you have
conpl eted during your tenure and then a goal you
woul d i ke to acconplish if reelected.

Wl l, as you probably sawin ny materials, | have
been the chairperson of numerous conmttees. And
| think that’s kind of the acconplishnment that so
far 1've been able to -- 1’ve been honored by ny
peers to be put in those positions. | think
there are five or six different conmttees that
|"ve chaired over the ten years and continue to
chair some of those. And again, |’m honored that
| " mable to do that and | hope to continue to do
that. And we're also trying to get sone things
acconplished. | amone of two judges in the
state, Judge Conits in Geenville and ne in

Horry, that this year have done a pilot program

Garber Reporting
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And we were assigned to hear all of the contested
termnation of parental rights cases in our
county. That started in January. W are
submtting a report to the Suprene Court this
nonth, and | think that’s probably going to
continue. | don’'t know whether the sane judge
wi Il continue to do that or they' Il rotate judges
in and out. But | think it’s noved those cases
to either return children to the parents or, if
necessary, free themup for adoption. | think
that’s a big acconplishnment and it runs snoot her
when the sane judge is hearing all the notions
that have to be nade. W get the cases heard
faster, | think. So | hope to continue that.
Judge Norton, what do you think your reputation
I's anong attorneys that practice before you?

| think it’s good. | don't seemto have any
conplaints or -- they wouldn’'t conplain to ne
directly and | understand that but |I’'m not aware
of any conplaints. And | always try to be fair
so | think | have a good reputation.

Judge Norton, the Comm ssion received 513 ball ot
box surveys regarding you with 39 additional
comments. The ball ot box survey, for exanple,

contained the follow ng positive comments: The

Garber Reporting
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perfect judge. Another said, we are blessed to
have himas a judge. One said of you, one of the
best judges on the Famly Court bench. Two of
the witten comments expressed concerns. Both
coments had very positive things to say about
you but felt in recent years you ve shied away
from maki ng tough deci sions. How would you
respond to that concern?

It’s a little surprising because | make deci sions
in every case | have to hear. |’mnot sure what
they neant by that but, you know, | don't set ny
schedule. As the Comm ttee probably knows, each
county has a scheduling clerk. The litigant or
the attorney sends in the request for hearings.
They have to list information on those requests,
the type of hearing, howlong it’'s going to take.
And then the clerk works up the docket each week.
| hear whatever is on ny docket. But |, just the
week before Thanksgiving, started and heard three
days of a six-day case. W' Il resune next week
for the remaining three days. And those year-

| ong term nation of parental rights cases, those
are difficult cases. |’ve got to deci de whet her
to take children away fromtheir parents

permanently or alternatively return the children.

Garber Reporting
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And | can’t think of a tougher decision | have to
make. So |'’mnot sure where that was com ng
from

Thank you, Judge. In addition to the concern you
just addressed, one of the comments went on to
say that they felt guilty for pointing out any
weak points that you have, but -- because they
want you to continue as a Famly Court judge, but
they felt you favored certain attorneys in court.
How woul d you respond to that?

| would certainly disagree with that

whol eheartedly. | decide the cases based on the
facts that are presented to ne. | have no
quarrels with any attorney so | woul d di sagree
wth that statenent. Again, |’mnot sure why

t hat was nmade.

Judge Norton, what do you foresee as being the

bi ggest chal |l enge you woul d face going forward if
you were reelected to the Famly Court bench?
Chal l enge for nme or in trying to inprove the
systemor --

Either. You can expand on either.

One of ny pet peeves is -- | want to start court
on time. | don’'t know if anybody nentioned it in

any of those ballot boxes but I'’mat ny desk at

Garber Reporting
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7:00 o' clock every nmorning. | go through every
file that | have to hear that day. | want to
know what |I'mfacing. | want to know what
problems. | want to nmake sure all the -- you

know, the Is are dotted, the Ts are crossed, so -
- and | want to start on tine. And | think one
of the biggest hurdles | face, not only in ny
county but when | travel, is trying to nake sure
everybody is there on tinme and ready to go. Sone
counties start at 9:00, sone at 9:30. | wll be
there on the bench when the clock hits that
particular tinme. And that's the biggest
challenge is -- because if we start late, we
finish late and we sonetines don't get everything
done. And | don't |like to continue cases,
because | don't |like to pass the buck to sone

ot her judge.

And Judge Norton, how woul d you descri be your

j udi ci al tenperanent?

Calm | don’t get upset, not in the courtroom
anyway. | mght go back in chanbers and be a
little upset about something but | try not to

di spl ay anything on the bench. | try to be fair.
| try to be courteous to all of the attorneys and

the clients. So | don't think |I have any probl em

Garber Reporting
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wth that as an issue.

MR HINSON: M. Chairman, | would note that the Pee

>

Dee Citizens Coonmittee found Judge Norton
qualified in the evaluative criteria of
Constitutional qualifications, physical health
and nental stability. The Commttee found him
well qualified in the evaluative criteria of
ethical fitness, professional and academ c
ability, character, reputation, experience and
judicial tenperament. The Commttee stated in
summary, Judge Norton has the reputation of a
har d- wor ki ng, ki nd, good-hearted judge who | oves
his job.

Judge, | have a few housekeepi ng questi ons.

Ckay.

Judge, since submitting your letter of intent,
have you contacted any nmenbers of the Comm ssion
about your candi dacy?

| have not.

Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the Ceneral
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

| amfamliar with it, yes.

Since submtting your letter of intent, have you

sought or received the pledge of any |egislator,

Garber Reporting
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A.

either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

| have not.

Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

| have not contacted anyone and |’ m not aware of
anyone attenpting to intervene.

Have you revi ewed and do you understand the
Comm ssion’s guidelines on pledging in S.C. Code
8§ 2-19-70(e)?

I"'mfamliar with them yes, sir.

MR HINSON:. M. Chairman, | would just note for the

record that any concerns raised during the

I nvestigation regarding the candi date were

I ncorporated into the questioning of the

candi date today, and with that | have no further

guesti ons.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Thank you very nuch.

Judge Norton, let ne just say this. \Wen |

| ooked t hrough your ballot box surveys -- and |
know t hese are anonynous surveys, and peopl e can
make all types of comments and recognitions, but

|’mgoing to tell you, |I’'ve been on here -- |

Garber Reporting
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think this is the third or fourth screening I’ ve
been through and you're in a select few of people
-- of judges that |1’ve seen in the state, both
Crcuit Court and Famly Court, that has -- as it
relates to whether you are qualified, well
qualified or unqualified, it’s overwhel m ngly
well qualified, and it’s over -- and then there
Is no one who filled out the ballot box that said
you were unqualified at any of the criteria. And
| tell you, it’s literally -- we |look at these
things and you’re one of the few that’'s done
that. To do that in Famly Court where there’'s
consci enti ousness every -- you know, with issues
and people are fighting over custody and enotions
are at their all-tinme high, it's really amazing
how you conduct yourself in the courtroom and I
want to commend you on that. |[|’mvery inpressed
with that. | don't knowif |’ve seen a Famly
Court judge that’s had such ball ot box surveys.
And you | ook at your comments and, you know,

you' re obviously what we strive to have on the
bench, soneone that is even tenpered, soneone

t hat nakes decisions. Wile they may not al ways
be agreed upon by the parties, they’'re not

wal ki ng out of the courtroom saying that they got

Garber Reporting
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JUDGE NORTON:  Thank you. That -- | appreciate those

CHAIRVAN SMTH. Al right. Any questions of Judge

JUDGE NORTON - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG
Q

a bad hearing or sonmething was wong. So |
real ly appreciate the way you have conduct ed
yourself on the bench during this tine. And it’s
embodi ed by these comments that we see here and
what your reputationis, and it’'s a well earned
reputation. And | think you need to be

recogni zed for it.

words and that’s very hunbling.

Norton. Senator Young?

Thank you, M. Chairman. Judge Norton, thank you
for your service to our state. | too want to
echo the Chairman’s conments that the Gtizens
Commttee and the Bar Report and the ball ot box
comrents and input all indicates that the
assessnent of you and the job that you do is
outstanding, and | want to conplinment you for
that. | want to ask you -- first also, | want to
thank you and conplinment you for being punctua
and running your court on tine,.

Thank you.

| know that’s sonething that’s an issue for some

areas and | just want to thank you for that. |

Garber Reporting
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want to ask you about the pilot programthat you
mentioned, | think, in your comments. | also
want to talk to you just briefly about the -- is
It correct that there’s a mediation programin
Horry County for abuse and negl ect cases?

There is and, quite frankly, | think it works.
But we do not nediate term nation of parental
rights cases. That’'s not one that we -- or any
case involving sexual conduct with mnors. Those
do not get nediated, but just the remnaining cases
we do nediate. The way that works in Horry
County is if we're having a nerits hearing or a
per manency pl anning hearing and there’s not an
agreenent, every Friday we have vol unt eer
attorneys that nediate. They neet at the
courthouse. They'Il nediate four or five cases
that norning. W have a judge on duty, so to
speak. And if they reach an agreenent at

medi ation, they cone in, we put it on the record
and that takes care of it. |If they don't reach
an agreement then it's set for a trial so -- but
It’s alnost |ike having a status conference, if
you will, but we take it just nmaybe one step
further to try to get an agreenent on that

Friday, get it on the record.
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| s that sonething that you' ve been in charge of
or --

Vell, all of the judges in the county now are in
charge of it. But Judge Kinon, who has retired,
she inpl enented that before she retired, when she
was still on the bench. And we’'ve just continued
wi th that process.

Do you know of any other counties that are doing
t he sane thing?

W' re the only one, yeah.

Have you tal ked to the Chief Justice about trying
to maybe start it in sone other places?

W -- | have not personally but it has been
presented. And of course, one of the things that
ot her counties, | think, are going to try first
Is to have a status conference on every one of
the DSS cases, neet with the judge to try to
explain what the issues are and to get maybe sone
f eedback of the judge's feeling about those
Issues. A lot of the counties -- and |I’ve had a
chance to talk to judges and the clerks -- they
sort of resist that idea of nmediating the DSS
cases and |’ m not sure why but

So you’ ve seen a good success rate on nedi ating

t hose DSS - -
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O

o >» O > O »

W have.

-- cases?

We have a good success rate. And we’'re |ucky,
and | don’t know how it could work in sone of the
smal | er counties that don’t have, you know, as
many | awers. W’'re very fortunate. W have
five lawers that volunteer their tine. They're
not getting paid to be nediators on that Friday.
And they rotate, so, you know, one -- it’ll be
one attorney’s Friday and then the next Friday a
different attorney. And they rotate throughout
the year but it's worked for us.

Do you have any idea of |ike what percentage of
t he cases are resol ved that way?

Probably 70 percent.

That’s a | ot.

Sixty to 70 percent, | think.

That substantially reduces the backl og.

|t does.

It allows you and your colleagues nore tinme to
focus on the cases that have the real -- the

| ssues that you need to deal wth.

Right. It has been successful and we are finding
t hat those cases we have to try, they're taking

| onger and longer. | nean, what used to be maybe
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a one-day trial is nowa three-day trial.

Do you have any other suggestions on how t he
abuse and negl ect cases could be inproved for the
famlies and children in those cases?

| would have to give that sone thought. One of
the things that we're trying to inplenment nowis,
you know, when they cone to a probabl e cause
hearing after children have been picked up on an
enmer gency protective order, that first hearing,
they are not represented by attorneys. And we're
trying to inplenent a plan where we can get an
attorney assigned to that famly at that very
first hearing. Because typically -- | nean, we
don’t continue the cases but if they don’'t have
an attorney and they want one, we will nake a
decision. And then we'll give thema de novo
hearing if -- once they get their attorney
onboard and the attorney can | ook at the facts
and maybe request a new hearing on that.

Do you have any particular policy as far as how

| ong you keep a case under advisenent, |ike when
you try to get a case -- you know, a decision?

| make it a decision the day | hear the case.
Unless -- if it’s a week-long case or sonething,

| may take it over the weekend but | do not Iike
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Q

to take cases under advisenent. | know as much
about the case the day the trial ends. And if |
put it off, there are going to be things that |
mght forget or mss. So if you ask around, |
make a decision imediately. So -- and | think
It works. | mean, ny appeal rate has been pretty
good so | guess it works.

Thank you very nuch.

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Any further questions? Ms. Logan?
JUDGE NORTON - EXAM NATI ON BY M5. BLACKLEY- LOGAN

Q

Judge Norton, | haven't had the pleasure of
meeting you but I'mgrateful to nmeet you today.
|’”ve been a former clerk of court. It's very
refreshing to hear a judge wanting to get to
court on time, review the docunents. And you're
correct, the clerk’s office schedul es those cases
unl ess they' ve been directed to -- by the

admni strative judge to change it. That's what
goes on the judge' s docket. So whoever made that
statenent really probably doesn't understand the
dynam cs of how the process is. And nediation
has been a great benefit. | wll -- | can
support you on that. And | would love to see
that be inplenmented across the state. | know

when | was working in the court systemthat did
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CHAIRVAN SM TH: M. Safran?
JUDGE NORTON - EXAM NATI ON BY MR SAFRAN

Q

significantly drop the cases that were going to
court because of required nediation. So thank
you for doing that and thank you for starting on
tinme and not wanting to continue cases, because
that just causes nore work and nore tine for
people to be off when they could be at work and
be with their famlies. | comrend you on that
and all the positive coments that you' ve
received in regards to holding court. W need
many, many nore judges |ike you, so thank you.

| appreciate those words and | totally agree with
you about nediation. |t has |essened our case

| oad tremendously.

Judge, | apologize. | was running a mnute |ate.
It |ooks like you left Beaufort when | cane
there. And so | guess -- I'msure the void
wasn't filled but --

| left in 1985, | think it was.

And | cane in ‘85 and | was very famliar with
the people you practiced wwth. And it seems |ike
you kind of nmoved on to something that ultimtely
took you to where your calling was. | would echo

that the ballot box surveys are very good. And
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they certainly speak very highly to your
abilities and how everyone perceives you as a
fair and hard-working person, which is exactly
what you want. Let ne ask you this. [|’'ve
brought this up various tines, and | think |
probably know the answer. But | understand that
in the context of a ot of these hearings that
you may hold, there’'s not a |lot of testinony
taken per se; a lot of it’s done based on the
affidavit. But also, fromwhat |’ m gathering,

| awyers are given an opportunity to at | east
state positions and argue to sone extent because
| guess that’'s what they're there for. Has that
been your practice for the nost part?

|t depends on the nature of the hearing.

Qbvi ously, tenporary hearings, the rules say we
do not have to take testinony. W nake our
deci si on based on reading affidavits and
typically that’'s what | wll do. |[If there is a
uni que issue in the case, | do want to hear from
the lawers. You know, | want to hear what their
argunents are, what their position would be. It
hel ps me nmake that decision but --

And in those situations basically the argunent is

sonething that is an assistance to you at | east
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in terms of |ooking at what they presented to you
on paper in a full light; is that fair?

That’s fair. And one other point, it’'s always
difficult for nme if at that first tenporary
hearing there’'s a | awer on one side but not on
the other side. The other side doesn't present
anyt hi ng because they don’'t know to do that. And
| try to take a little bit closer |ook at those
facts because they're -- you know, when you read

these affidavits they' re so one-sided anyway, SO

And so, again, what |’munderstanding is, is that
In those situations, hearing from you know,
representatives i s sonething that nunber one, you
would find to be beneficial in many instances --

| woul d.

-- and nunber two, it would be sonething that --
again, if you felt the case deserved it, it

woul dn’t be an unusual thing because |I'’m sure

you' ve done plenty of tine.

| have, yes.
All right. Let ne ask you also. In terns of
trying to kind of revise things -- I’mnot a

Famly Court practitioner. One thing that struck

me as being, | guess, alittle bit perplexing at
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tinmes is is that whether we want it to be this
way or not, as a practical matter, so nuch that
I's decided at a tenporary hearing beconmes what
ultimately happens in these cases down the road
inafinal. | nean, given that fact, do you
think at sone point if the rules would be all owed
to be nodified that allow ng nore of the evidence
and the argunent in the up front would be a
positive thing?

It would be positive. It would also sl ow down
the system Because, you know, when they submt
t hose request for hearing forns to the clerks,
they're required to put the length of tine that
It’s going to take. Now maybe if we revised the
system and if they know they’'re going to give
argunments, they would increase the | ength of
time. But, you know, usually I'’m-- the nost of
the tenporary hearings | get they request 15

m nutes. And then they present ne wth a stack
of things to read that | can’'t read in 15 m nutes
but you know ...

That’s not really a product as nmuch of the judge.
It’s just nore or |less what the rules are that
are in place?

That’s right.
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Q
A
CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Any further questions?

JUDGE NORTON: W have and | don’t know why it’s

Ckay. Thank you very nuch.
Thank you.

Judge Norton, appreciate you being here. It’s
one of the interesting screenings of this term
because | tell you, I'mreally interested in this
mediation that y'all are doing in Horry County
wth DSS cases. Because we certainly -- if --
some of us on here, Senator Young chaired a
speci al subcomm ttee and has a keen interest. |
had the subcommttee that did funding of DSS,
and, you know, we're all struggling as

pol i cymakers on how to kind of repair the system
And, you know, there’'s a nunber of ways we | ook
at it but, you know, also the interaction is just
a small conmponent of it, but it’s nonetheless a
conponent. It’s the interaction of the
Departnment of Social Services with the Famly
Court system And having those cases tinely
heard and noved t hrough the system because it’'s
your protection of children. It seens like y'all
have ki nd of found a success, a recipe for

success down there.

resisted across the state. | nean, it has been
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di scussed in other areas but they don’'t seemto
want to inplenent it. And | realize we're very
| ucky to have the volunteers that we have.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Ri ght..

JUDGE NORTON: | nean, they step up. They show up,
and we resolve things based on that.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  Well, there's obviously proposals,
and we received the | atest budget request, which
was 100 plus mllion dollars for the Departnment
of Social Services. And, you know, these are
I nnovative ideas that | think all of us are
searching for rather than, you know, we need nore
noney. Wich we agree the system needs nore
noney but, you know, we need to make sure that
the investnment into the system produces tangible
results back to us; and that's what we struggle
wth over the years. And, you know, here --
we're here and we’'re | earning that sonebody’s
been i nnovative and creative and created a system
that’ s producing results. And, you know, |’'d be
interested in not only that 70 percent are
resol ved. How many of them vyou know, that after
that there’s no nore interaction into the system
and how you track that. | don’t expect the judge

or nediators or anyone to be able to do that.
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But, you know, | guess what |'mgetting to is |
don’t know who woul d be the one to contact for us
to learn nore as policymakers. This is not
anything to do wth your screening. But as

pol i cymakers who that we could contact to try to
find out about this, and, you know, see if
there’s a way to get the director of DSS to start
working with inplenenting it. | understand the
judicial systemwould have to be cooperative in
it and they’' d have to go through the Chief
Justice and certainly there woul d be di scussi ons
about that. But there are ways that we could
make this efficient and then track the long-term
results fromit. That’s what |I'mreally
concerned about. Does this fix issues that we
don’t see, that the environnent inproves or
children are protected, and is there anynore
Interaction in the system So these are one of
the ways that | think we’'re looking for. So |
cannot tell you how nuch | appreciate you
bringing this to our attention today. And, you
know, | hope you don’'t mnd if we get sonebody
just to reach out to your office to tell us who -
- how we can |l earn nore about the system if that

woul d be okay with you.
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JUDGE NORTON: That would be fine. And | shouldn’t
vol unteer for anything but if you need sonebody
to cone testify to sone of the commttees, as
long as you give ne a little heads up and sone
lead tine, 1'Il be glad to do it.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH:  You're going to regret that statenent
but we'll take you up on it. Right, senator?

SENATOR YOUNG.  Yeah.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  But | appreciate this. And w thout
any further questions, this will conclude this
portion of your screening. Appreciate you being
with us today. Let ne tell you to remnd you
that pursuant to the Commi ssion’s eval uative
criteria, the Conm ssion expects candidates to
the followthe spirit as well as the letter of
the ethics law. W' Il view violations or the
appearance of any inpropriety as serious and
potentially deserving of heavy weight in the
screening deliberations. As you know, the record
Wil remain open until the formal release of the
Report of Qualifications, and you nay be called
back at such tine if the need arises. Hopefully,
it won't. | appreciate your patience with us and
you appearing today and you offering for this

reel ection, and thank you for your service to the

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N oo o B~ W N

N T N N S T N N o e =
g A W N P O © O N oo o A W N P, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 33

sworn, testifies as foll ows:

State of South Carolina.
JUDGE NORTON:  Thank you, thank you.
(Of the record.)
CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. W’'re back on the record.
Judge Funderburk, appreciate you being here
t oday.
JUDGE FUNDERBURK:  Thank you, M. Chairnan.
CHAIRMAN SMTH:  WII you raise your right hand,
pl ease, sir?

THE HONORABLE HAROLD FUNDERBURK, havi ng been duly

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Judge, you have before you your PDQ
and your Sworn Statenent. Are those both
docunments that you have submtted to the
Commi ssi on?

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: Yes, sir. It looks like they are.
CHAIRMAN SMTH. Al right. And | understand you've
made an amendnent, nmaybe, to your PDQ now?
JUDGE FUNDERBURK: Yes, sir. There was an anendment

for a couple of itens.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  kay. And other than that, are there
any changes or updates that need to be made to
t hese docunents at this time?

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: No, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  And without -- do you have any

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 34

objection to us making those as an exhibit to
your sworn testinony here today?

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: No, sir, | do not.

CHAI RVAN SM TH: Wt hout objection, if you' Il hand
those to Lindi, please, sir, and we're going to
mark those exhibits to your sworn testinony.
Judge Funderburk, the Judicial Merit Selection
Conmi ssi on has thoroughly investigated your
qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry is
focused on nine evaluative criteria and has
I ncluded a ballot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance with state ethics |laws, a search of
newspaper articles in which your appears, study
of previous screenings and checks for econom c
conflicts of interest. W'’ ve received no
affidavits today in opposition to your candi dacy,
and there are not wtnesses present to testify.
Do you wish to nake a brief opening statenent to
t he Conm ssi on?

(IExhi bit Nunber 3 was marked for identification

pur poses - (13 pages) - Personal Data Questionnaire

for The Honorable Harold W Funderburk.)

(IExhi bit Nunber 4 was marked for identification

pur poses - (4 pages) - Sworn Statenent of The
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Honor abl e Harol d W Funder burk.)

(Exhi bit Nunber 5 was marked for identification

purposes - (1 page) - Anendment to Personal Data

Questionnaire for The Honorable Harold W Funderburk.)

JUDCE FUNDERBURK: Yes, sir. | feel that | should,
but 1'mproud to have been elected to the
Adm nistrative Law Court. | have found my term
so far -- it’s a wonderful job wth wonderfu
peopl e, and the cases are interesting and
sometimes challenging. And | enjoy the work.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Thank you very nuch.
W1l you answer any questions counsel nay have?

JUDGE FUNDERBURK:  Yes, sir.

MR FIFFICK:  Thank you, M. Chairnan.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK - EXAM NATI ON BY MR FI FFI CK

Q Thank you, M. Chairman. Judge Funderburk, you
just answered my first question but if you' d |ike
to el aborate, we’ve asked this of everybody.
Judge Funderburk, after serving al nmost five years
on the Adm nistrative Law Court, why do you want

to continue serving as an Adm nistrative Law

Court judge?
A Vell, it’s -- as | said, it's an interesting,
challenging job. | enjoy the work. | enjoy the

people and |1'd love to continue there as |ong as
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the law all ows ne to.

Thank you, sir. |If you could, please explain one
or two brief acconplishnents you feel you’ ve
conpl eted during your tenure and then nmaybe a
goal you' d like to accomplish if reelected.

Vell, what | would like to believe is that | have
done what the law requires ne to do when cases
appear before ne, that | have done those
diligently, issued orders in a tinmely manner.

And | woul d hope to be able to continue to do

t hat and perhaps -- we have sone anbi guous pl aces
in the law and | guess soneday that |1'Il make a
ruling that will allow a higher court to resolve
t hose ambi guiti es.

Thank you, sir. Judge Funderburk, what do you

t hi nk your reputation is anong attorneys who
practice before you?

| woul d hope that they would think of -- that

| "ve been fair, that |1’ve heard what they had to
say, the witnesses and the evidence that they
presented before nme, and gave it full and fair
consi der ati on.

Thank you, sir. Judge Funderburk, the Comm ssion
received 372 ballot box surveys regarding you

wth 16 additional comments. The ball ot box
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survey provided the follow ng comments. He's a
proven jurist, conscientious and brilliant. Two
of the witten coments expressed concerns. One
reflects a concern that you may expect nore of
the ALC and expect it to run nore like a Grcuit
Court. Wat response would you have to this
concern?

That | thought it should run nore like a Grcuit
Court. Well, I"'mnot sure how to respond to
that. | think that it is a court. It is a court
of record. And insofar as sone of the cases that
we have used to go to Grcuit Court, | guess |
have an expectation that | would treat those the
sane way a circuit judge would treat them had
they come before that circuit judge in the
previous years. So | don't know that, as a court
of record, it should operate that nuch
differently than a Grcuit Court.

Thank you, sir. Judge Funderburk, the second
concern relates that at some point in an unnaned
case you coul d have been or shoul d have been

di squal i fi ed based on a bankruptcy foreclosure or
warrant issued by an agency you hear appeals
from Wat response would you offer to this

concern?
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A

| really don’'t know what to say about that. As a
citizen of South Carolina, |I’'ve had invol venent
wi th a nunber of state agencies, DHEC, Departnent
of Revenue, as an attorney. |[|’ve had invol venent
wWwth nore -- in other departnents and | don’t
know exactly what -- | can’t inmagine what that
refers to. |If | had a case cone before ne and
soneone thought | should recuse nyself, | would
evaluate that, and | think 1'd be careful in
taking a case that | shouldn’t take. | had one
case in which | did recuse nyself because | felt
that | -- because of ny business interests knew
nore about how that business operated than |
woul d have |learned in court. And | found it
woul d be difficult to draw the line. And I

t hought | should recuse nyself in that case, and
| did. OQher cases, | have told -- disclosed to
the parties or the attorneys what ny perceived
conflicts mght be. | have assured themthat |
woul d not be influenced by those conflicts. And
out of only one case, which is the case | just
mentioned, did any of the parties think that |
shoul d recuse nysel f.

Thank you, sir. That sane coment al so expressed

concerns that you are unfamliar with the rules
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A | don’t believe that I'munfamliar with the
rules of evidence. | think sonetines, in all
fairness, sitting without a jury, | have on
occasion assured parties that | would all ow
soneone to speak and tell ne what they thought I
needed to know with the understanding that if
t hey brought information in that | did not --
woul d not have passed nuster under the rules of
evidence, |, as a finder of fact, would have to
I gnore that evidence. And that’'s -- | don’t know
what el se to say about that.

Q Thank you, Judge Funder burk.

MR FIFFICK: | would note that the Mdlands G tizens

of evidence. What response would you offer to

t hat concern?

Comm ttee Report found Judge Funderburk to be
well qualified in the evaluative criteria of
ethical fitness, professional and academ c
ability, character, reputation, experience and
judicial tenperanent. He was found qualified in
the evaluative criteria of Constitutional

qual i fications, physical health and nental
stability. The Report also stated, very
intelligent and excellent qualifications. Judge

Funder burk, | now have sone housekeepi ng issues
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A
MR FIFFICK: M. Chairman, | would just note for the

for you.

Judge Funderburk, since submtting your letter of
I ntent, have you contacted any nenbers of the
Conmi ssi on about your candi dacy?

No, sir.

Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the Ceneral
Assenbl y regardi ng your screening?

Yes, sir.

Since submtting your letter of intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator,
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

No, sir, | have not.

Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

| haven’'t asked anybody and, as far as | know, no
one has acted wi thout ny perm ssion.

Have you reviewed and do you understand the
Conmi ssion’s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code § 2-19-70(e)?

Yes, sir.

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 41
record that any concerns raised during the
I nvestigation regarding the candi date were
I ncorporated into the questioning of the
candi date today. M. Chairman, | have no further

questi ons.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Thank you. Judge Funderburk, let ne

just say the sane thing we were just talking
about wth the previous candidate. | |ook at
your ball ot box surveys and ot her than that
outlier of a double question that you were just
asked about the negative, | just want to point
out to you that overwhel m ngly everyone’s finding
you well qualified. And there are just -- any
unqual i fied, as one or two, is very few And so
If you're a judge and you sit as a finder of fact
and the judge of the law, it's very difficult to
make everybody happy sonetines, but it sonmehow
seens that you have pleased the vast mgjority.
Most of these comments here are intelligent,
great judge, asset to the bench. | really
appreciate the work you ve done over these past
few years since your election. | know you
brought a wealth of institutional know edge to
the Adm nistrative Law Court from the Enpl oynent

Security Comm ssion to do and really appreciate
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the work you have done over the years. And, you
know, | look at the Mdlands Ctizens Conmttee,.

| 1ook at the Bar Report, all well qualified. So
| can tell you one thing is that you have shined
while you're on the bench. And you have been --
done a great job and | cannot tell you how nuch |
appreciate it. It’'s nice to see judges that cone
back here and their peers and the people who are
evaluating themtell themthat they re doing a
great job. And you're one of those so | want to
make sure you understand that as you go through
here we’ ve entrusted you in a position and you
represent your court and the integrity of that
court. And you’'ve upheld those ideals and
principles, obviously, very well and I thank you

for that.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: Well, | appreciate it. |’ m hunbled

by the responses of the nenber of the Bar.

CHAIRVAN SM TH. Al right. M. Stron?
MR. STROM M. Chairman. Judge Funderburk, | just

wanted to echo what the Chairman said. | know
sone of the lawers in ny office have appeared in
front of you, and they tell nme that you' re just
an outstandi ng judge. The work you guys do is

really inportant and you have to nake a | ot of
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tough decisions. And as the Chairman said -- |
mean, all the comments about you and everything |
hear in the community is nothing but wonderful.
So thank you for your good work and your judicial
tenperanent and all you do for us.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK:  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  Al'l right. Senator Young?

SENATOR YOUNG. Thank you, M. Chairman. Judge
Funderburk, | too want to conplinment you on the

job that you' re doing. Al of the ballot box

coments -- | nean, nearly -- like the Chairman
said, | nean, alnost every one -- there m ght
have been one -- | think there was just one that

was adverse but everything el se was glowing. The
Bar Report, the Citizens Commttee Report, and
you shoul d be comended publicly for that. And I
wanted to nmake sure you hear that from us.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: Well, | appreciate it, Senator.

CHAIRVAN SM TH: M. Safran?

MR SAFRAN.  Good norni ng.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK:  Good norni ng.

MR SAFRAN. | guess I'mrunning into nore and nore
people fromny past. Judge Funderburk and | also
share sone early heritage in Beaufort. | know he

practiced down there a little while even after |
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left. And he was always extrenely hel pful to me
when he was counsel over at the Enpl oynent
Security Comm ssion, | think. Was that --

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: That’'s right, sir.

MR, SAFRAN: Yes. And | nean, | never had a tine that
| called over there that | did not get an
out st andi ng response. And | too have heard j ust
exenplary comments in terns of your perfornmance
as a judge. And they're certainly borne out by
t hese bal |l ot box surveys. And candidly, as we’ve
poi nted out to people in the past, it’'s easy to
basically throw a rock when nobody knows where
it’s comng from And so this is sonething that
invites people to take their shots. And the fact
that they haven't, really is a very strong
reflection on the kind of job you' re doing over
there. And so | think, as |’ve said before in
sone of these hearings, we get accused a | ot of
times of being overly critical. But | think the
flip side is is when we see sonebody doing a
great job, it’s incunbent upon us to tell them
So | just feel like, you know, you need to know,
and we’re happy that you re offering again.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK:  Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Any further questions?
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(No replies are heard.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH. Al right. Wth that, Judge
Funder burk, this concludes this portion of your
screening. | want to take this opportunity to
rem nd you that pursuant to the Conmm ssion’s
eval uative criteria, the Conmm ssion expects
candi dates to follow the spirit as well as the
letter of the ethics law W' Il view violations
or the appearance of inpropriety as serious and
potentially deserving of heavy weight in the
screeni ng deliberations. As you know, the record
Wil remain open until the formal release of the
Report of Qualifications, and you may be called
back at such tine if the need arises. | think
you for offering for this position, and | thank
you for your service to the State of South
Car ol i na.

JUDGE FUNDERBURK: Thank you, M. Chairman.

CHAIRVAN SM TH. Al right. Have a good day. Thank
you for com ng.

(Of the record.)

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Judge Durden, how are you

doi ng today?

JUDGE DURDEN: |"mdoing well. | hope you are.
CHAIRVMAN SMTH: | amdoing well. Sorry we're running
Garber Reporting
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behind. | don't -- we're early, so --

JUDGE DURDEN: Y'all are getting it this norning.

CHAIRMAN SM TH.  That is good. Al right. Judge
Durden, will you raise your right hand, please,
ma’ anf

THE HONORABLE DEBORAH BROOKS DURDEN, having been duly

sworn, testifies as follows:

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Judge Durden, you have before you
your Sworn Statement and your PDQ Are those
bot h documents you submtted to the Conm ssion?

JUDGE DURDEN: They are.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  Are they correct?

JUDGE DURDEN. W th one exception. | did, on the
question that asks about |awsuits, | neglected to
include a lawsuit that | had filed in a matter
about -- with ny heating and air contractor. It
was filed and very shortly settled. And it
slipped ny mnd when | was filling this out. And
| think staff has got all that information before
you now, but | apol ogi ze for that om ssion.

CHAIRMAN SM TH.  That’s okay. So have you al ready
prepared an anendment, or you need to make an
oral amendment ?

JUDGE DURDEN. It's already anended, | believe.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  kay. So other than that anendnent,
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are there any other updates or changes that you
need to make at this tine?

JUDGE DURDEN: There are not.

CHAI RMAN SM TH: Do you have any objection to us

maki ng those docunents and any anendnents a part

of -- an exhibit to your sworn testinony here
t oday?
JUDGE DURDEN: | do not.

CHAIRVAN SM TH: Al right. Wthout objection, if
you Il hand those to Lindi, please, nma’am and
we' Il make those exhibits to your sworn testinony
here today. Judge Durden, the Judicial Merit
Sel ection Conm ssion has throughly investigated
your qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry
I's focused on nine evaluative criteria, has
I ncluded a ballot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance wth state ethics |laws, a search of
newspaper articles in which your nane appears,
study of previous screenings and checks for
econom c conflicts of interest. W’ve received
no affidavits filed in opposition to your
el ection. There are no witnesses present to
testify. Do you have a brief opening statenent

that you would like to nake to the Conm ssion?
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(Exhi bit Nunber 6 was marked for identification

purposes - (14 pages) - Personal Data Questionnaire

for The Honorabl e Deborah Brooks Durden.)

(Exhi bit Nunber 7 was marked for identification

purposes - (3 pages) - Sworn Statenent of the

Honor abl e Deborah Brooks Durden.)

JUDGE DURDEN: | would just really like to thank you
all for the opportunity to serve on the
Adm ni strative Law Court. | have thoroughly
enjoyed ny tenure there and | feel like that is
reflected in ny work ethic for the job. | left
my office to come over here with every single
thing that was right for a decision, an order has
been issued. So | keep ny docket very up to
date. In the ten years |’ve been on the bench,
|’ ve issued approximately 3,600 final orders and
|"ve only been reversed 11 tines. So | think
that speaks for the quality of the work I've
done. And |I'’mvery proud of the job |’'ve done
and just seek an opportunity to continue.

CHAIRMAN SM TH:  Thank you very much. WII you answer
any questions that counsel may have for you,

pl ease?

JUDGE DURDEN - EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. CRAWFCORD

Q Thank you, Judge. | Dbelieve you' ve touched on
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why you want to continue to serve as an ALJ.
Coul d you di scuss -- besides your docket control,
could you discuss any brief acconplishnments while
you' ve served on the bench?

| guess to ne the biggest acconplishnent is just
trying to |l ook at every case in front of ne and
give it the attention that it deserves, you know.
| say |’'ve got everything up to date right now
but not everything is handled quickly. They all
get -- you know, sone things |’'ve had one that
went out this week that we did six drafts on. So
sonetinmes, you know, it’'s not always a quick
process. But just trying to nake sure that every
case gets the attention it deserves, whether it’s
one that garners the headlines or not.

And do you have any other goals for the remainder
of your ternf

Just to continue to do a good job.

You did nention the SLED report in the case --
you said that was handl ed quickly. Was the
matter dism ssed, the roofing --

Ch, yeah, it was --

-- | nmean, the air conditioning?

Yeah, it was di sm ssed.

It was di sm ssed.
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It was settled and di sm ssed.

So, thank you. Judge Durden, what do you think
your reputation is anong attorneys that practice
bef ore you?

Well, I think I have a good reputation. | seek
to treat everybody in nmy courtroomwth respect,
and | think that’'s reflected in the comments from
t he Bar.

Thank you, Judge. Judge, should you be reel ected
for another term do you plan on serving the
entire ternf?

| plan to. | may run for a seat on the Court of
Appeal s. There's a seat com ng open next year
but | certainly plan to continue to serve.

Thank you, Judge. Judge Durden, the Conm ssion
recei ved 368 ball ot box surveys regarding you
wth 19 additional comrents. The ball ot box
survey, for exanple, contained the follow ng
positive comments: Judge Durden is an
exceptionally qualified admnistrative | aw judge
wi th years of experience. Judge Durden is well
qualified to serve another term And Judge
Durden is very smart, very fair and nethodi cal .
Four of the witten coments expressed sone

concerns. A few concerns dealt with your
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t enper ament and/ or professionalismin the
courtroom And what response would you have to

t hese concerns?

| would be very concerned about anyone who had a
response |ike that because | pride nyself on
bei ng courteous to everyone, treating everybody
fairly, making sure everybody feels heard.
Everybody is not going to be happy with the
decision that | nmade, but | feel like it’s ny job
to make sure they feel like they were fairly
heard. And, you know, so | am concerned t hat
anyone woul d | eave ny courtroom and not feel that
way. But | also feel like as a judge you can't

pl ease everybody.

Yes, ma’am Anot her concern raised issue with
you taking a results-oriented approach in dealing
W th cases or in deciding cases versus direct
application of the appropriate lawto the facts
presented. Wat response would you offer to this
concern?

| would say that's not a fair criticismof ny
work. | am-- you know, | often amforced to
reach conclusions in cases that aren’t the one
that | personally would love to cone to but |’'m

gui ded by the law and the precedent. And | just
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Q
MS. CRAWFORD: M. Chairnman, | would note that the

feel very strongly about not overstepping. |
feel like | have a ot of authority that’'s been
entrusted to ne as an admnistrative | aw judge
and | feel very strongly about not overstepping
that authority. So | just really can’'t see that
as a fair criticismof ny work.

Thank you, Judge. Wat do you think the biggest
changes are that we should nake to the

Adm ni strative Law Court systemto inprove it?

| can’t really think of any inprovenents that
need to be made. | think things are running very
smoot hly right now

Thank you, Judge.

M dlands Citizens Commttee found Judge Durden
qualified in the evaluative criteria of
Constitutional qualifications, physical health
and nental stability. The Commttee al so found
her well qualified in the remaining evaluative
criteria of ethical fitness, professional and
academ c ability, character, reputation,
experience and judicial tenperanment. The
Conmttee stated in sunmary, excellent candi date.
Judge Durden, since submtting your Letter of

| ntent, have you contacted any nmenbers of the
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Conmi ssi on about your candi dacy?

A No, | have not.

Q Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including
limtations on contacting nenbers of the General
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

A | am aware of that, yes.

Q And since submtting your Letter of Intent, have
you sought or received the pledge of any
| egislator, either prior to this date or pending
t he outconme of this screening?

A | have not.

Q And have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f?

A | have not.

Q And are you aware of anyone attenpting to
I ntervene --

A. No.

Q -- in this process on your behal f?

A Sorry. No, | have not.

Q And have you reviewed and do you understand the
Comm ssion’s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code 8 2-19-70(e)?

A | do.

M5. CRAWFORD: | would note for the record that any
concerns raised during the investigation
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regarding this candidate were incorporated into
t he questioning of the candidate today. Thank
you, Judge.

JUDGE DURDEN: Thank you.

MS. CRAWFORD: M. Chairman, | have no further
qguesti ons.

CHAl RMVAN SM TH.  Thank you very nmuch. Judge, let ne
just take this opportunity -- this is kind of a
broken record, but it's a testanent to the
candi dates that are appearing in front of us this
norning. And |’ magain | ooking through your
bal | ot box survey, survey of the M dl ands
Ctizens Commttee and the Bar Commttee. And
you're seeing a thenme go through yours, as we’ ve
seen with the rest, is you re an excellent judge
and doing a wonderful job. The comments, people
who rate you as, you know, your academc ability,
your reputation, your experience, your judicial
tenperanent are overwhelmngly well qualified,
and very few people are putting unqualified on
there. And so where you sit as a judge, as a
finder of fact and the judge of the |aw, and
you' ve got to nake decisions, and you only
di sappoi nt people who notivate them enough to

fill out sonething -- just a handful of themto
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say you're not qualified, you re doing an
excel l ent job over there and I want to comend
you on that. Your comments on the ball ot box
surveys, M. Safran said a little while ago where
this is free to people to throw rocks at you
because no one knows who's tossing the rocks.

And we’'re getting great things |like, well
qualified to serve another term She’'s diligent,
prof essional and ethical, treats litigants with
dignity and respect. So that’'s the prevailing
theme through all this. The Bar Commttee and
the Gtizens Commttee finds you well qualified.
So as | was just tal king to Judge Funderburk, it
instills a lot of confidence in us as nenbers who
el ect you to this position that you' re doing the
job that we elected you to. You're doing it in
the professional, fair and dignified manner in
whi ch you' re devel oping a reputation as being an
excell ent judge; and | think that’s sonething you
ought to be proud of. So, you know, sonetines
we’'re up here having to criticize candi dates and
sonetinmes we're up here praising them And

you' re one that’s getting praised. And, you
know, | thank you for your service. | thank you

for the reputation you ve devel oped on the bench
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JUDGE DURDEN - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG

and making the citizens of this state proud and
uphol ding the integrity of your court, and that’'s
very inportant to us. So thank you very nuch.
JUDGE DURDEN:  Thank you.
CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Any questions of Judge Durden.
(No replies are heard.)
CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Keep up the good work,

Judge. Senator Young.

Q Thank you for the job you're doing. As the
Chairman said, the cooments in the Bar Report and
the Ctizens Commttee Report are all very
conplinentary of you. 1’ve |ooked at your CLE
materials that you provided and it |ooks |ike you
have taken a ot of CLE. Is there any particular
reason why you' ve taken so much CLE? It |ooks to
me |ike you' ve taken nore than |’'ve seen sone of
t he ot hers take?

A | just still have to get those hours every year
and so sometinmes | have nore than | need.

Because | like to work a year ahead so | don't
have to worry about it.

Q Vell, it looks like you ve taken a very w de
variety of topics too, and | want to conpli ment

you on that as well.
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A Thank you.

Q Thank you.

CHAIRVAN SM TH: Al right. Any further questions?

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Judge Durden, this concludes this
portion of your screening process. Let ne take
this opportunity to rem nd you that pursuant to
the Comm ssion’s evaluative criteria, the
Conm ssi on expects candi dates to follow the
spirit as well as the letter of the ethics |aw.
W will view violations or the appearance of
| npropriety as serious and potentially deserving
of heavy weight in the screening deliberations.
As you know, the record will remain open until
the formal rel ease of the Report of
Qualifications, and you may be cal |l ed back at
such tine if the need arises. Thank you for
offering for this position, and | thank you for
your service to the State of South Carolina.

JUDGE DURDEN: Thank you. Thank all of you for your
service as wel|.

CHAl RMAN SM TH: Have a great day.

JUDGE DURDEN: | know this is sonmetinmes not a happy
pl ace to be.

(OFf the record.)
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CHAIRVAN SMTH. Al right. Back on the record.
Judge McCorm ck. | mean, Ms. McCormck, sorry.
W' ve been screening judges today --

M5. MCCORM CK:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  So, | apologize. | just want to make
sure now we're on candidates. So Ms. M Corm ck,
appreci ate you being here today. | see you' ve
got a guest. Wuld you like to introduce himto
t he Conm ssi on?

M5. MCCORM CK:  Yes, sir, thank you. This is ny
husband, Harvey McCorm ck. He's also a |awyer.

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Ckay, welcone. Good to see you here
t oday.

MR MCCORM CK:  Thank you very nuch.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. M. MCormck, wll you
rai se your right hand, please, m' am

M5. JEAN MCCORM CK, having been duly sworn, testifies

as foll ows:

CHAIRMAN SMTH. All right. M. MCorm ck, before you
have your Personal Data Questionnaire and your
Sworn Statenment. Are those both docunments you
submtted to the Conm ssion?

M5. MCCORM CK:  Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN SM TH:  Are they correct?

M5. MCCORM CK:  Yes, sir.
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CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that need to
be made at this time?

M5. MCCORM CK:  No, sir.

CHAI RVMAN SM TH:  And do you have any objection to us
maki ng those as exhibits to your sworn testinony
here today?

M5. MCCORM CK:  No, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Wthout objection, if
you' || hand those to Lindi and we’'re going to
mark those as exhibits to your sworn testinony.
Ms. McCormck, the Judicial Merit Selection
Conmi ssi on has thoroughly investigated your
qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry has
focused on nine evaluative criteria and has
I ncluded a ballot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance wth state ethics |laws, a search of
newspaper articles in which your nane appears,
study of previous screenings and checks for
econom c conflicts of interest. There have been
no affidavits filed today in opposition to your
candi dacy, and no witnesses are here today to
testify. Do you wish to nmake a brief opening
statenent to the Conm ssion?

(IExhi bit Nunber 8 was marked for identification
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purposes - (18 pages) - Personal Data Questionnaire
for Jean K MCorm ck.)
(Exhi bit Nunber 9 was marked for identification

purposes - (6 pages) - Sworn Statenent of Jean K
McCor m ck. )
M5. MCCORM CK:  No, sir. |'d waive that statenent.

just thank y'all for your service and the

opportunity to be here.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Thank you very much. Answer any

questions that counsel may have for you, please.

M5. MCCORM CK - EXAM NATI ON BY Ms. BAKER

Q

A

Good morning, Ms. McCormck. Please state for
the record the city and circuit in which you
resi de.

Beaufort, South Carolina, 14th Crcuit.

M5. BAKERR M. Chairman, | note for the record that

based on the testinony contained in the

candi dates PDQ, which has been included in the
record and with the candidate’s consent, M.
McCormick neets the statutory requirenent for
this position regarding age, residence and years
of practice.

Ms. McCorm ck, why do you want to serve as a
Fam |y Court judge and why do you feel that your

| egal and professional experience qualify and
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w ||l assist you to be an effective judge?

| want to serve as Famly Court judge. | believe
you can see fromny resunme, nost of ny |egal work
the mpjority of ny 29 years, has been in a
service type profession, public defender, a
prosecutor who did juveniles. |’'ve done guardian
ad litemwork. |’'ve always wanted to be a Famly
Court judge. This tineinny life l'’man enpty
nester. M baby just went to the Citadel and I’ m
pretty much sem-retired. | still do private
guardian work. But | think I do have the
experience, the focus, fromevery side of a
Famly Court case and | would be fair and
patient, which is -- which a famly judge needs.

| believe a Famly Court judge is one of service
and | think I can do that.

Thank you. M. MCormck, are there any areas of
the [aw for which you woul d need additi onal
preparation in order to serve as a Famly Court

j udge, and how woul d you handl e that additional
preparation?

| will say recently | have not done the property
distribution cases, mainly child custody. You
know everything that involves children | have

done and |'mup to speed, | believe. | think the

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 62

equi table distribution, I would need, you know,
to do extra work on that but | have. | think I
have excel |l ent judges in Beaufort County that
woul d assist nme and direct nme in the right

di recti on.

Ms. McCorm ck, please briefly describe your
experience in handling conplex, contested Fam |y
Court matters and specifically discuss your
experience wth the financial aspects of Famly
Court work.

A while ago | worked with Pete Fuge, who is
retiring, whose seat is open that |’ mrunning
for. He was just -- he’s a brilliant man. He
handl ed the nost highly contested cases in
Beaufort. W handl ed busi ness val uations. W
handl ed physician practices, the valuation of
that. W handled a party who had marital assets
and put themoffshore. W tracked those down. |
worked with forensic accountants. So | have done
it in the past but | will say I’'ve not done it
recently.

Ms. McCorm ck, the Conm ssion received 199 ball ot
box surveys regarding you with 24 additional
comments. The ball ot box survey, for exanple,

contained the follow ng positive comments: She
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w Il nmake an excellent Famly Court judge. Her
tenperament, intellect and ethics are perfectly
suited for a Fam |y Court judgeship. South
Carolina will be lucky to have her as a Fam |y
Court judge. Jean McCorm ck has vast experience
in all facets of famly law. She is thoroughly
know edgeabl e in the rules of procedures of
Famly Court. M. MCormck is respected by her
peers and the judiciary. She is known for her
integrity, fairness and genui ne conpassion for
others. Jean McCorm ck woul d be an excell ent
Fam |y Court judge for the 14th Judicial Grcuit.
Five of the witten coments expressed some
concerns, including that you may not have the
experience to be a Famly Court judge,
particularly in conplicated divorce actions or in
private famly cases. How would you respond to
t hat coment ?

Again, | have had the experience. | have done
the work. | certainly have the experience in al
the children-based issues. And so |’'ve done it.
| think sonme of the younger |awers m ght not
remenber that | did it, but I think I have the
ability and the intellect to do a good job on

t hose conpl ex cases and know that they are very
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M5. BAKER | would note that the Low Country Citizens

I mportant and will learn. | wll tell you when |
went back fromthe public defender’s office to

t he prosecutor’s office we only had fingerprints
back then. And then -- now we have DNA. So |
went to the DNA |ab, talked to the experts and |
was -- you know, | knew all about it. So | would
plan to do the sane thing.

What would you do if you had to master an

unfam liar area of the lawin a relatively short
period of tinme?

| woul d, you know, | ook at the advance sheets.

| "ve got Stuckey’'s Marital Litigation, which |I’ve
gone cover to cover through. | would ask the

ot her fellow judges.

Commttee found Ms. McCormick qualified in the
eval uative criteria of Constitutional

qual i fications, physical health and nental
stability. The Committee found her well
qualified in the evaluative criteria of ethical
fitness, professional and academi c ability,
character, reputation, experience and judici al
tenperament. The Committee stated in sumary,
hi ghly qualified, good range of experience in

Fam |y Court.
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| have a few housekeepi ng questions. M.

McCorm ck, are you aware that as a judicial

candi date you are bound by the Code of Judici al
Conduct as found in Rule 501 of the South
Carol i na Appellate Court Rul es?

Yes, nma’ am

Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
contacted any nenbers of the Conm ssion about
your candi dacy?

No, ma’ am

Are you famliar wwth 8 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the Ceneral
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

Yes, ma’ am

Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator,
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

No, ma’ am

Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

No, nma’ am

Have you revi ewed and do you understand the
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Commi ssion’ s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code § 2-19-70(e)?

A Yes, ma’ am

M5. BAKER | would just note for the record that any
concerns raised during the investigation
regarding the candidate were incorporated into
the questioning of the candidate today. M.
Chai rman, | have no further questions.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Any questions for M.
McCor mi ck? Senator Young.

M5. MCCORM CK - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG

Q Thank you, M. Chairman. M. MCorm ck, thank
you for your interest in serving our state on the
Fam |y Court bench. | have a few questions. One
I's, what do you think is the appropriate deneanor
for a Famly Court judge?

A Even keel ed, patient, understanding and treating
everyone with dignity and respect.

Q Are there any particular judges that you have
appeared in front of over the years that you
woul d attenpt to ermul ate yourself in terns of
their deneanor, how they handl ed the courtroonf

A Yes, sir. Would you like to know?

Q Who woul d t hose be?

A Ceral d Smoak, Jr. | also appeared before his
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o > O P

dad, but that would be one |I would put there.

| "ve | ooked at your Personal Data Questionnaire,
and it has init -- | think question 11 it
requires you to list all of the experience that
you' ve had in Famly Court in the different
practice areas. One of the areas is in the area
of adoption cases, and it says that you handl ed
adoption cases when you worked wth M. Fudge.
Yes, sir.

And that was over 20 years ago?

Yes, sir.

So do you believe that you' re prepared to handle
adoption cases if you' re elected to the Fam |y
Court ?

| do. | recently was a guardian ad litemon a
contested adoption case, and it was very unusual .
And | got ny feet back in on that. So | started
as a guardian ad litemrecently on adoption
cases.

And then in the area of divorces and equitable
di vision of property, are you back doing those
types of cases now in your practice?

No, just mainly guardian work on a part-tine
basi s.

Do you feel like you're up to speed on the issues

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 68

in that particular area of practice?

Yes, sir. And if not | certainly can be.

On the abuse and negl ect cases, it’'s ny

I npression that you ve had a | ot of experience in
t hose cases.

Yes, sir.

One question | have in that area is, if you could
I mprove the systemas it currently exists for the
famlies and the children in the system on abuse
and negl ect cases, what would you recommend to
do?

A couple of ideas. | would like -- you know,
woul d think if you could assign a chi ef

adm nistrative judge just to those cases and
maybe just have a tine line to be screened. And
| knowit's a lot of work but maybe give them a
coupl e nore chanbers weeks to handl e that type of
docket. Another possibility, and | know they did
this in Charleston County but |'mnot sure they
do it anynore. They nediate those type cases,
and | was surprised to hear they even do
termnation of parental rights. So that woul d be
t he ot her suggesti on.

W actually heard this norning about nedi ati on of

abuse and negl ect cases in Horry County. What is
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A
SENATOR YOUNG  Those are all ny questions.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Thank you. M. Strom
MR STROM M. Chairman. Ms. MCorm ck, of course |

your view of parents who are behind on paying
child support?

You know, they need to support their children but
certainly if they're in jail, they can’'t support
their children.

So if -- how would you handl e cases in front of
you where parents appear before you as a Famly
Court judge and they’'re behind in their child
support? | nean, what is your -- | know every
case has its own set of facts.

Yes, sir.

But | think | get fromyour first answer that you
have little tolerance for folks that don’t pay
their child support?

Correct, yes, sir.

remenber you fromyour days in the public
defender’s office here, and you did an
outstanding job there. | think ny daughter

foll owed you down in Beaufort in the solicitor’s
office. And while | haven't seen you, | feel

| "ve kept up with you because of all the

wonderful things |’ve heard about you and what
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you’ ve been doi ng down there.
M5. MCCORM CK:  Thank you.
MR STROM | know that the solicitor has witten a

| etter of support. And one of ny favorite Famly
Court |awyers, Ken Lester, who would not say
anyt hi ng ni ce about sonebody if he didn’t

absol utely nmean it, also wote you a very kind
letter. And | just want to thank you for
offering themup and | think you' re going to nake
an excel |l ent judge.

M5. MCCORM CK:  Thank you, sir.

CHAI RVMAN SM TH:  Representati ve Mirphy.

REPRESENTATI VE MURPHY: | just want to echo what M.
Strom sai d about thank you for offering to serve.
And | noticed on your PDQ that you had one son to
graduate fromthe Ctadel in ‘18, and then the
other one is a knob?

M5. MCCORM CK:  Yes, sir.

REPRESENTATI VE MURPHY: \Wat conpany is he in?

M5. MCCORM CK:  They're both in Kilo.

REPRESENTATI VE MURPHY:  Okay. Well, good. M
nephew s a knob in India conpany, and ny son’s in
sophonore i n Novenber conpany.

MS. MCCORM CK:  Wonder ful .

REPRESENTATI VE MURPHY:  Thank you for your w llingness
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to serve.

M5. MCCORM CK:  Thank you.

REPRESENTATI VE MURPHY:  And sending two of your three
sons to the Citadel.

M5. MCCORM CK:  They needed the G tadel. Thank you.

REPRESENTATI VE MJURPHY: M ne did, too.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Any further questions?
M. Safran.

M5. MCCORM CK - EXAM NATION BY MR Safran:

Q Appreciate your being here this norning. [It’'s
really odd. You're the third candidate. You're
also the third that seem ngly has these Beaufort
roots. | started back there years ago and
practiced for alittle while but --

A You | ook famliar.

Q Well, you probably didn't see ne in Famly Court
any nore than | had to be, but |I did have ny
experiences there and | earned enough to decide |
wanted to do sonmething else. Let ne just ask a
few things. You ve certainly been doing this a
long time. I'mvery famliar wth Judge Fuge,
because | think | was in sone respects on the
other side of some cases on appeal years ago that
he was involved with, but you had kind of wound

down a little bit. What was it that pronpted you
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to want to kind of nore or |ess say, okay, |
don't want to be retired or sem-retired anynore
and take on the rigorous -- and it is rigorous,
of being a Fam |y Court judge?

Thank you for that question. | wanted to tel

y all. You know, |’'ve | ooked back at ny career,
and |'mvery happy with the service that | have
done. | think |I’ve nade a difference. But |
think I can nmake a bigger difference. And I
certainly have the tinme and just the passion to
do that right now.

And | guess the thing is, is that | understand
that the nest is enpty. And | know that the
judges don’t travel as nuch as they used to but
they still travel a good bit, because | actually
t hi nk we had sonebody in here the other day

t al ki ng about havi ng Judge Snmpak sonmewhere far
away fromdown in his home. | guess, is that
sonething that, at this stage, you really are
enbracing as to what you want to do?

Yes, sir. | really look forward to it. You
know, with having three kids, | nmean, | pretty
much stayed hone for, you know, all those years.
And |'mup for that and | |ook forward to it.

Just a couple of other things. | amthe first to
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agree that just because certain things that

you' ve done in your career nmay be sone years ago
and renote doesn’t nean you forgot how to do them
or that you' re not capable of doing them So |I’'m
sure that what experience you had with Judge Fuge
when y’all were in private practice is sonething
that has a carryover.

Yes, sir.

But again, do you feel up to sonme of the things
that you' d have to confront that may not have
been what your daily activities were as a
solicitor when you were working down there?

Yes, sir. | really do and I'’mexcited to get ny
brain | earning new things and di ggi ng back in.
You know. And | think your pointing to Judge
Snoak as a nodel is really spot on. W were in

| aw school together and | think the absol ute nost
of him | nmean, his deneanor and his way of
handl i ng things is about as good as you can find.
Yes, sir.

| mean, | think that there are very few people
who |1'd call unflappable. He is. And his father
was equal |y outstanding, both very good friends
over the years. And | guess if you want to use

himas kind of the criteria, | think you ve got
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A
Q
A
CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Any further questions?

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: Al right. M. MCormck, this

MS. MCCORM CK: Thank y’ all.
CHAIRVMAN SMTH.  All right. Safe travels back there

M5. MCCORM CK: Thanks agai n.

sonet hi ng good goi ng.
Yes, sir.
And we appreciate your offering.

Thank you.

(No replies are heard.)

concl udes this portion of your screening process.
Let nme take this opportunity to remnd you that
pursuant to the Conm ssion’s evaluative criteria
t he Comm ssion expects the candidates to foll ow
the spirit as well as the letter of the ethics
law. We will view the violations of the
appearance of inpropriety as serious and
potentially deserving of heavy weight in the
screeni ng deliberations. As you know, the record
W Il remain open until the formal release of the
Report of Qualifications, and you may be called
back at such tine if the need arises. Thank you
for offering for this position and | thank you

for your service to the State of South Carolina,

on |-26 to 95.

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N oo o B~ W N

N T N N S T N N o e =
g A W N P O © O N oo o A W N P, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 75

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Take care.
(Of the record.)

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. W’'re back on the record.
Judge Novak, will you raise your right hand,
pl ease?

THE HONORABLE JOSEPH NOVAK, having been duly sworn,

testifies as fol | ows:

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  You have before you your PDQ your
Personal Data Questionnaire and your Sworn
Statement. Are those both docunents you have
submtted to the Conm ssion?

JUDGE NOVAK: Yes, sir, they are.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  Are they correct?

JUDGE NOVAK: They are.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that need to
be nmade at this time?

JUDGE NOVAK:  No, sir.

CHAI RVAN SM TH: Do you have any objection to us
maki ng those as exhibits to your sworn testinony
here today?

JUDGE NOVAK:  No, sir, | do not.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Wthout objection, we'll
make those exhibits to the sworn testinony here
today. Judge, the Judicial Merit Selection

Comm ssi on has thoroughly investigated your
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qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry is
focused on nine evaluative criteria, and has
i ncluded a ballot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance with state ethics | aws, search of
newspaper articles in which your nane appears,
study of previous screenings and checks for
econom c conflicts of interest. W’ ve received
no affidavits in opposition to your candi dacy
today, and there are no witnesses present to
testify. Do you wish to nmake a brief opening
statenent to the Conm ssion?

(IExhi bit Nunber 10/ was marked for identification

pur poses - (17 pages) - Personal Data Questionnaire

for The Honorabl e Douglas L. Novak.)

(IExhi bit Nunber 11/ was marked for identification

pur poses - (6 pages) - Sworn Statenent of The

Honor abl e Dougl as L. Novak.)

(IExhi bit Nunber 12 was marked for identification

pur poses - (2 pages) - Anendnent to Personal Data

Questionnaire for The Honorabl e Douglas L. Novak.)

JUDGE NOVAK: | know you’ ve had plenty before ne and
nore after me. | wll dispense with an opening
statement. | just thank you for the opportunity.

CHAl RMAN SM TH. Ckay. Thank you very nuch. Answer
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JUDGE NOVAK:  Yes, sir.
JUDGE NOVAK - EXAM NATI ON BY MR FI FFI CK:

Q

Q
MR FIFFICK: M. Chairman, | note for the record that

any questions counsel nmay have for you.

Judge Novak, please state for the record the city
and circuit in which you reside.

Bluffton, which is in Beaufort County. And that
Is in the 14th Grecuit.

Thank you, sir.

based on the testinony contained in the

candi date’ s PDQ, which has been included in the
record with the candidate’s consent, Judge Novak
meets the statutory requirenents for this
position regarding age, residence and years of
practice.

Judge Novak, why do you want to serve as a Famly
Court judge, and why do you feel your |egal and
prof essi onal experience qualify and will assist
you to be an effective judge?

| would tell the menbers of the Comm ssion,

don’t know that | ever intentionally put nyself
on a road to this position where | find nyself
today offered for this candidacy, for this
judgeship. But | would tell you |l came froma

famly of six kids so |'mnot sure Fam |y Court
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was going to be conpletely out of my wheel house.
| went to | aw school, wasn’t sure where | was
going to practice but found ny way into a famly
law clinic. M first job out of |aw school was
as a special grant attorney representing
juveniles in the public defender’s office. Wen
| noved over to the solicitor’s office, in
addition to general sessions work, | also rode
the circuit prosecuting those sane juvenile

adj udi cations. Every lawfirml’ ve worked in to
date | have always handled the law firms Famly
Court practice. About ten years ago when |

deci ded to hang ny own shingle, and since that
time, |1’ve done al nost exclusively Famly Court
litigation. About seven years ago | was tapped
to be a magistrate and very quickly realized the
magi strate’s court docket and the Fam |y Court
docket didn't necessarily jive all the tinme. So
| devel oped a nedi ation practice, which has
turned into a very successful practice where |'m
nmedi ati ng upward of two conplex Fam |y Court
cases a week, which has been very rewarding. And
to supplenment that work, |1’ve also done a great
deal of guardian work where |’ m appoi nted by the

Fam |y Court judges and col | eagues to represent
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juveniles in Famly Court. So while I don’t know
that there was a determned path, | do feel like
there’'s sonmeone with a bigger hand out there that
was having ne in this systemfor a reason.

Thank you, Judge. Judge Novak, are there any
areas of the | aw which you woul d need additi onal
preparation in order to serve as a Famly Court

j udge, and how woul d you handl e that additional
preparation?

| would say based on that experience that | just
outlined, | feel like I've been in every nook and
cranny of the Famly Court system | certainly
am of fering ny candi dacy today as an attorney,
but an attorney who has been practicing in the
Famly Courts of our state for 26 years now, as
hard as that is to believe. But |I'malso
offering, and | think just as inportantly, as a
dad, as a husband, as a guardian, as a nedi ator,
as a judge and as a small business owner. |
think all those matters are inportant and
relevant in Famly Court. There's one area |’'ve
not done, juvenile justice, in quite a few years,
but it’s also where | started and cut ny teeth,
so |l don't feel like getting up to speed in that

area wll take too nuch work.
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Thank you, sir. 1In addition to what you’ ve
already told the Conmm ssion, please briefly
descri be your experience in handling conplex,
contested Famly Court matters and specifically
di scuss your experience with the financial
aspects of Famly Court work.

Certainly. In the private litigation and Famly
Court world, |’ve represented innunerable clients
in that world. And obviously that’s nuch nore
than just custody and visitation cases, that has
to do with child support, spousal support,

di vision of assets, sonetinmes nore inportantly,

di vision of debts, and that certainly is a
regul ar mainstay of litigation. As |’ve noved
into nediation, with all due respect to ny

col | eagues that still litigate on a regul ar

basis, | think nediation requires a different

| evel of experience and expertise, in that you're
given the materials usually the night before or
the norning of the nediation and you have to

qui ckly figure out exactly what's going on in the
case, what the assets are, what the debts are,
what the liabilities are going to court, earn the
parties’ trust and still work themtowards a

resol ution sonmewhere in the mddle that they can
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buy into and invest. So that would be the
experience that | bring to the bench.

Judge Novak, the Conm ssion received 234 ball ot
box surveys regarding you with 23 additi onal
coments. The ball ot box survey, for exanple,
contained the follow ng positive comments:
Excel | ent, amazi ng, inpeccable reputation and the
very best in judicial tenperanment. The only
negative witten comment expressed that you were
haughty, politically notivated, and not well
versed in |law, unpredictable and | ack of good
work ethic. Wat would offer to respond to these
concerns?

| would tell the nmenmbers of the Conm ssion, since
| learned of that coment, | have |ost sleep over
t hat comment because it is so far away from who |
am as a person on the bench or off the bench.

But as | just said, |'"'ma dad, |I'’ma husband, |I'm
an attorney, so |I’mnot adverse to criticism |

certainly would take it as constructive

criticism | have taken it as constructive
criticismsince |l learned of it. But | would
al so nention, when | becane a magistrate, |I'm

rem nded of a judge that’'s ol der and nuch w ser

than nyself that |'’malso very proud to call ny
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dad told ne, son, when you' re on the bench you be
the judge that you want to appear in front of,
and you wear the robe lightly. And those are
words that have stuck with me. | certainly
approach the bench in that respect. That is not
a judge that | would want to appear in front of.
And | certainly hope that |I have an opportunity -
- whoever that person was, to have anot her
opportunity so they see that’'s not the way | am
on a daily basis.

Thank you, sir. Judge Novak, how woul d you
conpare your experience as a nediator with your
experiences as a nmgi strate?

Two different worlds, obviously. The nediation
has been exclusively in the Famly Court world.
The magi strate world is civil and crimnal. |It’s
been a good outl et because it’s a good diversion.
It’s something conpletely different. The

magi strate -- when | first joined the nmagistrate
bench, | had practiced for a nunber of years and
t hought that joining as a judge woul d be an easy
transition for nme. You knew everything, howto
do it. Getting on the bench, you |learn that
there’s a steep learning curve, which is

i mportant, | think, to realize in that there’'s a
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part in.
Q Thank you, sir
MR FIFFICK: | would note that the Low Country

| ot going on. You have to not only rule on the
case but you have to rule on procedure and rul es
and know what’'s going on in the courtroom
There’'s just a lot to learn and that’s where | --
|"d like to think that "'mcomng to the Fam |y
Court world, as far as offering for this
position, with sone experience. So |I’mnot going
to have to learn fromday one to actually have

t hat experience. \Wereas the nediation world, as
| just outlined, it’s a lot of very quick

| earning as to exactly what’'s going, using your
experience and your expertise to try to earn
peoples’ trust in a very short anount of time to

bring themto a resolution that they have taken a

Citizens Commttee found Judge Novak to be well
qualified in the evaluative criteria of ethical
fitness, professional and academi c ability,
character, reputation, experience and judici al

t enperanment and found qualified in the evaluative
criteria of physical health, nmental stability.
And the Report also stated that Judge Novak is

very well qualified, very personable, projects
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wel |, caring, energetic, plus experienced as a
j udge, super candi date.
Judge Novak, | now have sone housekeepi ng i ssues

for you. Judge Novak, are you aware that as a
judicial candidate you are bound by the Code of
Judi ci al Conduct that's found in Rule 501 of the
South Carolina Appellate Court Rul es?

Yes, sir.

Judge Novak, since submtting your Letter of

I ntent, have you contacted any nenbers of the
Conm ssi on about your candi dacy?

| have not.

Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the General
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

Yes, sSir.

Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

| have not.

Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to

intervene in this process on your behal f?
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A No, sir.
Q Have you reviewed and do you understand the
Comm ssion’s guidelines on pledging in South
Carol i na Code 2-19-70(e)?
A Yes, sir.
MR FIFFICK: | would just note for the record that

any concerns raised during the investigation
regardi ng the candidate were incorporated into
t he questioning of the candidate today. M.
Chai rman, | have no further questions.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. M. Safran noves we go in
Executive Session real quick. Seconded by M.
Strom Al in favor say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RMVAN SM TH:  Ayes have it. W’'re going into
Executi ve Session,

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

CHAIRVAN SM TH: M. Safran noves that we |ift the
veil and conme out of Executive Session, seconded
by Vice Chairman Rankin. Al in favor say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)
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CHAIRVAN SM TH:  The ayes have it. W’'re out of

Executive Session. Let nme state while we were in
Executive Session we were discussing a
confidential nmatter, and there were no votes
taken and no matters decided while in Executive
Session. Al right. So any questions for Judge

Novak? Senator Young.

JUDGE NOVAK - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG

Q

O > O »F

Judge Novak, thank you for your interest in
continuing your service to the state on the

Fam |y Court bench. |[|’ve read over your Personal
Data Questionnaire and | have some questions.
The thing | did notice is it |ooks |ike you
worked in the governor’s office --

Yes, sir, | did.

-- as an attorney?

CGovernor David Beasl ey.

Yeah, | was going to say, was that Governor

Beasl ey.

It was, yes, Sir.

And it |ooks |ike you worked on issues involving
t he Savannah River site?

Yes, sir, | did.

How did you end up assigned to do that work?

That's a very strange question because | cane
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right fromthe solicitor’s office into the
governor’'s office. But that’'s who the attorney
was -- had ny position previously, that was her
area so | had to get up to speed very quickly and
becone i nmersed in the nucl ear power world.

And that can be very conplicated?

It can be very conpli cat ed.

Do you believe that you have enough experience to
handl e cases invol ving equitable distribution?
Yes, sir.

Okay. And do you believe that you’' ve handl ed
enough cases invol ving juvenile sentencing?

know you used to be a solicitor.

Yes, sir, I was. | was a solicitor and a public
defender. At this point I'mprimarily doing
guardian work so it’s not as nmuch in the juvenile
justice area.

What is your -- | know that Representative

Rut herford’ s not here today. And if he was here,
he’ d probably want to know what your viewis on
sentencing of juveniles and kind of what your
view is on that.

Obviously 1’ ve been follow ng the |egislation
closely. | know that it’s been an ongoi ng debate

about the age of juveniles. And | would tell you
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that | think that the recent nove on the 17 year

ol ds was probably a smart one. |’ve never been a
big believer that -- as nuch as |I'ma fan of
accountability as a solicitor, |I’ve never been a

bel i ever that 17 year olds in the adult prison
system where they're going to | earn anything that
was going to help themrehabilitate thensel ves.
So | think unburdening the general session
system noving to the Famly Court system is
probably smart, giving thema little nore sense
of environment to rehabilitate and get back on
track. At the same tinme, | also believe that the
Famly Court’s got to come up with sone uni que
prograns to be able to deal with those uni que
situations.

What is your view of parents who don’t pay child
support timely? How would you handl e those
cases?

It’s sonething we run into on a regul ar basis.
And I'msorry that one of the only renmedi es that
seens to be for Famly Court is to put people in
jail. Although I’'ve had plenty of experiences
wth plenty of judges to see how they handle it,
where it’s not an absol ute decision whet her they

put injail. They're given an opportunity.
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They’'re rem nded how inportant it is. And |I’ve
al so seen situations in nediations where parents
have tried to negotiate away child support. And
| certainly try to remnd themthat that’s not
their right to negotiate it away. |It’'s the
child s right to be supported. So | think it's a
very inportant elenment but | think it also needs
to be handled by the court very carefully to nake
sure that the person understands why it’s

i mportant, and that it’s also inportant for them
to make sure it gets paid.

And every case is different?

Absol utel y.

So in the area of abuse and negl ect cases, do you
have any suggesti ons on how the system can be

I nproved for the famlies and children who are in
t hose cases?

| think the nost inportant thing -- and | guess |
woul d draw on ny experience as a solicitor,
having dealt with those cases, and even as a

magi strate. |’mrem nded of a case not too |ong
ago where a doctor had cone in for a restraining
order and secured that restraining order against
t he defendant who didn’t show up. And within an

hour of that doctor returning hone wth the
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restraining order physically in his hand, was
shot six tinmes by the defendant. So |I'mrem nded
how i nportant it is what we do. And | think from
t hat perspective, having judges on the bench that
have real -worl d experience both in the system and
life experience to be able to identify which
cases demand extra tinme and attention, is very

I mportant. So you can identify those cases
versus -- unfortunately there’'s many cases in the
DSS world and the Fam |y Court world where
litigants are just trying to gane the systemto
try to get leverage. So | would say identifying
t hose cases that the need extra tine and
attention are very inportant.

| n Beaufort County have you seen where there has
been nedi ati on of abuse and negl ect cases?
Specifically?

Like in the -- we heard this norning that they’ve
had success nediating in Horry County abuse and
negl ect cases.

Vell, we certainly get cases -- | certainly get
cases in ny office where there's allegations of
abuse and negl ect, which nakes it a little nore
difficult, because usually there’'s a no contact

order involved. So having the parties in the
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sane buil ding di scussing and negoti ati ng makes
things difficult, but certainly those are issues
that are sacrosanct. You can’'t involve the
crimnal with the Famly Court world. And so
that's very inportant to renmenber, as we're
medi ati ng cases, that we can resolve the Famly
Court issues a great many times as far as the no
contact order, that goes with the Famly Court.
Where there’'s a restraining and crim nal orders,
it’s a conpletely separate systemand we can’t
mel d the two.

Q That’s all the questions. Thank you very nuch.

A Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Any further questions?

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Judge Novak, let nme just reiterate
what, | think, was pointed out. |[|’ve |ooked
t hrough your ball ot box survey. |’ve |ooked
t hrough your Citizens Commttee Report and | ooked
t hrough your Bar Report. And the prevailing
thene of all those are you have an excell ent
tenperanment and well suited for this position.
So | think it’s nice to see that. And we talk
about receiving anonynous surveys and anyone from

the Bar, and you’ve obviously had to serve as a
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JUDGE NOVAK:  Thank you, sir.
CHAI RVAN SM TH:  And so appreciate that. Wthout any

magi strate for sone period of tinme, and, you
know, | presune always -- old |awer, | see his
picture up on the wall over there. He was a
senator at one time from Sunter used to comment
that the magistrate’s court was what we call the
peopl e’s court because nost citizen's

I nteractions were with the magistrate court. And
so obviously you' ve had sone interaction with a

| ot of people over there. And you're in Beaufort
County and it appears to ne that, at |east from
the attorneys who could anonynously say whet her
you're doing a good job or a horrible job, and
you really have no way to figure it out, they al
are overwhel mngly saying you re well qualified
for this position, have a great judicial

t enperanment, would nake a fine judge, so that'’s
nice to see. So | congratulate you on that on
the job you're doing as a magistrate and the
reputation you've earned over your years as

practicing | aw

further questions, this will conclude this
portion of your screening process. Let ne remnd

you that pursuant to the Conmm ssion’s eval uative
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criteria the Conm ssion expects candi dates to

follow the spirit as well as the letter of the

ethics laws. And we will view violations or the

appearance of inpropriety as serious and

potentially deserving of heavy weight in the

screeni ng deliberations. As you know, the record
Wil remain open until the formal release of the

Report of Qualifications. You may be called back

at such time if the need arises. Thank you for
offering for this position, and thank you for
your service to the State of South Carolina.

JUDGE NOVAK: Thank you, sir. And thank y'all for
your service. | appreciate it.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Have a safe trip back
hone.

JUDGE NOVAK: Thank you very nuch.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Take care. M. Strom
noves we go in Executive Session, seconded by
Representative Murphy. Al in favor say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed?

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RMAN SM TH.  The ayes have it. W are nowin
Executive Sessi on.

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON
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CHAl RMAN SM TH:  Senat or Saab noves that we cone out
of Executive Session, seconded by M. Strom All
i n favor say aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVMAN SM TH.  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  The ayes have it. And let ne state,
while we were in Executive Session there were no
matters deci ded and no votes taken. W received
a legal briefing. W are now going to proceed to
vote on the candi dates that appeared before us
this norning. So I'lIl turn that over to you,
Erin.

VOTE

M5. CRAWFORD: Thank you, M. Chairman. The first
candi date was the Honorable Ronald R Norton,
reelection Famly Court, Fifteenth Crcuit, Seat
3.

CHAIRVAN SM TH. Al right. M. Logan noves that we
find Judge Norton qualified and nom nated. All
in favor signify by raising your hand.

(Hands are raised.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed. Let the record reflect

that was a unani nous vote. And let nme also note

t hat Representative Rutherford has given ne his
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proxy and votes for Judge Norton to be qualified
and nom nat ed.

MS. CRAWFORD: The next candidate, the Honorable
Harold W “Bill” Funderburk, Jr., reelection ALC,
Seat 3.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Senator Saab nmakes a
motion to find himaqualified and nom nat ed,
seconded by Ms. Mclver. Al in favor, signify by
rai sing your hand.

(Hands are raised.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed?

(No replies are given.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Representative Rutherford votes his
proxy as qualified and nom nated. And let the
record reflect that the vote was unani nous.
Next ?

MS. CRAWFORD: The Honor abl e Deborah Brooks Durden,
reel ection, Adm nistrative Law Court, Seat 4.
CHAIRVAN SM TH. Al right. M. Mlver noves that we

find Judge Durden qualified and nom nated,
seconded by M. Strom Al in favor,
signify by raising your hand.
(Hands are raised.)
CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are given.)
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CHAIRVAN SM TH: Let the record reflect that
Representative Rutherford had voted Judge Durden
to be qualified and nom nated and that this vote
was unani nous. Next?

M5. CRAWFORD: M. Chairman, for the Famly Court,
Fourteenth Crcuit, Seat 2, we have two
candi dates. They are Jean K MCorm ck and the
Honor abl e Dougl as L. Novak.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Representative Mirphy
noves that we find both of the candi dates
qualified. Al in favor, please raise your hand.

(Hands are raised.)

CHAI RVAN SM TH: Let the record reflect that
Representative Rutherford votes his proxy,
finding all the candidates qualified, and the
vote was unani nous. And we’'ll nove to ballot on
the two. Senator Saab noves that we nom nate
Jean K. McCorm ck, seconded by M. Safran. Al
In favor, raise your right hand.

(Hands are raised.)

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  And let the record reflect
Representative Rutherford has voted proxy to
nom nate her. And then for Douglas Novak, M.
Safran noves that we find Judge Novak -- that we

nom nat e Judge Novak, and that’'s seconded by
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Senator Rankin. All in favor, raise your hand.
(Hands are raised.)

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. And let the record
reflect that Representative Rutherford votes for
himto be qualified and nom nated, and that the
vote was unaninous. Al right. Wth that being
said, we'll adjourn into Executive Session.
Representative Mirphy noves we go into Executive
Session, seconded by Senator Saab. Al in favor,
say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAI RVMAN SM TH:  Al'l opposed.

(No replies are heard.)

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: W' re going to adjourn and eat |unch
and receive a legal briefing. W’II| probably be
back and try to start in the next 45 m nutes.

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Back on the record. Representative
Mur phy noves we |ift the veil, seconded by
Senator Rankin. Al in favor say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)
CHAI RVMAN SM TH.  Al'l opposed.
(No replies heard.)
CHAI RVAN SM TH:  The ayes have it. And let ne say,

while we were in Executive Session there were no
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votes taken and no natters decided, and we're
going to start with the candidates for the at-
| arge seat nunber 2, and we’'re going to adjust,
I f that's okay with Conmm ssion nmenbers, depending
upon who's avail abl e because we are runni ng about
45 mnutes ahead of time. So -- by an hour, so
we'll see who's here and we’ll start the
screenings.
(Of the record.)

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  Let’s go back on the record. M.
Cone, how you doi ng today?

MR CONE: |'mgood, M. Smth, how are you?

CHAIRVAN SMTH:  I'mwell. | appreciate you com ng
early and | presume you have no objection to us
t aki ng you out of order.

MR CONE: Not at all. [|'mhappy to be able to
accommodat e you

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Thank you. Appreciate it. First
time in the screening we're early.

MR CONE: |'ve heard | may be making history.

CHAIRVAN SMTH:  Yes. Al right. M. Cone, if you'll
rai se your right hand, please, sir.

MR, ROBERT CONE, having been duly sworn, testifies as

fol |l ows:

CHAIRMAN SM TH. M. Cone, before you, you have your

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 99

Personal Data Questionnaire and your Sworn
Statenent. Are those both docunents you have
submtted to the Conm ssion?

MR CONE: Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Are they both correct?

MR CONE: Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that you need
to make in those?

MR CONE: No, sir.

CHAI RMAN SM TH: Do you have any objection to us
maki ng those as exhibits to your sworn testinony
here today?

MR CONE: Not at all.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Wthout objection, we'll
make those exhibits to the sworn testinony. |If
you' Il hand those, and we will give themto the
court reporter. Al right. M. Cone, the
Judicial Merit Selection Conm ssion has
t horoughly investigated your judicial
qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry is
focused on the nine evaluative criteria, and has
I ncluded a ballot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance with state ethic | aws, search of

newspaper articles in which your nane appears,
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study of previous screenings and checks for

econom c conflicts of interest. W have received

no affidavits in opposition to your testinony
here today and no witnesses present to testify.
Do you wsh to nmake a brief opening statenent to
t he Conm ssi on?

(IExhi bit Nunber 13| was marked for identification

pur poses - (17 pages) - Personal Data Questionnaire

for Robert W Cone.)

(IExhi bi t Nunber 14/ was marked for identification

pur poses - (5 pages) - Sworn Statenment for Robert W

Cone.)

MR CONE: | will, M. Chairman, if that’s all right.

My statenent is that | have been practicing
famly law in South Carolina for 21 years. |
have worked in private practice, representing
def endants in child custody cases and divorce
cases and related matters. | also during that
time devel oped a broader experience in areas of
| aw such as probate | aw and bankruptcy work.

| ve done sone debt collection work. | also
served for a time as a nunicipal judge, so | have
sone experience in the crimnal system And for
the last, well, it’Il be 13 years shortly, |'ve

been working with the Departnment of Social
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CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Thank you very nuch.

Servi ces handling abuse and negl ect cases for the
Department. First as a contract attorney, and
then since 2012 |'ve been a full-tine attorney
wth the Departnent. Famly court is where |
spend the bulk of ny tine. | amvery nuch aware
of the inportance Famly Court judges play to the
system the kind of work that they have to do.
It’s -- while it’s always a great honor to be

el ected to any judgeship, | amfirst to

acknow edge that Fam |y Court judges have to work
awfully hard and have to keep odd hours. They're
not the kind of judge that gets to | eave every
day at 5:00 o' clock but neither aml. | don't

| eave early. |I'mhere to work and I have been
for a nunber of years now, so for ne, serving in
the Famly Court is the next step in ny -- | hope
the next step in ny career. It’s how |’ve always
wanted to end ny career in state service. And |
feel that | bring a |ot of experience in these
areas dealing with a lot of conplex and difficult
I ssues, and would | ook forward to the opportunity
to serve the people of South Carolina in that

capacity.

W1l you answer any questions that counsel may
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MR CONE: Yes, sir.
M5. DEAN.  Thank you, M. Chairman.

MR CONE -
Q

A

M5. DEANN M. Chairman, | note for the record that

have for you, please?

EXAM NATI ON BY MS. DEAN

M. Cone, please state for the record the city
and circuit in which you reside.

| reside in Geenwood, South Carolina, and that’s
in the Eighth Judicial Crcuit.

based on the testinony contained in the

candi date’ s PDQ, which has been included in the
record with the candidate's consent, M. Cone
meets the statutory requirenents for this
position regarding age, residence and years of
practice.

M. Cone, why do you want to serve as a Famly
Court judge, and why do you feel that your |ega
and professional experience qualify and wl|
assist you to be an effective judge?

M/ -- the reason | want to be a Fam |y Court
judge, as | said in ny opening statenment, we need
good judges. It’s a hard job that has to nake
difficult decisions frequently with not a |ot of
information and not a lot of time to do the kind

of research that you mght like. You have to do
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It wthout a |ot of support staff and frequently
wth not alot of -- not necessarily a | ot of

I nformation being presented to you, but at the
sane tinme you re called upon to nake life
changi ng deci sions that affect parents, husbands,
wi ves, children and have |ifel ong consequences.
My experience has been that | have had to deal

W th those issues. |’ve had to nmake those kind
of decisions wthout necessarily all the
information 1’'d like to have and have had to nake
t hose tough calls about what needs to happen
next, whether that's term nating parents’
parental rights, giving custody to a grandparent
over a parent or barring children fromever
seeing a parent again or splitting famlies up
across state lines, if need be. | believe w
need good people in the state who are able and
w lling to make those decisions. And while |
can’t say that I'mfilled with wi sdom and al ways
have the right answer, one of the inportant
qualities needed in judges is the willingness to
make a decision. And |I’'ve never had a problem
maki ng deci si ons, even on the tough calls.

Thank you. M. Cone, are there any areas of the

| aw for which you woul d need additi onal
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preparation in order to serve as a Famly Court

j udge, and how woul d you handl e getting that
addi ti onal preparation?

The main area that | woul d have sonme concern
about, while I’ ve been involved in Departnent of
Juvenile Justice hearings to sone extent, because
there is overlap between those hearings and with
t he Departnent of Social Services, | have not --
that’s not been -- and |’ ve been a guardi an ad
litema fewtinmes in juvenile justice cases. |
have not practiced extensively in that area. So
| would want to spend some time not only
reviewi ng the law regarding juvenile justice
cases, but also |I'd be consulting with other

j udges and attorneys who have -- do practice in
that area to make sure | understand all the

ram fications of those and the various options
that are open for dealing with juveniles.

They're related to what we do at DSS, but they
are different. They have different consequences
and different choices that are available to them
that are not -- that don't apply in a civil
matter. So that would be nmy -- I'd say that’s ny
maj or weakness in ternms of not being as

confortable in that area of the | aw

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 105

Thank you. M. Cone, please briefly describe
your experience in handling conplex, contested
Fam |y Court matters and specifically discuss
your experience with financial aspects of Fam |y
Court work.

| have handled -- in terns of conplex matters,

t he nost conplex ones | deal with financially

tend to -- I’ve handl ed several matters that
i nvolved a fam |y business where -- and it was
operated by one spouse but not -- and the parties

were separating and were having to try to conme up
wth a valuation of what the business was worth
and how you nake the -- how can you determ ne
what interest, if any, the other spouse who' s not
I nvolved in the business is entitled to, and how
do you conpensate with that w thout destroying

t he business by forcing it to liquidate or to

I ncur substantial debt. Those are -- and |I’ve
also just dealt with the difficulty -- I’'ve had
several cases where |’ve had very high incone
famlies where the incone was generated by one
spouse, and the other spouse had either no inconme
or little income and woul d have to deal with
pretty contentious issues about alinony and child

support in those situations. Mbst of themwe
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were able to resolve by negotiation ultimtely,
but you have to be confortable with the fact that
-- and be able to articulate why you believe a
person is entitled to alinony. That's becom ng a
nore conpl ex issue these days with nore and nore
t wo-i ncome househol ds, but you still have to deal
wth the fact that if you have one parent that's
maki ng $250, 000 a year and the other spouse nakes
30, you've got to find a way to equalize that and
make it fair to both sides. So those are the

I ssues that | certainly had spent a | ot of tine,
usually with either -- | think nost of the ones
|"ve dealt with we ultimately resol ved either

t hrough nedi ation or through an informa
conference. |’ve had to try one case on the

I ssue of alinony where a substan- -- you know,
where there was a substantial award, nore of a --
| think it ended up being about $2,000 a nonth in
alimony, but it was for a finite period of tine.
It was not permanent. It was for -- | think we
ended up doing it for seven years, so the wife --
| represented the wife -- so she could go back to
school and conpl ete her educati on.

Thank you, M. Cone. The Conm ssion received 173

bal | ot box surveys regarding you with 27
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addi tional comments. The ballot box survey, for
exanpl e contai ned the foll ow ng positive
coments: M. Cone woul d make an out st andi ng
addition to the bench. He is know edgeabl e and
even tenpered in the best sense of the word.
Along with, M. Robert Cone has an excellent
judicial tenperanment, incredible grasp of the |aw
and the respect of |awers he works with. He
woul d be an incredible judge. One of the witten
concerns expressed -- one of the witten coments
expressed concern. That comrent had a concern
regardi ng your experience with donmestic relations
in juvenile justice. What would you offer as a

response to that?

Vell, | think as | nentioned on the juvenile
justice, | have not handled a | arge nunber of
those cases. So | would agree | don't -- but
again, I'mfamliar with the process, and | had

to work with a ot of juvenile delinquents in ny
-- and children who have dual involvenent with
social services and DJJ, so | don't see that as
any kind of insurnountable obstacle. |’ m not
sure why they would say that |I'’mnot com -- |
woul dn’t be experienced in donestic relations

law. |1’ ve handl ed divorces, child custody and
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rel ated actions for over a decade before | came
to work full tinme for the Departnment of Soci al
Services, and |'ve served as a guardian ad litem
In custody disputes. |[|’ve represented husbands
and wives in divorce actions as well as parents
on both side in child custody proceedings, so
It’s unfortunate that soneone feels that way, but
| don't really think -- | just have to
respectfully disagree with them | think | have
enough experience to handle it.

Thank you. M. Cone, your SLED check noted two

| awsuits. One was McKinney v. Arahill. Do you
remenber your involvement with that case?

Yes. That was a dispute involving sone real
estate, and | was a trustee for one of the naned
litigants. It was a child, and so | was naned in
the suit because ny ward under the trust was
nanmed as a party as far as adjudicating sone
Interest in a piece of real property.

Thank you. M. Cone, you' re also, we believe,
named in a second lawsuit filed in 2013 in the

U S District of South Carolina dealing with a
Teresa L. King. You have since provided
docunentation that that was actually a Ceneral
Robert W Cone --
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A Yes, nma’ am

Q -- and you're not a general, correct?

A Unfortunately, no. | think that would be a great
way to start ny mlitary career but | don't think
t hat woul d work out.

Q Thank you.

A | was very interested to find out there was
anot her Robert W Cone roam ng around and getting
sued in South Carolina.

Q And you're listed as a plaintiff in Newton v.

Cal dwel | but you were actually the attorney
representing the plaintiff in that case?

A Yes. That was an eviction action. | represented
the plaintiff, but the county website listed ne
as plaintiff rather than plaintiff’s attorney.

Q Thank you, M. Cone, for going through those with
us. M. Cone, what inprovenents to the Famly
Court would you seek to make if you were serving
on the Famly Court bench?

A Vell, if | could -- in terns of inprovenents, as

| said, one of the struggles we deal with right
now in all types of cases is we' ve got too many
cases and not enough court tine and not enough

judges. So a lot of that is outside the control

of menbers of the judiciary as far as the nunber
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of judges. And for nme what you can do is focus
on -- as a judge is focus on what is wthin your
control, which is to nmake sure you’ re operating
your courtroomas efficiently as possible, that
you' re maki ng good use of the tine that’'s

avail able. | still get troubled when | wal k
around sonme of the courthouses that | visit and
there may be judges presiding but cases have been
settled, and they re just kind of there finishing
up paperwork, but they’ re not conducting
hearings. And | know full well there are people
who’ ve been waiting two years, three years, you
know, to have their case heard in court. | think
that there is nore judges can do to be aggressive
about schedul i ng hearings and maki ng sure that,
even though it may inconveni ence people at tines,
we’'ve -- at DSS we’ ve been noving towards using a
mul ti pl e-day docketing to where we have nmultiple
cases set for the sane day, even though we know
we can’'t reach all of them and we get push back,
and we get conplaints fromsone of the litigants
because we nmeke them cone to court. But our
explanation is always we don’t want to -- we’ ||
waste a day of court tinme because we settled the

first case and then there’s nothing el se

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 111

schedul ed for the day. 1[1’'d rather have four
cases and if we settle two and try one, we still
took care of three. And | think that can be
done, not only in the context of DSS, but also in
private matters. And fromwhat | -- sone
counties do that but | notice it seens to be
uneven across the state whether they' re doing
that or not, taking advantage of what we call ABC
docketing and scheduling cases. | think if
you're a judge, you're there working from38:30 to
5:00 the sane as every other enpl oyee, and you
ought to be using that tinme to resol ve disputes.
That’s what you're there to do.

Thank you, M. Cone. And what chall enges do you
anticipate facing fromthe Famly Court bench if
you're elected to serve?

Well, again, the flip side of what | just said is
whil e there are days you nmay not have nuch to do,
there are al so days where you have 30 cases to
hear. And as | nentioned, one of the chall enges
| see is trying -- is trying to make good
decisions in a very short span of tinme with very
limted information. The reality is, you know - -
| think one of the challenges is how do you nake

those decisions in a 15-mnute hearing or a 30-
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Q
MS. DEAN: | would note that the Piednont Citizens

m nute hearing. Still making a good deci sion
that’s going to be fair tothe litigants and fair
to the parties, but at the sane tine nove al ong
so that everybody who's waiting for their day in
court gets it done. Tinme nanagenent is a
struggle and | know it's up and down. There are
days where you think you have a ot to do and it
goes away quickly. But then you have other days
where you have so nmuch to do it’s hard to get
done. End of the day, | know fromny work |’ve
been doi ng over the |ast decade, that’'s a huge
problemin the Departnent of Social Services
arena. W have, you know, cases that are -- |I'm
trying a case next week where the children have
been in foster care for four years. And that's
unacceptable but we’'re going to finally get it
done because those kids need to know where

they' re going once and for all. But it's a
frustration that it’'s dragged on that | ong.

Thank you, M. Cone.

Conmttee found M. Cone qualified in the
eval uative criteria of constitutional
qual i fications, physical health and nental

stability. The Piednont Citizens Commttee found
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M. Cone well qualified in the criteria of
ethical fitness, professional and academ c
ability, character, reputation, experience and
judicial tenperament. The Piednont Citizens
Conm ttee added the foll ow ng conments: M. Cone
served as a private practitioner with a heavy
famly | aw enphasis for over ten years before
joining the Departnent of Social Services, where
he has served as a practicing | awer and a
managi ng |l awer at nultiple levels. He would
bring to the Fam |y Court bench a breadth and
depth of Famly Court experience, especially in
child abuse and negl ect cases that woul d be of
great service to our state.

| just have sonme housekeeping issues now, Sir.
M. Cone, are you aware that as a judici al

candi date you are bound by the Code of Judici al
Conduct as found in rule 501 of the South
Carolina Appellate Court Rul es?

Yes, | am

M. Cone, since submtting your Letter of Intent,
have you contacted any nmenbers of the Conm ssion
about your candi dacy?

No, | have not.

Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including the
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limtations on contacting nenbers of the General

Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

A. | am

Q Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator,
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

A | have not.

Q M. Cone, have you asked any third parties to
contact nenbers of the General Assenbly on your
behal f, or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

A | haven’t asked anyone and |’ m not aware of
anyone doing that for ne.

Q Thank you. Have you reviewed and do you
under stand the Comm ssion’s gui delines on
pl edging in South Carolina Code 8§ 2-19-70(e)?

A. | am

M5. DEAN. | would just note for the record that any

concerns raised during the investigation
regarding M. Cone were incorporated into the
guestioning of himtoday. M. Chairman, | have

no further questions.

CHAIRMAN SM TH:  All right. Any questions for M.

Cone?
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MR CONE -
Q

EXAM NATI ON BY CHAI RVAN SM TH;

M. Cone, let ne start off with just a couple of
questions. And Senator Young had to step out
briefly but one area we’ve been asking people
about is the Department of Social Services. And
| see you're an attorney with the Departnent of
Social Services. You' ve been there how | ong?

| worked as a contract attorney for themfrom
2006 until 2012 and becane a full-time attorney
in 2012.
And | notice in your PDQ you' re doing a region
maybe or three counties?

| started out as the managing attorney for
G eenwood, for the Eighth Crcuit, which is
G eenwood, Abbeville, Newberry and, |ater,
Laurens. And through 2016 | becane the regiona
attorney where | supervise the |egal departnents
for the Eighth, Second and El eventh Grcuits,
which is the Lexington and Aiken area. And as of
July, | amnow the assistant nanagi ng attorney
statew de for our |egal operations.
(kay. Are you still operating out of G eenwood,
or are you operating here in Col unbi a?
Technically my office is in Geenwood. |’'mhere

in Colunbia two or three days a week, depending
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Q

on what ny schedul e has.

And you nentioned you ve got to try a case here
next week or sonething. Are you still having to
handl e abuse and negl ect cases?

At this point |I am handling sone cases that have
become particularly problematic for the agency
and are taking up nore tinme and resources than
the county legal staff are really able to do and
keep up with their regular case |load, so -- and
this case is one of those.

So you get that difficult cases that nobody el se
want s, huh?

That's -- yes, sir. That's a fair assessnent.
So you’ ve obviously been doing this abuse and
neglect, and | think, not to be critical of the
agency, but DSS has had a | ot of scrutiny over

t he past few years and obviously a | ot involved
in the children’s first lawsuit. On your end of
it with abuse and negl ect, what ways are there
that, you know, if you had a nmagi c wand, woul d

you hel p inprove the systenf

A magi c wand. Well, the easy answer everyone
says is, well, nore funding, nore staff, nore
resour ces.

We hear that often.
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| m sure you hear that a lot. To be nore
specific, | think the biggest issue that |’ve
seeninny tine at DSSis we've got to find a way
to stemthe brain drain. M experience is it

t akes about three to five years to nake a good
DSS casewor ker who knows their job and

under stands what the job is. And a good
supervi sor needs to be there for about five to
seven years. R ght now we're turning over staff
at about a year and a half, maybe two years.

W' re supervisors who have three years or |ess of
experience. And the reality is you just can't
learn -- this job’s an art, it’s not a science,
and we’re not running MDonald's. W can't just
gi ve you the color-coded instruction sheet, say
do it this way and it’ Il be fine. And until we
address that problem we’'re going to struggle,
because -- and we have that on the |egal side
too. We turn over a lot of attorneys, and it
troubles ne that frankly I'’mone -- | consider
nysel f one of the new guys at DSS and it turns
out I"'mactually one of the old guys, which is
quite discouraging for me but that’s where we are
ri ght now.

That’s the one thing that |I’ve cone to notice. |
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was going to ask about that. |1’ve seen a |ot of
turnover in the legal departnment over at DSS, not
only in Colunbia to sone degree, but also at the
county level. Wy is that?

We have three categories of attorneys. The vast
majority of the attorneys in our agency are
classified as Attorney Ils. Their average

sal ary’ s about $55,000 a year. Qur Attorney
I1ls, who tend to be the managi ng | evel attorneys
-- we don’t have many of them but they nake
about between 60 and 65 for the nost part. And
the problemis they' ' re asked to carry a casel oad
of 100 plus cases or nore, be in trial sonetines
as many as four days a week, and we give thema
set of expectations that is at best difficult, if
not inpossible to neet, in terns of getting
orders produced tinmely, getting their paperwork
caught up, noticing hearings and so forth. It’'s
alot of work. And the truth is you could go
into private practice and chase DU cases and
sinple divorces and do a few real estate
transactions and the occasi onal personal injury
case, and you’'ll nmake nore noney than $55, 000 a
year or even $65,000 a year. So it’'s very

difficult to conpete. And we’'re at a situation
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now, we're finding that even the | egal services,
whi ch provides, you know, aid for indigent
parties, they pay their attorneys nore than we
pay ours. That's awfully hard -- and the
attorney generals and solicitor’s offices. It’'s
just hard to conpete. You know, good, talented
peopl e are going to nove on.

You know, one thing | found interesting |ast

year, | had a phil osophical concern with the
bill, but there was a bill that was pl aced --
actually made it out of the judiciary commttee
and was on the floor of the House that
essentially said that attorneys who represent the
Departnment of Social Services need to have --
take into consideration that their sole duty was
not to represent the desires of the caseworkers
In essence. And basically saying you have to do
what you believe as an attorney is in the best

I nterest, akin to being a solicitor. Your job is
not to win a conviction, your job is to nmake sure
that you see justice is carried out. And
sonetimes you have to dism ss a case that you
don't feel like you should. And so what was
perpetrated on the floor by the sponsor of this

bill was that DSS is not really concerned about
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protecting famlies or doing what's in the best

I nterest of children. They' re nore concerned
about followi ng the desires of a caseworker.

And, you know -- you know, again, it went back to
commttee as it should because | don’t think that
the General Assenbly needs to be telling
attorneys who their clients are and what their
ethical obligations are. W have rul es of

pr of essi onal conduct that dictate that to us.

But nonetheless, it was an interesting concept
that the perception out there was that the DSS
attorneys are not acting in the best interests of
the children. And, you know, | don’'t know where
that was -- how that cane about but what’s your
coment on that?

Vll, we follow the civil nodel of
representation. W'’re considered civil
attorneys, which nmeans we have to represent the
interests of our clients, and our client is the
Department of Social Services. Now what you're
di scussi ng about representing a specific

casewor ker, we shouldn’t be doing that. And we
do -- now the casewor ker obviously has a | ot of
say because they' re the ones that have worked,

you know, with the famly the nost. And | do see
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fol ks who kind of dig their heels in on a
particular issue. And certainly in ny capacity
as an attorney part of our role is as an advi sor
and | also have to informny clients all the
time. | say, look, I can’'t present sonething to
the court that, you know, against -- contrary to
the law or unethical and I'’msorry you feel this
way about this famly or about these foster
parents, or whatever, but we can’t present what
you' re asking for. It contradicts the law. And
sonetinmes ny folks are not real happy with ne
when | explain that to thembut -- so we are a
gat ekeeper, | guess, in that sense, but at the
end of the day if our client says this is what we
want, and it’s not illegal or unethical, we are
obligated to go and present that information to
the court as the agency’s recomendation in a
particular case. And | renenber when that bill
cane out it would like -- it mght swtch us to
nore of a solicitor’s nodel. What | can say
about that is there are a | ot of days where |

wi sh we had that authority because | could get a
| ot nmore done. And | could take care of sone of
the problematic -- particularly as tinme goes on,

and |’'ve becone nore experienced than a | ot of
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the caseworkers I’mdealing wwth and would Ii ke
to believe I know better than they do as far as
what’'s realistic and what’s not. But then there
are other cases where |'’mnot sure | want that
responsibility, to be honest, because those are -
- there’' s a danger there because |’ m nmaking
deci si ons about people |I’ve never net and don’t
know anyt hing about. So |I don’t know the answer.
One of the tricks about -- one of the things I
find difficult about DSS is we’'re a hybrid.

Where it’s a civil proceeding froma procedural
standpoint, but there’'s a lot of it that feels
like a crimnal proceeding. And we're trying to
nove away fromthat perception because it’s not
our -- | get a lot of fol ks who -- caseworkers
who think they’re on an epi sode of Law and O der,
and they' re going to convict parents of abuse and
negl ect, and that’s not what we do. Qur job is
totry to work with these famlies and fix what's
br oken, not -- we don’t punish people. That's --
you know, if they' ve commtted a crine, that’'s --
| aw enforcenent and the solicitor’s office takes
care of that. And sonetines there’'s over --
there’s certainly overlap with what we do, but |

get very -- it's very hard, particularly as
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I nexperience factors into that as far as not
understanding the role. And | get folks who have
the nentality of, we're going to go in there and
we’'re going to get these people. | say, we need
to get themtheir famlies back. W’re not going
to get them | nean, we're trying to help -- our
job is to help the children, first and forenost,
but not everybody understands that. And it tends
to be -- and we're a little too adversarial. But
| guess ny answer to your question, in away |'d
like to have the authority to be the final
decider, if you will, on what to do in these
cases but at the sane tine | don’t know a whol e

| ot about these people that we’'re tal king about.

And 1'd be -- I'd certainly -- if | had that kind
of authority, 1'd have to do a lot -- have a | ot
of discussions with -- and nmake sure that ny --

and it’s nmy job to nmake sure our fol ks have done

a thorough job in their investigation anyway.

And if they're not, it’s the job of our -- we try
to teach -- | spend a lot of tine instructing our
attorneys and caseworkers now to make sure -- if

you don’t do a thorough job, you know, the court

can’t nmake a good decision either. The court

gets 30 mnutes or an hour or two hours to figure
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out what’s going on with a situation that nmay
have been taking place for years. W’ve got to
paint thema picture that's conplete. O herw se,
they're just going to act on whatever little bit
of information we give them and that’s going to
be harder to lead to the right result.

Vell, that just rem nds ne back to ny days when |
did Famly Court work, and as you know, we were
all appointed at sone point before we had the 608
contracts and it rolled downhill in nmy law firm
as |’'msure it did with everyone else. And | was
usual ly the one taking the DSS appointnents for a
nunber of years. And so we would try the TPRs,
and I'lIl never forget Judge Wight Turbeville
from Manni ng woul d al ways take those a [ ot nore
serious. And he would say, that’'s the death
penalty in the Famly Court. There’'s nothing
nore akin to an action of taking soneone’'s
parental rights as soneone having to sacrifice
their life. And so, you know, he would take it
very serious and nmake sure we followed -- dotted
all the I's and crossed the Ts. And | just think
that’'s an interesting aspect of how you | ook at
the Famly Court as there are -- | nean,

obvi ously when you get involved with the
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Departnment of Social Services, there are reasons
and generally there’s sone horrific circunstances
t hat happen, but also there’'s substantial rights
t hat have to be bal anced in that regard.

And actually for nmy first -- before 2006, from
‘98 to ‘06 | was on that appointnent |ist and ny
job was at the largest lawfirmin Geenwod. |t
had 11 attorneys and | got to do all of their
appoi ntnent work too. It’s actually how I

devel oped an interest in famly | aw, because
before that | was doing insurance defense work
mainly but | found | enjoyed famly | aw work
better. But | represented parents in DSS cases
for a decade. And | have synpathy for parents

t oo because a ot of themare not evil, they're
not malicious, they re just people who have, for
one reason or another, been born into tough
circunstances. Maybe they didn’'t have, you know,
a good parent as an exanple. They have a | ot of
poverty issues. And to be honest, in sone ways
the cases we deal with involving things Iike
sexual abuse and severe physical abuse, while
they’'re horrible to participate in, they're
actually pretty easy to know what we need to do.

The harder ones are the fol ks who are just Kkind
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Q
CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Any ot her questions for M. Cone?

SENATOR YOUNG. Thank you, M. Chairnan.
MR CONE -

Q

of -- having a run of bad luck and need to know -
- you know, and are |ooking -- we should be
trying to help themrather than trying to punish
themfor having a run of bad luck in their life.
Let ne say this. | noticed on your PDQ that |aw
firmyou practiced wth | w sh you were stil
there because -- and we still had appoi ntments
because | would like for you to make sure that
Lee Roper would have to go the departnent to --
the Fam |y Court to handl e DSS cases, because |
think he would be a treat for the Famly Court

j udges.

| can see if | can get himback on the |ist.
(kay. Would you do that? Can you try to nake
sure like put himon the conflict list of 608
appointments in that circuit? Tell himit’'s
courtesy of ne.

["11 Iet himknow. I'll make sure the clerk puts
himat the top of the |ist.

Thank you very nuch.

Senat or Young.

EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG:

M. Chairman, | had to step out for a nonent. |
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had a tel ephone conference with a judge and an
attorney in a matter. And so | was not here when
you were asked a few questions, one of which is
an area that |’'mtrying to cover with a ot of

t he candi dates, and that is in the questions
about abuse and negl ect cases. | know the

Chai rman asked you sone questions. Based on your
experience wth abuse and negl ect cases, if you
could recommend ways that the system could be

I mproved for the children and the famlies in
that system what would those recommendati ons be?
Well, one of the things | nentioned is we need to
bui l d our stable of experienced caseworkers and
supervi sors. Because a |ot of the problens that
we're dealing with are the result of workers not
really understanding their role and not
under st andi ng how you do investigations and how
you provide -- you know, how you determ ne what
services are needed. W see a |ot of cookie
cutter, you know, type plans for -- and the
situations we deal with are too conplicated for
cookie cutter. You're dealing with famlies with
a wde variety of issues. To nme that's the --
the first step is dealing with the brain drain.

And -- because once you -- when | first started
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out, the Greenwood office that | worked out of,
all the caseworkers had been there for 15 plus
years, and they never had any problens. Their
cases went very well and we never had any major
probl ens, but they were experienced. And then in
the space of a year or so they all retired or
left. And now when | go up to that office, the
next nost experienced person’ s been there about
three years. So that -- and they’'re struggling a
little bit and | see that statewde. |In terns of
systens -- and we're trying various ways now to
try to streamine it. | was at a neeting today.
W' re trying to go to and create a system where
we do what we call pre nerits conferences before
trial to see if we can work out cases before
court. Only a few counties have had any sort of
formal systemto resolve disputes and neet with
the litigants ahead of tine. It’'s difficult to
sit on the courthouse steps or outside the
courtroomand try to negotiate what m ght be a

i fe-changing decision for these famlies and
dealing with defense attorneys who may have j ust
been appointed a few weeks ago and don't really
know a whol e | ot about the case thenselves. So

we're trying to build nore in where we’'re
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comruni cating with the parents earlier in the
process and are conmmunicating with -- and we're
getting them attorneys appointed as early as
possible. W'’'re trying to nove away from having
a lot of folks who are unrepresented. | think
our cases are too conplicated for the vast
majority of folks in our -- who cone -- who are
I nvolved in our cases to cone to court and defend
t hensel ves. We -- |’ve always encouraged peopl e
togo -- if they qualify for a free attorney, to
go apply for one, because we’'re going to have --
it’s going to nake ny job easier and it’s going
to make their life easier to have soneone
experienced in these issues help them And we
al so tend to get cases resolved nore quickly.

But a lot of it is training and experience and
teaching our staff how to handl e these cases and
how do you approach them As | nentioned, we’ ve
got too many fol ks who think they’'re | aw
enforcenent officials and are recreating an

epi sode of Law and Order, trying to prosecute
parents for abuse and neglect and we're there to
help them W’'re not there to prosecute them
But that's not the nentality and we’'re trying to

-- through training and other things to help
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peopl e understand that and help our staff do it.
But it’'s an art not a science, and it’'s very
difficult to communi cate that sonetines.

| had noticed that you have a senester of nedical

school .
Yes. | -- when | was in -- when | was at Furman,
| guess by way of background, | amthe son,

grandson and great-grandson of physicians. And
while | was at Furman, MJUSC at the tinme had a
program cal l ed the early assurance program where
you coul d apply during your freshman year of
college to get into nmedical school. And if you
were admtted, based on your SAT scores and

basi cal |y high school grades, you did not have to
take the MCAT, and you could enter into -- you
woul d start MJSC your first -- right after your
graduation. And | got admtted to the program
and | asked, well, do I need to major in biology
or chem stry or something like that. And they
said, oh, no, we want you to be well rounded and
study whatever you want because we're going to
give you all the science that you need when you
come to nedical school. And in that first
senester they did -- and ny description of that

Is that it’'s been like trying to drink water from
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Q
CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Any further questions?

CHAI RMAN SM TH.  Thi s concludes this portion of your

a fire hose, because they covered in a day what
woul d have been an entire senester of

bi ochem stry at Furman. And | actually passed
nost of ny classes. | flunked biochemstry. |
enj oyed sone of it but towards the end of that I
said, you know, I’mgoing to be a nediocre
doctor, because |'mnot -- | just don't have the
academ ¢ background to do it. And | was doing it
not -- necessarily because | wanted to do it but
because | thought that’s what ny father and
grandf at her woul d have wanted, to sort of keep on
the famly tradition. So after that first
senester | spent sone tine talking with ny
famly, and nmy parents, and ny dad let ne off the
hook by saying, no, | don't want you to do it
because | did it. | want you to do it because
It’s what you want, and | nmade a decision not to
go back.

Your father was a doctor in G eenwood?

He is. He just retired this past year. He's an
I nternist.

Thank you.

(No replies are heard.)
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screening process. Let ne take this opportunity
to rem nd you that pursuant to the Comm ssion’s
eval uative criteria, the Conmm ssion expects
candi dates to follow the spirit as well as the
letter of the ethics law. W will view
viol ations or the appearance of inpropriety as
serious and potentially deserving of heavy wei ght
In the screening deliberations. As you know, the
record will remain open until the formal rel ease
of the Report of Qualifications, and you nmay be
call ed back at such tine if the need arises. |
appreciate you offering for this position, and
t hank you for your service to the State of South
Car ol i na.

MR. CONE: Thank you. | thank you for your
consi derati on today.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Have a safe drive hone.

MR CONE: Thank you, sir.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Appreciate you getting here early
t 0o.

MR CONE: dad that worked out.

(Of the record.)

CHAIRVAN SM TH: Al right. Judge Able, you re an
associ ate probate judge, aren’t you?

JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir, that’s right.
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CHAIRVAN SMTH. Al right. W’Ill nake sure we called
you -- got straight on that.

JUDGE ABLE: Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: | see you' re here today and you have
a guest. Wuld you like to introduce your guest
to us, please, sir?

JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir. This is ny best friend and ny
wife, Toni. Her real nane’s Esther, we call her
Toni .

CHAI RVAN SM TH: Wl cone. Appreciate you being here
t oday.

M5. ABLE: Thank you. Thank y'all.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right, Judge Able. |If you're
rai se your right hand, please.

THE HONORABLE BRYAN C. ABLE, having been duly sworn,

testifies as follows:

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Before you, you have your
Personal Data Questionnaire and your Sworn
Statement. Are those both documents you have
submtted to the Conm ssion?

JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir.

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that you need
to make?

JUDGE ABLE: | don’t believe so, sir.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Are they both correct?
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JUDCGE ABLE: Yes, sir, to the best of ny know edge.

CHAI RMAN SM TH. Do you have any objections to us
maki ng that an exhibit to your sworn testinony
here today?

JUDGE ABLE: No, sir, | would not.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: Al right. Wthout objection, we'll
make those two exhibits to your sworn testinony.
Judge Able, the Judicial Merit Selection
Conmi ssi on has thoroughly investigated your
qualifications for the bench. Qur inquiry is
focused on nine evaluative criteria and had
I ncluded a ball ot box survey, a thorough study of
your application materials, verification of your
conpliance with state ethics | aws, search of
newspaper articles in which your nane appears, a
study of previous screenings and checks for
econom c conflicts of interest. W have received
no affidavits in opposition to your candi dacy
today, and there are no witnesses present to
testify. Do you wish to nmake a brief opening
statenent to the Conm ssion?

(IExhi bi t Nunber 15/ was marked for identification

pur poses - (16 pages) Personal Data Questionnaire for

The Honorable Bryan C. Able.)

(IExhi bit Nunber 16/ was marked for identification
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purposes - (7 pages) Sworn Statement of The Honorable

Bryan C. Able.)

JUDGE ABLE: Well, sir, | would just like to thank
everybody for having ne here today. |'moffering
for this position because |I believe | have
something to offer. |It’s not just because | want
to be a judge. | enjoy being an attorney but |
believe | have sonething to offer to the state as
a judge And | think I would enjoy the position.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Thank you very nuch.
Answer any questions counsel may have for you,
pl ease.

JUDGE ABLE - EXAM NATI ON BY MR TRI PPLETT:

Q Judge Able, please state for the record the city
and circuit in which you reside.

A | live in the Eighth Grcuit, Laurens County,
South Carolina.

MR, TRIPPLETT: M. Chairman, | note for the record
that based on the testinony contained in the
candi date’ s PDQ, which has been included in the
record with the candidate's consent, Judge Able
meets the statutory requirenents for this
position regarding age, residence and years of
practi ce.

Q Judge Able, why do you want to serve as Famly
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Court judge, and why do you feel that your | egal
and professional experience qualify you and w il

assi st you to be an effective judge?

Well, as | just said, | think | have sonething to
offer. |1’ve been practicing |aw now for 32
years. |’'ve been the associate probate judge in
Laurens County for about six -- right at six
years. | was elected -- well, not elected. |

was chosen -- selected by Judge Friday when Judge
Hocker got elected to the Circuit Court bench,
and they asked ne if | would fill that position.

| told them!| would. | think that serving in
that position has helped ne a |l ot in devel oping
an understandi ng of what a Famly Court judge
woul d do. |’ve been doing that for six years.
|"ve never had a jury trial in probate court.

You can't have jury trials, but nost of the tine
they’re non-jury. And | believe |’ve devel oped a
sense of what a Famly Court judge woul d be doing
hol di ng court, listening to the [itigants w t hout
the assistance of a jury. And | believe that
woul d help ne hit the ground running as a Fam |y
Court judge. | believe | could start hol ding
court fairly quickly.

Okay. Judge Able, are there any areas of the |aw
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for which you woul d need additional preparation
in order to serve as a Famly Court judge, and
how woul d you handl e that additional preparation?
| don’t think there’s -- in the waiting area, |
was trying to think of any style action that |
have not handled in the Famly Court. | think

| "ve handl ed just about every type of action
there is to handle in a Fam |y Court setting. |
don’t know that | would need any additi onal
educat i on or guidance and anything of that

nat ure.

Judge Able, please briefly describe your
experience in handling conplex, contested Famly
Court matters, and specifically discuss your
experience wth the financial aspects of Famly
Court work.

VWll, | nean, |'ve had a | ot of experience in
handl i ng cases ranging from you know, sinple

di vorce cases to conplex litigation. | find that
nost of the conplex litigation involves two
things, child custody and the division of marital
assets. Just recently | had a nediation
Involving -- or two nediations involving sizeable
estates. Those are things that |’ ve handl ed

quite regularly, enploying -- sonetines enpl oyi ng
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experts to assist me in those areas. | don't
think those would be -- as a Fam |y Court judge,

| don't believe it would be hard for ne to grasp
the fact pattern of conplex marital litigation.
And | don’t renmenber the last part of your
quest i on.

So discuss the experience with the financial
aspects.

kay. As far as that, again, it goes back to
just first of all the discovery process, making
sure you have all the financial information
that’'s necessary to try a case and then enpl oyi ng
experts to assist you in trying to get ready for
the litigation.

Judge Able, the Comm ssion received 182 ball ot
box surveys regarding you with 28 additional
coments. The ballot box survey, for exanple,
contained the follow ng positive coments: Bryan
Able is one of the nost well-qualified candi dates
for any position in our judiciary. Bryan Able
woul d make an excellent Famly Court judge. |’ve
had the privilege to observe M. Able in both
famly and crimnal court, and he has the

pati ence, conpassion, skill and intelligence

required to make both an excellent attorney and
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an excellent judge. | have encountered M. Able
as opposing counsel in litigation as well as
appeared before himin his capacity as associate
probate judge. He’'s a man of high character and
has the deneanor and tenperanent that nakes for
an outstanding trial judge. Four of the witten
conment s expressed concerns. One comment
expressed concerns that you | ack courtesy and
hum ity towards litigants when handling cases.
What response woul d you offer to that concern?
You know, | renenber us discussing that earlier,

You know, how do you respond to that? First of

all, | respond by saying | don't believe it to be
true. |’ve always prided nyself on the fact

that, in holding court as probate judge, |I'ma
very patient judge. A lot -- |I'd say, not a

majority, but a significant nunber of cases in
probate court are pro se litigants. And of
course sonebody comng into that setting not
havi ng t he background, not having the know edge
of the rules that are applied in any court, |
find that | have to be, you know, overly patient
sonetimes in nmaking sure peopl e understand the
process and what's going on. But | do not

remenber a single tine when | have not been
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patient with sonebody, have not been courteous to
sonebody who has appeared in front of ne as a
judge. | just don’t know where sonething |ike
that would be comng from Now | can say that
when |’ ve had people cone back before ne for

pur poses of maybe a Rule to Show Cause bei ng

I ssued and they have done things |ike gone into a
conservatorship and taken out noney that wasn’t
supposed to be taken out, and they’'re having to
explain to nme why they’' ve essentially stolen
sonebody’ s noney, the child -- their child s
noney. | can be forceful. | can let them know
that 1’ m not happy about the decisions they’ ve
made and what they’ve done but |’ ve never been --
| " ve never been anything but courteous to them
and patient wwth them But | let them know that
| m not happy.

Anot her comment expressed concerns wth your
tenperanent on the bench and that you take
matters personally, having sonetines vendettas
agai nst certain attorneys and their clients.

What response woul d you offer to this concern?

| have no response for sonething |ike that.
That’s just not true. That's just -- | can't

I magi ne a tinme when that woul d have happened.
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And I'methically barred from hol ding any ki nd of
vendetta agai nst anybody anyway. |f | had that
strong a feeling toward a |l awer or a litigant, |
woul d recuse nyself fromthat case.

And | astly, one coment expressed concerns wth
you having trouble getting hearings schedul ed for

you. \What response would you offer to that

concern?
Again, | don't schedule -- as an associate
probate judge, | don’t schedul e the hearings.

The probate court wll receive a request for a
hearing. They will contact ny assistant in ny
office and she’ll schedule a hearing. There's
never been a situation where sonmebody’s got to --
had to delay -- there’'s been a delay in ny trying
to schedul e sonebody, a hearing if |I’mcontacted
about that. Again, | tell attorneys that | know
In Laurens and other places if they need a
hearing, nmake sure they contact the probate
court. They'll contact my office -- and | can
usual |y scheduled a hearing within a week or two
weeks if they need a -- if they're -- you know,
If it’s pressing. | think at one tinme sonebody
earlier -- it may have been when we had our

di scussion -- that there had been |like a two-year
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delay in getting a hearing scheduled. That's
either not a true statenent or they didn't
request the hearing. And they didn't actually go
the probate court and say | need a hearing. So

that’'s not true.

MR. TRI PPLETT: | would note that the Pi ednont

Citizens Commttee found Judge Able qualified in
the evaluative criteria of constitutional

qual i fications, physical health and nental
stability. The Commttee found himwell
qualified in the evaluative criteria of ethical
fitness, professional and academ c ability,
character, reputation, experience and judici al
tenperanment. The Committee stated in sumary,

M. Able has served as a part tine associate

j udge of probate in Laurens County since 2013 and
as a general practitioner, specializing in famly
| aw i ssues for three decades. The Conmmittee
believes that his breadth of experience has given
himthe skills, subject matter expertise and
judicial tenperanent that would nake for a well -
qualified and capable Fam |y Court judge.

A few housekeeping i ssues. Judge Able, are you
aware that as a judicial candidate you are bound

by the Code of Judicial Conduct as found in Rule
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501 of the South Carolina Appellate Court Rul es?

A Yes, sir.

Q Judge Able, since submtting your Letter of
I ntent, have you contacted any nenbers of the
Conm ssi on about your candi dacy?

A No, sir.

Q Are you famliar wth 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the Ceneral
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

A Yes, sir.

Q Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator,
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

A No, sir.

Q Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behalf,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

A No, sSir.

Q Have you reviewed and do you understand the
Conmi ssion’ s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code 8 2-19-70(e)?

A Yes, sir.

MR TRIPPLETT: | would just note for the record that

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N oo o B~ W N

N T N N S T N N o e =
g A W N P O © O N oo o A W N P, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 144

any concerns raised during the investigation
regarding the candidate were incorporated into
the questioning of the candidate today. And M.

Chai rman, | have no further questions.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  kay. Any questions for Judge Able?

Senat or Ranki n.

JUDGE ABLE - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR RANKI N

Q
A

Q

A

Judge.

Yes, sir.

It’s been a while since |’'ve seen you perhaps at
screening --

Yes, sir, uh-huh,

-- a while back, but always glad to see you and
congratul ations to your bride in joining you
here. W were in |aw school together.

Yes, sir.

MS. ABLE: Yes, sir.

Q

So | amglad you're back. And I want to ask
about your thoughts on what can be done to

I mprove Fam |y Court day to day. Your suffering
from-- | won't name anybody -- or basking in the
good work of, what can be done, either by you as
a judge or by us as a court or the Suprene,
whatever fiats to make for a better experience

for everybody?
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One thing |’ ve thought about is -- you know, of
course nowin the Famly Court we have to nedi ate
all the cases. And | would like to be the kind
of judge who, if -- a lot of tinmes in nediations,
you get that nediation done, you get it signed,
everybody goes hone. The next day your client or
the other attorney’s client calls and says, |
don't know if I'mreally happy wth that. And
the longer the period of tinme is before the

medi ati on and that final hearing to adopt that
medi ati on as an agreenent between the parties,
find that the longer period of tine that you have
there, it’s nore likely that you' re going to get
that call fromyour client saying, | don't know
if I like that. |[|'ve talked to ny friend. 1’ve
talked to ny girlfriend or boyfriend or spouse,
what ever, and the things starts to fall apart. |
think if you could -- 1'd like to be the kind of
judge that let’'s the attorneys know, if you get a
nmedi at ed agreenent on Monday, you call ne on
Tuesday and we’' ||l have a hearing -- or try to
have a hearing set up between Wdnesday and
Thursday or sone tine that week so we can get

t hat nedi ated agreenent on the record so there’s

not that period of time of |ag between the
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medi ati on conference and the final hearing. |
think that would help -- that would benefit in
just putting the case to bed, just -- you know,
you' ve just taken 15 m nutes out of the day to
fit sonebody in at the beginning of the day or at
lunchtinme or at the end of the day. || think that
m ght help, or even set aside sone tine maybe on
a Friday norning where you could say, okay, this
Is -- if anybody’ s got any nedi ated agreenents
within the past week or two, here’s a period of
time where y all can, you know, call up and
schedul e a quick hearing. | think that m ght
hel p.

|s that a function of you, the judge, or these
mean, old tight-fisted clerks that won't all ow
you to schedule --

VWll, no, | think --

-- as imediately as you would |ike?

| think you could have a word, you know, wth the
clerk about doing it, but I think as |ong as your
assistant in your office knew that if an attorney
call ed up and said, look, |I’ve got this agreenent
we cane to yesterday or this afternoon and we'd
like to get a hearing before Judge Able, if

you' ve instructed your assistant to say, yeah,
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just come on up. W'Il do it at this tine.

W'l slide you in. W’ve got a hearing that
time but we'll go ahead and give you 15 m nutes
to get it done or 15 mnutes at the end of the
day to get it done. But | think the clerks would
be happy to do that, just incorporate a few cases
in here and there but | think it would help.
Kinda | ook to your left, and don't divert the
eyes of the fornmer clerk to your right. And, you
know, we’ve heard of your past experiences, and
typically another person asked about this, but
the crush of a roster in sone places versus
perhaps the laxity of others in the litigant’s
day in court, their tine in court, not for an
extended contested hearing on all fronts, but
where they need nore than 15 minutes to have a

tenporary matter resolved --

-- shoul d you be beholding to the roster and
appointed tinmes per each, or should you, as a

j udge, allow for one case to go over |onger than
15 m nutes or even 30, depending on --

You know, |’ve found, Senator, over ny practice
iIt’s gotten to where nost tenporary hearings

don't last just 15 mnutes. | nean, the sinplest
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>

tenporary hearing is going to take 30 m nutes.
And | think that’s just the way it is now. No, |
think it’s going to happen in any docket. It’'s
going to happen on any day that you' re going to
have sone cases that take |onger than they' re
supposed to, and | think -- you know, it’'s very
fluid. | nmean, it’'s basically you mght take a
little bit of time here but you try to catch up
on the next one or the next two to try to get
everyt hing back on schedule. | think the big
Issue is making sure -- and | wuld try as a

Fam |y Court judge to make sure we started on
time. You know, if you say, you know, we're
going to start at 9:30, the docket starts at

9: 30, everybody's ready to go at 9:30. You start
on time and then |I think you kind of gauge during
t he day about where you might need to take a
little extra tine for sonething and then nmaybe
make it up on sone things later. But | think
that’s one of the biggest factors, is starting on
time in the norning and starting back on tine,
you know, after the lunch break.

Medi ation. You are a nediator as well?

Yes, sir, |I’ve had the training. Yes, sir.

So with the advent of good nediators and both
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si de represented and understandi ng the benefits
of good nedi ation where really no one w ns, but
both win as a result, the docket in your area as
you are practicing, are you seeing where there is
| ess demand for a judge’s tinme or greater for the
smal | matters that build up to a final

resol ution?

Right. You know, | have to say about nediation,
you know, | took the Famly Court nediation
course probably, you know, five or six years go.
And I'’ma convert to nediation. At first |

didn’t think nediation was going to be that

val uable a tool. But now that | am a nedi at or
and |'"'m-- we -- of course, we nediate all the
cases, I'ma convert. | think nediation’s a

great thing. A lot of cases that | don’t believe
woul d ever settle get settled in nediation. And
| find -- the experience | have is now that |
think a ot of cases are being settled through
medi ation, it’'s causing less tinme on the docket
as far the nedi ated cases. Wich sone of the --
you know, it’s hard nowadays in Famly Court if
there are really any contested issues for a
contested case to take less than a day, | think.

Sonme of them now take two and three days just as
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Q
A.
CHAIRMVAN SM TH:  Ms. Logan.

M5. BLACKLEY-LOGAN. N ce to neet you, Judge Able.
JUDGE ABLE: Nice to neet you too.

MS. BLACKLEY-LOGAN: |I'mthe former clerk of court --

JUDGE ABLE: That's right.
MS. BLACKLEY-LOGAN: -- and so that’s why Senator

a, you know, a run of the mll divorce case with
child custody issues and things of that nature.
But | think nediation is helpful in that respect
and that it’s causing the dockets to kind of be
cleared up and rel eased -- and all ow sone of that
time to be used for, you know, |onger tenporary
hearings and things of that nature.

Al right, that’'s all.

Thank you, sir.

so|l’'ma former clerk of court --

Rankin is saying |I'’m-- speaking of clerk of
courts, | wanted to conmmend you on your conment
about starting on tinme because the solution to

t he docket part of scheduling cases on the docket
woul d be judges starting on tine. And having
seen that, and if you start late, it just makes

t he whol e day go by when you coul d probably
actually get sone time in, so you definitely get

that. | don't think enough peopl e understand and
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know that and it’'s been an issue of m ne when
we’'re scheduling. |If we schedul ed cases to start
at 9:00 and the judge doesn’t walk in the door
until 9:30, that’'s 30 mnutes lost. And then it
just -- it just spins out of control. And then
nost judges are going to end before 5:00 if not
right at 5:00 --

JUDGE ABLE: Yes, ma' am

M5. BLACKLEY-LOGAN. -- so you’ve taken away maybe two
cases if not -- probably could have got three,
and it just depends on what type of cases that
are going on. So I'msure the clerk in this area
woul d | ove to be able to work with you if are
appointed to this seat to hel p schedul e cases. |
t hi nk you’ ve got sonme bright ideas.

JUDGE ABLE: Thank you

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Any further questions.

Senat or Saab.

SENATOR SAAB: M. Chairman, | just wanted to nmake an
observation. |If | heard one of the judges
correctly, the gentleman fromHorry, | thought

t hat what he indicated was they had the vol unteer
nmedi ators there while the judge was on the bench,
which alleviated the points that are bei ng nade

now about the parties and nedi ati ng and changi ng
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their mnd shortly after the nediation. So |
found it interesting that being one of his
observations. And that the way that they're
doing it in Horry is actually working because a
judge is available while the volunteer |awers
are engaging in the nediation. And so | was
delighted to hear you say that.

JUDGE ABLE: 1’ve had that experience. W are -- and
It doesn’'t happen often but |’ve had that
experience where |’ve been an attorney in a
nmedi ated case and the other attorney -- you know,
we are worried about this thing holding together.

SENATOR SAAB:  Yeah.

JUDGE ABLE: And we’ve had the benefit of calling a
j udge and say, judge, we’'ve got this case, can
you hear us in the norning? And the judge would
say, yes, and so we run up there and get this
nmedi ated case -- it’s a good nediation but it’'s
j ust human nature when people go back hone and

they start talking to their famly and their

friends --
SENATOR SAAB: That’'s exactly right.
JUDGE ABLE: -- well, this is what happened in ny

di vorce case.

SENATOR SAAB: Yes, sir.
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JUDGE ABLE: You know, things can fall apart, so |I'm
not saying we're trying to rush anybody into
doi ng sonething they don’'t want to do. They’ ve
signed the agreenent. Let’s get the agreenent
adopt ed and the judge has accommpdat ed us on
several occasions and said, yeah, cone on up here
in the norning and we'll put it on the record.

SENATOR SAAB: Yeah, and | totally agree. But I
wanted to nake the point wth the Conm ssion that
we had one of our judges earlier who was talking
about it. And our Chairman was essentially
soliciting an opportunity to contact himlater.
Because | think many of us who listened to him
and now listening to you believe that that could

be one of the answers to alleviating sone of the

DSS backl og - -
JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir.
SENATOR SAAB: -- because of the space that it’'s

creating, because sonmething has to change with
DSS. | think --

JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir.

SENATOR SAAB: -- all of us are convinced that there
are nothing but opportunities to inprove it. And
to the extent that we can take some of the

pressure off of the docket through nediation,
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JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir.

SENATOR SAAB:  And so thank you for the comment.
JUDGE ABLE: Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Any further questions.

JUDGE ABLE - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG
Q

then it frees up an opportunity for us to, froma
court standpoint, do sone things relative to DSS.
So | was just really conplinenting you because |
think that the nore of us that gives sone thought
to how nmediation can help us, the better off we

are.

Senator Young, did | see you had one?

Judge Able, | want to thank you for your interest
I n continuing your service to our state.

Thank you, sir.

| want to ask you a few questions. |’ m]looking
at your Personal Data Questionnaire and | noticed
that -- have you handl ed nany abuse and negl ect
cases in the last ten years or so?

Well, 1've handled my share. From ‘92 to 2004 |
was the DSS contract attorney for four counties,
the four counties of the Eighth Grcuit. | was
the only attorney they had and | acted in that
capacity for Laurens County from 1992 to 2004 and

then the other counties shortly thereafter. So |
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handl ed hundreds if not thousands of abuse and
negl ect cases. In that past ten years, |’ ve
handl ed cases as they’ ve been referred to ne or
have cone -- you know, people have hired nme to
handl e those cases. As far as a nunber, | really
can’'t say but | would say that |’'ve handled --
you know, | don’t handle as many as | used to. |
don’t handle as many as the contract attorneys
now but | handl e probably a conparabl e nunber to
any private attorney.

How nmuch tinme does your probate -- your service
as a probate judge, how much tine does that take
currently fromyour weekly schedul e?

It’s not a great deal, to be honest about it. As
| said earlier, when a request cones in for a
hearing, the clerk in the probate court will cal
ny office and, you know, have ny assi stant
schedul e the hearing. You know, the |ongest
trial | think |"ve had in the past six years in
probate court has been Iike a three-day trial.
And, you know, that can take, you know, three
days away fromny |law practice. But nobst of the
time, you know, as in all courts, approval of
agreenents, 15 m nute approval hearings, 15-

m nute or 30-m nute appoi ntnment of personal
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representative or appoi ntnent of conservator,
things like that. | would say on a week -- it

m ght take, on average, two or three hours a
week.

Do you have any suggestions on how we can inprove
the systemfor children and famlies who are in

t he abuse and negl ect cases in the Famly Court?
| *ve thought about that a lot. Yes, | don't know
If | have any suggestions though. | can say --
well, it’s just an observation because, as |

said, I"'mnot a contract attorney for DSS anynore
like | was all those years ago. But the couple
of observations | have about the Departnent of
Soci al Services, and not to knock on anybody, is
nunber one, they have a consi derabl e turnover
among the rank and file. The caseworkers that |
see -- and a lot of times I'lIl go to court this
month and then next nonth I'I1 go back and |

don’t see any of the sane faces. And | can say
when | was the contract attorney for DSS, they
had people were with that office for, you know,
ten, 15, 20 years, and | don’t think that’s the
case anynore. | can't begin to think of the
nunber of county directors we’ ve had in Laurens

County in the past ten years. |It's just a
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revol ving nunber. So | think that the turnover
there. And | think just the fact that a | ot of
t hese people that are being hired are straight
out of school. And | don't know that the
supervi sors have as nmuch experience as they used
to, because they're young also. And |I'’mnot --
as | said, I"'mnot trying to say that in a
critical way. |'mjust saying | don’t know if
t hey have as nuch experience as sone of the
peopl e who used to work for DSS.

All right. Wat is your view of parents that
don't pay their child support tinely?

You nean, personally or as a judge?

Well, | guess, you know, how woul d you vi ew that
If you were elected. | nean, | assune you -- |et
me ask it this way. | assunme each case woul d be

different, decided on the facts?

Right, yes, sir. But under the | aw you have a
responsibility to support your children and that
responsi bility cannot be negated for any reason
in nmy opinion. |f you have children, you' ve

el ected to produce children and bring theminto
this world, you re going to have to support them
And as a judge, | would think it would be ny

responsibility to nmake sure that you do support
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t hem

Q | appreciate your comments. | have one final
question and it’s based on one of the ballot box
coments. A ballot box comments says that you
make the best barbecue in the world. M question
to you is, tomato based, nustard based or vinegar
based or none of the above?

A Well, | have a conpetition barbecue team And
we're currently two-tine state chanpion. And for
conpetition we cook tomato based, but for the
hol i days, things like that, we have a
vi negar/ nust ard based sauce that we use on those
things, but we're pretty good barbecue cookers.

Q Thank you.

CHAIRMAN SM TH:  And so -- you can go ahead. Best
bar becue in the state.

SENATOR SABB: Thank you, M. Chairman for vyielding,

but have you been down WIIiansburg County way,

sir?
JUDGE ABLE: No, sir, | haven't.
SENATOR SABB: Well, | would just encourage you to

consider Brown’s and Scott’s in those places that
are world fanous.
JUDGE ABLE: Yes, sir. Well, I'Il certainly try to

get down there, but we started doing this about

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS
Page 159

ei ght years ago. | have a friend who goes with
me. Qur wves help with it and we’'ve been pretty
successful in the conpetition area.
SENATOR SABB: Well, that’'s great. Congratul ations.
| m going to pass your nanme and information to
some of ny locals and | et them know about you.
JUDGE ABLE: Thank you, sir.
CHAIRVAN SM TH:  All right. Any further questions?
And |l et me echo what Senator Sabb says. That’s
t he best barbecue in the state is Brown’ s and
Scott’s Barbecue. And they exported Scott’s down

to Charl eston and now Mbil e, Al abama, Senator

Sabb --
SENATOR SAAB: That’s right.
CHAIRMAN SM TH: -- so the rest of the southeast is

starting to get to experience the good barbecue
we know in WIIlianmsburg County. Al right.

Wl |, Judge Able, that concludes this portion of
your screening process. Let nme take this
opportunity to rem nd you that pursuant to the
Conmi ssion’s evaluative criteria, the Conm ssion
expects candidates to follow the spirit as well
as the letter of the ethics law W will view
viol ations or the appearance of inpropriety as

serious and potentially deserving of heavy wei ght
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In the screening deliberations. As you know, the
record wll remain open until the formal Release
of the Report of Qualifications, and you may be
cal l ed back at such time if the need arises. |
thank you for offering for this position, and |
thank you for your service to the State of South
Carolina.

JUDGE ABLE: Thank you, sir. Y all have a good
eveni ng.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right, you too.

JUDGE ABLE: Merry Chri stmas.

CHAIRMAN SM TH: Sane to you. Safe travels hone.

JUDGE ABLE: Thank you, sir.

(Of the record.)

CHAIRVAN SM TH: Al right, M. Mdden. How are you
doi ng today?

MR MADDEN:. Pretty good, thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SMTH:  WI I you raise your right hand,
pl ease, sir.

TI MOTHY E. MADDEN, having been duly sworn, testifies

as foll ows:

CHAIRVAN SM TH: M. Madden, before you you have your
Personal Data Questionnaire and your Sworn
Statement. Are those both docunents that you

submtted to this Conm ssion?
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MR. MADDEN. They are.

CHAIRVAN SM TH. Are they correct?

MR. MADDEN. They are.

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that you need
to make at this tinme?

MR MADDEN: M office address has changed but | can
give that to staff after the hearing.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  We’ Il nake an oral amendnent to it
and just give it to staff, and they’' ||l becone
part of the record.

MR MADDEN:  Ckay.

CHAIRVAN SM TH: O her than that, any other changes or
updates that need to be made?

MR, MADDEN: No, sir.

CHAI RMAN SM TH: Do you have any objection to those
docunents becom ng an exhibit to your sworn
testi nony here today?

MR MADDEN: | do not.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  WII you let Lindi get that, and
we' | | place that and nake that as an exhibit to
your sworn testinmony. Al right. M. Madden,
the Judicial Merit Selection Conm ssion has
t horoughly investigated your qualifications for
the bench. Qur inquiry is focused on the nine

evaluative criteria and has included a ball ot box
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survey, a thorough study of your application
materials, verification of your conpliance with
state ethics |laws, search of newspaper articles

I n which your nanme appears, a study of previous
screeni ngs and checks of econom c conflicts of
Interest. W have received no affidavits filed

I n opposition to your candi dacy today and there
are no witnesses here to testify. Do you wish to
make a brief opening statenent to the Conm ssion?

(IExhi bit Nunber 17/ was marked for identification

pur poses - (20 pages) Personal Data Questionnaire for

Ti nothy E. Madden.)

(IExhi bit Nunmber 18 was nmarked for identification

pur poses - (6 pages) Sworn Statenment of Tinothy E

Madden. )

(IExhi bit Nunber 19 was marked for identification

pur poses - (2 pages) Amendnment to Personal Data

Questionnaire for Tinothy E. Mdden.)

MR. MADDEN:. No, sir. Respectful for your tinme, |I'm
happy to answer any questions the Conm ssion may
have for ne.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. Thank you very nuch.
Answer any questions counsel may have, please,
sir.

MR MADDEN:. Thank you.
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MR FIFFICK:  Thank you, M. Chairnan.
VR, MADDEN - EXAM NATI ON BY MR FI FFI CK

Q

A

Q
MR FIFFICK: M. Chairman, | note for the record that

Thank you, M. Chairman. M. Madden, please
state for the record the city and circuit in
whi ch you reside.

Geenville, and that's the Thirteenth Grecuit.

Thank you sir.

based on the testinony contained in the

candi date’s PDQ which has been included in the
record with the candidate’s consent, M. Madden
meets the statutory requirenments for this
position regarding age, residence and years of
practi ce.

M. Madden, why do you want to serve as a Famly
Court judge, and why do you feel your |egal and
prof essi onal experience qualify and will assi st
you to be an effective judge?

My desire to serve is based on a conmtnent to
public service that |’'ve naintained throughout ny
entire life. I'mfortunate to be at a point in
my |legal career where | have the opportunity to
| ook for a second act. And over the last three
years | have carefully considered what that

second act mght be. And as | went through a
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variety of options, it became very clear that the
way that | can help the nost people, with ny
skills, talents and background and training, is
in the capacity of a Famly Court judge. It
woul d be very easy for nme to continue in the role
that 1’'min as a partner in the state' s |argest
law firm where | have enjoyed the benefit and

bl essing of a |ot of success in ny practice. But
if I do that, I'"mgoing to be hel ping one person
at a tine and maybe over the next ten years |

m ght help 200 famlies, 200 people that m ght
cone to me and hire me to represent them If |I'm
able to take the last 31 years and pivot that
into the role as a Fam |y Court judge, where sone
of the nost neani ngful decisions in the lives of
South Carolinians are nade, then | believe | wll
be able to hel p thousands of people. And I'Il be
able to hel p thousands of people not only in the
sane atnosphere that |’'ve spent nost of ny
practice, which is the private divorce world, but
also in the areas that they really mattered nost
in catching our falling juveniles, those who we
need to try to rehabilitate and in trying to
protect our children and our elderly.

Thank you, sir. And to that point, are there any
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areas of the law for which you woul d need
additional preparation in order to serve as a
Fam ly Court judge, and how woul d you handl e t hat
preparation?

So the two areas where |’'d have the | east anount
of training in substantiative |aw would be the
juvenile -- the delinquency of the juvenile
crimnal aspect and the DSS child abuse sections.
And with respect to both of those, | have sone
experience. In the course of nmy career, |’'ve
handl ed cases in both of those areas. But
certainly those have been few and far between and
remote in time. As | enbarked on this process, |
have al ready begun to try to learn what | don’t
know. [|’'ve spent a day watching and observing
juveni | e delinquency hearings, or the juvenile
detention hearings. |’ve spent an hour neeting
with D rector Pough at the Departnent of Juvenile
Justice to understand what he’'s got going on and
what’s in his mnd and what his chall enges are.

| spent a half a day touring the Departnent of
Juvenile Justice facility here in Colunbia, and |
met some of those juveniles who were there and
sone of their teachers and sone of their

Instructors. And so | thought that it was
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I mportant for nme to gather that sort of
background i nformation before | junped head first
into even nore of the substantive law. 1’ve done

simlar things with abuse and negl ect proceedi ngs
already. 1’ve sat through hearings. 1’ve net

j udges who've handl ed these. 1’ve studied
materials that have been presented. So I'm
trying to get ahead of that as fast as | can so
in the event | amelected, ny curve will be a
little |l ess steep. But those are the areas where
"1l need to spend a little tine.

Thank you, sir. Could you please describe your
experience in handling conplex, contested Famly
Court matters and specifically discuss your
experience wth the financial aspects of Famly
Court work?

Ckay. For 31 years, the bread and butter of ny
practice, 90 percent of it, has been conpl ex

di vorce cases. Mdst of those cases for the |ast
11 to 12 years -- no, for the last 20 years, have
been conpl ex financial cases. | have litigated
every facet of equitable apportionnent that you
can litigate, character of assets, the value of
assets, the value of closely held assets, the

transnutati on of assets and the division of those
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assets, the effectuation of the division, the
conpliance with the division, everything that
there is to do about noney in dividing property
in a Famly Court case |'ve done, |'ve tried it,
and |’ ve appealed. | amon at | ease 26 opi nions
I ssued by our Appellate Courts. At |east 15 of
those cane out of Famly Court cases. At | east
three of those | can identify that address sone
uni que questions of law, all of which were in the
area of noney. So | have handled |I don’'t know
how many i ndi vidual cases. | think | have tried
to a decision in a contested environnent in

Fam |y Court 100 cases or nore. | conservatively
estimate that based on just sone rough math in ny
head about how many tines | end up in a
courtroom And nost of those involved the areas
that you're tal king about or conpliance with
orders issued in those areas. | believe that |
tried the case which resulted in the highest

al i nrony awarded in Geenville County. | believe
that | tried the case which is used by nost, and
appeal ed the case, which is used by many Fam |y
Court practitioners as a gui depost for how the
Suprene Court |ooks at an anmount of alinony. |

know I tried and appeal ed the sem nal case on
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cl osely held business valuation in Famly Court.
So -- and | know that | tried and appeal ed one of
the |l eading cases that relates to trust and their
I mpact in the division of marital property. So
when it cones to the areas of noney in Famly
Court, that’s ny sweet spot. That’'s what | do.

| teach business valuation to other |awers. |
teach it at a trial school in Houston every year
for ten days for lawers that want to | earn how
to try that issue. | teach an advanced course
every other year. |[|’ve taught that same topic in
ot her states and in South Carolina.

Thank you, sir. M. Mdden, the Comm ssion

recei ved 604 ball ot box surveys regardi ng you
with 112 additional coments. N nety-nine of
those coments were positive. The ballot box
survey, for exanple, contained the followng five
positive comments: Excellent, w dely considered
to be the best famly law attorney in South
Carolina. He has a very conciliatory manner,

whi ch would translate in superb judicial

t enperanment, extrenely organi zed, but nmakes
conplicated issues easy to follow. The strongest
candidate in the field. He has vast experience

and | egal knowl edge. His reputation is beyond
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reproach, and his tenperanent is exactly which
you woul d want froma judge. One additional
comment addresses your DJJ experience. Concerned
that you don’t have DSS or DJJ experience, but

al so expl ained that you' re always over prepared,
a quick study and that you shoul d have no probl em
getting up to speed on those issues. Three of
the witten comments express concerns. Two
comment s indicated that you re arrogant and coul d
be prone to robitis. What would you offer to
this concern?

| disagree. | would like to repeat the earlier
one where it said I’mconciliatory and all those

ot her good t hi ngs.

SENATOR RANKIN:  Note for the record he is smling

when he says that.

M. Madden, the third concern indicated that you
may be prone to insensitive |anguage. Wat woul d
you offer to this concern?

| disagree, unless that coment cane from soneone
| cross-examned in atrial. |It's highly
possi bl e that in cross-exam nation | woul d have
used | anguage that someone found insensitive to
their position, but | say that sonewhat in jest.

| know the comment you’'re tal king about. You and
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| have tal ked about that prior to today. | know
| did not make the comment that was reported as
it was reported. One of the things that | have
tried to do is to respect everybody in the
process of the case that |’mhandling. And that
starts with the person that cones to see ne on
day one for a consultation who is in the worst
point of his or her life and who was probably in
their first or second neeting ever with a | awer
and who is opening up in that neeting and telling
nme, a total stranger, things about thensel ves and
their personal life that they don't want to tell
anybody. And so |I’'ve tried to be very sensitive
to that, tried to be a very good |listener to
that, but also tried to give those kind of folks
a very candi d assessnent of their situation.
Because | believe the only way that you can be
successful as a |lawer, and the only way that
litigants can be accepting of the result, is if
you start the educational process early. And so
| try very early in that consultation to educate
and i nformand sonetinmes | may be brutally honest
with sonmeone. But if | ambrutally honest with
them it would not be to be insensitive about

t hat person or what they nay have done. | tell
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every single person it’s a judgnent free zone in
ny office when |'mtalking to you about your

case. But | mght, for exanple, tell them what
the other side mght say about them And people
are in an enotional fog when they're in that
meeting. And they |eave there, and I’ mnot sure
but about half of it sinks in, if that nuch. And
so there’s no telling where that particul ar
coment canme frombut I'mcertain that it did not
ari se out of me being insensitive to soneone or
usi ng | anguage wi th soneone which woul d be
judgnental in any way.

Thank you, sir. M. Mdden, you’'ve been invol ved
in three lawsuits. The first |awsuit, Bank of
New York as Trustee, Plaintiff versus Yancey
Johnson, et al., Defendants, in 2001 was filed as
a foreclosure action agai nst an opposing party
fromwhich you were awarded attorney’s fees on
behalf of a client. Could you please explain the
nature and disposition of this lawsuit to your
know edge?

Not really because | don’t remenber anything
about it. | found it when you asked ne to pul
those lawsuits. Every time | was awarded

attorney’s fees in a case in a court order, it
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appeared as a lien, and soneone searching real
property records would find it and nane ne as a
party if they pursued the forecl osure action, and
that’'s exactly what that was. | know that -- |
happen to renenber M. Johnson because he was an
adverse party who had to pay ny fees and | happen
to remenber that | got paid. But | don’'t know
what happened within that |awsuit because, the
mnute | got it, | did the same thing | do with
all those lawsuits, and | wote back and said,
you don't need to keep ne in this case.

Thank you, sir. Wuld your answer apply to GBH
Enterprises, Plaintiff, et al. versus RHD
Enterprises, Defendant?

Yes. | don’t renenber that one at all but it had
to be the sanme sort of thing.

Thank you, sir. In October of 2013, you filed a
transcript of judgnent in the matter of Tinothy
Madden, Plaintiff versus Joseph Al ford Crui se
Beason for unpaid court orders attorney’s fees.

Pl ease explain the nature and disposition of this

| awsui t .

Sure. | filed that in Geenville County because
the case was tried in Anderson County. | was not
the awer who tried the case. | was the | awer
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for Ms. Beason earlier in the case. At the tine
of trial Ms. Beason had other counsel. Wen the
court resolved the case and i ssued an order, the
court specifically ordered attorney’s fees for ny
part of the case when | represented Ms. Beason
and made a specific award of attorney’s fees for
t he second part of the case. Wll, because the
case was in Anderson County and because | knew
that M. Beason owned property in Geenville
County, | filed the action you' re describing to
record that judgnent in Geenville County so that

| could be sure that ny lien would be perfected

agai nst his assets. It was and | got paid.
Q Thank you, sir.
MR FIFFICK: | would note that the Upstate Citizens

Conmttee report found M. Madden to be well
qualified as to ethical fitness, professional and
academc ability, character, reputation,
experience and judicial tenperanent and qualified
in the evaluative criteria of constitutional

qual i fications, physical health and nental
stability. The report also stated, M. Madden
has an extensive anount of experience in private
cases, including all types of divorce, equitable

di vi sion, custody, child support et cetera and is

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com




© 00 N o o b~ W DN PP

N N N N NN P P P P P P PP PR
g N W N P O © 0 N O O M W N P O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 174

wel | respected by nenbers of the Bar and the
community. However, he has little to no
experience wth DJJ cases. Wiile he has
experience in DSS cases, it is also |imted.

M. Madden, | have a few housekeeping issues to
take care of wth you. Are you aware that as a
judicial candidate you are bound by the Code of
Judi ci al Conduct as found in Rule 501 of the
South Carolina Appellate Court Rul es?

| am

M. Madden, since submtting your Letter of

I ntent, have you contacted any nenbers of the
General Assenbly about your candi dacy?

| have contacted nenbers of the General Assenbly
to nmake them aware of ny candidacy, that is to
announce ny candi dacy to themand to |l et them
know | " m runni ng.

Have you contacted any nenbers of the Conmm ssion
about your candi dacy?

| have not contacted any nenbers of this

Commi ssion. | have run into a couple of nenbers
of this Conm ssion accidentally at different
events and spoken to them but | didn't contact
t hem about ny candi dacy.

Are you famliar with 8§ 2-19-70, including the
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limtations on contacting nenbers of the General
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

A. | am

Q Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

A. No.

Q Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
intervene in this process on your behal f?

A No.

Q Have you revi ewed and do you understand the
Conmm ssion’s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code § 2-19-70(e)?

A | do. | have and | do.

MR FIFFICK: | would just note for the record that
any concerns raised during the investigation
regardi ng the candi date were incorporated in the
guestioning of the candi date today. M.
Chairman, | have no further questions.

CHAIRVMAN SMTH.  All right. Any questions for M.
Madden? M. Strom

MR STROM M. Chairman, | want to put on the record
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that M. Madden | have -- are on the opposite
sides of a piece of litigation right now And |
have found himto be highly ethical, highly

prof essional, an outstanding attorney, and |
really hope that he gets elected Fam |y Court
judge do he'll get out of that litigation. But
on a serious note, you know, M. Mdden, you
enjoy a reputation of being certainly one of the
top ten donestic lawers in the state. 1’ve
never heard anybody say anything negative about
you. You're at the top of your ganme. And you
have the opportunity to nake a | ot of noney if
you wanted to stay in private practice. Your

w |l lingness to give that up and go into public
service is sonething | really admre, and | want
to thank you personally for stepping into this.
MADDEN:  Thank you.

CHAI RMAN SM TH.  Ms. Ml ver
M5. MCIVER. Thank you, M. Chairman. | want to echo

what M. Stromjust said, and | wanted to read
part of one of the ballot box comrents about you
into the record. The strongest candidate in the
field. He has had a successful statew de
practice and is the kind of person we hoped would

be attracted to the bench as a result of the
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recent pay increase. Hi s personal deneanor and
tenperanent |eads ne to believe he could be one
of the nost exceptional judges to have ever been
on the bench if elected. This is just one of a

| ot of comments like this that were submtted
about you. And not only the ballot box comments,
which takes a lot of effort -- |I’msure you' ve
filled out quite a few of them-- to go in and
actually put the comments. And to see this
nunber of coments and witten responses as wel |
as the recomendations that you ve received from
such pillars, not of your comunity, but of our
state, it is incredibly inpressive. And it would
be so easy for you just to rest on your enornous
reputation in Famly Court working with the
wonderful law firmthat you work for. But the
fact that you cane in today and said you had been
to neet with people over at DJJ, that you had
observed different actions over there and net
with sone of these young people was really
inspiring and hunbling for ne to hear. And |

just want to thank you for offering to serve.

MR. MADDEN. You’'re wel cone. Thank you.
MS. BLACKLEY- LOGAN. Well, M. Midden, | haven't had

the pleasure of neeting you. | think we may have
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passed each other in the hallway since ny offices
were where you used to be located. | got to see
the Letter of Reference from Anbassador W ki ns,
who | consider a great nentor, and all the
conmments have been phenonenal. | don’t know --
|"mnew to the Commssion. | don’t think |I’ve
seen that many comments for a candi date since

| *ve been here. That speaks vol unes of your
work, and | understand that since you are a
partner and Nel son and Mullins you know ny good
friend Trey Gowdy, who works there. How is he
doi ng?

MADDEN: He’s doing pretty good if we can ever see
him He seens to spend a lot of tine on
airplanes and television and not nmuch tinme in the
office. But we didn't hire himto spend tinme in
the office, so he’'s doing what he’'s supposed to
be doi ng.

BLACKLEY- LOGAN: Wl |, probably a good portion of
that time is also in front of a mrror making
sure his hair is straight.

MADDEN: He’s working on that and al so his golf
gane, | think, but I also saw you at the oral
argunments in Spartanburg, | think.

BLACKLEY- LOGAN:  Yes, you --
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MR, MADDEN:  Yeah.
MS. BLACKLEY-LOGAN:. -- yeah, that is correct. You
were one of the |legal counsel.
MR MADDEN. | argued an appeal that day, the | ast one
t hat they did.
M5. BLACKLEY-LOGAN. Yes. You did a great job.
MR MADDEN: Well, thank you. Thank you.
MS. BLACKLEY-LOGAN:. So |I'mvery happy to officially

meet you.

MADDEN: Thank you.

BLACKLEY- LOGAN: And wi sh you all the best, and |
do want to echo Lucy’s coments for soneone who -
- we’ve seen candi dates who may not have all the
offerings. But to take the steps that you've
done nmean -- let’s ne know and nakes nme feel that
you're serious, especially when it conmes to youth
and being involved in trying to figure out the
under st andi ng of how -- or the makeup of the
Departnent of Juvenile Justice. So that’s going
to be a big play, but |’'ve heard nothing but
great things about you.

MR MADDEN. Thank you very nuch.

MS. BLACKLEY-LOGAN. Proud to finally neet you.

MR. MADDEN. Thank you, ne too.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: Al right. Senator Rankin.
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MR MADDEN - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR RANKI N
Q

Tim I'mglad to see you here. And | want to
first say for the record that you and | net for
the first time, | think, in our service on the
first slate of state infrastructure bank board
menbers.

That’s right.

And as | saw your name and revi ewed everything, |
could not help but take a picture of the picture
that adorns my wall in ny office of a much
younger | ooking Ti m Madden who has no wi sp of
salt in his hair at that time, about as much as
me. W are the two visibly wet behind the ears
menbers of that comm ssion and that bank board
where you and | served with another upstate guy,
Chanp Covington, a wonderful who has left us --
Ri ght.

-- but tales of that fellows life | continue to
hear about. So when you stated at the outset
your calling of public service, it is not
insincere, and it is not wthout sacrifice. And
| know in these corments that have been made
about you and the anonynmous surveys but echoed by
ot her Conmi ssion nmenbers. And it is a strange

thing but it is a beautiful that you are doing
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this. There are other great candi dates as well
In your race, and politics will dictate but your
personal story is a conpelling one because it is
heartfelt, | do believe. So | want to commend
you for your willingness to get into the race
again wth the other candidates to offer yourself
for public service. W say that about everybody.
And not in your specific race but in many others,
folks are really | ooking to nove up, both in
position, but as well as financially. You are
not doing it for that reason so that too is
comendabl e.  You have been in the trenches in
Famly Court fromday one. This is the path

you’ ve chosen, correct?

|"mnot sure if it’s the path that | chose or

t hat chose ne but one thing's for sure, | never
left it. For sonme reason or another, you know, |
stayed with this path and found it to be ny
calling as a lawer -- or ny primary calling.

And | actually considered noving into different
areas. Wen | joined Nelson, Millins 13 years
ago, | didn’t think 1'd ever try another divorce
case. And what happened was we took famly | aw
to that law firmand then it blossoned. And so

it noved the platformfromnore Geenville to
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nore statewide. And | kept com ng back to it
because | felt |ike |I was doing good for people.
And | think -- | mean, that’'s what a | awer’s all
about, you know, hel ping people solve problens in
their life. | don't get a |lot of energy out of
hel pi ng conpani es solve their problenms. 1|’ve
done sone of that but | get a lot of energy out
of hel ping people solve their problens.

Have you ever been accused of being a plaintiff’s
| awyer? No, you don’t have to answer that.

| have been a plaintiff’s lawer. 1|’ve had
several wongful death cases and others before |
joined Nelson, Millins and they put up a big wall
and said you can’'t do that anynore but

Your -- and you’'ve represented fol ks all around.
| know that you were on the other side of a
famly that | was famliar wth from hone, and

t hey kept conpl ai ni ng about you and conpl ai ni ng
about the judge. And | said to nyself and
finally to them-- | said, it may be those areas
you need to be conplaining about. It mght be
the facts of your case and what’s been goi ng on
on your side of the aisle. So there are great

j udges and then there’s sone good judges. Gve

us the attributes of a great judge that you would
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> O > O

hope to exenplify.

Patient, a good listener, dignified, thoughtful,
respectful of all involved, punctual, diligent.
Those are the ones that cone to m nd.

So is it fair to say that the attributes of one
you woul d not want to follow would be the
opposite of all of those?

Sure. | don’t generally like to be in any
environnent with | azy people. So judges who --
and | certainly could not identify today by a
name - -

Woul dn’t want you to.

-- anyone who mght be lazy --

Woul dn’t want you to nane them

-- but there are judges are lazy. There are

| awyers who are lazy and | don’t enjoy worKking
wth either one of them | don’t enjoy working
W th judges who do not take things as serious as
the circunstances dictate. You know, this --
Famly Court particularly is a real court. And
unfortunately, there are tines where | have seen
It devolve into a casual adm nistrative process.
It’s not a casual admnistrative process. W are
hitting people and inpacting people at sone of

the nost serious points in their life. And |
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t hi nk judges need to maintain those attributes
that | described in order to maintain the
integrity of the court system and protect the
judicial systemoverall.

One of the comments in the ballot box surveys was
the wealth of Famly Court attorneys in
Geenville. And this was -- | don’t know this,
but that there are apparently a nunber of judges,
sonme of whom we’ve screened this go round. But
speak to the fact that, though it is an at-large
position, if you or the other candi dates are
successful, you' re planning to hang out in
Geenville, | assune.

| "m planning to go where |"'msent. As |
understand the way the system works, at-|arge
means we're electing these candidates fromthe
state at-large, wherever they cone from and as |
further understand the system the Chief Justice
t hrough court admnistration directs where people
go. And | have no preconcei ved expectation that
| get to spend all ny tinme two mles fromny
house. In fact, it’s the opposite. | would
assunme -- this hasn’t been true in the past but |
woul d assune that if you're in an at-|large seat,

you're nore likely being sent places for |onger
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periods of tinme because you' re not a resident
judge, and | enter into it wth that expectation
and enbrace that.

Q Years ago it used to be sonmewhat of a perhaps
off-color jestal (sic) not true statenent, but
per haps the bane of certain judges was an
assignment in Wal halla. That woul d not be
of fensive to you, would it?

A Not at all. It’s eight mles fromny | ake house.

Q Thank you for your willingness to do this.

A Thank you.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH: Al right. Any other --

MR MADDEN. And | would say, if | may, Senator
Rankin, that initial bank board that you and I
served on, you and | got out at the right tine.
W went in, we funded those five nmajor projects,
we were congratul ated by everybody and then we
left it. And so, thank goodness, we |eft when we
di d.

SENATOR RANKIN:  And there was noney still in the
bank.

MR MADDEN. That’'s right. That's right. And they're
all paid for now, | think.

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Which five major projects were those?

|"msure that was in Geenville County --
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MR MADDEN - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG

MR- MADDEN: | can't renenber the all but --

SENATOR RANKIN:  Well, the first was Horry.

MR MADDEN: | can pronise you the first was Horry,
and it started with the Conway Bypass and they're
still finishing the south end of that and the
Ravenel Bridge. | remenber going to New York and
pi cking up the check for the Ravenel -- for part
of the Ravenel Bridge. It was part of the whole
deal in Geenville and then Lexington had
something over the dam | don't renmenber what it
was and | don’t renenmber -- it was inportant,
what ever it was.

SENATOR RANKIN:  And Hilton Head.

MR MADDEN: It was. It was 170. You know, York may
have been in there for Hghway 5. | can't
remenber because they passed.

CHAIRMAN SM TH.  No. York's getting all the noney now

MR MADDEN. Ch, okay. | understand, yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN SMTH.  -- but don't worry about it. They're
making up for lost tine. Al right. Any further
questions. Senator Young.

SENATOR YOUNG. Thank you, M. Chairnan.

Q M. Mdden, thank you. You know, |'m not going
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to rehash what everybody said. | just want to
say thank you for your willingness to serve our
state. | do want to ask you about abuse and

negl ect cases. |’ve asked every candidate in
every race these questions. And the main thing |
want to find out is | know that you stated in
your earlier comments that in your practice you
have not had as nmany abuse and negl ect cases
because you have been so focused on ot her
donestic matters in Fam|ly Court. But of the
cases that you have handl ed and your general

know edge of those cases, do you have any
suggestions on what can be done to inprove the
systemfor the children and the famlies who are
I nvol ved in those cases?

Yes. The thing that strikes ne the nost about
every abuse and negl ect proceeding that |’ ve been
in or been involved with is the overworked staff,
and | know they' re overworked. | nean, they have
nore things to do than they have tinme to do it in
and seemto treat every case the exact sane.

It’s alnost |ike a checklist approach as opposed
to taking a step back, taking the big picture

I nto account, |ooking at the context of what’'s

happeni ng and where it's comng fromand then
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fashioning a renmedy for that. So |I’mnot sure
how to effectuate that change but that’'s the
sing- -- because nost of the experience |’'ve had
w th abuse and negl ect recently has been where an
abuse and negl ect case arose out of a divorce
case. You know, there's a private divorce case
goi ng on, sonebody’s nmad, grandmama calls and
reports themto DSS and sonet hi ng happens, and
all of a sudden DSS gets involved. And the
process and the focus is as -- the allegation
could be enotional abuse in a very isolated way,
but the process is as if the baby got scalded in
the bathtub. And so there doesn’'t seemto be
much attention given to the necessity of uniquely
approachi ng each case. And nmaybe that’'s because
the resources do not allowit. | don’'t know but
to me that's been the one area where | could see
an i medi ate opportunity.

Any ot her i1deas that you mght try to encourage
to be inplenented if you're elected to the Famly
Court bench?

| don’t have any today. But | certainly |ook
forward to | ooking for those opportunities and if
ci rcunstances dictate, making those suggesti ons.

Are you aware of nediation being used in abuse
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and neglect cases in Famly Court in Geenville
County?

Not in Greenville County. |’maware of it --
|"ve used it once in a Charleston County matter,
but | have not -- |’ve not been involved with one
in Geenville.

W heard earlier today froma Famly Court judge
in Horry who said that they inplemented a
count yw de nedi ation programin Horry for trying
to reduce the docket for abuse and negl ect cases.
And they had reduced it by 70 percent.

That makes sense.

And so | know you're taking notes and going to
keep up with these ideas, so | would hope and
encourage that if you are elected that you woul d
follow up on that.

| appreciate that information. You know, DSS
cases are a lot of tinmes one big nediation. And
so corralling those fol ks and pushing theminto
that formal environnent where you work through it
and try to knock it out is a great idea. There
also are a lot of lawers who are in the fina
chapter of their career who want to donate their
time, who want to do what |'mdoing and try to

give back a little bit and would love to serve in
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A
CHAIRVAN SM TH. Al right. Any further questions.

CHAIRVAN SM TH: M. Madden, | also want to thank you

t hat capacity because it would be rewarding. So
| think a program could be put together w thout a
whol e | ot of effort that would nove those cases
al ong.

And even if this is not a successful run for you
-- | don't want the transcript to sound |ike that
we’' ve al ready predisposed this in any way, shape
or form but even if it’s not a successful run
for you, you work with Nelson, Miullins law firm
and if you' re not successful, | assunme you're
going to stay at Nelson, Millins.

Yes, sir, that's right.

Y all have a long history of being able to get

I nvol ved and nmake change in the court systemfor
the public good and | would encourage you, if
you're wearing that hat, to follow up in that
regard.

Not ed. Thank you.

(No replies are heard.)

for offering for this position. |It’s clear you
bring a wealth of experience. | noted in one of
the responses to the question you tal k about

teaching classes at a trial advocacy in Houston.

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N DN N NN R P P R PR R R R R R
O » W N P O © 0 N O O » W N P O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 191

And one thing that I’ mnost inpressed with, which
has been nentioned, is in preparation of your
candi dacy and determ ni ng whet her you were
interested in running and actually presenting is
the work you did with DJJ, going to court, with
wat chi ng abuse and neglect. But nore

I nportantly, even going over and | ooking at the
facility here in Colunbia and visiting with the
teachers, the staff, the children who are
committed to that facility is really sonething
that we sonetines have candi dates who don’t have
the requi site anmount of experience, and we try to
I npress upon themto go out and gain that
experience. And sinple things as to what you did
Is ways that they could do that, so maybe it
woul d behoove sone of the aspiring young
attorneys who want to becone judges -- naybe you
can advise them of things that can nmake you
prepared in order to run for a judge. So

appreci ate you offering for this position, and we
| ook forward to hopefully seeing you as a

candi date. W' Il see how the vote goes here in a
little bit but we wi sh you nuch luck wth any
future endeavor that you have. So with that,

this wll concl ude --
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SENATOR YOUNG M. Chairman, real quick, and | forgot
to nention this. The letters of reference that
you have, you are called by sone a | awer’s
| awyer. You -- this case with one of the letters
of reference that is nost neaningful to ne is a
| awyer’s teacher letter, which again, can that be
a lawer’s lawer three tinmes. Alan Medlin's
letter is incredibly meaningful to the personal
| evel that he goes in the famly situation that
you hel ped himwith. So as the Chairman has
mentioned, saluting you for teaching. A |lawer
who taught you, a | aw school professor who taught
you to be a lawyer, is singing your praises.

MR MADDEN. Thank you.

SENATOR RANKIN:  And on the tenor that he does, the
personal side of it, Alan Medlin is an incredible
person, a great person for the benefit of the
next nenbers of the Bar. So | cannot let this
record go without nentioning himand you don’t
need to say a word except to him You have
I npressed him which is inpressive to ne.

MR. MADDEN. Thank you.

CHAIRVMAN SMTH.  All right. So M. Mdden, this
concl udes this portion of our screening process.

| want to take this opportunity to rem nd you
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fol |l ows:

that pursuant to the Conmission’s eval uative
criteria, the Conm ssion expects candidates to
followthe spirit as well as the letter of the
ethics law and will view violations or the
appearance of inpropriety as serious and
potentially deserving of heavy weight in the
screening deliberation. As you know, the record
will remain upon until the formal release of the
Report of Qualifications, and you nay be called
back at such time if the needed arises. Thank
you for offering for this position, and thank you
for your service to the State of South Carolina.

MR. MADDEN:. Thank you, sir.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Have a safe trip back.

MR MADDEN: Thank you.

(Of the record.)

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Good afternoon, Ms. West. How are
you doi ng.

M5S. WEST: |'mdoing well, thank you.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. Are you ready?

M5. WEST: Yes, sir.

CHAIRVAN SM TH:  Woul d you rai se your right hand,
pl ease, ma’ anf

REBECCA VEST, having been duly sworn, testifies as
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CHAIRVAN SM TH: Al right. Before you you have your
Personal Data Questionnaire and your Sworn
Statenent. Are those both docunents you have
submtted to the Conm ssion?

MS. WEST: Yes, sir.

CHAIRVMAN SM TH:  Are they correct?

M5. WEST: Yes, sir.

CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Any changes or updates that need to
be made at this time?

MS. WVEST: No.

CHAI RMAN SM TH. And do you have any objections to us
maki ng those as exhibits to your sworn testinony
here today?

MS. WEST: | don't.

CHAI RVMAN SM TH: Wt hout objection, if you'll give
those to Lindi, and we'll nake those as exhibits
to the sworn testinony. M. West, the Judici al
Merit Selection Conm ssion has thoroughly
I nvestigated your qualifications for the bench.
Qur inquiry is focused on nine eval uative
criteria and has included a ballot box survey, a
t horough study of your application materials,
verification of your conpliance with state ethics
| aws, a search of newspaper articles in which

your nane appears, study of previous screenings
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M5. WEST - EXAM NATI ON BY MR H NSON:

and checks for economc conflicts of interest.
W have received no affidavits filed in
opposition to your election, and there are no
W tnesses present to testify here today. Do you
wi sh to make a brief opening statenment to the
Commi ssi on?
(Exhi bit Nunmber 20 was marked for identification
purposes - (20 pages) Personal Data Questionnaire for
Rebecca West.)
(Exhi bit Nunber 21 was marked for identification
purposes - (8 pages) Sworn Statement of Rebecca West.)
M5. WEST: Extremely brief. Thank you very much for
having me. |'mhunbled to be here.
CHAI RVAN SM TH.  Thank you very much. Answer any
questions counsel may have.
M5. WEST: Thank you.

Q Good afternoon, Ms. West. Ms. West, please state
for the record the city and circuit in which you
reside.

A Lexi ngton County, and I'min the Eleventh
Judicial Grcuit.

MR HINSON:. M. Chairman, | note for the record that
based on the testinony contained in the
candi date’ s PDQ, which has been included in the
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record with the candidate’ s consent, M. West
nmeets the statutory requirenents for this
position regarding age, residence and years of
practice.

Ms. West, why do you want to serve as a Famly
Court judge, and why do you feel that your |egal
and professional experience qualify and w |
assi st you to be an effective judge?

| believe that people who have the ability to
serve the public nust do so, and | believe that

| " m especially well suited for this position.
|"ve been a trial lawer ny entire career. |
just began nmy 20th year of practice, and during
that time |’ve focused solely on Famly Court
practice for 16 years of that, | believe. [|’'ve
had experience across the board, trying all
manner of cases, both sinple and very conplicated
and conplex. | also have a nediation practice,
and | also teach CLE continuing education and use
that along with ny appellate practice to stay
shar p.

Thank you. Ms. West, are there any areas of the
| aw whi ch you woul d need additional preparation
in order to serve as a Famly Court judge, and

how woul d you handl e that additional preparation?
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Yes. M career -- |I’'ve never handled a juvenile
matter in Famly Court. And | would continue to
famliarize nyself with the statute but | have
updated nyself in preparation for this public
hearing and for this application process on
changes in the lawin that area. | would also
observe matters that are pending in the Famly
Court and consult with sonme friends and
col | eagues of m ne who handl e the prosecution
side and the defense side in juvenile matters.
The other area that |’ m probably not experienced
inis adoption. | had an associate and | ater
partner who specialized and was an expert in that
area, and so | always defer to her. |[|’ve gone
wth her on several cases and | feel confident
that | would have the ability to learn that area
and again consult fol ks who are nuch nore wel |
versed in that area before | ever heard a case.
Ms. West, please briefly describe your experience
i n handling conplex contested Fam |y Court
matters, and specifically discuss your experience
wth the financial aspects of Famly Court work.
Certainly. |[1’ve handled cases in that real m
upwards of mllions dollars as far as the val ue

of the marital estate. |1’'ve dealt wth issues of
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busi ness val uation, various fornms of executive
conpensation and conplex matters of transnutation
of property. 1’ve also dealt with on many
occasions experts in those areas, CVAs, certified
val uation anal ysts and CPAs, and | consulted with
t hose experts as well. | have tried various

I ssues of transnutation and conpl ex financi al
matters. |’ve also handl ed conpl ex custody

rel ocation matters and matters of jurisdiction.
In fact, that’s often an area that ny col | eagues
consult with me on, are matters of jurisdiction.
Ms. West, the Comm ssion received 360 ball ot box
surveys regarding you with 56 additional

coments. The ball ot box survey, for exanple,
contained the follow ng positive comments: |
think Ms. West would be an asset to the
judiciary. Another said you wll serve the bench
wth honor. Miltiple others said you woul d nmake
an excellent judge. Oher witten coments
expressed concerns related to your experience and
tenperanent. How woul d you address those
concerns?

Dependi ng on the nature of the concern, | would
certainly say that | strive every day to nmake

sure that | conduct nyself in a way that is
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respectful to other nenbers of the Bar, to
litigants and to the judiciary. And if |I’ve ever
failed to do that, | would certainly take notice
and try to remedy it immediately. And |’ m al ways
very conscious of that given the adversari al
nature of our practice. | would never want to be
t hought of in a way that was disrespectful to
another attorney or to a litigant or a judge.
Wul d you help ne as far as the rest of that
question?

|t was tenperanment and experience.

| certainly believe that | have the requisite
experience in the Famly Court, especially having
been a trial lawer in that area for many, many
years and having taught the subject matter many
times over. | would have to know nore specifics
about the nature of the comment regarding ny
experience.

Thank you. Ms. West, another concern indicated
that you favor friends when it cones to
recommendi ng providers for your clients as
opposed to other nore qualified providers. How
woul d you respond to that concern?

| " m not sure exactly what providers neans. |f

the comment is in the nature of who do | refer
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cases to that | can’t handle, | certainly do
refer to friends, professional friends, and

col | eagues because | trust that | know their
practice area and that | know that they're
conpetent and capable of taking a matter if |
have a conflict, or if it’s just sinply not a
good fit with a prospective client.

Since your |ast screening in 2014, your PDQ lists
a lawsuit filed by Corley Fam |y Trust agai nst
you. Wat’'s the disposition of that case?

The plaintiff entered a voluntary dismssal. |
paid no noney. Basically after the deposition

t hey dropped their case.

Thank you. Also you were a plaintiff in a suit

I n 2017 agai nst Forest Specialty |Insurance anong
others. \What was the disposition of this case?
| successfully negotiated a settlenment of that.
And that was a bad faith claimfromwhen they
failed to cover the defense of the Corley matter.
Ms. West, what do you believe will be the

t oughest challenge you will face if you're
elected as a Fam |y Court judge?

Probably the adjustnment from advocacy to
judgnent. | think that the thing that |’ve

| earned over the past several years is that
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medi ati on has hel ped nme realize that that

adj ustment can be mgjor. And it needs to be
recogni zed that when you go fromrepresenting a
client’s interest to viewing a case in an

I mpartial and unbiased way, that’s a big
adjustnment. And it’s worth paying cl ose
attention to the skills that are needed to view a
case inpartially.

Thank you. Ms. West, what do you believe to be
the appropriate judicial tenperanment that a

Fam |y Court judge should possess, and is there a
former or sitting Famly Court judge you would
aspire to be should you be el ected?

Sure. | believe that a Famly Court judge has to
be patient, nunber one. They have to be firm and
courteous w thout being overly friendly or

casual . | have always revered Judge Kellum All en
as a judge and a practitioner that | aspire to be
like. Judge Allen has a unique ability to spot

I ssues quickly and to reach a resolution that

bal ances interests but also encourages litigants
to settle their case. And for |ack of a better
way to explain it, | think he nmakes everybody
realize that they have skin in the gane and that

typically it is in the kids' best interest to
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resolve their case on their own. But he al ways
struck ne as one that was very curious and had a
genuine interest in the subject matter that we
deal with in Famly Court.

Ms. West, in your PDQ you list the case of

Mont gonery versus Montgonery as one of your nost
significant cases. Wat can you tell the

Conm ssi on about what you | earned fromthat
experience? And | understand that may still be
under litigation, so we’'re not necessarily

| ooking for facts but just --

| understand. And ny role in that has now pretty
much gone away but | was appel |l ate counsel in
that matter. And | had no deci sion naking
authority at the trial level but | becane
involved in that, first of all, through defending
a wit of supersedeas and then ultimately arguing
that case in front of the Suprene Court. It was
fascinating. It taught nme how to organi ze and
distill a massive anmobunt of information and
present that in a way that is intelligible. It
was extrenely -- it dealt with very intimate
details of this famly' s Iife and parenting. And
so it al so enphasized to ne how maj or these

I ssues can be in peoples’ |ives and how certain
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Q Thank you.

MR HINSON: | would note that the Mdlands Ctizens
Conmttee found Ms. West qualified in the
eval uative criteria of constitutional
qual i fications, physical health and nental
stability. The Commttee found her well
qualified in the evaluative criteria of ethical
fitness, professional and academ c ability,
character, reputation, experience and judici al
tenperament. The Commttee stated in summary
that lots of experience with excellent
qual i ficati ons.

Q Just a few housekeepi ng questions. M. Wst, are
you aware that as a judicial candidate you are
bound by the Code of Judicial Conduct as found in
Rul e 501 of the South Carolina Appellate Court
Rul es?

A Yes.

Q Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you

actions, certain advice fromcounsel, can change
the trajectory of a famly and how t hey parent
their children. It was hunbling in addition to
being a very terrifying experience in front of

the Suprenme Court for the first tine.

contacted any nmenbers of the Comm ssion about

Garber Reporting
info@garberreporting.com



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N N N NN P P P P P PP PR
o A W N P O © 0 N O 0o M W N P+, O

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 204
your candi dacy?

A No.

Q Are you famliar with § 2-19-70, including the
limtations on contacting nenbers of the CGeneral
Assenbly regardi ng your screening?

A Yes.

Q Since submtting your Letter of Intent, have you
sought or received the pledge of any |egislator
either prior to this date or pending the outcone
of your screening?

A No.

Q Have you asked any third parties to contact
menbers of the General Assenbly on your behal f,
or are you aware of anyone attenpting to
I ntervene in the process on your behal f?

A No.

Q Have you revi ewed and do you understand the
Comm ssion’s guidelines on pledging in South
Carolina Code § 2-19-70(e)?

A Yes.

MR HINSON:. | would just note for the record that any
concerns raised during the investigation
regardi ng the candidate were incorporated into
t he questioning of the candidate today, and with
that, | have no further questions.
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A
CHAIRMAN SM TH:  Any further questions. M. Safran,

MR, SAFRAN:  No.
CHAIRVAN SM TH:  kay. Al right. Any questions.

M5. WEST: | understand.
CHAIRVAN SMTH:  -- so | don't think the |ack of

MR STROM  Just quickly, M. Chairman. M. West,

MS. WEST: Well, thank you for saying that.
CHAI RMAN SM TH:  Senat or Young, surely you can’'t |et

SENATOR YOUNG. Thank you, M. Chairnan.
MS. REBECCA WEST - EXAM NATI ON BY SENATOR YOUNG

Q

Thank you.

did | see --

You suffer fromboth the curse and the bl essing
of being the last candidate of the |ast screening

of two weeks -- so it is 4:00 o' clock, so --

questions is any indication. | remenber you ran
a fewyears ago. And I'mvery famliar with your
qual ifications, so nornally a | ot of questions I

woul d ask, |I would do that -- M. Strom
| ve known you a nunber of years. You enjoy an
excel lent reputation in what you do and you' d be

a real asset to the bench and to the Bar. | just

want to thank you for offering.

the screening go without asking a few questions.

Thank you, M. Chairman. M. West, thank you so
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much for your interest in serving our state on
the Famly Court bench and | too have been

I npressed with the ballot box comments. And
practicing in an adjoining county, | too am
famliar with your reputation and you enjoy an
excel l ent reputation.

Thank you very mnuch.

So one question | have is in the area of abuse
and negl ect cases. |’ve noticed from your
Personal Data Questionnaire that you have handl ed
a nunber of those; is that correct?

Earlier in nmy career, not recently, yes.

So nmy question to you woul d be, do you have any
recommendati ons on how t he system can be inproved
for the children and the famlies who are in that
systemto nmake it better for thenf

| wish | knew. My thoughts on it are that it
starts at the caseworker |evel at the very first

I nteraction, in making sure that caseworkers are
well trained and well invested in their task of

I nvestigating the allegation. So often in the
private Fam |y Court matters we see DSS

al | egati ons of abuse and negl ect used as a weapon
in order to gain an advantage or sone sort of

| everage in the private Famly Court divorce or
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custody matter, and that’s a shane. But |
believe all allegations have to be investigated
t horoughly no matter where they're originated
from | think the next step is for us to inprove
the way these cases work their way through the
system And | think that’'s a conbi nation of

hol ding DSS feet to the fire and nmaki ng sure
that cases are brought in tinme franes that are
requi red under the statute and for judges to
enforce that. | think it’s also incunbent on the
attorneys involved that cases don’t sit and that
fol ks make their way through safety plans or
what ever other treatnent services are needed.

But allowing a child and a famly to remain in
linmbo is sinply not in anybody’s best interest.
And certainly protecting children is always in
the state’'s and the community’'s best interest.
Are you famliar at all with the nediation of
abuse and negl ect cases?

They did not nedi ate those cases when | was
involved in them | do think that that could be
hel pful , maybe not initially when matters are
still being investigated and treatnent services
are still being gone through by the parent. But

| do think that once these cases and once the
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Q
A
CHAIRVMAN SM TH.  All right. Any further questions?

CHAIRMAN SM TH.  Ms. West, let nme al so thank you for

facts are gathered it would be appropriate in a

| ot of those cases to nediate.

| noticed that you wote an article about the | aw
of workers’ conpensation in South Carolina.

That was a long tinme ago.

1997. It was published by the University of
Texas.

At Arlington, yes.

That was apparently when you started | aw school ?
No, sir, that was actually nmy undergraduate
thesis in history. | dealt with -- or considered
t he question of how the workers’ conpensation |aw
cane out of progressive era in South Carolina. |
was in school at Lander at the tinme and there are
plenty of mlls and famlies that earn their
l'ivelihood through the mlls and gained an
Interest in that.

Thank you very much.

You' re wel cone.

(No replies are heard.)

offering for this position. Sort of what we're

| ooking for, people with a wealth of experience

and a great reputation com ng back and offering
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to serve the State of South Carolina in the
capacity as a Famly Court judge or Circuit Court
j udge, and you’'ve earned a great reputation
t hr oughout the Bar and throughout South Caroli na.
And it’s as a result of your hard work and we
appreciate you offering today. And so with that
said, this will conclude this portion of your
screening process. Let ne rem nd you that
pursuant to the Comm ssion’s evaluative criteria,
t he Conmi ssion expects candidates to follow the
spirit as well as the letter of the ethics | aw
and will view violations or the appearance of
I npropriety as serious and potentially deserving
of heavy weight in screening deliberations. As
you know, the record will remain open until the
formal release of the Report of Qualifications,
and you may be called back at such tine if the
need should arise. Thank you for offering for
this position, and | thank you for your service
to the State of South Carolina.

M5. WEST: And thank you as well.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  All right. You don’'t have as far a
drive as everyone el se.

M5. VEST: No.

CHAIRVAN SM TH.  Still hopefully you don’'t have to go
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over mal function junction.

M5. VEST: Yes. Thank you.

CHAIRVAN SMTH: Al right. M. Mlver noves that we
go in Executive Session, seconded by Senator
Rankin. All in favor say, aye.

(Ayes are heard.)

CHAl RMVAN SM TH: Al |l opposed?

(No replies were heard.)

CHAl RMAN SM TH:  Ayes have it. W’re in Executive
Sessi on.

EXECUTI VE SESSI ON
VOTE

CHAI RVAN SM TH:  Senat or Sabb, w th Senator Rankin
secondi ng, nove that we lift the veil and cone
out of Executive Session. Let ne state while in
Executive Session no decisions were made and no
votes were taken. So we’'re going to proceed to
the ballot on the Famly Court at-I|arge seat,
nunber 2. And so Senator Rankin noves, and
seconded by Representative Mirphy, that all the
candi dates are found qualified. Al in favor,
rai se their hand.

(Hands are raised.)
CHAl RMAN SM TH:  Representative Rutherford votes his

proxy as finding they're all qualified, so |et
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the record reflect that was a unani nous deci si on,
and we’ |l nove to ballot on the nom nations.
M5. CRAWFORD: M. Chairman, let nme say the candi dates
first and then we’'ll go through each one. Bryan
C. Able, Robert W Cone, Tinothy E. Madden,
Rebecca West are all candidates for the Famly
Court at-large, seat 2. The first candi date,
Bryan C. Able.
(Hands are raised.)
CHAI RVMAN SM TH: W’ ve got six. Al right. So
Representative Rutherford will vote proxy on
t hat .
MS. CRAWFORD: Robert W Cone.
(Hands are raised.)
M5. CRAWFORD: Tinothy E. Madden.
(Hands are raised.)
CHAI RMAN SM TH.  Senator Rutherford votes his
proxy for Tinothy Madden.
M5. CRAWFORD: Rebecca West.
(Hands are raised.)
CHAI RVMAN SM TH:  Representative Rutherford votes his
proxy for Rebecca West.
M5. CRAWFORD: So the three candidates qualified and
nom nated are Bryan C. Able, seven votes, Tinothy

E. Madden, ten votes, Rebecca West with ten
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vot es.
CHAIRVMAN SM TH:  All right. Any business before
t he Commi ssion?
SENATOR RANKIN: | would Iike, on the record, to thank
both of our court reporters for their incredibly

strong wll and bl adders of steel.

CHAIRVAN SM TH. | was going to say stam na but
that's --
SENATOR RANKIN: | want that in the record.

MADAM COURT REPORTER: It’s a pleasure as al ways.
Thank you very much for having us.

CHAI RVMAN SM TH:  Thank you for your time and et ne
al so say again, it’'s a pleasure, first, we can't
do this without staff, Erin, Enma, all you who
are still here. Jimy | can't see. Lindi's the
best. Ckay, we'll say that. She brings the food
to us nakes sure it gets here, and M chele.

Well, thank you all. Again, nenbers, thank you
all. 1t’s an honor to serve with you on this
Conmi ssion and, you know, | know this job' s not
easy. And we have to nmake hard deci sions that
aren’t popular wth people and we have to tell
people -- sone of the worst things is to have to
tell themno and that we can’'t -- you know, not

that they're not going to be a good judge or they
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SENATOR RANKIN:  Very good. Lord willing and the

woul dn’t be a good judge, just nowis not their
time. And so, you know, | think the one thing
that |’ m nost proud of when we do this is that we
all are making sure that we're trying to maintain
the integrity of the profession and of the body
of this Comm ssion here and trying to do what’s
right, not what’'s easy or what’'s expedient but
what’s right. So thank you for your conmtnent.
And, you know, this isn't for the faint of heart
nor is it for sonmeone that doesn’'t have a | ot of
time on their hands because | don't think |’ ve
been honme, and |'monly an hour drive from here,
before 9:00 so far, so we spend a | ot of |ong

ni ghts here. So | thank you for your dedication.
Thank you for your commtnent and | ook forward to
continuing to serve with you all in one capacity
or the other, | guess. So with that, | hope
everybody has a great holiday and season, and
we'll let the vice chairman adjourn. And then
cone January 1 the vice chairman now will be our
chairman. And |’d be happy to nom nate you and

|l et you handle it fromhere, M. Chairnman.

creek don’'t rise, | hope to see every one of you

back not too soon.
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CHAIRVMAN SMTH. Al right. Wth that, Senator
Rankin noves we adjourn. Al in favor, say
Aye.
(Ayes are heard.)
CHAI RVAN SM TH.  Ayes have it. W stand adj ourned.
(There being nothing further, the proceeding concluded at
4:35 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

|, JENNI FER NOTTLE, COURT REPORTER AND NOTARY PUBLI C
N AND FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH CARCLI NA AT LARGE, HEREBY
CERTI FY THAT | REPORTED TH S PROCEEDI NG, ON WEDNESDAY, THE
4TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2019, AND THAT THE FOREGO NG 214 PAGES
CONSTI TUTE A TRUE AND CORRECT TRANSCRI PTI ON OF MY STENOVASK
REPORT OF SAI D PROCEEDI NG

| FURTHER CERTI FY THAT | AM NEI THER ATTORNEY NOR
COUNSEL FOR, NOR RELATED TO OR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE
PARTI ES CONNECTED WTH TH' S ACTI ON, NOR AM | FI NANCI ALLY
| NTERESTED I N SAI D CAUSE.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | HAVE SET MY HAND AND SEAL THI S
10TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2019.

L JE\ 5. Nettiag

JENNI FER NOTTLE, COURT REPORTER
MY COMWM SSI ON EXPI RES JULY 11, 2023
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court, Position, and Seat # for which you are applying: Family Court, Fifteenth Court, Judicial
Circuit, Seat 3

l. Name: The Honorable Ronald Ray Norton
Mrs.
Ms.

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname): Ronnie Norton

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? Yes. South Carolina Family
Court. If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.)

Home Address: |

Business Address: P.O. Box 1147, Conway, SC 29528

E-Mail Address: |G

Teiephone Number: (home):
(office): 843-915-8997

(cell): [ NEEEEE
2. Date of Birth: ||| 1952

Place of Birth: Bennettsville, SC

Social Security Number: ||| | | N

3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

4. SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:
5. Have you served in the military? No. If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank

attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

6. Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the





10.

names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.

Family Status: Married on August 18, 1973 to Sarah Lane Dowling Norton (retired teacher)
Never divorced. two children

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) University of South Carolina 1970-1974 Bachelor of Arts
(b) University of South Carolina 1974-1977 Juris Doctor

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

Worked as legislative page in the South Carolina House of Representatives during
college and law school 1970-1977

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina 1977
(b) South Carolina is the only state in which I took a bar exam. I took the South Carolina

bar exam one time.

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

(a) Upon graduating from law school in 1977, I began my legal career with the law firm of
Harvey, Battey, Macloskie & Bethea, P.A. [ was employed at their satellite office
located on Hilton Head Island. Their main location was Beaufort, South Carolina. The
practice was a general practice with the Hilton Head Island office concentrating on real
estate transactions as well as contract and construction litigation. As an associate, |
assisted the partners in these areas. Approximately one year after becoming employed
with this firm, the offices split with the Hilton Head Island office becoming the law firm
of Bethea, Jordan & Griffin, P.A. This firm continued to focus and concentrate on legal





1.

matters as mentioned above. I became a partner in the firm in 1983 with my practice
focusing primarily in contract and construction litigation. I began developing a family
law practice at this time.

(b) In 1985 I relocated to Garden City, South Carolina and formed a partnership with Robert
J. Barber. The firm was known as Barber and Norton, P.A. Mr. Barber handled real
estate transactions for the firm and I handled litigation.

(c) In 1986 I joined the firm of Cross, Singleton & Burroughs, P.A. in Conway, South
Carolina. The firm became known as Cross, Singleton, Burroughs & Norton, P.A. Here
I continued to deal with real estate issues but also focused on civil litigation and began to
direct my focus primarily on family law.

(d) In 1994 1 joined the firm to be known as Walker, Brehn & Norton, P.A. where [ was a
partner. In this office I dealt primarily with family court matters although I assisted the
other partners in real estate and civil litigation.

(e) In 1997 I decided to leave the firm and become a sole practitioner. The law firm was
known as The Law Firm of Ronald R. Norton, LLC. My office concentrated on family
law issues with approximately 80% of the practice directed to that area. The firm did not
engage in the practice of criminal law other than representing juveniles. In 2005 [ took a
position as a part-time assistant prosecutor with the city of Myrtle Beach. This was in
addition to maintaining my law practice. As a part-time prosecutor I prosecuted traffic
and misdemeanor cases.

(f) In 2008 [ was elected to the Family Court and have been serving as a Family Court
Judge since.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If you are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than your current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to
serving on the bench.

Applying for re-clection to my current position.
Please answer the following:

(a) If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.










12.

13.

14.

(b) If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

(©) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

() federal:

(b) state:

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil:

(b) criminal:

(©) domestic:

(d) other:

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(@)  jury:

(b) non-jury:





15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(@

(b)

©

(d)

(©)

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d

(e)

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Have you ever held judicial office? Yes. If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

In 2008 I was elected to the Family Court, Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Seat 3. I have been
serving from 2008 to the present.

While in private practice as a sole practitioner I was appointed by the circuit court judge to
serve as special referee to hear cases involving timeshare homeowner’s association lien
foreclosures for the circuit court. I served periodically from 2000-2007 prior to being elected
to the Family Court in 2008. I had jurisdiction consistent with that of the circuit court in
foreclosure cases.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.





20.

21.

(a) Brown vs. Baby Girl Harper, 410 S.C. 446, 766 S.E.2™ 375 (2014). This was an
adoption case. The South Carolina Supreme Court affirmed holding substantial
compliance statute requiring birth mother’s consent to adoption could not cure
failure to comply with the execution requirements, and transfer of custody from
adoptive mother to birth mother was in the child’s best interest.

(b) Leverne Bazen and Pansy Bazen vs.Tammie Bazen. 2016-DR-26-1925, Case is on
appeal to the South Carolina Supreme Court 2018 — 000337. Paternal grandparents
were granted visitation with grandchildren. The biological father was deceased.
Mother filed an appeal objecting to the granting of grandparent visitation.

(¢) Vieux vs. Vieux. 2012-UP-425, (Ct.App.2012), 2012 WL 10862436. The Court of
Appeals affirmed the family court’s order declining to hold the defendant in willful
contempt.

(d) Gordon vs. Gordon. 2017-UP-276, (Ct.App.2017), Appellate Case No. 2015-002222,
2017 WL 4786431. The Court of Appeals affirmed the family court’s equitable
division of the marital estate.

(e) Militano-Catanzaro vs. Catanzaro, 2016-UP-018,_(Ct.App.2016), Appellate Case No.
2011-197967, 2016 WL 245058. The Court of Appeals affirmed the family court’s
ruling that the plaintiff was not entitled to alimony, attorney’s fees and guardian ad
litem fees and was not entitled to a change in the method of the child support award.

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

(a) All South Carolina Courts — municipal, county and state — admitted November 9,
(b) %Jgn71t76d States District Court for the District of South Carolina — admitted March
(c) {J7r;it1e9d7§tates Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit — admitted September 3,
(d) ;317)?eme Court of the United States — admitted April 15, 1985

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.

(a) Lectured at the annual Horry County Bar Association Seminar on family court rules and
the rules of civil procedure which are applicable to the family court. 2008 to the present.

(b) New Family Court Judges Orientation School — I spoke to the newly elected judges on
the experiences of a first year judge. April, 2009.

(c¢) New Family Court Judges Orientation School —I spoke to the newly elected judges on
substantive and procedural issues in 2018 and served as chairman elect. I serve as
chairman of the three day orientation in 2019. I plan to continue to serve as chairman of
the New Family Court Judges Orientation School.

(d) South Carolina Association for Justice — I lectured at the Family Court seminar on how
to practice in family court. August, 2009.





22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

(e¢) Family Court Bench Bar Seminar — I lectured on procedures for mediating cases.
December, 2011.

(f) Judicial Observation and Experience Program —I have law students sit with me for two
weeks each summer to observe family court cases.

(g) I taught paralegal classes on family law at Horry Georgetown Technical College prior to
being elected to the Family Court bench.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.

See attached Judicial Compliance Reports

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each. N/A

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

I am a family court judge not seeking a different type of judgeship.

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawyers, Chambers, Legal 500, Martindale-Hubbell, Who’s Who Legal. Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
Judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

Prior to becoming a member of the judiciary my last rating in Martindale-Hubbell was BV.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar Association-1977 to present
(b) Horry County Bar Association-1985 to present
(c) Coastal Inn of Court - Master

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? No. If so, list the periods of
your service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed.
Also, state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics
Commission during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a
penalty? If so, give details, including dates.

I have not held public office other than judicial office. I have timely filed all reports required
of family court judges





28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor. N/A

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

Yes, prior to being elected to the Family Court, I offered as a candidate for the Board of
Trustees for Coastal Carolina University. 1 withdrew my candidacy when it became obvious
I could not receive enough votes to be elected.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give details,
including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

I have not engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the practice of law
or holding judicial office.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

I am not an officer or director or involved in the management of any business enterprise.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

I am not now nor have I ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” nor have I acted in the
capacity of a lobbyist’s principal.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

A complete, current financial net worth statement was provided to the commission.





(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? No. Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? No. I never had a
student loan. Have you ever filed for bankruptcy? No. If so, give details.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
No If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist
or lobbyist’s principal involved.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. None. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the
House and Senate Ethics Committees? N/A.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years. None

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? No. If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and
date of the solicitation.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. None Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency; None

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; None or

(c) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.
None

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. N/A Identify as
applicable the: N/A.

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and





41.

42.

43,

44,

45.

46.

47.

() South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.
Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. None. Identify the
property, its amount or value, and the name of the agency. N/A Attach a copy of any
contract or agreement. N/A.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

See Attached Ameriprise Documents. Certain assets in spouse’s name only for estate
planning.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? No. If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office? No.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? No. If yes, explain.

Have you ever been sued by a client? No. Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? Yes. If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

1992-CP-26-353, PFSL vs. Thelma Riddle, Ronald R. Norton. Robert J. Barber, Richard W.
Strobel and Sea Watch office Plaza Owners Association. Filed January 23, 1992. Settled
July 14, 1993. Mr. Barber, Mr. Strobel and I co-owned an office condo and sold it to
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48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

Thelma Riddle but as a condition of the sale we had to remain obligated on the note and
mortgage. Thelma Riddle defaulted on her obligations and the lender foreclosed. We settled
with the lender resolving the case.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? N/A If applicable, have you ever been
covered by a tail policy? N/A. If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail
policy. Also, if applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current
malpractice policy.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? No. If so, give
the details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry
of Child Abuse and Neglect? No. If so, give the details.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c):
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on vour behalf, as

well as you, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? No. Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee
that they will seck the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election
for the position for which you are being screened? No. If so, give details.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? No. Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

I have not done any campaigning for this election and I have not asked anyone to campaign
on my behalf. I know of no one who has campaigned for me on their own initiative.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges

until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule? Yes, [ am familiar with the 48-hour rule.
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55.

56.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? No. If so, give details.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in vour packet when vou submit it will render vour packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation o the
Commission with your application packet.

(a) Gini Ingram Abee

(b) Sheriff Phillip E. Thompson
Sheriff of Horry County

(c) Mary Jo G. Burgess

(d) Ed Curlee

Gary Livesay

(e)

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

I am not on and am not a member of a social media or Internet site and to my knowledge
have not been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site.
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57. List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,
any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed
elsewhere.

(a) Coastal Inn of Court - Master

58.  Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how your life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

I'am honored to have been appointed to serve on the committees listed below. It is humbling
to know those who have placed me in the position of being a member and chairman believe
I have the ability to serve. I will work hard to gain and maintain their trust.

(a) Chairman South Carolina Family Court Advisory Committee

(b) Chairman South Carolina Family Court New Judges Orientation School

(c) Chairman South Carolina Family Court Bench Bar Committee

(d) Co-chairperson Supreme Court Docket Management Committee, Family Court

(e) Past President, South Carolina Conference of Family Court Judges

(f) Member Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee

(g) Member - Coastal Inn of Court — Master

It is an honor to serve as a Family Court Judge. I have always tried to be fair, honest,
professional and compassionate. I appreciate the difficulties facing those appearing before
me. I am committed to the position and will continue to work hard.

YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Notary Signature)'_m'

(Notary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(Incumbent)

Full Name: Ronald Ray Norton

Business Address: Post Office Box 1147

Conway, South Carolina 29528

Business Telephone: 843-915-8997

Why do you want to serve another term as a Family Court Judge?

It has been an honor to serve as a Family Court Judge and to contribute to the
well-being of the families of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit and the state of South
Carolina. I believe that my judicial experience, knowledge and character have
enabled me to effectively carry out the duties and responsibilities of this job and
will continue to do so. I remain dedicated to ensuring that justice is administered
in a fair and equitable manner.

Do you plan to serve your full term if re-elected? Yes

Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day? No

Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice? Yes

What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communication?

Ex parte communications should always be scrutinized carefully and should
rarely occur.

Are there circumstances under which you could envision ex parte
communications being tolerated?

Circumstances for which such communications might be tolerated would involve
instances where there is a threat of severe harm or injury or threat of death,
especially where children are involved and in danger. Ex parte communications
should always be viewed with careful consideration of the situation.
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6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you believed it
would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference would you give a
party that requested your recusal?

In situations where there is the appearance of bias a cautious, careful examination
of the appearance of bias should be considered. I believe the failure to do so
would have the potential of bringing the judiciary into disfavor. I would listen to
the reasons for the request for recusal and decide based on the facts presented.

Would you grant such a motion? I would grant the request if legitimate. Every
request for recusal should be carefully analyzed to determine if it is legitimate or
simply an attempt to judge shop.

7. How do you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the financial or
social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

Disclosure of the appearance of impropriety would be necessary, giving the
parties the opportunity to address any issues. I would make this disclosure on the
record and make a decision after hearing from all sides.

8. What standards have you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of gifts or
social hospitality?
I do not accept gifts. I would be cautious when considering social hospitality from
anyone having immediate matters pending before the court. I have attended
weddings, funerals and special events for attorneys and their families but would
not construe these to be conflicts. 1 customarily attend Christmas parties
sponsored by the Horry and Georgetown Bar Associations.

9. How do you handle a situation in which you became aware of misconduct or
appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?
If there is clear misconduct or appearance of infirmity I would first go to the
lawyer or fellow judge to discuss the issue. If there was misconduct I would urge
the lawyer or fellow judge to self-report however should they refuse or fail to do
so I would be compelled to report pursuant to the rules. If appearance of infirmity
was the issue, I would encourage the individual to seek medical help or therapy
but would report to the SC Bar Lawyers Helping Lawyers before seeking
suspension if the condition warranted.

10.  Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any social, community, or
religious organizations? No. Please describe.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Do you have any business activitics that you have remained involved with since
your election to the bench? No.

Since Family Court judges do not have law clerks, how do you handle the drafting
of orders? If the litigants are self-represented either I prepare or ask them to fill
in an order utilizing a South Carolina Court Administration approved form if
available and applicable. If there is no court approved form, I will draft the order.
If attorneys are involved I will ask one of the attorneys to prepare the order but to
provide it to the opposing attorney for review prior to submitting it to the court. If
one litigant is represented and the other is not, I usually ask the attorney to draft
an order even if his client has not prevailed. I ask the attorney to forward a copy
to the self-represented litigant for review. I will review the draft, make applicable
changes and then sign and forward to all parties.

What methods do you use to ensure that you and your staff meet deadlines? I
have two computer calendars, one which syncs to my administrative assistant’s
calendar. My administrative assistant also keeps information on notes. We review
the calendars daily. One of my computer calendars will also sync with my iPad
and iPhone and sends daily reminders.

What specific actions or steps do you take to ensure that the guidelines of the
guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the pendency of a case? I make
sure the guardian ad litem is qualified and has completed any required guardian
ad litem training. I make sure all investigations have been completed and all
reports filed and are available. In contested matters the guardian ad litem may
testify and be subject to cross examination.

What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should judges
have in setting or promoting public policy?  The judge is responsible for
enforcing the law as defined by statute, as established by the legislature or by case
law based on decisions of the appellate courts. Judicial activism is not the
prerogative of the family court judge.

Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal system,
and administration of justice. What activities do you plan to undertake to further
this improvement of the legal system?

Since I became a family court judge I have participated in the JOE program
where law students sit with me for two weeks in the summer to observe court
proceedings. I have been a speaker at CLE seminars. I am on the following
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

committees which I believe all engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system and administration of justice.

Chairman South Carolina Family Court Judges Advisory Committee

Chairman South Carolina Family Court New Judges Orientation

Chairman South Carolina Family Court Bench Bar Committee

Past President South Carolina Family Court Judges Association

Co-chairperson Supreme Court Docket Management Committee,
Family Court

Member Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge strains personal relationships
(i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? No. How do you address this? My
spouse is very understanding and we have had no issues. We will have been
married 46 years on August 18, 2019. My children are adults and live in other
states so there are no issues which arise because of the job. My neighbors, friends
and relatives are all aware of my position and we have had no issues on our
friendship. Generally, we do not discuss legal matters.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive additional
income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?

While my wife and I have investments through Ameriprise, at the present time
we do not receive income from those accounts. These investments are handled by
the broker and will not cause any appearance of impartiality.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de minimis
financial interest in a party involved? No.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or practice,
prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex, religion, or national
origin? No. If so, please identify the entity and explain if this organization
practices invidious discrimination on any basis.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing legal
education courses for the past reporting period? Yes.

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do these rules
apply? The judge should be attentive, calm, fair, firm when necessary, unbiased,
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compassionate. These attributes should apply at all times, not just while the judge
is presiding.

23. Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the public,
especially with a criminal defendant? No. Is anger ever appropriate in dealing
with attorneys or a pro se litigant? It is never appropriate to be angry with a
member of the public, an attorney or a self-represented litigant. It may be
necessary to be firm and stern but not angry.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of ,2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My commission expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court. Position. and Seat # for which vou are applying:
South Carolina Administrative Law Court, Judge, Seat 3

1. Name: The Honorable Harold W. Funderburk, Jr.
Mrs.
Ms.

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname): H.-W. Funderburk, Jr.
“Bill” Funderburk

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.)
Yes

Home Address:

Business Address:

SC Administrative Law Court
1205 Pendleton Street, Ste. 224
Columbia, SC 29201

E-Mail Address:

Telephone Number:  (home): || | SN

(office): 803-734-0551

(cell): [N

2. Date of Birth: [l 1949
Place of Birth: Camden, SC

Social Security Number: |||

3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

4. SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:





Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank
attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

Commissioned June 6, 1970; Active Duty, Sept. 1973-Dec. 1973, US. Army, Captain;
Honorable Discharge, 21 August 1985 (Discharge Certificate Attached; DD214 not
available.)

Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.
(a) Married
®) Sept. 11, 1999, Laurie Slade Funderburk, Attorney/ Legislator (SC House)
() October 1978, H.W. Funderburk, Jr. Richland County Family Court, One-year
separation.

March 1994, Kathryn S. Funderburk, Kershaw County Family Court, One-year
Separation.

(d)

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

Davidson College, 1966-70, AB
University of South Carolina, 1970-1978, Ph.D. (English)
University of South Carolina School of Law, 1982-1985, JD

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.
University of South Carolina School of Law

Moot Court Bar, International Moot Court Team, 1984-85

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to

the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

South Carolina, 21 Nov. 1985 (once)





10.

I11.

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

1985-1987  Staff Attorney, S.C. Supreme Court

1987-1988 Associate Attorney, Harvey and Battey, P.A., Beaufort, S.C.

1988-1995 Staff Attorney, S.C. Employment Security Commission

1995-2010  General Counsel, S.C. Employment Security Commission, Dept. of
Employment and Workforce

2012-2014  Semi-Retired, Represented guardians for GAL Office in Kershaw County
2014-2015 Municipal Judge, Camden, S.C.

2015- Judge, S.C. Administrative Law Court

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If you are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than your current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to
serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(a) If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
Juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

(b) If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this arca. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.





12.

13.

14.

I5.

16.

(c) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal:

1)} state:

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil:

(b) criminal:

() domestic:

(@ other:

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(@  jury:

(b) non-jury:

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(@

(®)

(©)

(d

(e

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)





17.

18.

19.

20.

(c)
(d)
()

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court. Yes

2014-2015  Municipal Judge (Elected by City Counsel) The court’s jurisdiction was
limited to Criminal Misdemeanors in the City limits.

2015- Judge (Elected by Legislature) The general jurisdiction is civil cases arising
from State Agency decisions. Some are contested cases; others are appeals, depending on
the decision process in the agency involved.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or

opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate

review of these orders or opinions.

(a) Rent-a-Center East v. S.C. Dept. of Revenue, 425 S.C. 582, 824 S.E.2d 217 (Ct. App.
2019)

(b) Whitesell Funeral Home v. S.C. Dept. of LLR and S.C. Board of Funeral Services, 15-
ALJ-11-0549-AP

(c) S.C. Dept. of Revenue v. American Legion Auxiliary dba Shamrock Bingo and Thomas
Irwin, Promoter, 16-ALJ-17-0026-CC

(d) TVL, LP fka Travelocity.com LP v. S.C. Dept. of Revenue, 16-ALJ-17-0400

(e) Trident Medical Center v. S.C. Dept. of Health and Environmental Control and Roper St.
Francis, 16-ALJ-07-0386-CC

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

Admitted to practice before the State Courts of South Carolina, 21 November 1985.
Admitted to practice before the Federal District Court of SC, 30 August 1988.
Admitted to practice before the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals, 1 April 1986.
Admitted to practice before the United States Supreme Court, 8 May 2006.





21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.

(a) I have presented on the ethical dangers of social media to the National Association
of Unemployment Appellate Boards Annual Conference, 2010.

(b) [ have made presentations on South Carolina Unemployment Law and Practice at
various CLE seminars and to employer groups.

(©) [ have participated in and led panels on employee/independent contractor issues and
law at annual conferences of the National Association of Unemployment Appellate
Boards.

(d) Recently I have taught classes in fiction for the University of South Carolina in
which I chose literature dealing with the idea of justice and the operation of law in
society.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.
Reports are attached.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each.

“Independent Contractors, Temporary Workers: More Myth than Reality,” South
Carolina Lawyer, 11 (January/February 2000): 15-19.

"Dracula and Vlad Tepes: Fictional and Historical Discontinuities in Character," ]
Journal of American Romanian Christian Literary Studies 116 (1980).

Ambition and Monomania: A Study of Moral Degeneration in the Plays of Christopher
Marlowe, Dissertation: University of South Carolina, 1978.

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawyers, Chambers, Legal 500, Martindale-Hubbell,. Who’s Who Legal. Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum, etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

Martindale-Hubbell: BV Distinguished 4.4 out of 5.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.
(a) South Carolina Bar (Served on Publications sub-committee 1992-94)





27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

(b)
(©)

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.

I have not held public office other than judicial office. I have timely filed my reports with
the State Ethics Commission when [ was required to file.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
Jjudicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

I have been an adjunct English instructor for the University of South Carolina in Columbia
since 1989. 1 taught for the evening school, currently called On Your Time Initiatives.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.
[ was a candidate for Kershaw County School Board in 1989.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

I was an English professor at Campbell University (N.C.) from 1978 to 1982 and served as
the chairman of the English Department for the final three years. I have taught English for
the University of South Carolina as a graduate student (1971-73; 1974-78) and continue to
teach as an adjunct professor (1988-present). In addition, I worked as a television technician
at Hall Radio and TV in Camden for three years (1982-1985) and was a partner in the
business for the final two years.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

In June 2012, my wife and I started an independent bookstore in Camden, Books on Broad.
I no longer work in the store but perform some administrative and bookkeeping tasks.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

No.





33.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34

35.

36.

37.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

Yes. [ was late with tax payments in the early 1990s, but I paid everything that was due. In
1995, I underpaid estimated taxes. My software calculated the penalties and interest owed
and added it to the amount remitted. However, an error another $153.08 due. By the time [
realized the error and mailed the check, a warrant for distraint was issued. I believe they
crossed in the mail.

I have not had a student loan, and I have not filed for bankruptcy.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

No.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

I have not spent anything as yet.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

My spouse contributed $100 to Representative Stavrinakis’s mayoral campaign in 2015.





38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation.

No.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

I don’t believe my past or current financial or business relationships would cause a conflict
of interest in my position. Of course, should an individual with whom I have had a
relationship, business or personal or an entity in which I or my spouse own stock be a party
in a case before me, I would assess the impact on the matter, alert the parties, and step aside
if I or one of the parties thought my hearing the case might result in an appearance of

impropriety.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

(©) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

My wife and I bought a business property at 944 Broad St. in Camden. Behind the property
the city paved an alley and a parking area. The parking lot serves more than a dozen
businesses. We had nothing to do with the decision to pave the lot, a project which was
being planned before we purchased property in the area.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable
the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

(©) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

N/A

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Our bookstore has sold books to the Kershaw County Schools in the amount of $1,776.60.
These are occasional transactions, and there is no contract or ongoing agreement.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.





43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

See attached a schedule and a broker account statement that is a part of the Financial
Statement requested by question 33.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

No.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while

campaigning for this office?
No.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.
Not to my knowledge.

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

I have never been sued by a client.

Other than my two divorces, I have been a party defendant in two other cases. During my
separation and before my divorce in March 1994, two mortgage payments were missed, and
the lender began foreclosure proceedings. 1 brought the loan current, and the case was
dismissed. My former spouse was then able to refinance and remove me from the loan.
Shortly thereafter, the private investigator [ hired took collection action in magistrate’s court
for the portion of his fee 1 had not paid. He sent the bill to my estranged wife instead of to
me. I paid the balance, and the investigator waived the attorney’s fee. That matter was also
dismissed.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
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49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.
N/A

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses for all candidates are redacted unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.

No.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c);
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on vour behalf, as
well as you, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

I have not asked anyone to campaign on my behalf, nor do I know of anyone who done so
on his/her own initiative.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

Yes.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting

on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.
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55.

56.

37.

58.

I have asked questions about the contents of my package and asked for clarification of
questions and form parts.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references. Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in _vour packet when vou submit it will render vour packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the

Commission with your application packet.
(a) Julian Burns,

BT T R N S
(b) Karen Eckford, [
(¢) Michael Arant, [
(d) Amber Conger, |
(e) Jimmy Morton, |

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

I do not have or participate in social media or internet sites. My business, Books on
Broad, has a website, a social media presence, and advertises. I do not participate in those
although there may be some old pictures of me in the store or interviews given before I
became a judge.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or

have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,

any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed

clsewhere.

(a) Lyttleton Street United Methodist Church, Finance Committee, 2018-Present

(b) Kershaw County Library Board of Trustees, 2011-2019, Secretary. 1 received a
plaque, as did two others, when our terms ended.

(¢) Kershaw County Historical Socicty, Board of Trustees, 2006-2018

(d) Congaree Land Trust, Board of Trustees, 2013-2018

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how your life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge vou have been or plan to
be.
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The variety of what I have done and the jobs [ have held brought me into contact with all
kinds of people. These experiences have made me sensitive to the struggles people have and
the difficulty some have in communicating with others. I have also been fortunate to have
learned from some very bright teachers and to have worked with individuals who cared
deeply about their jobs, the organizations that employed us and the people they served. I hope
to continue to bring the skills I have learned and the insights as well as the examples of
dedication and professionalism to which I have been exposed to my work. I understand the
value of hard work and diligence. It is also important to be an active listener and to treat those
who come into a courtroom with civility and respect. The best judges I have seen combine
those characteristics with a humanity so genuine that even those ruled against know that they
have been heard and understood. My goal is to earn that respect for both myself and the court
system | represent.

YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

IHEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Sworn to before me this day of ,2019.

(Notary Signature)

(Notary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be Included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Administrative Law Court
(Incumbent)

Full Name:

Harold Williams Funderburk, Jr.
Business Address:

South Carolina Administrative Law Court
1205 Pendleton Street, Ste. 224
Columbia, SC 29201

Business Telephone:
803-734-0551

1.

Do you plan to serve your full term if re-elected?
Yes, subject to mandatory state retirement.

Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?
I have no plans, but I haven’t ruled out the possibility.

Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice?
Yes.

What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parfe communications being
tolerated?

Ex parte communications can undermine the integrity of the judicial process and
should be avoided. There are occasions in scheduling hearings that my office might
contact attorneys individually, but we try to avoid ex parte communications by
sending out suggested times and dates via simultaneous emails or conference calls.
Sometimes self-represented individuals call with questions about procedures, the
status of cases, or how to get legal help. I do not take these calls. My law clerk is
instructed to refer callers to public sources such as the Court’s website for rules, the
SC Bar for legal representation, or to the SCALC’s clerk of court for other questions.

If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you believed it
would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference would you give a
party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such a motion?

In cases in which my bias might be questioned, I disclose the issue to the parties. If
am certain that I am not biased, I will tell them so. If there are circumstances in which
my bias is more subtle (such as a matter in which I have knowledge that would not
come from evidence presented in court), I explain that and would grant a party’s
motion or recuse myself on my own motion.
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6.

7.

8.

What standards have you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of gifts or
social hospitality?

I would not accept gifts except from family members on normal occasions. I accept
social hospitality only on occasions in which invitations are general and include all
members of groups to which I belong or to the general public.

How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of misconduct or
appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

If certain of the misconduct or infirmity, I would encourage the individual to self-
report and to seek assistance. If the circumstances and Rules of Professional Conduct

or the Standards of Judicial conduct required, I would also report the behavior.

Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any social, community, or

religious organizations? Please describe.

10.

11.

I have made contributions to community organizations and charities, but I do not
participate in or lend my name to specific fund-raising efforts.

How do you handle the drafting of orders?

Some cases I draft. Other cases I provide an outline of a decision and work
collaboratively with my staff. Ordinarily two of us work on an order. A final proofing
and review is done by the individual on my staff who has not worked on the order.

What methods do you use to ensure that you and your staff meet deadlines?

We keep track of all cases. In contested cases, it is a matter of coordinating hearing
dates and beginning work on an order as soon as the hearing is over. For appeals, as
soon as the respondent’s brief is filed, the case is moved to my desk to review. That
way no time is lost if the appellant does not file a reply brief.

For all cases, when a motion is filed, the case is moved to my desk for review in
anticipation of a response to the motion. Extension requests when there is no
objection, orders must be issued immediately. These techniques and goals are only
realizable when staff is fully trained to work as a team.

What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should judges
have in setting or promoting public policy?

Public policy is set by the legislature. Judges apply the law to the facts of each case.
Sometimes the facts get ahead of the statutes, and judges have to make decisions by
analogizing existing laws and precedents to apply them to novel questions. While
some might see that as judicial activism, cases and controversies have to be resolved.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal system,
and administration of justice. What activities do you plan to undertake to further
this improvement of the legal system?

I think it is important to explain the operation of the law to young people, including
law students who perhaps have not seen how it works outside of law school
textbooks. I have welcomed and will continue to welcome visitors and students to
my court and to entertain questions afterwards. I have been fortunate to have had
attorneys who were willing to remain to answer questions after I excused myself so
their candor would not be handicapped.

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge strains personal relationships
(i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How do you address this?
Any work to which a person is committed can strain personal relationships. As a
judge, I have certain restraints on what I can do, how I should behave, and on what
opinions I can express. I discuss these matters with my children. As a lawyer, my
spouse understands and allows me to avoid circumstances that might be
uncomfortable.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive additional
income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?
As an owner of a bookstore and rental property, it is possible that a party could have a
dispute with an agency that might come before me. So far that has not happened, but I
am prepared to disclose any interest that might impair the appearance of impartiality.
I did recuse myself from one tax case in which I believed I might have personal
(extra-judicial) knowledge of the business arrangements being challenged.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de minimis
financial interest in a party involved?
Even a de minimis interest should be disclosed. If, after disclosure, a party objected to
my hearing the case, I would step aside.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or practice,
prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex, religion, or national
origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if this organization practices
invidious discrimination on these bases.

No

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing legal
education courses for this reporting period?
Yes

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do these rules
apply?
A judge has to be calm, thoughtful, and patient. It is important to listen carefully to
what parties and witnesses say and to do so in a manner that encourages other people
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in the courtroom to do so as well. I find it best to practice those rules and behaviors in
all circumstances in court, in the office, and outside of the professional setting.

19. Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the public
appearing before you? Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro
se litigant?

No. However, sometimes a judge has to be firm to maintain control of the courtroom
so that the proceeding is fair to all parties.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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Harold W. Funderburk, Jr.

Administrative Law Judge, Seat 3
AMENDMENT TO PELRSONAL DATA QUESTIONAIRE
JULY 22,2019 |

QUESTION 47

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been anamed. party (personally or
professxonaily) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or crzmmal proceedings? If so, give details,
inchuding; but not fimited to, dates, and resolutions.

1 have never been sued by a client.

Other than my two divorces, I have been a party defendant in two other cases. During my separation

and before my divorce in March 1994, two mortgage payments were missed, and the lender began

foreclosure proceedings. I brought the loan current, and the case was dismissed. My former spouse

was then able to refinance and réemove me from the loan. Shoitly thereafter, the private investigator I

hired brought a collection action in magistrate’s court for the portion of his fee 1 had not paid. He

sent the bill to my estranged wife instead of to me. I paid the balance, and the i investigator waived the
" attorney’s fee. That miatter was also dismissed.

)

In addition to these matters, | have been reminded of an action brought against me to collect debts
incurred by my daughter (then 19). I don’t recall beifig served but I paid the bill when a telephone
call brought the matter to my attention. The information prevxdad shows the case as settled.

Thave also learned of another matter in which an action Wwas filed against me. I don’t believe I was
served but I'was contacted. The matter involved stdrage fees (and perhiaps a repair char ge) for a boat
1 owned jointly with a former brother-in-law. T had already paid the bill to the marina’s agent, who
apparently had not notified the marina of the payment. T think I showed the cancelled check to Ms.
Stover who managed the marina. The information provided shows this case settled as well.

I'am correcting a grammatical error in the original answer (word underlined) and am
supplementing the prior answer with What is provided in the amendment.

ool it A bl )
Harold W, Funderburk. Jr.

October 21, 2019 . ‘






JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court. Position. and Seat # for which vou are applying:

Administrative Law Court Judge, Seat 4
1. Name: The Honorable Deborah Brooks Durden

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname):

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.)

Yes. Administrative Law Court, Seat 4.

Business Address: 1205 Pendleton Street
Columbia, SC 29201

E-Mail Address: | NS

Telephone Number:  (home):
(office): 803-734-0550

(cell): NN
2. Date of Birth: || 1961

Place of Birth: Columbia, South Carolina

Social Security Number: ||| SR

3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

4. SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:

5. Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank
attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or

release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.
No





10.

Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.

(a) married

(b) October 10, 1992; Wiley Kevin Durden; Teacher, Richland District 2

(c) December 2, 1988 divorced from Charles Heins Burts in Richland County Family
Court. Charles Burts was the moving party and the grounds were one year of continuous
separation.

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) Columbia College, Magna Cum Laude 1979-1983, Bachelor of Arts in English
(b) University of South Carolina School of Law, 1988-1991, Juris Doctorate

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

University of South Carolina School of Law 1988-1991

(a) Student Bar Association
(1) Legislative Council 1988-1990
(2) Committee Chairman/Editor of student facebook directory 1989-90
(b) Moot Court, Captain of Craven Competition Team
(c) American Jurisprudence Awards in Civil Procedure Il and Trusts and Estates
(d) Wig and Robe Society

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina, 1992 (1)
(b) Alaska, 1993 (1)

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the





general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

(a) 1991-1992 -- Judicial Law Clerk

After graduation from USC law school and sitting for the South Carolina bar exam, I moved
to Anchorage, Alaska where 1 served as law clerk to Alaska Superior Court Judge Karen
Hunt from August 1991 to September 1992. Judge Hunt handled complex civil litigation
and I performed legal research related to those cases and wrote memoranda of law and
proposed orders on all motions to dismiss and motions for summary judgment. I also
evaluated motions for injunctive relief filed with the court.

I served as law clerk to Alaska Superior Court Judge John Reese from December 1992 to
April 1993 handling family court matters. I reviewed motions filed with the court and
recommended action on those motions. During this time I studied for the Alaska Bar exam
and took that exam in January, 1993.

(b) 1993-1997 -- Private Practice

In April 1993 I became an associate at Faulkner, Banfield, Doogan and Holmes’ Anchorage
office. Faulkner Banfield was a large firm with offices in Juneau, Fairbanks and Anchorage,
Alaska representing primarily business clients. During my association with the firm I
worked on Workers Compensation matters, professional liability cases, and tort cases.
Approximately 50% of the cases 1 worked on were in the Federal District Court. I also
successfully argued an appeal of a constitutional issue before the Alaska Supreme Court.

In 1994 my husband’s service commitment to the U.S. Air Force ended and I left Faulkner
Banfield so that he and I could move to South Carolina. I became an Associate at Gergel,
Nickles & Grant. During my association with the firm from 1994 to 1997, I represented
teachers and other employees in employment matters and worked on motions and discovery
in tort claims cases, Fair Labor Standards Act cases, and other civil litigation.

(c) 1997-2009 -- Government Service

In August, 1997 I accepted a position as Assistant Chief Counsel at the South Carolina
Department of Transportation. While at SCDOT I handled a wide variety of legal matters
including condemnation cases, contract matters, legislative issues, environmental matters,
and administrative law. I handled contested cases at the Administrative Law Court for the
department concerning environmental permits, the payment of relocation assistance benefits,
and the certification of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. I drafted and promulgated
agency regulations. I counseled agency staff and associate counsel on condemnation and
real estate law. My responsibilities at SCDOT also involved reviewing and analyzing
legislation pending at the state legislature, drafting proposed legislation and amendments,
and providing testimony before legislative subcommittees.

(d) 2009-Present -- Administrative Law Judge





11.

Since February 2009 I have served as a judge on the South Carolina Administrative Law

Court.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If vou are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than yvour current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to

serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases

. handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of

matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any





12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal:

(b) state:

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil:

(b) criminal:

© domestic:

(d other:

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(a) jury:

(b) non-jury:

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(@)

(b)

(<)

d

(e)

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

(©)





18.

19.

(d)
(©)

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

From February 2009 to the present I have served as a Judge on the South Carolina
Administrative Law Court. The Administrative Law Court has jurisdiction over
contested cases, appeals of administrative agency decisions, regulation hearings, and
certain petitions for injunctive relief. The jurisdiction of the Court is created by South
Carolina statutes, most notably the Administrative Procedures Act. Judges are elected by
the South Carolina General Assembly. The Court’s jurisdiction is limited to those
matters delineated by statute. The Court may consider the constitutionality of a statute or
regulation only with respect to how that statute or regulation was applied in the matter at
hand.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.

(a) Emerson Electric Co. and Affiliates v. S.C. Department of Revenue, (Docket No. 08-
ALJ-71-0351) not reported; affirmed by S.C. Supreme Court at 395 S.C. 481, 719
SE 2d 650 (2011). Held allocation statute applies to nonresident corporation for
interest expense deductions where no taxable dividend income was earned, and
rejected as-applied constitutional claims.

(b) Carolina Walk LLC and Serrus Carolina Walk. LLC v. Richland County Assessor,
reported at 2012 WL 529413; affirmed in unpublished opinion of the S. C. Supreme
Court at 2014 WL 2575405. Held purchase price was not an arms-length sale that
could be used to establish fair market value of real property. More contemporaneous
sales within the same development were more compelling evidence of the value of
the subject properties.

(c) Cellular Sales of South Carolina, LLLC v. S.C. Department of Employment and
Workforce, reported at 3013 WL 173705; affirmed in unpublished opinion by S.C.
Court of Appeals at 2014 WL 2586885. Held sales representative and others
similarly situated were employees and not independent contractors.

(d) Torrence v. S. C. Department of Corrections (docket No. 12-ALJ-04-0143-AP) not
reported; Appeal to Court of Appeals dismissed as interlocutory in unreported decision.
2018 WL 6199185. Held the Department of Corrections must determine the
prevailing wage for Prison Industries employment according to data collected by the
Department of Employment and Workforce and remit difference in amounts paid to
inmate. Held inmate serving a life sentence is entitled to designate persons or entities
for distribution of escrowed wages.

(e) Five Points Roost v. S.C. Department of Revenue reported at 2018 WL 1724696;
Denied Liquor by the drink license where proposed business would strain law
enforcement resources and is not primarily and substantially engaged in the
preparation and serving of meals.






20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

(a) South Carolina State Courts, October 12, 1992

(b) Alaska State Courts, June 22, 1993

(c) Federal District Court, District of Alaska, June 22, 1993

(d) Federal District Court, District of South Carolina, June 27, 1995

(e) United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, March 20, 1997

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational

institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each

course or lecture.

(a) [ lectured at the SC Bar “Bridge the Gap” programs for new lawyers giving an
overview of practice before the Administrative Law Court from 2011-2016.

(b) [ made presentations on the topics of accommodation taxes and bankruptcy sales
in property valuation to judges attending the 2012 National Conference of State
Tax Judges.

(c) I made a presentation on the topic of personal property valuation litigation to the
2010 Academy for County Auditors, Treasurers and Tax Collectors.

(d)  Itaught training sessions for SCDOT staff on the effect of S.C. Act 114
of 2007 which restructured the agency.

(e) Ilectured at a SC Bar Government Law Section CLE concerning state
legislative action related to eminent domain law.

(f) 1 lectured at a CLE hosted by the International Eminent Domain Institute on the
topic of relocation assistance benefits, and how newly promulgated federal
regulations would affect those benefits in the future.

(g) I taught a segment of a CLE for attorneys who handle condemnation cases for
SCDOT explaining relocation assistance benefits available for landowners and
displacees and the interplay between those benefits and just compensation payments
made in condemnation litigation.

(h) I taught a segment of a CLE for attorneys who handle SCDOT condemnation cases
for SCDOT on the subject of FOIA and Discovery Requests and strategies for
avoiding surprise at trial.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.
Reports attached as Exhibit A.

List all published books-and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each.
None.

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim

7





25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

Not Applicable.

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawvers, Chambers. Legal 500. Martindale-Hubbell, Who’s Who Legal, Super
Lawyers, Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

Not rated.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar Association

(b) South Carolina Women Lawyers Association

(c¢) Richland County Bar Association

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.

Not applicable.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

None.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

[ ran, unsuccessfully, for a seat on the Administrative Law Court in 2006. [ was found
qualified and nominated by the Judicial Merit Selection Commission, but withdrew from the
race prior to the election in the General Assembly.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

Prior to attending law school 1 worked as a claims examiner and then as a technical writer at
Colonial Life and Accident Insurance Company from 1983 to 1988. The only jobs I held
prior to that time were part-time or summer jobs I held while in high school and college.





31.

32.

33.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.
No.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

No.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

Statement attached as Exhibit B.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

No.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

No.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

None.





37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

None.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation.

No.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

I don’t have any business relationships or investments that [ expect to result in a conflict of
interest.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

() which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable

the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

(© South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

None.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.
None.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

See attached Exhibit C.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a

matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.
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44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

50.

No.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while

campaigning for this office?
No.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[Yes and no responses have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted
above, any expunged matters are redacted from the record. |

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.
No.

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

No.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.
Not applicable.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses for all candidates are redacted unless there is a public discipline.]
Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of

Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.
No.
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52.

33.

54.

55.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c):
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on yvour behalf, as

well as you, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

No.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

Yes.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.

No.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in your packet when you submit it will render your packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the
Commission with your application packet.

(a) Pamela L. Jenkins

(b) Deborah Shuler

12





56.

57.

58.

(¢) Linda C. McDonald

(d) Chelsca J. Clark

(e) Milton G. Kimpson

See Exhibit D for original letters of recommendation.

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

Yes. I use Facebook to keep up with personal friends and family. I never post anything on
the internet related to my job as a judge and I do not have internet contact with South
Carolina lawyers except for close personal friends who are unlikely to appear in the ALC
and for whom I would be required to recuse myself. I conduct my social media activity so
as not to affect my judicial duties.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,
any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed

elsewhere.
(a) Trenholm Road United Methodist Church, Hope Class President, Youth Core Team

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how your life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

13





YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

[ HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Sworn to before me this day of ,2019.

(Notary Signature)

(Notary Pri-nticrc‘l-lzl-aﬁle-j N
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be Included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Administrative Law Court
(Incumbent)
Full Name: Deborah Brooks Durden

Business Address: 1205 Pendleton Street, Suite 224, Columbia, SC 29201

Business Telephone: 803-734-0550

1. Do you plan to serve your full term if re-elected?

Yes

2. Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?

No

3. Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice?

Yes

4, What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there

circumstances under which you could envision ex parte communications
being tolerated?
The only circumstance in which I would tolerate ex parte communication is to deal with
scheduling issues or urgent procedural matters when all parties are not available for a
telephone conference at the same time and which could not be handled by a law clerk or
administrative assistant. Of course I would immediately communicate the substance of
the conversation to the other party(ies) and offer them an opportunity to respond.

5. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant
such a motion?

I would give considerable deference to such a motion and would grant it unless I believed

that it was made for purposes of delay or otherwise to gain an advantage in the matter

rather than out of genuine concern about the potential of bias.

6. What standards have you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of gifts
or social hospitality?

I do not accept gifts or hospitality which would give the appearance of affecting my

impartiality in matters that might come before me.

7. How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

I would initiate a conversation with the affected lawyer or judge to hear from them

concerning the circumstances of the situation. If, after such a conversation, 1 was
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convinced that misconduct had occurred or the individual was medically unable to
perform the duties of the job, I would report the misconduct or infirmity to the
appropriate authority.

8. Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe.

No

9. How do you handle the drafting of orders?

In matters where the parties are represented by counsel I frequently request proposed
orders at the close of a hearing, either from both attorneys or from one attorney and offer
the other attorney an opportunity to respond to the proposed order. I consider any
proposed orders and comments and prepare an order reflecting my judgment in the
matter. In matters where the parties are not represented by counsel, or where the issues
are not complicated, I draft the order myself, sometimes with the assistance of staff
counsel.

10. What methods do you use to ensure that you and your staff meet

deadlines?
I have a tickler system utilizing calendaring software to keep track of all deadlines.

11. What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

I do not believe that judges should engage in judicial activism, but should follow

constitutional and statutory law and caselaw precedent. Such an approach promotes

predictability of results and encourages the private settlement of disputes rather than

protracted litigation. It also avoids judicial interference in the powers reserved to the

legislative branch of government.

12. Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system, and administration of justice. What activities do you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?

I volunteer as a CLE speaker and conduct mock trials and mock legislatures with student

groups. | also serve as a mentor for law students and recent graduates.

13. Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge strains personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How do you
address this?

My service does not strain my personal relationships.

14. Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive
additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?
No.

15. Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved?
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It would depend on the type of party and interest involved and whether the de minimis
interest could reasonably call my impartiality in the matter into question. I would
evaluate each matter carefully, considering whether the interest was mine or that of a
family member; the type of entity the party was; and any other circumstances such as the
existence or absence of personal relationships with the party or officers of the party.

16. Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on these bases.

No

17. Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for this reporting period?
Yes

18.  What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

A judge’s demeanor should be patient, considerate, and firm. It is important for a judge

to create a climate in which litigants have confidence that their concerns will be fairly

heard by a judge who is competent in the law and procedure and impartial and fair in

applying them. As a judge I am aware that my conduct at all times affects a litigant’s

confidence in my fairness and so I conduct myself accordingly at all times.

19. Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public appearing before you? Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with
attorneys or a pro se litigant?

I do not believe that displays of anger are appropriate on the part of a judge. Litigants

who believe that a judge is, or has been, angry with them would reasonably fear that the

judge’s impartiality in handling their case could be compromised. I do believe, however,
that a judge must at times be firm with litigants in expressing the standards of the
courtroom and in refusing to tolerate inappropriate behavior.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION M Covini k-

PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court. Position. and Seat # for which vou are applying:

Family Court, Fourteenth Judicial Circuit Seat 2

1.

Name: Mrs. Jean K. McCormick

Home Address: [

Business Address: 95 Sams Point Road, Beaufort, South Carolina 29907

E-Mail Address: [
Telephone Number:  (home): [ N

(office): 843-525-0004

(cett): [ INEEG—_-
Date of Birth: || 1964

Place of Birth: Charleston, South Carolina
Social Security Number:

Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

SCDL# or SCHD#: SCDL #
Voter Registration Number:
Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank

attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

No.

Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.

(a) Married;
(b) July 1, 1989, to Harvey Wilson McCormick, III; attorney;
©) Never divorced; three children;






10.

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) Winthrop College/University
1982-1986
Bachelor of Science Degree in Government and Public Service

(b) University of South Carolina School of Law
1987-1990
Juris Doctor

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

(a) Phi Delta Phi, Legal Fraternity 1988-1990

) Palmetto Law Society, Legal Fraternity 1988-1990

(©) American Bar Association law student division 1988-1990
(e) Student Pro Bono Program 1988-1990

43) Volunteer guardian ad litem 1988-1990

(g) Intern Richland County Public Defender Office 1988-1990

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(@ South Carolina 1990
(b) None
(©) South Carolina passed the first time

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

(a) Richland County Public Defender, Attorney, Columbia, South Carolina.
Assistant Public Defender, 1991-1993;





(b)

(©)

(d

(e)

®

Represented adults and juveniles charged with criminal offenses in the Family,
Circuit and Magistrate Courts.

I was not involved in the administrative or financial management of the office.

Beaufort County Public Defender, Attorney, Beaufort, South Carolina.

Assistant Public Defender, 1993-1995;

Represented adults and juveniles charged with criminal offenses in the Family and
Circuit Courts.

I was not involved in the administrative or financial management of the office.

United States Army Corps of Engineers, Attorney, Savannah, Georgia.

General Attorney, 1995-1996;

Provided legal advice and assistance to a staff of approximately eighty (80)
individuals involving difficult and complex legal and factual issues related to the
management and disposal of property acquired by the government. Responsibilities
included correlating and reviewing evidence of title, appraisals, foreclosure
documents, environmental reports, offers to sell, title insurance policies, deeds,
closing documents and other pertinent information for legal sufficiency necessary
for the acquisition and resale of properties.

Certified transactions as closing officer and approved payment to proper parties.
The program acquired 1786 properties from the Charleston area with an acquisition
cost of $131,271,000.00.

Peter L. Fuge, Attorney, Beaufort, South Carolina.

Associate, 1996-1997;

Practice of law and litigation in Family Court. [ assisted or handled cases involving
divorce, equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect.

[ was not involved in the administrative or financial management of the office.

Jean K. McCormick, Attorney at Law, Beaufort, South Carolina.

Sole Practitioner, 1998-2006;
Practice of law and litigation in the Family Court, Common Pleas, General Sessions,

and certified Family Court Mediator.

Handled all administrative and financial matters to include management of trust
accounts.

State of South Carolina Office of the Solicitor Fourteenth Judicial Circuit, Attorney,
Allendale, Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper Counties, South Carolina.
Assistant Solicitor, 2007-2017;

Practice of law and litigation in Family Court and Circuit Court where 1 handled

Magistrate Court criminal appeals.
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I was not involved in the administrative or financial management of the office.

Jean K. McCormick, Attorney at Law, Attorney, Beaufort, South Carolina.
Sole Practitioner, 2017-present;
Practice of law and litigation in Family Court and certified Family Court Mediator.

Handle all administrative and financial matters to include management of trust
accounts.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If vou are a full-time judege seeking a judgeship different than vour current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to

serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(a)

If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

Divorce and equitable division of property

My first exposure to Domestic Law was working as an associate attorney with Peter
L. Fuge, before he was elected to the Family Court. He had an extremely busy
domestic practice with very high profile cases. I assisted or handled cases involving
divorce and equitable division of property. The clients were usually very wealthy
and many of the cases involved a number of complex issues relating to business
valuations and division, retirement accounts, qualified domestic relations orders
(QDRO), appraisals, accounting, bankruptcy, jurisdiction, alimony and contempt of
court.

I have successfully mediated cases involving division of Property.

Child Custody

In addition to representing a party in a divorce action seeking child custody, the
majority of my private guardian ad litem cases involved child custody. I have
handled cases involving initial custody actions, relocation, alcohol abuse, emotional
abuse, physical abuse, sexual abuse, change of circumstances, parental alienation,
grandparent custody and visitation.

I have successfully mediated child custody cases.





Adoption
I handled adoption cases while working with Peter L. Fuge, P.A. I have also served

as a private guardian ad litem in contested adoption actions.

Abuse and Neglect

I have served as a volunteer guardian ad litem in abuse and neglect cases. I have
been appointed as a private guardian ad litem in abuse and neglect cases. I have
served as the attorney for the Guardian ad litem’s office in abuse and neglect cases. 1
have also represented defendants in abuse and neglect cases.

While at the Solicitor’s Office I prosecuted juveniles charged with Criminal Sexual
Conduct. I worked with child forensic interviewers, law enforcement, child victims
and their advocates in order to prepare the children for court. I have knowledge of
the proper interviewing procedures, physical examinations and protocol.

I have prosecuted and defended children who were taken into Emergency Protection.
[ have participated in Emergency Protective Custody hearings in Family Court.

I have requested and reviewed drug screens, worked with the South Carolina
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Department and the South Carolina Department of Mental
Health.

Juvenile Justice

After graduating from Law School, I was hired as an attorney by the Richland
County Public Defender Office. I immediately took an interest in representing
juveniles in Family Court and eventually worked exclusively in Family Court and
became head of the Family Court Division. In representing my clients, [ visited all of
the juvenile facilities and gained hands on knowledge of the policies, procedures and
programs at the Department of Youth Services (now Department of Juvenile
Justice). I was also able to appear before and learn from some great judges and
mentors such as Judge William Byers. 1 handled serious juvenile matters from
murder cases to juvenile waiver/transfer hearings. 1 was chosen by the Criminal
Justice Academy to participate in a training film on juvenile waiver and received an
award from the Public Defender Office for demonstrating an outstanding work ethic
and trial skills.

Later in my career, from 2007-2017, I worked in the Juvenile Division of the
Fourteenth Judicial Circuit Solicitor’s Office handling juvenile matters in Family
Court in Allendale, Beaufort, Colleton, Hampton and Jasper Counties. I was later
named head of the Beaufort Juvenile Division where I reviewed approximately 6000
cases and handled the serious and high profile cases in court. I developed a system
of checks and balances with all law enforcement agencies, Department of Juvenile
Justice and the Family Court. [ was also instrumental in developing the Beaufort
County Multi- Disciplinary Court Program, Juvenile Pre-trial Intervention, several
diversionary and mentor programs.





(b)

©

(d

I have appeared in Probate Court seeking judicial admission of a juvenile after he
was determined not competent to stand trial.

[ have worked with South Carolina Continuum of Care, South Carolina Department
of Disability and Special Needs, South Carolina Department of Mental Health,
South Carolina Alcohol and Drug Abuse Program, University of South Carolina
Children’s Law Center, and South Carolina Appleseed Legal Justice Center.

Frequency of appearance

When I worked at the Solicitor’s Office (2007-2017) I appeared before a Family
Court Judge at least twice a week and a full day once a month.

If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

Not applicable.

If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

Not applicable.

If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative

Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

Not applicable.





12.

13.

14.

15.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal: 0
(b) state: When I worked at the Solicitor’s Office (2007-2017) T appeared before a

Family Court Judge at least twice a week and one (1) full day once a month.

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil: 5%

(b) criminal: 5%

(©) domestic: 20%

(d) other: Family Court Juvenile Justice 70%

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(a) jury: 0%

(b) non-jury: 100%

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

Sole counsel.

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(a) In the Interest of John Duncan, 2015-JU-07-190 & 191. This case involved a
juvenile who was charged with Murder and Possession of a Firearm during the
commission of a violent crime. The juvenile was 15 years old at the time of the
shooting. The juvenile searched for the 17 year old victim found him and shot him in
the head at a busy tourist location in front of children and families. I filed a Motion
to have jurisdiction transferred to the court of General Sessions. A highly contested
Waiver Hearing was held on October 28, 2016 and my Motion was granted. The
defendant was eventually tried and found guilty by a jury.

If the defendant remained in Family Court, he would have only remained in custody
until his 21* birthday and then released with no supervision.

(b) John Doe #1 vs. Beaufort County School District: The Beaufort County Board of
Education; Boys and Girls Clubs of the Lowcountry and Boys & Girls Clubs of
America. 2004-CP-07-791; John Doe #2 vs. Beaufort County School District: The
Beaufort County Board of Education: Boys and Girls Clubs of the Lowcountry and






(c)

@

()

Boys & Girls Clubs of America. 2004-CP-07-792; John Doe #3 vs. Beaufort County
School District: The Beaufort County Board of Education: Boys and Girls Clubs of
the Lowcountry and Boys & Girls Clubs of America. 2004-CP-07-793; John Doe #4
vs. Beaufort County School District: The Beaufort County Board of Education:
Bovs and Girls Clubs of the Lowcountry and Bovs & Girls Clubs of America. 2004-
CP-07-794; John Doe #5 vs. Beaufort County School District; The Beaufort County
Board of Education: Boys and Girls Clubs of the Lowcountry and Boys & Girls
Clubs of America. 2004-CP-07-795; John Doe #6 vs. Beaufort County School
District: The Beaufort County Board of Education; Boys and Girls Clubs of the
Lowcountry and Boys & Girls Clubs of America. 2004-CP-07-796. I represented a
licensed clinical psychologist who had been subpoenaed to provide testimony and
produce records of any individual she may have treated who was a victim of a
teacher who was charged with molesting 6 students. My client was willing to
cooperate, but the victims had not given her their authorization.

I was able to protect my client and the confidentiality of her patient’s records.

Records have been sealed, 1999-DR-07-_ & .1 was selected to serve as the
private guardian ad litem for the children in this matter. The family was very
wealthy and the husband was a [l in Beaufort. The party’s children were
very vocal regarding their wishes. Due to a number of concerning issues, I made a
motion for a Family Psychological/Custody Evaluation which was ordered by
consent agreement. I called the Psychologist as an expert witness during the
weeklong trial. A motion was made by one of the parties requesting that the
children be appointed an attorney to represent them in the Divorce, Custody and
Separate Maintenance action.

This was a very complex case dealing with equitable distribution, custody, child
support and the novel issue of whether children are entitled to their own attorney in
their parent’s divorce and custody action.

In the Interest of . 1995-JU-07___. This case involved a motion by the
defendant to vacate a juvenile adjudication for lack of subject matter jurisdiction for
Criminal Sexual Conduct 1% degree. The novel issue was that the motion was made
18 years after the adjudication. The defendant was 13 years old at the time of the
offense and the victim was 6 years old. At the time of the motion the defendant was
32 years old and the victim 24.

I had to locate the victim in this case and she had to relive the assault which was
very traumatic for her. I presented a memorandum on this issues and successfully
argued my position and the Motion was denied.

John & Mary Doe. petitioners. In re: Baby Girl. an infant under one vear of age.
2017-DR-07-___. I'was appointed to serve as the guardian ad litem for the baby girl
in this contested adoption case. The Adoptive parents resided in Texas and the baby
girl was born in South Carolina. Her mother signed a consent to adopt without the






16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

father’s knowledge and alleged that she did not know how to locate him. Prior to
the adoption hearing it was discovered that father had registered with the
Responsible Father Registry. He was located and contested the adoption.

I actively participated in the Deposition of the father. I believe it was the consensus
of the attorneys that as a result of my gentle questioning of the father that the parties
were able to amicably come to an agreement that was in the best interest of the child.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

None.

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

[ handled Magistrate Court criminal appeals for the Solicitor’s Office for 9 years. I
appeared in the Circuit Court and before The Beaufort Master in Equity. I cannot recall the
case names but handled a wide variety of appeals involving traffic offenses, criminal
domestic violence, driving under the influence, boating under the influence and illegal
shrimping.

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

No.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.

Not applicable.

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

All South Carolina state courts; admitted November 16, 1990; Bar number 15207.

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.

(a) Instructed and lectured Beaufort County law enforcement and student resource
officers during my employment with the Solicitor’s Office. (2007-2017)





22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

(b) Lectured to Beaufort County students regarding the law and juvenile justice. (2007-
2017)

(©) Adjunct Professor at The Technical College of the Lowcountry, 1998 where I taught
a variety of courses in the Criminal Law and Paralegal Programs.

(d) Host and coordinator, continuing legal education accredited Family Court seminar
on Juvenile Justice, 1991.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.

Please see attached.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each.

None.

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

Please see the attached Transfer of jurisdiction order.

Please see the attached Reply brief of the guardian ad litem to the memorandum of law of
putative intervenors and brief in opposition of attorney representation of minor children
involved in custody disputes.

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawyers, Chambers, Legal 500, Martindale-Hubbell, Who’s Who Legal. Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

Martindale-Hubbell Top Lawyers of the Lowcountry 2013 & 2014
Martindale-Hubbell 4.4 BV

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar Association

b Beaufort County Bar Association
© Woman Lawyers Association
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217.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

33.

(d) Certified Family Court Mediator

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.

No.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

Not applicable.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

No.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

No.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

Yes. Vice President of McCormick Law Firm an S Corporation. Assist my husband when
needed.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.

Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

No.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that
itemizes in detail:

11





(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

Please see the attachment.

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

No.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

No.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

Postage under $100.00 for mailing the documents required to apply for this judgeship.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

None.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the

promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation.
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39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

No.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

None.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

(c) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

None.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable

the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b nature and value of any public improvements; and

(c) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Not applicable.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.
None.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

Not applicable.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,

including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

Not applicable.
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44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office?

Not applicable.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters have been redacted.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.

No.

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

No.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.

No, since I am only handling guardian ad litem custody cases.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]
Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the

details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

No.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c);
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on your behalf, as
well as vou, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

No.
None.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

Yes.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.

No.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in your packet when vou submit it will render vour packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
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56.

57.

58.

directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the
Commission with your application packet.
(a) Solicitor Duffie Stone;
(b) Eve Fleming, Esquire;
(c) Tracy O’Kelly Klatt, Esquire;
(d) William Thomas Bacon, IV, Esquire;

AR
(¢) Ralph E. Tupper, Esquire; | G

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

Yes, I am a member of Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter and Instagram.
I would close all of my accounts.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,
any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed
elsewhere.

None.

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how vour life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

I knew that 1 wanted to be a lawyer in the 8" grade and I worked hard to get into the
University of South Carolina School of Law. When I entered law school my goal was to
help others. Most of my legal career has been in public service.

I have had the opportunity to practice on both sides of the law, by serving as a public
defender and prosecutor. [ think that opportunity will assist me in being a fair and
understanding judge.

I am aware and I have witnessed that in divorce and child custody cases the parties are
usually at their very worst. This is usually traumatic on the children. 1 have represented
Women and Men in divorce and custody actions. I have served as the Guardian ad litem for
children of all ages from infants to 17 year olds in custody actions. I have the knowledge
and perception from all sides of a divorce case which will result in me being a patient and
fair judge.
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I have prosecuted and defended juveniles in Family Court. Unfortunately, I have been the
parent of a child who was the victim of an assault and appeared in Family Court. I have truly
been on all sides of a juvenile court case in family court.

I left the Solicitor’s Office in 2017 and since then I have been practicing law part-time
serving as guardian ad litem in private custody cases. My priority has always been my
husband and my 3 children. My 3™ child will be leaving home in August to attend The
Citadel. This is the perfect time in my life to achieve my goal of being appointed to the
Family Court.

I believe that I have handled every type of case that comes before a Family Court Judge and
I have the knowledge, the ability and the passion to be become a great judge.
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YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE
COMMITTEE OR ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Swomn to before me this dayof . 2019.

(Notary Signature)

(Notary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(New Candidate)

Full Name: Jean Kiser McCormick

Business Address: 95 Sams Point Road Beaufort, South Carolina 29907

Business Telephone: 843-525-0004

1.

Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

Early on in my career I realized that my ultimate career goal was to serve as a
Family Court judge in order to serve the community and protect the children that
come before the Family Court. I have been in public service most of my career,
but I have been limited in taking on more responsibility due to raising my 3
children. Now that my children are grown and I am an “empty nester”, I feel that I
can give the position my full attention and dedication.

Do you plan to serve your full term if elected?

Yes.

Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?

No.

Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice?

Yes, I am 54 years old, I have lived in South Carolina my entire life and I have
been practicing law in South Carolina for almost 29 years.

What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parfe communications
being tolerated?

I will not permit ex partfe communications unless it is due to one of the exceptions
listed in Rule 501, SCACR Canon 3 (B) (7) or expressly authorized by law.

A judge shall not initiate, permit, or consider ex parte communications.

There are very limited exceptions for scheduling, administrative purposes or
emergencies that do not deal with substantive matters or issues on the merits. Also
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a judge may obtain the advice of a disinterested expert on the law with notice to
the parties.

6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such
a motion?

I would give great deference to the party and abide by Rule 501, SCACR Canon 2
which binds a Judge to act at all times in a manner that promotes public
confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the judiciary.

My decision would depend on the facts of the case. I would apply the test stated
in the commentary, whether the conduct would create in reasonable minds a
perception that the judge’s ability to carry out judicial responsibilities with
integrity, impartiality and competence is impaired. Therefore even if I believed it
would not actually prejudice my impartiality if there was a perception then I
would grant the motion.

7. How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the
financial or social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

If there was an appearance of impropriety then I would disqualify myself based
on Rule 501, SCACR Canon 3 (E), a judge shall disqualify himself or herself in
a proceeding in which the judge’s impartiality might reasonably be questioned.

8. What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of
gifts or social hospitality?

Unless listed in the exceptions of the Code of Judicial Conduct, I would not
accept a gift from any individual or business and I would urge my family
members to do the same.

Rule 501, SCACR, Canon 4 (D) (5) commands that a judge not accept and shall
urge members of the judge’s family residing in their household not to accept a
gift, bequest, favor or loan. Exceptions to this rule include public testimonial,
books, tapes and other resource materials supplied by publishers on a
complimentary basis for official use, invitation to attend a bar-related function or
an activity devoted to the improvement of the law, the legal system or the
administration of justice. Additional exceptions are gifts for ordinary social
hospitality or from a relative or friend for a special occasion which is
commensurate with the occasion and relationship.

9. How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Pursuant to Rule 501 SCACR Canon 3 (D).

If I received information indicating there was a substantial likelihood that a judge
violated the Judicial Code of Conduct, I would take the appropriate action.

If T had knowledge that a judge violated the Judicial Code that raised a substantial
question as to fitness for office then I would inform the appropriate authority.

If I received information indicating there was a substantial likelithood that a
lawyer violated the Rules of Professional Conduct, I would take the appropriate
action.

If I had knowledge that a lawyer violated the Rules of Professional Conduct that
raised a substantial question as to their honesty, trustworthiness or fitness then I
would inform the appropriate authority.

The commentary describes appropriate action to include direct communication,
other direct action if available and reporting the violation to the appropriate
authority or other agency body.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on any basis.

No.

Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe.

No.

Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining
involved with if elected to the bench?

No.

Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle
the drafting of orders?

Depending on the type of case and circumstances, when appropriate I would draft
the orders myself, issue a memorandum to the attorneys with my findings and
ruling and have one or more attorneys prepare a proposed order, use form orders,
have the attorneys submit proposed orders, or have the prevailing attorney submit
a proposed order.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff
meet deadlines?

[ would calendar deadlines with notifications of approaching deadlines
electronically and by hardcopy. I would share my calendars with staff and they
would share their calendars with me. We would meet regularly to review
upcoming matters.

501 SCACR, Canon 3 (B) (8) A judge shall dispose of all judicial matters
promptly, efficiently and fairly.

If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the
pendency of a case?

I would require a supplemental order appointing the guardian ad litem that
contains the applicable law, requirements and responsibilities. I have drafted an
order that I regularly use that complies with the above.

What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

Judicial activism is not appropriate. Judges should not let their personal, political
or religious beliefs interfere when applying the law.

Rule 501, SCACR, Canon 3 (B) (2). A judge shall be faithful to the law and
maintain professional competence in it. A judge shall not be swayed by partisan
interests, public clamor or fear of criticism.

Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system, and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?

I would like to work with the appropriate agencies in developing alternative
programs or sentencing options. I have worked with judges and my employers in
developing programs such as drug court, homeless court, veteran’s court, juvenile
multidisciplinary court and truancy court.

As of July 1, 2019 a new juvenile justice law became active where the age of a
juvenile increased from 17 to 18 years of age. I would like to work with family
court and the appropriate authorities in this transition.

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you
plan to address this?
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Absolutely not. T have raised my three children and it is just my husband and me
at home. My husband is a lawyer and knows the requirements of a judgeship. I
have his full support and blessing. Please see his attached letter.

My husband does not practice in family court and has only handled approximately
2 appointed family court cases over the course of his 26 years of practice.

Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family
court?

Yes to a point. I would require them to have the necessary legal documents, case
requirements and follow the rules as I would an attorney, but I would go out of
my way to explain the procedure and requirements.

I would be patient, dignified and courteous. Rule 501, SCACR, Canon 3 (B) (4)

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive
additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?

No.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved?

501 SCACR Canon 3 (E) (c) states a judge should disqualify herself if there is
more than a de minimis interest. Even if | determine it to be a de minimis interest,
out of the abundance of caution I would place the matter on the record and allow
the parties to determine if they would like to make a motion for reconsideration
for disqualification.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for the past reporting period?

Yes.

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

I have always treated everyone with respect, understanding and compassion.

In addition, and in accordance with Rule 501, SCACR, Canon 3 (B) (4), I would
be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants, jurors, witnesses, lawyers and
others in which I work with in an official capacity. I would perform my duties
impartially and fairly without bias or prejudice.
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24.

These rules and principles should apply at all times to everyone on and off the
bench.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant?
Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?

It is never appropriate to act angry while serving in a judicial capacity with
anyone. I will be firm and maintain decorum in the courtroom. I will not allow
anyone to engage words or conduct demonstrating bias or prejudice.

As an attorney I have worked with criminal defendants, attorneys, pro se litigants,
parents, juveniles, hostile witnesses, witnesses, confidential informants etc. 1
have been presented with very adversarial individuals but know that responding in
anger only makes matters worse.

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina

My commission expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court. Position. and Seat # for which vou are applving: Fourteenth Judicial Circuit
Family Court, Seat #2

1. Name: The Honorable Douglas L. Novak
Mrs.
Ms.

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname):

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.) Associate Chief Magistrate (part-time)

Business Address: 23 Plantation Park Drive, Suite 502
Bluffton, South Carolina 29910

E-Mail Address: |

Telephone Number:  (home):
(office): (843) 836.2004
(cell):

2. Date of Birth: B 1968

Place of Birth: Livingston, New Jersey
Social Security Number: i

3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

4. SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:
5. Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank

attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge. No

6. Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a





10.

divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.

(a) Family Status: Married on March 25, 1995 to Erin K. O’Donnell
(b) Never divorced, one child

[ —

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) The University of South Carolina, August 1986-May 1990, BA
(b) Seton Hall University School of Law, August 1990-May 1991, transfer
(c) Tulane University School of Law, August 1991-May 1993, JD

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

(a) Tulane University School of Law Ambassador (1992-1993)
(b) Tulane University School of Law Public Interest Fellow (1992)
(c) Tulane University School of Law Family Law Clinic (1992-1993)

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina, admitted 1993, took the bar exam once
(b) New Jersey, not admitted, took the bar exam twice

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

(a) Aiken County Public Defender, 12/15/93-1/15/95
Special Grant Attorney
Assigned to the representation of juveniles in Family Court adjudications.






(b) Solicitor’s Office, Second Judicial Circuit, 1/15/95-1/5/97

Assistant Solicitor
Assigned to full caseload throughout counties in the circuit, in addition to
prosecution of juvenile delinquency adjunctions in the Family Court.

(c) Office of the Governor, 1/6/97-1/5/99

Legal Counsel to the Governor

Served as executive counsel to the Governor including staffing proposed
legislation, extraditions, capital case reviews, liaison work with the South
Carolina Congressional Delegation and federal agencies associated with
the Savannah River Site complex, in addition to representing the State on
a number of environmental boards and commissions.

-Low-Level Nuclear Waste Forum

-Hazardous Waste Management Select Oversight Committee
-South Carolina Natural Resource Trustee

-South Carolina Aquatic Plant Management Council

-South Carolina Geological Mapping Advisory Committee

-South Carolina Procurement Review Panel

(d) Montgomery. Patterson. Potts & Willard, LLP, 1/15/99-1/15/01

Partner
General practice law firm with a primary focus on domestic relations,
personal injury and corporate litigation.

(e) Solicitor’s Office. Ninth Judicial Circuit, 1/15/01-8/15/04

®

Assistant Managing Solicitor

Assigned to administration of two (2) county office within circuit,
including personnel, budget, grant development and oversight, and
department liaison work. Also assigned a caseload for prosecution
through trial, diversion and negotiated pleas.

Novak and Novak. LLC, 8/15/04-9/1/05

Associate

General practice law firm with a primary focus on municipal
representation, real estate, domestic relations and civil litigation.

(g) Vaux & Marscher, P.A., 9/1/05-6/15/09

Senior Litigator

General practice law firm with a primary focus on criminal defense, civil
litigation and domestic relations. In addition, assigned management of
firm litigation team and support staff.





1.

(h) The Novak Law Group, LLLC, 7/15/09-present
Attorney
General practice law firm with a primary focus on domestic relations,
guardian ad litem work, and extensive practice as a Certified Family
Court Mediator. Practice includes the management and oversight of
general operating and client trust accounts.

(1) Beaufort County Magistrate Court, 7/2/12-present
Magistrate
Associate Chief Magistrate, 6/25/18-present
Part-time county Magistrate handling civil and criminal matters (jury and
non-jury matters), evictions, restraining orders and bond hearings. In
addition, staffed with management of judicial clerks, case/hearing
scheduling, roster meetings, processing continuance requests and orders
of protection, scheduling trials, and civil/criminal docket management.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If vou are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than vour current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to

serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(2)

If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

My professional career has almost always included some degree of practice within
the Family Courts of South Carolina. [ started my practice out of law school as a
special grant attorney assigned to the representation of juvenile delinquency
adjudications. When I moved onto the Solicitor’s Office, in addition to a caseload of
criminal cases in the Court of General Sessions, I was also tasked with
representation of the state on the other side of those very same Family Court
adjudications. It was also during this time, that I spearheaded the development of a
truancy intervention program for Aiken County. In my early private practice outside
of government work, I handled all of the firm’s domestic relations cases which
included, divorces, adoptions, Order of Protection from Domestic Abuse, South
Carolina Department of Social Services abuse and neglect matters, and juvenile
adjudications. When I took over duties as the Managing Assistant Solicitor, |
worked closely with the Family Court staff in Charleston and Berkeley Counties to
streamline services and in the development of a Juvenile Arbitration Program.





Rejoining private practice, I again took on the representation of firm clients in
divorce, custody, support and division of property matters. Of the many cases I have
handled, I am proud to report that a vast majority have been successfully settled
through negotiation or mediation. Regardless of the outcome, the cases have
involved extensive work with Family Court staff and colleagues, the filing of an
original action with the Court, filing or defending Motions for Temporary Relief,
preparing financial declarations, filing or defending Rule to Show Cause (RTSC)
contempt actions, conducting discovery, and presenting oral arguments before the
Family Court. I have litigated cases involving divorce, child custody, requested
change in custody actions, actions for modifications of alimony and child support.
During the course of my practice of I have represented clients seeking custody or a
change in custody involving out of state litigants that required use of the Federal
Interstate Compact (UCCJEA), and sadly also represented a client whose children
were abducted by a non-custodial parent and involved extensive work with state and
federal authorities. In addition, I have been involved a number of Termination of
Parental Rights (TPR) cases representing a parent or as a guardian ad litem.

While I presently represent clients in traditional Family Court litigation, the majority
of my current practice is devoted to guardian ad litem (GAL) work, and the
mediation of Family Court matters. In conjunction with my work as a part-time
Magistrate, my schedule has required a degree of flexibility that is not afforded by
the day to day representation of domestic relation clients. As such, within the past
six (6) years, I have concentrated on the representation of minor children through the
GAL appointment process, and the mediation of complex domestic relations cases
involving the Court and colleagues in the field.

Within my work as a GAL, I have represented the interests of many minor children
through investigation, home visits, general litigation and trial. This portion of my
practice relies heavily on my experience in the areas of child custody, adoption,
abuse and neglect, and juvenile adjudications. Likewise, my work as a Certified
Family Court Mediator draws on my many years of work in the field in successfully
resolving complex Family Court cases involving divorce, alimony, equitable
division of property, and child custody. 1 generally carry approximately five (5)
ongoing GAL cases at any given time, and regularly conduct and consistently
successfully resolve at least two (2) mediated cases per week. I consider it a great
honor and ultimately an endorsement of my practice and abilities that I am regularly
contacted by colleagues and the Court to serve as a GAL, and/or to mediate complex
Family Court cases.

Service as retained counsel and/or as a GAL requires my appearance in Family
Court on a very regular basis though motion and contempt hearings, final hearings
for the approval of agreements, and/or trial. Over the past five (5) years, I have been
appointed to represent a child or multiple children as guardian ad litem in an excess
of fifty (50) cases. During that same time, I have mediated over three hundred fifty
(350) cases.





12.

13.

14.

(b) If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

© If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?
(a) federal: N/A
(b) state: Two — Three times / month as a practicing Attorney
Three — Four times / week as a Magistrate

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?
(a) civil: 5%

b criminal: 0%
(©) domestic: 95%
(d other: 0%

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(a) jury: 0%

(b) non-jury: 100% (Family Court and/or Master in Equity)
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During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel? Sole Counsel

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(a) Walls v. Kitto (2017, Beaufort County Family Court)

I was appointed by the Family Court to serve as the guardian ad litem in this case for two (2)
minor children. The parties were previously divorced with the Mother retaining primary
custody of the minor children in South Carolina, and the Father having secured visitation
with his new family in the State of New Jersey. The action was filed by the Father to secure
out-of-state custody of the minor children based on developments in the children’s life in
South Carolina and alleged interference with his relationship with them. The case was
particularly significant in that one of the two minor children is processing significant gender
identity issues and the parents were at odds over how to handle and support the minor child
through the process. Further complicating the case was the fact that the Father was not the
natural father of the minor child facing the personal issues and this fact was unknown to the
minor child. While the case is not yet settled with finality, it appears that a great deal of
investigations, out-of-state home visits, work with the parents, counselors, extended family
and school officials has successfully addressed what developed as a very real crisis, and the
parties have found an avenue to productively co-parent the minor children.

(b) Heditiniemi v. Heditiniemi (2011, Beaufort County Family Court)

I was appointed to serve as the guardian ad litem in this case for three (3) minor children.
The parties were previously separated with the Mother retaining primary custody of the
minor children in South Carolina, while the Father was employed and residing in the District
of Columbia. The action was filed by the Father for a divorce and for custody of the minor
children alleging abuse and neglect. The case was significant in that the Father was secking
to have the Family Court remove the minor children from the admitted primary custodial
parent and allow them to be relocated to another jurisdiction. The case required extensive
investigation, work with school officials, law enforcement, counselors and testimony at the
multi-day trial of the issues before the Family Court. Based on the investigation and
testimony provided to the Court, the Judge determined the best intertest of the children were
best served by awarding custody to the Father and allowing for the relocation of all three (3)
minor children out of the State of South Carolina.

(c) Evans v. Moses (2010, Beaufort County Family Court)

I was retained to represent the interest of the Mother of two (2) minor children who had
been previously divorced in the State of Louisiana, and wherein the Father had been named
the primary domiciliary parent, subject to my client’s visitation rights. Several years later
the parties orally agreed to amend the original determination and the minor children began
living with her on a full-time basis in South Carolina where the Mother had relocated. Once
the Mother had inquired of the Father regarding the formalization of the custody
arrangement the parties became entangled in a custody battle where each demanded the
minor children reside with them in South Carolina or Louisiana respectively. The case was
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significant in that simultaneously with my filing of an action with the South Carolina Family
Court to confirm the parties’ custody arrangement, the Father filed an action in the
Louisiana Family Court to enforce the previously issued (original) Order of custody and
visitation. The case required extensive research and utilization of the Uniform Child
Custody Jurisdiction Enforcement Act (UCCJEA) to initially successfully litigate and secure
jurisdiction, and then the eventual negotiation with Louisiana counsel to mediate a mutually
acceptable settlement agreement and dismissal of the Louisiana action.

(d) Johnathon Lilly v. Home Depot USA (2009, United States District Court, District of
South Carolina)

I served as lead counsel in this personal injury action that was originally filed in the South
Carolina Court of Common Pleas seeking damages for injuries sustained by a firm client
while conducting business within a local Home Depot store. Home Depot quickly moved to
have the case transferred to federal court and the case was litigated and tried in that forum.
The case was significant in that if required a high level of technical development through
medical forensics and treatment documentation to establish the accident, resulting injury and
the ultimate amortization of damages. The case was further complicated by a countervailing
allegation of drug use and illicit criminal activity. In addition, the case was presented to a
federal jury and included the development of a claim for the client’s spouse for a loss of
consortium. This claim was attacked by the Defendant with an assault on the basis of the
validity of the common law marriage which required extensive research and litigation over
the application of South Carolina legal authority within the trial of the overall personal
injury case.

(e) State of South Carolina v. Johnny Philipp Sweat (2001, South Carolina Court of
General Sessions)

I served as the assigned Solicitor for the prosecution of this case on behalf of the state. The
Defendant was charged with a number of crimes for home invasion involving his estranged
family and independent victims. The case was complicated by the fact that the estranged
wife of the Defendant was terrified to testify against him and had her own criminal
background to contend with once confronted with cross examination on the stand.
Likewise, the independent witness/victims in the home during the crime had a criminal
history that the defense called into question in attempting to impugn their credibility on the
witness stand. The case was significant in that the Defendant and his estranged wife’s three
(3) minor children were also in the home during the invasion and resulting assault. The state
had to establish a basis for the minor children’s testimony, extensively prepare them for the
actual live testimony and navigate the presentation of the evidence to the jury in front of the
Defendant/Father. The jury ultimately returned a guilty verdict and the Defendant was
sentenced to twenty (20) years in the state department of corrections for Assault and Battery
with Intent to Kill, two (2) counts of Assault and Battery of a High and Aggravated Nature,
and Burglary First Degree.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) Brown v. Stewart, South Carolina Court of Appeals, November 19, 2001
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Brown v. Stewart, 348 S.C. 557, 557 S.E.2d 676 (S.C. App. 2001)

(b)
(©)
(d)
(e

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(@ NA
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

(a) Beaufort County Magistrate (part-time), 7/2/12-present
(b) Appointed by the Governor / Advice and consent of the South Carolina Senate
©) Criminal: Up to $500.00, and/or up to thirty (30) days in jail
Civil: Up to $7,500.00 in controversy
(d Beaufort County Associate Chief Magistrate, 6/25/18-present
(e) Appointed by Chief Justice Donald W. Beatty, South Carolina Supreme Court

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions. N/A

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

(a) South Carolina Supreme Court, November 1993

(b) United States District Court, District of South Carolina, October 1995
(c) United States District Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit, February 2000
(d) United States Supreme Court, February 2017

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture. N/A

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years. Attached.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each. N/A

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.) Attached.

(a) South Carolina Court of Common Pleas
(b) South Carolina Court of Appeals (co-authored with law partner)

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawvers. Chambers, Legcal 500. Martindale-Hubbell. Who’s Who Legal. Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
Jjudiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

(a) Martin-Hubbell: AV Preeminent Rating

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar Association
(b) Beaufort County Bar Association
(c) Hilton Head Island Bar -Association

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates. No

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected

judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

(a) Private practice of law while serving as a part-time Magistrate

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates. No

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
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31.

32.

33.

details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer. No

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

(a) Private practice of law, sole practitioner, domestic relations, 2009-present

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed. No

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that
itemizes in detail: Attached.

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details. No

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved. No

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees? None

11





37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

(a) Senator Tom Davis $500.00 (6/15/16)

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation. No

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest. None

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property: None

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

© which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable

the: N/A

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

(c) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.
None

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here. N/A

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attomey or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,

including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received. No

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office? No
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45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain. No

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

(a) 05/02/11: 2011-CP-07-01985, Foreclosure action filed on primary residence
Case dismissed on 12/01/11 with home being sold in a short sale

(b) 04/19/16: 2016-CV-07-10300381, Eviction action against law firm
Case dismissed on 05/05/16 with firm relocating out of office complex

(c) 10/13/16: 2016-CV-07-10300975, Collection action against former client
Case dismissed on 05/05/17 with out of court resolution of matter

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.

I am currently covered by malpractice insurance and I have carried personal malpractice
insurance since 1 undertook the solo private practice of law in July of 2009. I was
previously (pre-2009) covered by employers. I carry $1,000,000.00 in coverage, which
includes a $2,500.00 deductible. Included in the policy is Lawyers Professional Liability
Insurance (LPLI), and a Cyber Liability and Data Breach Response Policy (Cyber).

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.
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51.

52.

53.

54.

35.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details. No

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c):
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on yvour behalf, as
well as you, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details. No

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

(a) T have undertaken efforts to introduce myself, my candidacy and share my
qualifications.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule? Yes

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details. No

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to_include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in vour packet when yvou submit it will render vour packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the
Commission with your application packet.

(a) P.J. Tanner, Beaufort County Sheriff
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56.

57.

(b) James Wedgeworth, Charter One Reality

(d) Lawrence P. McElynn, Beaufort County Chief Magistrate (retired)

(e) Teri H. Porcel, Victim Witness Advocate Coordinator

(f) The Honorable Jane D. Fender, Family Court Judge (retired)

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet.site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

(a) Instagram: I am not active on the platform; however, I maintain an account for
purposes of following my daughter

(b) Snapchat: Likewise, I am not active on the platform; however, I maintain an account
for purposes of following my daughter

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,
any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed
elsewhere.

(a) Southern Beaufort County Corridor Beautification Committee, Chairman
(b) Port Royal Historic Review Commission

(c) St. Gregory the Great Pastoral Council

(d) St. Vincent’s Academy Grounds Beautification Commission

() The Gamecock Club

(f) RBC Heritage Golf Tournament, Practice Are Marshall, Co-Chairman
(g) South Carolina Bar, Fourteenth Circuit, Pro-Bono Board

(h) South Carolina Bar, Mock Trial Competition, Judge
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(i) South Carolina Bar, Beaufort County, Fee Arbitration Board

(a) The Order of the Palmetto

(b) Eagle Scout, Boy Scouts of America

(c) Certified Family Court Mediator

(d) Finalist for “Best Law Firm” (The Sun Today, 2019)

(e) Bluffton’s “Best Attorney” (Bluffton Today, 2012), nominee 2012-present
(f) Beaufort’s “Favorite Attorney” (The Island News, 2010)

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how vour life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

I am a firm believer that every individual is a creature of his or her own experiences. In that
respect, I think both the breadth and depth of my personal and professional experience will
provide me with the necessary tools to effectively serve our state on the Family Court
Bench. My career to date has included a great deal of direct experience in the Family Courts
of this state from the defense and prosecution of juvenile adjudications, to the more
traditional representation of adult clients in divorce, division of property and custody
actions. For the past many years, I have also had the opportunity to serve as a guardian ad
litem on a regular basis, and to mediate hundreds of cases within the Family Court system. [
firmly believe all of these experiences will provide an excellent foundation for the rigors and
technical experience required of the Family Court Bench.

At the same time, I have had the opportunity to serve at the highest levels of state
government, practiced law in both the firm and solo settings, and have been presiding over
criminal and civil cases in the Beaufort County Magistrate Court for the past seven (7)
years. On the personal side, 1 have been married for twenty-four (24) years and have a
twenty-one (21) year old daughter who has just graduated Magna Cum Laude with
Leadership Distinction from the University of South Carolina. I believe all of this
‘experience’, both professional and personal, ground me as a person, guide me as an
Attorney, and will continue to inspire me as a Judge.

YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

IHEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:
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Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Notary Signature)

(Notary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(New Candidate)
Full Name: Douglas L. Novak
Business Address: 23 Plantation Park Drive, Suite 502
Bluffton, South Carolina 29910
Business Telephone: (843) 836.2004
1. Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

2.

In considering the decision to seek election to the Family Court Bench I took
stock in my experience, both professional and personal, to date. A review of my
resume quickly reveals that my professional career always includes some element
of public service, as well as significant connections to the Family Court system.

I began my career the first year out of law school as a special grant attorney
working with juveniles in the Aiken County Public Defender’s Office.
Thereafter, I joined the Solicitor’s staff where I continued to work with juveniles
in the Family Courts in Aiken, Bamberg, and Barnwell Counties, in addition to
carrying a regular caseload of files in the Court of General Sessions. In private
practice, I have represented clients in a multitude of domestic relations matters
and most recently I focused my practice on the representation of minor children as
a Court Appointed guardian ad litem (GAL), and in the successful mediation of
hundreds of complex Family Court cases. During the course of my professional
career, | have also had the opportunity to serve in state government and been
accorded the very great honor to contribute to my community during the past
seven (7) years as a Magistrate Judge, the most recent year having been afforded
the opportunity to also serve as the Associate Chief Magistrate for Beaufort
County.

I have always considered the opportunity to seek a seat on the Family Court
Bench to be the culmination of a professional desire to serve, and a personal
dedication to the crucial work of the South Carolina Family Court. I believe my
background provides me with a great deal to offer the Family Court. I sincerely
look forward to being able to utilize my experience, temperament and passion in
the service of this very important Court.

Do you plan to serve your full term if elected? Yes
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3. Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day? No

4. Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice? Yes

5. What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parte communications
being tolerated?

I do not believe ex parte communications are appropriate and work very diligently
in my current service as a part-time Magistrate to ensure they do not take place. 1
also work hard to safeguard against even an appearance of such a communication.
Although the rules provide for certain limited circumstances in which ex parte
communications are permitted (i.e. scheduling, administrative or emergency
scenarios), I have found with diligent oversight most of these situations can be
avoided to include all relevant parties in the administration of judiciary functions.

6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such
a motion?

While I do not I believe the appearance of colleagues or acquaintances in my
courtroom are the basis for an automatic recusal in all situations, I do feel it is my
responsibility to recuse myself from presiding over a case wherein my
impartiality may be called into question based on the parties or attorneys
involved. In addition, it has been my practice serving as a Magistrate in Beaufort
County to carry that philosophy a bit further. Whenever I felt like there could be
a chance of the ‘appearance’ of any factor that may call into question my
impartiality in a matter, [ have typically either fully disclosed my concerns on the
record and sought input from the involved parties as to their position, and/or have
immediately sought the reassignment of the particular case to another Magistrate
Judge.

7. How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the
financial or social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

I believe I have a duty in such a scenario, financial or social involvement, to
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10.

11.

12.

13.

disqualify myself from presiding over the case in question.

What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of
gifts or social hospitality?

I am aware the Judicial Canons provide for narrowly defined private offers of
social hospitality, personal gifts or even professional ‘gifts” within certain defined
allowances. However, I am also sensitive to anything that could possibly be
perceived as impugning or calling into question the impartiality of the bench,
and/or in some way exploiting the Judge’s official position being the seminal
guiding principal. With that in mind, [ have not, nor do I intend to in the future
accept gifts or social hospitality.

How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

I believe having actual knowledge of such information regarding misconduct
requires immediate disclosure to the appropriate authority. In the case of a noted
infirmity, a disclosure to an appropriate outreach entity such as Lawyers Helping
Lawyers through the South Carolina Bar Association may also be warranted.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on any basis. No

Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe. No

Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining
involved with if elected to the bench? No

Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle
the drafting of orders?

I learned early on in my service as Magistrate Court Judge that delaying the
delivery of a clear decision from the bench only serves to frustrate the litigants
and at times dilute the import of the ruling. As such, I deliver verdicts where
appropriate in a very timely fashion. I will typically request one of the attorneys
to draft a proposed Order to be shared with opposing counsel before delivery to
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the Court, and/or will ask that both attorneys draft a proposed Order for
consideration. If the circumstance warrants, I may request the attorneys to brief a
particular issue for consideration before rendering a verdict so as to ensure all
parties are involved in the process. In many cases or certainly if there are no
attorneys involved in the case, I have and would continue to undertake any
necessary research and prepare my own Order.

14. If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff
meet deadlines?

A Judge has a clear duty to ensure the diligent and impartial discharge of his or
her duties. Further, this duty extends to his or her staff. I have worked hard to
maintain a clear and open line of communication between myself and the
Magistrate Court staff, both internally and with regard to communications with
attorneys and members of the general public. We focus on creating clear
expectations, and uniformly apply procedural rules and expeditious calendaring of
cases. This experience has served me well over the past several years, and has
provided policies and procedures I intend to bring with me to the Family Court
Bench.

15. If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the
pendency of a case?

As an active guardian ad litem (GAL), I have personally experienced the powerful
role a GAL contributes in a Family Court case. I firmly believe in appointing
experienced and effective representatives as GALs. The most important initial
decision is identifying the appropriate cases requiring the appointment of a GAL.
Thereafter, certifying an identified GAL candidate possesses proper training,
relevant experience and a dedication to the requirements of service are paramount.
After appointment, I would ensure the GAL has the necessary tools to complete
his or her investigation and deliver effective representation of the minor child(ren)
in Court, to include: discovery, evaluations, home inspections, reporting, and
proper financial support.

16. What is your philosophy on *“judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

I do not believe in the notion of “judicial activism”. I believe a Judge’s role is to
appropriately interpret and apply the laws as passed by the legislature. Where the
law is silent as to a specific question or controversy, I believe a Judge is expected
to utilize common sense and some degree of discretion within the confines of the
original legislative intent of the specific arena of law.
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17. Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system, and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?

I would welcome the opportunity to engage with members of the Bar and the
general public in appropriate forums to improve the legal system and the overall
administration of justice. I believe any opportunity to educate the public on the
workings of the Family Court and engage Family Court practitioners on
improving the services of the Court would provide a significant contribution to
these endeavors.

18. Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you
plan to address this?

Having many years’ experience in both the private practice of law and service as a
Judge in the Magistrate Court, I believe I have a firm grasp on the expectations
and demands of the Family Court Bench, and do not believe they will unduly
strain my personal relationships. My wife is employed full-time with a local real
estate firm and my daughter is twenty-one (21) years old and a recent graduate of
the University of South Carolina. My family and friends have been incredibly
supportive of my career and my decision to seek a seat on the Family Court
Bench.

19.  Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family
court?

I would, as the rules require, expect the pro se litigant to abide by the same rules
and code of conduct expected of any licensed attorney in the courtroom. That
said, it has always been my practice in service on the Magistrate Court Bench to
ensure that a pro se litigant is aware of his or her rights to secure legal counsel. I
also attempt to provide the pro se litigant protocol regarding Court proceedings
and expectations. In that respect, I have always strived to ensure pro se litigants
are comfortable in the courtroom setting and able to make an informed decision
with regard to seeking counsel and/or proceeding with the prosecution or defense
of their case. Also, having served in the Family Court and witnessed first hand
the confusion and stress pro-se litigants have experienced in cases that could not
be more important in terms of their everyday lives, I believe a patient and
understanding temperament is a very important attribute for a member of this
particular bench.
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20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive
additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality? No

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved? No

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for the past reporting period? Yes

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

I believe the appropriate demeanor for a Judge is one of temperament that
encompasses compassion, impartiality, professionalism, courtesy, patience,
respect, humility, decisive service, and above all else, commitment to the equal
administration of justice to all parties before the Court. Given that a Judge is the
public face of the Court he or she serves, I believe this temperament is required at
all times and in every setting, personal and professional.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant?
Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?

I do not believe it is ever appropriate for a member of the judiciary to exhibit
anger towards a member of the public in a criminal or civil setting. Likewise,
anger is never an appropriate element of a Judge’s interaction with an attorney or
pro se litigant.

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina

My commission expires:
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Douglas L.. Novak
Family Court, Fourteenth Judicial Circuit, Seat #2

Amendment to Personal Data Questionnaire

#6.  Family Status

Amending prior answer to update daughter’s age and new status as a graduate
student:

Age: Twenty-two (22)
Child’s occupation: Graduate student

#29. Report of previous candidacy for elective, judicial,-or other public office
Amending prior answer to clarify offering for a previous judicial office:

Yes, offered candidacy for Family Court, Fourteenth Circuit
Seat 2 in 2018, withdrew

i

#47  Named party in civil proceedings
Supplementing prior answer to explain civil litigation:

(a) 05/02/11: 2011-CP-07-01985, Foreclosure action filed on primary residence
Case dismissed-on 12/01/11 with home being sold in a short sale

To place this event in proper context | would state that approximately one year previous to the filing
of this action I was working as the senior litigatorin a local law firm. One of the partners met with me
to explain the firm was hemorrhaging from expenses:as the firm was heavily dependent on real estate
closings and was suffering from the national recession. The partner explained I was the highest paid
associate and had to be let go'in their effort to stay afloat.

Given the national and local économy 1 was not able to quickly secure employment and decided to
start my own practice. While this turned out to be a blessing and very rewarding in the long run, at the
time my income was drastically reduced and my wife and I quickly realized we were not going to be
able to continue to service our mortgage. We immediately contacted the mortgage company and
worked to prepare and list'our- home for sale, located a buyer and negotiated a short sale. Thereafter,
the mortgage company dismissed the action.





(b) 04/19/16: 2016-CV-07-10300381, Eviction action against law firm
) Case dismissed on 05/05/16 with firm relocating out of office complex

Myselfand another Aftorney had been sharing office space in a commercial office complex for several
years wherein the written lease had long since expired. The office complex was purchased out of
foreclosure by a Tennessee investment group. At that time the property manager approached us and
indicated the new owners wished to secure new long-term written leases for the complex tenants and
asked if we were interested. We indicated that we were of course interested and asked him fo provide
us a copy of the proposed lease. Several days later, the property manager was walking through our
office space with new tenants that he had signed fo a lease on the space.

T believe the property manager/new owners expected prottacted litigation over the commercial space
given our long-term possession of the property and thus filed a preemptive eviction action. Rather
than litigate, the Attorney that T-was sharing the space with and I put our energy into locating new
office space and relocating our respective businesses. The eviction action was thereafter dismissed
within two (2) weeks of having been filed.

R

LN\
Douglas E-Novak
October 15, 2019







JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court, Position. and Seat # for which you are applying: Family Court, At-Large, Seat #2

1.

Name: Mr. Robert Wallis Cone

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname): None

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.): No.

e .

Business Address: 1118 Phoenix Street
Greenwood, SC 29648

Telephone Number: (home):
(office):803-924-0787

(cell): |
Date of Birth: [l 1971
Place of Birth: Richmond, Virginia
Social Security Number: _
Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:
Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank

attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge. Not applicable.

Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the





8.

10.

names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.

Family Status: Married November 15, 2003 to Emily Willard Cone
Never divorced, one child.

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

a) University of South Carolina, School of Law. August, 1995 to May, 1998. ID
degree.

b) Medical University of South Carolina, Fall semester, August to December, 1993.
Dropped out of medical school due to lack of interest in continuing the program.

¢) Furman University, September 1989 through May, 1993. Bachelor of Arts, Political
Science

Ve
List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

University of South Carolina, School of Law:

a) Palmetto Legal Society, member 1995-1998

b) Christian Legal Society, member 1995-1998

c¢) Intellectual Property Law Society, member 1996-1998

d) Legal Writing Instructor, Professor Thomas Haggard, 1997-98.

¢) Law Clerk, Administrative Law Court, Staff Attorneys’ office, 1996-1998.

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

State of South Carolina, admitted 1998. Passed the South Carolina bar exam on first
attempt.

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

a) McDonald, Patrick, Baggett, Poston, and Hemphill, L.L.P., 414 Main Street,
Greenwood, South Carolina. Associate attorney. From 1998 to 2002, my practice





b)

d)

primarily involved insurance defense litigation in personal injury, medical malpractice,
and tort cases filed against state agencies insured through the South Carolina Insurance
Reserve Fund. Due to changes in insurance practices and experience I was gaining
representing persons in Family Court, I began to develop a practice in the field of family
law and shifted my focus to that field in 2002. From 1998 to 2005 I also handled estate
planning, probate matters, business formations, debt collection, and bankruptcy matters
for business clients.

The Cone Law Firm, PC, 128 Maxwell Avenue, Greenwood, SC 29646, November
2005 to April, 2012. I opened my own law firm in 2005 and operated as a solo
practitioner. My practice focused on civil litigation, specifically in family law. I also
handled probate matters, bankruptcy cases, debt collection, business formations and
estate planning. During this time I became a contract attorney for the Department of
Social Services, representing the agency in child welfare, abuse and neglect cases. I
served as the sole attorney, managing the firm’s trust account and paralegal staff.

South Carolina Department of Social Services, April, 2012 to April, 2016. Managing
Attorney for Greenwood, Abbeville, and Newberry counties. 1 became a full time
employee of the Department of Social Services and represented the agency in child
welfare, abuse and neglect cases. I primarily operated in the Eighth Judicial Circuit, but
would conduct trials in numerous counties when other agency attorneys were
unavailable. I supervised two paralegals during this time.

South Carolina Department of Social Services, April, 2016 to July, 2019, Regional
Managing Attorney for the Second, Eighth, and Eleventh Judicial Circuits. 1 was
promoted to Regional Managing Attorney, supervising a legal staff of 7 attorneys and 8
paralegals. During my tenure the legal staff grew to 10 attorneys and 13 paralegals, plus
three contract attorneys. 1 was responsible for the overall management of the
Department’s caseload across the 11 counties of the three Circuits. I handled all
personnel matters, addressed specific case issues, conducted legal research, and handled
high priority or complex legal cases in all of the counties. I also filled in as county
attorney when there were vacancies or other absences. I also maintained professional
relationships between the Department and other participants in the Family Court system
related to abuse and neglect cases, including judges, clerks of court, law enforcement,
the Department of Juvenile Justice, guardians ad litem, and opposing counsel.

South Carolina Department of Social Services, July, 2019 to present. Assistant
Managing Attorney for County Operations, Office of General Counsel. In July I was
promoted to this position, assisting the Managing Attorney for all county legal
operations across the state. I am responsible for developing and conducting training
programs for agency attorneys, paralegals, and case management staff on issues
pertaining to the Department’s participation in the Family Court system. I also
administer the agency’s Legal Case Management software system and train users on it’s
proper use. [ serve as agency liaison to the state’s Court Improvement Project and the
Bench/Bar Committee on child welfare issues.





11.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If vou are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than vour current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to
serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(a) If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

In preparing my response to this question, I reviewed my case files going back to
1998. I found that since that time, I have handled more than 200 private Family Court cases,
including cases where I represented husbands, wives, mothers, fathers, and grandparents in
cases involving divorce, equitable division of property, and child custody/child support.

I have served as a private Guardian ad litem in more than 40 cases, representing the
interests of children in contested custody matters. I have also been fortunate to represent 19
families in private adoption cases. I have also been appointed to represent juveniles as their
Guardian ad Litem in a number of Juvenile Justice cases.

Beginning in the fall of 2007, 1 began representing the Department of Social
Services as a contract attorney, handling child abuse, child neglect, adult abuse, and adult
neglect cases.

These numbers reflect my Family Court experience as a private attorney, and cases I
was either hired or appointed to represent individuals.

Beginning in April, 2012, when I joined the Department of Social Services as a full
time attorney, I continued to represent the Department in child abuse, child neglect, adult
abuse, and adult neglect cases. These cases included termination of parental rights actions
and appeals. From 2012 to 2016, I handled between 100 to 125 cases per year.

In 2016, I changed positions and moved into a more managerial role, but continued
to appear in court and train new attorneys on the correct processes and procedures for
representing the Department in Family Court.

b) If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel





12.

13.

14.

it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

(©) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal: none

(b) state: Multiple days each week.

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil: 1% (Probate work for vulnerable adults)

(b) criminal: 2% (Department of Juvenile Justice)

(© domestic: 97%

(d) other:

‘What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years

prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(@&  Jjury: 0%

(b) non-jury: 100%

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

I always served as sole counsel, except for a handful of cases in the past three years
where I sat second chair with a new attorney as part of their training.





15.

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(a) Burton v. Molen, 2008-DR-01-35 (Abbeville County).

This is a case where I represented the biological father in a custody dispute. The
child in question was three years old when the mother left South Carolina without warning
and took the child to Texas. Over a period of nearly 2 years, we engaged in a complex legal
proceeding, with hearings in both South Carolina and Texas, to try and return the child to
South Carolina. While the case was on appeal, we were able to negotiate a settlement that
resulted in joint custody for my client. This was one of the most challenging cases of my
legal career, involving multiple hearings in more than one jurisdiction, and working with
agencies such as the FBI, and the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children.

(b) SCDSS vs, Sharpe, et al. 2007-DR-01-190; 2012-DR-01-46 (Abbeville County)

This was a contested termination of parental rights action where the minor children
had been victims of sexual abuse, and because of many procedural delays, the minor
children had been in foster care for nearly 5 years without a resolution. A particular
challenge was the mother’s continued participation in some treatment efforts and regular
contact with the children, but this had to be considered in the context that she remained in
contact with the childrens’ abuser. After a lengthy trial, we were successful in having the
parents’ rights to the children terminated, making them free for adoption.

(b) Carter v. Hayford, 2006-DR-24-583 (Greenwood County).

This was a case where I served as the Guardian ad litem for a young girl whose
parents been divorced for several years. The mother had remarried, and was seeking to
relocate with the child to the state of Kentucky. The father opposed the move and sought a
change of custody. Ultimately, we were able to resolve the case on the eve of trial and
established a visitation plan that allowed the child to move, but still gave father substantial
visitation throughout the year. This case was significant to me because of the challenge
involved in choosing between two good parents, both of whom were deeply involved in the
child's life.

(c) SCDSS v. Balasty, 2013-DR-24-78; 2015-DR-24-536

This was a case involving severe and repeated neglect of young children by a mother
who had mental health, substance abuse, and violent behavioral issues. The case involved
two children, and one of the more contentious issues was a custody dispute as to one of the
children. A set of maternal relatives sought custody of the child, as did the child’s
stepfather, who had been the child’s caregiver for years. Issues of the value of biological
versus psychological attachment played a large role in this case.





16.

17.

18.

19.

(d)  SCDSS v. Crawford, 2013-DR-01-66 (Abbeville County)

This case began as an educational neglect case, but ended with the parent losing full
custody of her children. It became a complex case due to the intervention of maternal
relatives, and also the participation of one child’s biological father, who lived out of state,
and was deployed on military service during the pendency of the case. It was a complex
matter, dealing with overlapping jurisdictional issues and the need to compliance with the
federal Service Member’s Relief Act.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the

date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) Joubert v. South Carolina Department of Social Services, 341 S.C. 176, 534 S.E.2d
1 (Ct. App. 2000)

(b) Allegiant v. Emerald Inns. Inc., 2007-UP-325, Court of Appeals, 2007.

(©) South Carolina Dept. of Social Services v. Driggers, 2015-UP-038, Court of
Appeals, 2015.

(d) South Carolina Dept. of Social Services v. Gary, 2006-UP-288, Court of Appeals,
2006.

(e) South Carolina Dept. of Social Services v. May. 2017-UP-447, Court of Appeals,
2017.

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.
(a) None.

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

I served part-time as the Municipal Judge for the Town of Ninety-Six, South
Carolina from October, 2008 to January, 2013. I was appointed to the position by the Town
Council. The court handled traffic violations, town ordinance violations, bond hearings for
all persons arrested by the Town’s police department, and misdemeanor criminal matters
within the town limits. I also issued search warrants, arrest warrants, and conducted
preliminary hearings in criminal matters for the Town, whether misdemeanors or felonies.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.

Municipal Courts are summary courts, and the only written orders issued were bond
orders or custody orders. I occasionally issued an order committing a defendant to a Pre-
Trial Intervention or similar diversion program, but these were form orders provided by the
Solicitor’s office.





20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

g
h)

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

a) Admitted to practice before the State Courts of South Carolina in 1998.
b) Admitted to practice before the Federal District Court and Fourth Circuit Court of
Appeals in 2000.

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.

I have presented at CLEs for the Department of Social Services’ new attorneys boot camp
on the roles and responsibilities of agency attorneys in 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019.

I have presented at a CLE on “Effective Advocacy in Termination of Parental Rights
Proceedings™ in February, 2017.

In September, 2013 and 2014, I presented a CLE on Abuse and Neglect cases for attorneys
and volunteer guardians ad litem in Greenwood and Abbeville counties.

I have taught the course on “Consumer Law and Debt Collection in South Carolina” for the
South Carolina Bar’s Law School for Nonlawyers at Piedmont Technical College in
Greenwood, South Carolina in 2007, 2008, and 2011.

I presented a seminar on "Mechanic's Liens and Collections in South Carolina", Greenwood
Home Builders Association. January, 2002

I presented a seminar on "The Church Under Fire, Youth Ministry and the Law" Greater
Greenwood Youth Ministries (GYM), October, 2003.

I presented a seminar on "Sexual Harassment and Schools", Ninety-Six Primary School
Faculty, September, 2005.

I taught a class on Business Law at Lander University during the Fall Semester of 2000.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.

See attached.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each.

None.

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)






25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

See attached Final Brief of Respondent in SCDSS v. May, 2017-UP-447 (2017). See also
Final Order in Burton v. Molen, 2008-DR-01-35.

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawvers, Chambers. Legal 500. Martindale-Hubbell, Who’s Who Legal, Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

I am not a member of any rating organization and am not aware of any rating(s) I
may have been give.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(2 South Carolina Bar Association

(b) Greenwood County Bar Association

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.

I served as the Town Attorney for the Town of McCormick, South Carolina from
1999 to 2008. I was appointed to that position by the Town Council, and reappointed on an
annual basis. I ended my service when I was appointed Municipal Court Judge for the Town
of Ninety-Six, SC.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
Supervisot.

While municipal court judge, I was also working as the sole attorney in my private
practice.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

a) In 2010, I ran for the office of Probate Judge for Greenwood County. After a contested
primary in June, 2010, I was the Republican candidate for Probate Judge. I lost in the
general election in November, 2010.

b) In 2012, I was a candidate for Family Court Judge, Eighth Judicial Circuit, Seat 3. 1 was
found qualified, but not nominated for the position.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give





31.

32.

33.

b)

details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

First Baptist Church of Greenwood, Greenwood, South Carolina. Interim Minister to
Students, 1994-95. I was responsible for leading church-wide ministry program for students,
age 11-18 and college students. I was also responsible for fundraising activities to support
non-budgeted student activities and ministry projects.

YMCA Blue Ridge Assembly, Black Mountain, North Carolina. Associate Director of
Conference Services, 1993-94; Assistant Conference Services Director (Audio-Visual),
Summer 1992; Assistant Program Director, Summers 1990 and 1991.

I worked in a variety of positions at a conference center operated by YMCAs of the
Southeast. I supervised teams of up to 15 college age workers to prepare meeting and
convention facilities for use by diverse groups, including community, corporate, and church
organizations.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

Not applicable.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

Not applicable.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

() the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.
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34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

Not applicable.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

Not applicable.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

None.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

None.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation.

Not applicable.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

Not applicable.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

(c) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.
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41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable

the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

(©) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Not applicable.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Not applicable.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

Not applicable.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

Not applicable.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office?

Not applicable.

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]
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46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.

Not applicable.

Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

Not applicable.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.

Not applicable.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.

Not applicable.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c);
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters

concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on vour behalf, as

well as vou, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No.
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52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

No.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

I am familiar with the 48-hour rule.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.

No.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in vour packet when vou submit it will render yvour packet
incomplete. Please de not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the
Commission with your application packet.
(a) Scarlet Moore,
(b) Adam Bacot,
(¢) Lil Ann Gray,
(d) Rosemerry Felder-Commander,
(e) Adrienne Woods,

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

I have a Facebook account and use Twitter, LinkedIn, and Instagram accounts.
Facebook is the only social media platform I use with any regularity. I never post
regarding work due to the confidentiality of child abuse/neglect cases. My account is
limited to Friends, and is not open to the general public. If elected to the Family Court, I
would restrict my use of Facebook to only family and personal matters where I keep up
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57.

58.

with family and close friends. I certainly would not comment on cases, past or future.
Nor would I discuss political issues or engage in other commentary espousing particular
political views, platforms, or candidates. I do not generally post anything on other media
sites, but if | felt the need to do so, would follow the same guidelines in my postings.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,
any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed
elsewhere.

(a) Cub Scout Pack 921, Greenwood SC. Den Leader 2014-2015; Cubmaster 2016-2019.
(b) Boy Scout Troop 313, Greenwood, SC. Assistant Scoutmaster February 2019 - present
(c) F3 Men’s Fitness Club, 2015 — present.

(d) Greenwood County Library Board. Chairman, 2014-2016.

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how vyour life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge vou have been or plan to
be.

Throughout my life, I have had a strong desire to serve and help people. I once
considered careers in ministry and later, in medicine, but found that my skills and abilities
were best suited for the practice of law. Over the years, I have seen the tremendous impact
the court system can have on families. I think I was drawn to family law because you can
have a real impact on the lives of families and individuals in the decisions you make in cases
you pursue in family court. While family law has not been as financially rewarding as other
areas of law can be, it has given me great personal satisfaction to help individuals and
families deal with some of the most tumultuous events of their lives.

In recent years, serving the state as an advocate for child welfare, I have seen the
critical role Family Court judges have to make each day. Most decisions they are called
upon to make will have life-long impacts on families and their children, but they are forced
to make those decisions in a limited span of time and without complete information. While
a prestigious post, Family Court judges are required to work at a demanding pace, week-in
and week-out. At the same time, it promotes injustice and causes harm to children and
families when decisions are left “in abeyance” or “under advisement™ for prolonged periods
of time, leaving children and families in limbo as to their future.

Based on these experiences, I have come to believe that, as a judge, it is crucial that
you listen carefully to the evidence presented to you, consider the facts and the law, and then
make a decision as quickly as possible. After 21 years of law practice, I believe more than
ever in the old axiom, “Justice delayed is justice denied.” Particularly in family court cases,
it is crucial that children and families know what the outcome of their cases will be as
quickly as possible, as uncertainty or delay only exacerbates the stresses caused by domestic
litigation. Children lingering in the foster care system, juvenile offenders forced to wait for
treatment or rehabilitative services, or adoptive parents who must sometimes wait years for
their adoption to be finalized and their family made whole, are just a few examples of how
delayed decisions cause real harm when it comes to families and children.
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Some might be concerned that, given my recent history of working for the
Department of Social Services, I might be too lenient on the Department and its staff when
they appear before me. I can only say that, in my role today, I spend much of my time
pointing our errors in investigations and addressing inconsistencies in practice regarding
issues of custody, visitation, and treatment. I have a great deal of sympathy for the parents
who become involved in DSS cases. Most of them are not acting out of malice or hatred
towards their children, they simply don’t understand or have never been taught what it
means to be a parent. Courts should make sure that these parents are given a fair chance to
make things right in their life, but also be ready to make the tougher decisions about the
children’s best interests when the parents have shown themselves unable to make things

right.
I would hope that my experience would allow me to resolve cases quickly, fairly,

and with wisdom and courtesy for all the parties and attorneys. That is how I have tried to
conduct myself in my practice, and how I plan to continue as a judge.
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YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Swom to before me this dayof [2019.

(Notary Signature)

(T\I?)tary Prir_ltal(larﬁg
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(New Candidate)

Full Name: Robert Wallis Cone

Business Address: P.O. Box 1096, 1118 Phoenix St., Greenwood, SC 29648

Business Telephone: 803-924-0787

1. Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

| have practiced family law since my graduation from law school. | find
family law to be intellectually and emotionally challenging, but also very fulfilling.
In the last few years I've focused my law practice on Family Court matters,
particularly child abuse and neglect cases after | became an attorney for the
Department of Social Services. Having served part-time as a municipal court
judge for the last several years, | believe that serving as a Family Court Judge
would make the best use of my skills, experience, and abilities.

2. Do you plan to serve your full term if elected? Yes.

3. Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day? No, | plan on
continuing my service with the state until retirement.

4, Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice? Yes.

5. What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parte communications
being tolerated?

There are certain circumstances in Family Court where ex parte
communications are necessary. In the cases of child abuse, child neglect,
or when there is a substantial and imminent threat to the life, health, or
safety of children, or adults in some circumstances, the court has to take
emergency action on an ex parte basis. However, a Judge must make
sure that any relief ordered is limited to only what is necessary to address
the imminent safety risk, and afford all parties affected by the court's order
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10.

an opportunity to be heard as quickly as possible. Preferably, a follow up
hearing would take place within 24 hours or as soon as possible
thereafter.

If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such
a motion?

| would grant the motion for recusal, as a judge must always avoid
any appearance of bias in their conduct.

How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the
financial or social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

If my spouse or a relative were involved, | would be obliged to
recuse myself from participating in any case where they had a financial or
social involvement.

What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of
gifts or social hospitality?

| could not accept gifts or social hospitality from lawyers or their
firms who appear before me or may appear before me. | would not accept
gifts or hospitality from attorneys other than members of my immediate
family.

How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

| would be obligated to report such misconduct to either the
Commission on Lawyer Conduct or the Commission on Judicial Conduct.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on any basis.

| serve as an adult leader with Scouting BSA, traditionally referred to as
the Boy Scouts of America. The particular Troop | assist with only accepts
male scouts, but the national organization does allow female Troops. |
have no objection to female Scouts, but as | only have a son, | would not
be participating in female Scouting programs.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe.

Up until 2016, | participated in fundraisers for the Greenwood County
Friends of the Library to raise money for literacy programs. | currently
assist with fundraising efforts to support Scouting programs in my local
area.

Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining
involved with if elected to the bench? No.

Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle
the drafting of orders?

| have drafted my own orders for 21 years, and see no problem continuing
to do so on the bench. For complex matters, | would have the attorneys
on the case submit proposed orders for me to review and revise as
needed.

If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff
meet deadlines?

| currently use the Getting Things Done task management strategy, which
includes maintaining online “to-do” lists, calendaring deadlines for task
completion, and having an email management system to prioritize
communications. | would use a similar system as a judge to manage my
workload.

If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the
pendency of a case?

I would ensure that any Guardian Ad Litem appointed met the
qualifications under §63-3-820. | would also require that Guardians
maintain regular contact with the parties and attorneys on the case. |
would require that GAL reports be submitted to the parties in accordance
with the statutory deadlines. Regular communication and reporting gives
the attorneys and litigants an opportunity to assess the Guardian's efforts
in the case, and also demonstrate whether the Guardian is engaging in
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improper conduct or showing an improper bias in favor of one side versus
another.

16. What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

The role of Judges is to interpret the law and make sure it is
properly applied to the facts and conditions present in any given case.
Judges are not policymakers, and should not try to legislate through
judicial decree.

17.  Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system, and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?

As often as possible, | would participate in committees and advisory
panels established by the Chief Justice, the South Carolina Bar, the
Children’s Law Center, and other entities to recommend amendments or
changes to statutes, regulations, and court rules that would facilitate more
efficient and consistent administration of justice for all parties who seek
relief in the Family Courts. | would also participate in any available
opportunity to have discussions with agencies such as the Department of
Social Services or the Department of Juvenile Justice on more efficient
and effective ways to handle their cases in Family Court.

18. Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you
plan to address this?

Having practiced family law for more than 21 years, and having
served as a municipal court judge and DSS attorney, | believe my
personal relationships can handle any stress that might come from serving
as a Family Court Judge. My wife and | have a good relationship that we
work at every day, and we have always made our family a priority, making
sure we give our son time and attention even when we are both busy with
work.

My family and my faith have given me the strength to overcome far
greater challenges than work-related stress in the past, and | have no
doubt will continue to do so in the future.

19.  Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family
court?

I am prohibited from giving special consideration to any person

appearing in my court. | cannot grant one litigant an unfair advantage over

another just because they are not represented by an attorney. it is the
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20.

21.

22.

23.

right of individuals to represent themselves in court, but it is not the judge's
role to advise or assist those individuals as to how to handle their case.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive

additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality? No.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved? No.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for the past reporting period? Yes.

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

| believe the judge's demeanor should be one of calm, dignified authority.

It would be important treat everyone who comes before me with respect and
courtesy, and require that they do likewise. | make every effort to ensure that
nothing about my words, gestures or expression gives anyone the impression
that | am biased or favoring one side over another.

24.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant?
Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?
No.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina

My commission expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court, Position. and Seat # for which you are applying: Family Court, At-Large, Seat 2

1. Name: The Honorable Bryan C. Able

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname): None

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.)
Yes, Associate Judge of Probate, Laurens, SC — Part-time

Home Address: -

Business Address: PO Box 428
916 West Main Street
Laurens, SC 29360

E-Mail Address: B
Telephone Number:  (home): AR

(office): 864-984-6100

(cell): PalEEny
2. Date of Birth: B 1951

Place of Birth: Greenwood, SC 29360

Social Security Number: R o
3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes
4. SCDL# or SCHD#:
Voter Registration Number:
5. Have you served in the military? No If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank

attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

6. Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,

divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the names of
your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the occupation of
each child.

Family Status: Married on June 5, 2004 to Esther Ruth Myers Able

Never divorced; widowed June 15, 2000, three children





10.

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) Lander University — August 1979 to May 1983 — B.S. Political Science

(b) University of South Carolina — August 1984 to May 1987 — Juris Doctor

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school. Give
the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you held.

I served as the law clerk for Joseph M. Epting, Esq. after my first year of law school and
worked for Mr. Epting until I graduated in 1987.

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each admission.
Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to the practice of
law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina — Admitted November 1987
(b) I took the bar exam once — July 1987

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the general
character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has changed over
the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the administrative
and financial management of each of these entities, including management of trust accounts.

(a) 1987-1991 - Culbertson, Whitesides & Turner — Associate — General Practice

(b) 1991-1996 - Culbertson, Whitesides, Turner & Able — Partner — General Practice — I was
involved daily with the administrative and financial management of the firm including the
management of trust accounts.

(c) 1992 - September 2004 - Contract Attorney for the South Carolina Department of Social
Services — I appeared as attorney of record for DSS in Laurens, Greenwood, Abbeville and
Newberry Counties handling all abuse and neglect cases involving children and vulnerable
adults.

(d) 1996-1999 - Tumer & Able, L.L.P. — Partner — General Practice — I was involved daily
with the administrative and financial management of the firm including the management of trust
accounts.
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(e) 2000-2001 - Turner, Able and Burney L.L.P. — Partner — General Practice — I was involved
daily with the administrative and financial management of the firm including the management
of trust accounts.

(1) 2001 to present - Bryan C. Able, Attorney at Law — General Practice — I am a sole
practitioner. I am involved daily with the administration and financial management of my firm
including the management of my trust account.

(g) 2005 — 2006 - Assistant Laurens County Public Defender — I handled appointed criminal
cases before the Court of General Sessions.

(h) 2013 - 2016 - Contract Criminal Attorney for South Carolina Commission of Indigent
Defense — I handled appointed criminal cases before the Court of General Sessions in Laurens
County.

(1) June 2013 - present — Associate Judge of Probate, Laurens, SC - I am responsible for hearing
and adjudicating all contested hearings concerning all aspects of the courts’ jurisdiction under
Section 62-1-302; decedents’ estates, trust and Article 5 protective proceedings. During my
tenure as judge, I have presided over numerous cases not only in Laurens County but from other
counties as well. Thave had the honor of being appointed by the Supreme Court to hear and
preside over cases in other counties.

(§) July 2014 — present — Family Court Mediator

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions 11—
17. If you are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than vour current position,
Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to serving on the
bench.

Please answer the following:

(a) If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce and
equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and juvenile
justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these practice
areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background and
procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family Court
Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family Court
Judge within the past five years.

Divorce: I have handled hundreds of divorce cases over my 32 years of law practice. Some
cases were very complex involving substantial marital estates and support issues.
Others were simple involving no-fault grounds for divorce and little or no property
issues. I have brought divorce actions involving all grounds of divorce. Many divorce
cases | have handled have been highly contested and have taken several days to try.
Some have been settled prior to trial by mediation or negotiation and were placed on the
record in 15 minutes. I have handled cases for separate support and maintenance and
common law marriages.





Equitable Division of Property: Many of the divorce cases I have handled have involved the

division of the martial estate. Often these marital estates can be quite substantial and
consist of real and personal property, retirement accounts, stocks, brokerage accounts,
cash value of life insurance and cash held in savings or checking accounts. I have
worked with experts to value property and businesses that are part of marital estates. I
have handled cases that involve issues of transmutation of non-marital assets and the
validity of pre-nuptial agreements.

Child Custody: Many divorce cases I have handled have involved issues of child custody and

visitation issues. I have represented parents of children ranging in all ages including
adult disabled children and children that were special needs. I have represented both
fathers and mothers in paternity actions where the issues of custody and visitation were
litigated. I have represented grandparents and great grandparents who have brought
custody actions.

Adoptions: I have handled many adoptions during my career. I have handled adoptions

Abuse

involving stepparents adopting stepchildren where the parental rights of the biological
parent had to be terminated. I have handled adoptions for couples who have adopted
children bomn out of state. I have handled adoptions for grandparents or great
grandparents adopting grand children or great grand children. I have handled adoptions
for foster parents. I have handled adoptions for persons who are unrelated by blood or
marriage to the child being adopted.

and Neglect: I was a contract attorney for the South Carolina Department of Social

Services (DSS) for 12 years. In 1992 I began contracting with DSS in Laurens County.
In 1993 I contracted with Greenwood and Abbeville County. Lastly, I contracted with
Newberry County. In my 12 years as a DSS contact attorney I handled all of the abuse
and neglect for the four counties named above. I handled all 72 hour Probable Cause
hearings, all merits hearing and trials, all review hearings and all termination of parental
rights hearings and trials. In addition, I handled all aspects of any appeal filed naming
DSS as a party. I handled all cases involving vulnerable adults.

When my contract with DSS ended in 2004, I began representing parents that
have been accused of abuse and neglect. I have handled cases where the Family Court
has ruled that DSS did not meet its burden of proving by a preponderance of the
evidence that the parent(s) had abused or neglected the child(ren) and dismissed the
case.

Juvenile Justice: I have represented juveniles before the Family Court who have been accused

(b

of committing crimes. I have handled all aspects of juvenile cases involving the
detention hearing, trial and disposition. I have represented juveniles where the issue
before the court is whether the charge should be waived up to General Sessions or
retained in Family Court.

On average | appear before the Family Court 2-3 times each week.

If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five years
and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide a brief
written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases handled over
the past five years and include a brief description of the types of matters handled, issues
involved, and procedural history. Please include information such as the primary areas
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12.

13.

14.

15.

in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent plaintiffs or defendants, or
both. You may go back further than five years if you feel it would assist the
Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack experience in an area,
describe how your background and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside
over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you would compensate for your lack
of experience in this area. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before
a Circuit Court Judge within the past five years. NA

(©) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please include the
frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit Court Judge
within the past five years. NA

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative Law
or Circuit Court within the past five years. NA

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal: 0%

(b) state: 100%

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters during
the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil: 5%

(b) criminal: 10%

() domestic: 85%

(d) other: 0%

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(a) jury: 5%

(b) non-jury: 95%

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or associate
counsel? sole counsel

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial or
appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were reported and
describe why these matters were significant.

(a) State of South Carolina v. Ashley N. Hepburn, Appellate Case No. 2011-190695

Tried in Laurens County; Court of General Sessions February 22 to March 3, 2011

I represented Ms. Hepburm at trial. Ms. Hepburn was charged with homicide by child
abuse. On the evening of October 13, 2009, Ms. Hepburn’s sixteen-month-old daughter (the
victim) became unresponsive and was admitted to the hospital in Greenwood, South Carolina.
She eventually died in a Greenville hospital on October 17, 2009. No one, including Ms.
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Hepburn, disputed that the victim died from child abuse. There were only  two people that
could have killed the victim, either Ms. Hepburn or her boyfriend, as they were home with the
victim on the night she sustained her fatal injuries.

At the close of the States evidence, [ moved for a directed verdict pursuant to Rule 19
SCRCtP claiming the State had fail to present substantial circumstantial evidence that Ms.
Hepburn committed the crime charged. I argued the State’s evidence merely rose to a suspicion
that Ms. Hepburn committed the crime, and this mere suspicion was insufficient to survive a
directed verdict motion, in that the State had only proven that Ms. Hepburn was in the home
when the victim sustained the fatal injuries. I conceded that the State had proven that the child
died from homicide by child abuse, but argued that the State had not proven that the child abuse
was inflicted by Ms. Hepburn.

The Court denied my motion for a directed verdict. The jury found Ms. Hepburn guilty
of homicide by child abuse and she was sentenced to 45 years imprisonment.

I did not handle the appeal, however the Supreme Court directed a verdict of acquittal
finding the trial court erred in refusing to grant my mid-trial motion for directed verdict. The
Supreme Court held in reversing the trial courts refusal to direct a verdict of acquittal that the
State did not put forward sufficient direct or substantial circumstantial evidence of Ms.
Hepburn’s guilt.

(b) South Carolina Department of Social Services v Robert David Johnston Jr. and Christy

Dawn Johnston

Tried in Laurens County Family Court; December 13, 14,15, 17,20, 21, and 22, 2010

2007-DR-30-648

2007-DR-30-775

This was a child abuse case. represented Mr. Johnston. DSS sought an Order of the
Court to make an affirmative determination that Mr. Johnson did sexually and physically abuse
his four (4) children and ordering that Mr. Johnston’s name be listed in the Statewide Central
Registry for Child Abuse and Neglect. The case involved the testimony of many medical
experts and one of the children. After seven (7) days of trial the Court found that DSS had
failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Mr. Johnston sexually or physically
abused his children and ordered the case dismissed.

(c) Belinda Godfrey v William R. Godfrey

Tried in The Laurens County Family Court; December 3-4, 2007

06-DR-30-485

This was a divorce case. I represented Ms. Godfrey. Prior to trial the parties reached an
agreement on all issues raised in the pleading with the exception of whether or not the lake lot
inherited by Mr. Godfrey had been transmuted to marital property and if so transmuted, how
was it to be divided between the parties.

The court found that the evidence and testimony presented clearly showed it was the
intent of Mr. Godfrey to transmute the lot on Lake Greenwood into marital property.
The court ordered that Ms. Godfrey and the parties minor child could remain in the marital
home upon the Lake Greenwood lot until the minor child graduated from high school and at that
time the property would be listed for sale and the net proceeds divided equally between the
parties.

(d) James H. Holliday v Tiffany M. Holliday
Tried in the Laurens County Family Court; June 13-14, 2005
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17.

04-DR-30-519

This was a child custody and relocation case. Irepresented Ms. Holliday. Mr. Holliday
brought the action seeking full custody of the parties minor child based on a substantial change
of circumstances. By prior Order of the Court dated August 9, 2001 the parties had been '
granted joint custody of the minor child “with the child living with the mother on a final and
permanent basis.” By subsequent divorce order dated June 12, 2003 all provisions concerning
custody and visitation contained within the previous Order dated August 9, 2001 were to
“remain in full force and effect.” Subsequent to the parties divorce Ms. Holliday relocated with
the minor child from Laurens County, SC to Greencove Springs, Florida. Ms. Holliday’s move
to Florida was alleged by Mr. Holliday to be a substantial change of circumstances.

The court found that a substantial change of circumstances that would warrant a change
in custody or that would warrant changing the minor child living with his mother and having
visitation with his father had not occured. The Court ordered that the parties would have joint
custody of the minor child being defined as the child living with mother and mother making the
day-to-day decision concerning the child and father having visitation.

(e) Derry Julian Bundrick v Melissa Ann Darnell Bundrick

Tried in the Laurens County Family Court; April 24, 2012

2010-DR-30-316

This was a divorce case. I represented Ms. Bundrick. The issues to be decided by the
court were equitable division of a considerable marital estate, alimony, restraining orders and
attorney’s fees.

The parties had been married for 40 years at the time of the pleadings being filed.

After a day of trial, the Court divided the marital estate equally between the parties with
Ms. Bundrick being awarded the martial home and ordered Mr. Bundrick to pay Ms. Bundrick
permanent periodic alimony together with Ms. Bundricks attorney’s fees.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) Johnny Lee Johnson v. Phillip Flaugher — SC Supreme Court

(b) Jennifer Satterfield by her Guardian Ad Litem, Pam Satterfield v. Dillard Department Store
— SC Court of Appeals

(¢) South Carolina Department of Social Services v. Jason Ihnatiuk et al. - SC Court of Appeals

(d) South Carolina Department of Social Services v. Jacqueline D. Sims et al. - SC Court of
Appeals

(e) South Carolina Department of Social Services v. Grace Williams. Robert Williams. Jr. and
Briana J. A. W. and Justin L.. W. - SC Court of Appeals

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) Municipality of Fountain Inn v Monique Tucker
Greenville County Court of Common Pleas
August 11, 2014
(Municipal Court appeal to Court of Common Pleas)
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

Have you ever held judicial office? Yes If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of the
courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

(a) Appointed City of Laurens, SC - Laurens City Judge March 1991 — 1994
Criminal jurisdiction up to limit of the statutory fine or thirty (30) days in jail.

(b) Appointed Laurens County, SC - Associate Judge of Probate February 2013 — Present
Jurisdiction pursuant to Section 62-1-302

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate review
of these orders or opinions.

(a) Deborah Parsons, Personal Representative of the Estate of William Edward Carr v. Darlene
Brashwell, Ralph L. Braswell, Jr.. Tammy Foster and Melissa Glass
2011-ES-30-0081 (Tried February 2, 2016)

(b) Ralph Wayne Ramsey and Marshall E Ramsey v. Roger Dean Ramsey and Janet Ramsey
2007-ES-30-408 (Tried May 19, 2015)
Appealed to Laurens County Court of Common Pleas. 2015-CP—30-727. By order of
Jean Hoefer Toal, Presiding Judge of the Court of Common Pleas it was ordered that the
Orders of the Probate Court (2007-ES—30-0408), including the order dated September
9, 2015, “are final and subject to immediate enforcement.”

(c) Bianca Jackson v Angela Brunside
In the matter of: the Estate of Willie C. Jackson 2014-ES-30-0222 (Tried May 12, 2015)

(d) In the matter of: The Estate of Stanley W. Davis
Victoria Laura Bishop v Eugene M. Griffin, Lonnie Griffin, Mary E. Raines. Joan G.
Rook and Betty G. Tollison
2016-ES—30-146 (Tried July 19, 2016)

(e) Nancy Valdivia v Ann Kelly
2016-GC-30-18 (Tried October 27, 2016)

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your admission.
Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special admission to practice.
All courts of the State of South Carolina — Admitted November 1987

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture. No

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from the
past five years. See attached

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each. None





24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or other
legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim sole
authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.) See attached

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as, Best
Lawyers. Chambers. Legal 500, Martindale-Hubbell. Who’s Who Legal. Super Lawyers,
Million Dollar Advocates Forum, etc.? If you are currently a member of the judiciary, list your

last available rating, if any.
Rated BV by Martindale — Hubbell

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give the
titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar Association
(b) South Carolina Association of Probate Judges

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? No If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also, state
whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission during the
period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so, give details,
including dates.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether full-
time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected judicial
office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and supervisor.

(a) 2001 to present - Bryan C. Able, Attorney at Law — General Practice

(b) 2013 - 2016 - Contract Criminal Attorney for South Carolina Commission of
Indigent Defense — I handled appointed criminal cases before the Court of General
Sessions in Laurens County. Supervisor: Jana Nelson

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office? If so,
give details, including dates. Yes

Family Court, Eighth Circuit, Seat 1 - 2017
Circuit Court, Eighth Circuit, Seat 1 - 2009
Circuit Court, Eighth Circuit, Seat 2 - 2008
Solicitor, Eighth Judicial Circuit - 2004





30.

31.

32.

33.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the practice
of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give details, including a
description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your employment, and the
name of your business or employer. Yes

District Executive — Blue Ridge Council, Boy Scouts of America January 1984 — July
1984. Employment responsibilities included: fundraising, membership recruitment, volunteer
recruitment and program coordinator for Greenwood and Abbeville Counties

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business enterprise?
Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service. Yes

Bryan C. Able, Attorey at Law — providing legal services and day-to-day operations of law
firm.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-
10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C. Code §
2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity and specify
by whom you were directed or employed. No

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but not
limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securitics, trusts, investments, and other financial
holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in excess
of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other financial
obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this format
for submission of your financial statement.)
A complete, current financial statement was provided to the Commission.

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have been
satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state, or
local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details. No

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal? If
so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved. No

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room and
board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position you
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37.

38.

39.

40.

seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House and
Senate Ethics Committees? None

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General Assembly
within the past four years. None

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of the
solicitation. No

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the past,
that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek or
currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

During my legal career | have been a partner with four (4) other lawyers. Two of those
lawyers are still practicing law and could appear before me if elected to the bench. 1 have not
had a law partner since December 2001.

The manner by which I would resolve any potential conflict or appearance of partiality
would be to disclose on the record that I had previously been a partner of one of the lawyers
appearing before me but that I do not consider that fact a basis for disqualification. I would ask
all parties or their lawyers if they desired that I disqualify myself. Based upon the response of
the parties I would make a determination if my impartiality could reasonably be questioned. My
initial inclination would be to disqualify myself if requested to do so. This is how I have handled
this situation since my appointment as Associate Judge of Probate.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(@) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency; None

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property in
which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or
Highway and Road improvements along Stagecoach Rd. and Buckhead Rd. that adjoin
200 Powderhorn Rd., Laurens, SC 29360

(©) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.
211sq. ft. of property located at 200 Powderhorn Rd., Laurens, SC 29360 (see
attached deed)

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property.
Fee Simple Title - $284,000 — 200 Powderhom Rd., Laurens, SC 29360

Identify as applicable the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest; None

b) nature and value of any public improvements; and None

(© South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting such
property. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

See attached copy of deed of Bryan C. Able to the South Carolina Department of
Transportation dated July 24, 2003
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41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold, leased,
or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its amount or
value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement. None

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held such
an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year. If you
prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested information instead of
listing it here.

See attached Statement from Raymond James dated July 31, 2019 provided with my
financial net worth statement.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? No If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office? No

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state law
or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law, including
another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations which are subject
to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests, including, but not limited to,
offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic offenses. Include all arrests that
resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you have questions regarding whether to
include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above, any
expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for possible
violation of a criminal statute? No If yes, explain.

Have you ever been sued by a client? Yes. Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? Yes. if so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

a) Ronald A. Savage v. Rhett Burney. Turner & Able Law Firm, Bryan Able & Mike Turner,

Laurens County Magistrates Court.

Civil Case Number 981722

Mr. Savage sued my partners and I individually and my law firm. The Complaint of
Mr. Savage was dismissed by Judge James A. Davis upon motion of Defendants pursuant to
Rule 12(b)(6) SCRCP on March 9, 1999. Mr. Savage’s appeal to the Court of Common
Pleas was abandoned.

b) Victoria McDuell & Ernest McDuell, 11 v. Bryan C. Able as Personal Representative for
the Estate of Lydia Blocker, Laurens County Court of Common Pleas, 03-CP-30-496

I was appointed Personal Representative of the Estate of Lydia Blocker for the sole
purpose of allowing the case to be filed and litigated. There were no allegations of any
negligence, misconduct or wrong doing against me personally or professionally.
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48.

49,

50.

¢) Annie W. Little v. Bryan C. Able as the Personal Representative of the Estate of Fannie
W. Hill. et al. Laurens County Court of Common Pleas, 06-CP-30-167

[ was appointed personal representative of the Estate of Fannie W. Hill for the sole
purpose of allowing the case to be filed and litigated. There were no allegations of any
negligence, misconduct or wrong doing against me personally or professionally. I was
dismissed as a party by finding of the Special Referee that the pleadings of the case properly
referred to Fannie W. Hill’s children as heirs and possible heirs,

d) The First National Bank of Chicago as Trustee for BankBoston Home Equity Loan Trust
1998-1 v. Nancy C. Wilkerson, AmerUS Home Equity, Inc. and Bryan C. Able. Laurens
County Court of Common Pleas, 05-CP-30-902

This was a foreclosure action against Nancy C. Wilkerson. I was named as party
because of possible claim or lien I may have held or had upon the real property that was
subject of the lawsuit. There were no allegations of negligence, misconduct or wrong doing
against me personally or professionally. Ms. Wilkerson had filed bankruptcy and had named
me as a possible creditor.

¢) J.P. Morgan Chase Bank et. al. v. Lawrence Edmunds and Bryan C. Able, 08-CP-30-399

This was a foreclosure action. [ was named a party as a possible judgment creditor.
There were no allegations of any negligence, misconduct or wrong doing against me
personally or professionally.

f) Branch Banking and Trust Company et. al. v. Roman P. Fuller et. al. 08-CP-30-268

I was named a party by virtue of a creditors claim filed against the Estate of Huston
Fuller. There were no allegations of negligence, misconduct or wrong doing against me
personally or professionally.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how long
have you carried malpractice insurance? Yes. If applicable, have you ever been covered by a
tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if applicable,
indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.

I am covered by malpractice insurance and have carried malpractice insurance since
the time I began practicing law 32 years ago. There have been no interruptions in coverage.
The coverage is $200,000.00 per claim; $600,000.00 aggregate. The deductible is $1,000.00.
I have never been covered by a tail policy.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? .If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]
Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? No. If so, give the

details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? No. If so, give the details.
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c): (2)
JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters concerning
pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on your behalf, as well as vou, must

comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as
to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you been offered a
conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your screening? No.
Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that they will seek
the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the position for
which you are being screened? No. If so, give details.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? No. Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

I have not requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on
my behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released. I have not asked any
individuals to campaign on my behalf nor do I know of any individual who has campaigned for
me on their own initiative.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges until
after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule? Yes.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting on
your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about your
candidacy or intention to become a candidate? No. If so, give details.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in blue
ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a letter of
recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of recommendation in
vour packet when yvou submit it will render vour packet incomplete. Please do not have
references mail your reference letters to the Commission directly. You must return the five
(3) original letters of recommendation to the Commission with your application packet.

Len Bornemann [

John Young

Paul Dean Lyles
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58.

Jarvis Reeder EWTRPYRSN

Gary C. Ray B g

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as, Facebook,
LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other similar types of
Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

I do have a Facebook account. I do not use LinkedIn or Twitter. I do not have an Instagram
account. I rarely, if ever, post anything to Facebook. Ordinarily, I look at Facebook for
news, and to keep up with the activities of friends and family members. I will occasionally
send my adult children messages on Facebook. My use of social media is so limited I would
not expect it to be affected if I am elected to the bench.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or
have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group, any
professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed elsewhere.

(a) Laurens County Exchange Club

(b) Laurens County Fair Association

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy, or
which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for nomination
for the position you seek. This information may include how your life experiences have
affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to be.

Over the past 32 years, [ have met many different kinds of people while practicing law
in the Family Court. I have represented and worked with people of great wealth and high levels
of education. I have also represented and worked with people who have been very poor and
could not read or write. I often can be at the courthouse talking with a judge and a group of
lawyers between hearings about everyday topics like family or sports but then stop to speak to
the custodians or sheriffs deputy in the hall to ask about his or her family or their plans for the
weekend. I was raised to believe that a person is not judged by his station in life or how much
money or education he or she has, but what that person is doing with their life.

I want everyone who appears in front of me as a judge to leave my courtroom believing
that they had been treated fairly by someone who is patient, understanding, compassionate and
willing to listen. No matter their station in life or their resources I want everyone to know that
they appeared in front of a courteous, ethical and honorable judge.
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YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR ANY
INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Notary Signature)

(ﬁary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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~ JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
~ Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(New Candidate)

Full Name: Bryan C. Able

Business Address: PO Box 428
916 West Main Street
Laurens, SC 29360

Business Telephone: 864-984-6100

1. Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

I want to be a Family Court judge because I believe I can do the job well. I
believe I have the experience and the temperament to be a fair and impartial
judge. I was admitted to the SC Bar on November 11, 1987. I tried my first case
before the Family Court in January 1988. Over the past 32 years, I have handled
every type of case that the Family Court has jurisdiction over. In that time, I have
developed the knowledge and skills necessary to be a Family Court Judge. My
desire is to serve the State of South Carolina.

2. Do you plan to serve your full term if elected?

Yes, if I am elected I would plan to serve my full term.

3. Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?
No, if I am elected I would serve as judge until retirement at 72 years of age.

4, Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice? Yes

5. What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parfe communications being
tolerated?

Ex Parte communication should be limited to only those exceptions enumerated in
the Code of Judicial Conduct. The only circumstances under which I could
envision ex parte communications being tolerated are those specifically
authorized within the Code of Judicial Conduct or as expressly authorized by law.
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6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you believed it
would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference would you give a
party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such a motion?

In such a situation as described, the question for the judge is whether the judge’s
impartiality might reasonably be questioned after the disclosure of information the
parties or their lawyers might consider relevant to the question of disqualification.
The decision by the judge to recuse himself would have to be made based upon
the facts and circumstances of each case where the judge’s impartiality is
questioned. If after disclosure by the judge a motion for recusal is made and the
judge, while believing that no real basis for disqualification exist, should
disqualify himself if be believes his impartially might reasonably be questioned.
If on the other hand, after the judge’s disclosure of information and a motion is
made for the judges recusal, the judge should not recuse himself if he does not
believe his impartiality can reasonably be questioned given the facts of the
particular case.

T How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the financial or
social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

I would discuss with my spouse and members of my household that as a judge my
financial activities and social involvement are regulated by certain and specific
ethical constraints and considerations. I would further explain that because of
their relationship with me and their living in my home that any conduct on their
part that might call into question whether or not they acted appropriately in any
financial or social situation might reflect negatively on my serving as a judge.

In addition, I would discourage family members from engaging in financial and
business dealings that would give an appearance of exploiting my position as
judge.

If T had knowledge that my spouse or family member were acting inappropriately
in any financial or social situation that might reflect negatively on my service as a
judge I would demand the activity be ended immediately.

If T knew my spouse or close relatives had an economic or financial interest in the
subject matter of a case before me or close social involvement with a party
appearing in a case before me I would recuse myself in accordance with Code of
Judicial Conduct.

8. What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of gifts or
social hospitality?

I believe that in an effort to avoid all appearances of impropriety it would be best
to limit the acceptance of gifts and social hospitality to only gifts from relatives or
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10.

11.

12.

13.

friends commensurate with a special occasion and ordinary social hospitality such
as visiting in a relatives or friends home.

How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of misconduct or
appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

If T had knowledge that a lawyer had committed a violation of the Rules of
Professional Conduct that gave rise to a substantial question as to the lawyers
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer I would report it to the
Commission on Lawyer Conduct.

If I had knowledge that another judge has committed a violation of the Code of
Judicial Conduct that gave rise to a substantial question as to that judge’s fitness
for office I would report it to the Commission on Judicial Conduct.

Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or practice,
prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex, religion, or national
origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if this organization practices
invidious discrimination on any basis. No

Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe. No

Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining involved
with if elected to the bench? No

Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle the
drafting of orders?

As a lawyer I have always drafted the orders for my cases when given the
opportunity. I enjoy drafting orders and would hope to continue to do so as a
judge when I found issues or a particular case to be interesting. However,
realizing the time restraints on a judge I know I would not have time to draft
many orders.

As a rule, I would request a prevailing party’s lawyer to draft a proposed order
including therein all relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law and would
give notice to all parties of my request on the record at the conclusion of the
hearing or in writing. I would also request that the lawyer requested to draft the
proposed order forward the order to all parties for review prior to it being
submitted to me so as to give all parties opportunity to respond to the findings of
fact and conclusions of law before the order is signed.
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14.  If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff meet
deadlines?

I would use a calendaring system to ensure that my staff and I meet
deadlines. As a back up to the calendar I would use an electronic calendaring
system.

15. If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the pendency of a
case?

The best manner to ensure the guidelines of the Guardian ad litem statutes are
followed during the pendency of a case is to address the issue early on at the
temporary hearing or other initial appointment of the Guardian ad litem. The
temporary order or order of appointment should set forth and outline the courts
expectations and possible time schedule for certain aspects of the investigation to
be completed. In addition, the temporary order or order of appointment should
require that the Guardian ad litem file with the clerk the statutorily required
affidavits as soon as possible. Also, the Guardian ad litem should sign an
affidavit that enumerates the responsibilities of guardians pursuant to the
applicable statutes stating that the Guardian ad litem understands the
responsibilities imposed and the willingness to comply with those responsibilities.

16. What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should judges
have in setting or promoting public policy?

It is the job and duty of a judge when construing a statute to ascertain the
legislature’s intent. A judge should not attempt to interpret a law in a way to limit
or expand the legislative intent, but should read a statute giving each word their
plain and ordinary meaning. A judge should not apply a law as he believes it
should be but as the legislature intended it to be. To do anything else results in
judicial activism that clearly invades the responsibilities and duties of the
legislative branch of government.

It is not a judge’s job to set or promote public policy. What one person may
believe to be good public policy may be detested as abhorrent public policy by the
next person. Public policy is a matter of individual opinion that may change over
time as result of many different factors. A judge should only recognize as public
policy that which he can derive from a clear understanding of the law of the state.
To do anything else would again invade the sole province of the legislature.

17. Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal system,
and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to undertake to
further this improvement of the legal system?
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18.

19.

20.

I believe the best way to improve the legal system is to educate the public about
how the legal system operates. Most people rarely have dealings within the legal
system and do not have any clear understanding of how the system works. In an
effort to improve the legal system I would want to speak to local social groups
and organizations upon request. Also, I would want to speak to school children
about the judicial system and the role it plays in our government.

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you plan to
address this?

I do not feel the pressures of serving as a judge would strain my personal
relationships. I lost my wife Mary to breast cancer in 2000. Mary and I had met
in 1980 and married in 1984. After Mary’s passing, I met my current wife “Toni”
in 2001. We married in 2004. During the three years prior to our marriage Toni
and I had ample time together to build a strong and lasting relationship. Since
2001, Toni and I have always dealt with each other openly and honestly. I know
that if [ am elected to the bench Toni and I will continue to talk to each other to
discuss issues concerning our marriage and if my duties as a judge are straining
that relationship. I truly believe my relationship with my wife is strong enough to
withstand any strain created by my service as a judge. Toni is very supportive of
my efforts to become a judge.

As for my children, I don’t believe there would be any strain in our relationship as
a result of the pressures associated with being a judge. I have always been a very
involved father and have spent a great deal of time with my children. My three
children are grown and leading productive lives.

Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family court?

No. A judge is required to provide everyone who has an interest in the case
before him the opportunity to be heard. This is required whether the person is
represented by an attorney or appearing on his or her own behalf. A judge must
perform his or her duties without bias or prejudice and must avoid behaviors or
conduct that may be perceived biased or prejudicial. Providing to a pro se litigant
any “special considerations” not provided to all parties appearing before the court
could be perceived as biased or prejudicial and should be avoided. That is not to
say that a judge should not be patient and courteous with a pro se litigant, as he
should be with everyone, but the duty of the judge is to conduct the proceedings
fairly for all parties.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive additional
income that might impair your appearance of impartiality? No

Form Revised 2019 5





21.

22.

23.

24.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de minimis
financial interest in a party involved?

The Code of Judicial Conduct would allow me as a judge to hear a case where I or
a member of my family held a de minimis financial interest in a party involved.
The interest should be one so insignificant that it could not raise a reasonable
question of impartiality.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing legal
education courses for the past reporting period? Yes

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do these rules
apply?

I believe the most important characteristics for a judge to exhibit are patience and
humility. Often a judge will have parties appear before him who are not
represented and not versed in the rules of procedure and evidence. While a judge
should not advise a pro se litigant on the rules of court or rules of procedure he
should always be patient allowing anyone who appears before him to be heard
fully. A judge should also be humble. He should remember that he is only one
part of the system that is made up of many different people doing difficult jobs.
The jobs being performed by others are no less important than the job being
performed by the judge. The judge must be the one to move things forward but to
do so while dealing with others in a courteous, efficient and firm manner.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the public
who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant? Is anger ever
appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?

I do not believe it is ever appropriate for a judge to express anger towards anyone
he deals with in an official capacity. A judge can and should act firmly but not
with anger. A judge can perform his duties without expressing anger. I believe
that a judge that acts angrily with anyone diminishes the public’s confidence in
the judicial system because anger is an individual emotion and not representative
of an impartial, unbiased judiciary represented by that individual.
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I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My commission expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court, Position. and Seat # for which you are applying: Family Court, At-Large, Seat 2

1. Name: Mr. Timothy E. Madden

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname): Tim

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.) No

Home Address: | NN

Business Address: 104 South Main Street, Ninth Floor, Greenville, SC 29601

E-Mail Address: |
Telephone Number:  (home): || IR

(office): 864-373-2279
(cell):

2. Date of Birth: || | N 1963

Place of Birth: Laurens, SC

Social Security Number: ||| N

3. Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes

4. scpL#or SCHDY: |

Voter Registration Number: ||| ||

5. Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank
attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

I never served in the military.

6. Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.





10.

Family Status: Married on March 21, 1992, to Cami Leigh Madden (formerly
McGregor). Homemaker and part-time retail sales clerk.
Never divorced. Two children.

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) Wofford College, September, 1981, to May, 1985, Bachelor of Arts in Finance

(b) University of South Carolina School of Law, August, 1985, to May, 1988, Juris Doctor

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school. -
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

(a) Part-time employment in the South Carolina Senate (1986)

(b) Part-time employment in South Carolina House of Representatives (1986-1988)

(c) Student lawyer appointed to represent undergraduates accused of honor code violations
(1987-1988)

(d) Social fraternity (1985-1988)

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each
admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to
the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina, admitted 1988. I took the South Carolina Bar Exam once.

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

(a) August, 1988 until about January, 1993. Associate Attorney in private practice (small
firm)

Employer: Wilkins, Nelson, Kittredge & Simmons, P.A. (later Wilkins, Nelson and
Kittredge, P.A., and then Wilkins & Nelson, P.A.)
Practice: family law (80%+), civil litigation (10%), real estate (5%), appeals (5%)

(b) January, 1993, until February, 2006. Partner in private practice (small firm)

Firm: Initially Wilkins & Nelson, P.A., later renamed Wilkins & Madden, P.A.





11.

(©)

Practice: family law and related appeals (85-90%), civil litigation (about 10%), real
estate (small percentage)

Other: Managing Partner (1993-2006). Responsibilities included financial management
(including trust accounts), day-to-day administrative management, human resources,
supervision and mentoring of less experienced lawyers

February, 2006, to present. Partner in private practice (large firm)

Firm: Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough, LLP

Practice: family law and related appeals (90%), civil litigation (10%)

Other: Office Managing Partner (2011-present), Partner Development Committee
(2009-present), Marketing Committee (2007-2012), Strategic Planning Committee
(2007-2008). Responsibilities include supervision and mentoring of attorneys in family
law practice area, serving as liaison for the office’s 42 lawyers and 40-45 staff with the
firm’s Executive Committee, general management responsibilities, and administration of
the office marketing budget

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions
11-17. If vou are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than vour current
position, Questions 11-17 should be answered based on vour experience prior to

serving on the bench.

Please answer the following:

(a)

If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

At least 90% of my professional time for the entirety of my 31-year career has been
spent representing clients in divorce/separate maintenance, equitable division of
property, child custody, and related matters in the Family Court. At any given time I
maintained no fewer than 20 and sometimes as many as 50 active, on-going family
law matters (including appeals and premarital agreements). I estimate that I have
tried over 100 family law cases to a decision in the Family Court. I am counsel of
record in at least thirteen family law matters decided by the South Carolina Supreme
Court and/or the South Carolina Court of Appeals. 1 have represented clients in
contested litigation in practically every aspect of family law. 1 have litigated and
appealed nearly every facet of equitable division, including the identity and
divisibility of assets, the marital vs. non-marital character of assets, the divisible
value, and the manner of division. For the first 20 years of my career I regularly
represented clients in contested custody cases. During the past 11 years I





(b)

sporadically handled contested custody cases. In most of my cases alimony and/or
child support was an issue to be decided. During the past 15 years, at the request of
lawyers in Greenville and other parts of the state [ periodically served as mediator
for family law cases. 1received training as an arbitrator by the American Academy
of Matrimonial Lawyers, and have served as arbitrator of multiple family law issues
in various cases.

Incident to or arising out of divorce cases, I have represented clients in step-parent
and other relative adoptions. While I worked on a few other adoption matters early
in my career, my experience in this area is limited.

My experience in child abuse and neglect cases is limited to a few cases more than
ten years ago in which I was appointed to represent one of the parties, and those
private docket cases over the entirety of my career in which the Department of
Social Services was involved in some manner.

My experience in juvenile justice cases is limited to the matters I handled through a
legal clinic in law school, during which I represented a child accused of murder and
another child accused of rape.

Although my experience in abuse and neglect and juvenile justice cases is limited,
my experience in working with clients, opposing counsel, guardians, mental health
professionals, my extensive trial experience, and my overall experience as a lawyer
provide me with the background and training to be an attentive listener, to make fair
and reasonable inquiries and research when necessary, to assess credibility, to
understand medical and mental health testimony and reports, and to understand the
educational process and challenges impacting children in a given matter.

In the preceding five years I estimate I appeared in Family Court an average of 30
times per year. These appearances range from short, uncontested hearings related to
the approval of settlement agreements, to multi-day contested trials.

If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.





12.

13.

14.

15.

(c) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal: About twice in the last five years (estimate)

(b) state:  About 30 appearances per year

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters

during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) civil: 5% to 10% (varying each year)

(b) criminal: a small percentage (in my role as a volunteer prosecutor for domestic
violence cases)

(c) domestic: 90 to 95%

(d) other: nominal

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years

prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that

settled prior to trial?

(a) jury: nominal

(b) non-jury: at least 90% (the only family law matters which are not responsive to this
question are the premarital agreements)

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel?

I most often served as chief counsel, with assistance from younger partners or associates.

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(a) Moore v. Moore, 414 S.C. 490, 779 S.E.2d 533 (2015), and subsequent appeal,
Moore v. Moore, Op. No. 2019-UP-208, 2019 WL 2372477 (S.C. Ct. App. June 3,
2019). This case was significant because it involved an issue of first impression, and
because we were able to turn a loss at trial into a victory on appeal. In addition to
making new law, the case is instructive on the complexities of equitable apportionment






cases (specifically those involving closely-held businesses), the value of developing a
detailed evidentiary record, and the importance of presenting credible expert testimony.

(b) Reyes v. Jeffcoat, No. CA 3:12-298-JFA, 2012 WL 4009641 (D.S.C. Sept. 12, 2012),
and Fourth Circuit, Reyes v. Jeffcoat, 548 F. App'x 887 (4th Cir. 2013). This case
was significant because it involved concurrent litigation in state and federal court, and
the outcome of the federal court trial was critical to my client having an opportunity for
a fair resolution of his divorce and related issues in South Carolina, as opposed to
Venezuela. The federal court litigation focused on the application of the Hague
Convention on the Civil Aspects of International Child Abduction because the family
lived in South Carolina and Venezuela. It included a five-day trial and appeal. The
federal court (including the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals) agreed with our position.
As a result our client resolved the divorce-related litigation in the South Carolina
Family Court. Had the result from the federal court been different, our client would
likely have been deprived of parenting time with his children and substantial marital
assets.

(c) Minor Child “R” Matter. This case was significant because the outcome determined
whether an orphaned three-year old child would have the opportunity of normal
childhood and upbringing as opposed to one which would be less stable. The child’s
father died unexpectedly when the child was two, and while the biological parents were
living separately. The child’s mother attempted to kill the child by shooting him with a
handgun, which she then immediately turned on herself and committed suicide. Using
all the available law and a career of experience, in intensely contested litigation, we
were able to secure emergency and temporary custody of the child with a stable, loving
family member, and thereafter temporary custody and ultimately adoption by the
biological father’s brother and sister-in-law. In this particular case, 1 know the family
and we are members of the same church. I routinely see the child and know that he is a
happy, normal and well-adjusted child.

(d) Latham vs. Latham. This case was the most contentious divorce in which I was ever
involved, and the only one, to my knowledge, where the adverse party hired someone to
try to murder my client. Before the murder-for-hire plot became known, the case
included extreme discovery and motions hearings, and was headed for a week-long
trial. On the eve of trial the would-be killer was arrested on other charges and divulged
the plans to law enforcement. My client and her children were taken into protective
custody. Ultimately the opposing party and his girlfriend were charged by federal
authorities with the relevant crimes. Both of them are now in federal prison after a
criminal trial in which I testified. The case was featured on the television program
“Dateline” and in another docu-drama on the Investigation Discovery channel.

(e) Dickert v. Dickert, 387 S.C. 1, 691 S.E.2d 448 (2010). This divorce case was
significant because of some of the unique financial issues involved, and because it is
now routinely cited in negotiations and by trial judges as a guide for the appropriate
amount of alimony. The business valuation issues in this case, and the Supreme
Court’s decision on them, gave me an important background for the preparation, trial
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and appeal of the Moore case (see above). While the alimony decision in this case
does not create a formula as some lawyers believe, the Supreme Court’s opinion seems
to be used by many as creating helpful guidelines which are useful in settlement
negotiations.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the
date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) Brasington Tile Co. v. Worley, 327 S.C. 280, 491 S.E.2d 244 (1997)

(b) First Baptist Church of Mauldin v. City of Mauldin, 308 S.C. 226, 417 S.E.2d 592
(1992)

(¢) B.P. Staff v. Gurantee Insurance Company, 391 S.C. 308 (2009 WL 9529179)

(d)_Hull v. Spartanburg Cty. Assessor, 372 S.C. 420, 641 S.E.2d 909 (Ct. App. 2007)
(e)_Keowee Inv. Grp., LLC v. Pickens Cty.. S.C. Dep't of Transp., Op. No. 2004-UP-
459, 2004 WL 6331837 (S.C. Ct. App. Aug. 30, 2004)

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

I have never held judicial office.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

(a) South Carolina Supreme Court, 1988 to present

(b) United States District Court for the District of South Carolina, 1989 to present
(c) United States Court of Appeals, 1989 to present

(d) United States Supreme Court, 1992 to present
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Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.

Yes.

(a) National Family Law Trial Institute, Houston, Texas. (2010-2019). This program is an
8-day intensive trial skills course open to and attended by practicing attorneys from
various states who seek to improve courtroom presence in divorce-related litigation. As
a volunteer member of the faculty, every other year as part of this program I co-teach an
advanced course focused on the issue of business valuation in divorce cases. [ normally
present a lecture called “Business Valuations — Lawyer to Lawyer”, and participate in a
demonstration of cross examination of a business valuation expert. As part of the
program I critique students on presentations. Periodically I serve as one of the faculty
members responsible for a small group (about six) participants for the entirety of the
program. On the last day of the program there is a mock trial and I have served as
judge in the mock trial.

(b) Institute for Associates, American Academy of Matrimonial Lawyers, Chicago, Illinois.
(2016-2018). This program is a three day program which serves lawyers from various
states who are new to the area of family law. As a volunteer member of the faculty I
was responsible for mentoring a small group of lawyers throughout the program, and
lectured in both the regular and advanced courses. The lecture topics were business
valuation for lawyers, deposing the expert witness, direct examination of the expert
witness, and cross examination of the expert witness. In the 2018 advanced course |
delivered some of these lectures using a case-study approach based on the Moore vs.
Moore case.

(c) Southwest Divorce Conference. Advanced Financial Topics, Presented by Arizona
Chapter of the American Academy of Matrimonial Lawyers, 2017. This program is a
multi-day continuing education conference. At the invitation of the organizers, I served
with a nationally-known expert in the role of keynote speakers. I lectured and presented
multiple times during the course of the seminar on topics related to business valuation
and expert testimony.

(d) Greenville County Bar, 2017. This program was the end-of-the-year annual continuing
education seminar. I participated in a panel discussion during the family law segment.
The panel consisted of experienced and less-experienced practitioners. The focus of the
discussion centered on maintaining and managing a successful family law practice.

(e) South Carolina Bar, various years in various seminars. Below I describe these to the
best of my recollection.

(1) “Hot Tips for Family Law”. For several years I presented at the annual “Hot
Tips” JCLE seminar presented by the Family Law Section and made
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presentations on different issues such as the use of requests for admission in
Family Court, service of subpoenas on out of state witnesses, and other topics.

(2) Fall Seminar Presented by Family Law Section, Grove Park Inn, Asheville, NC.
(about 2012). Along with another lawyer and some financial experts, this was a
workshop seminar at which I presented on financial topics over the course of
several sessions.

(3) Workshop Seminar Presented by Family Law Section, Greenville, SC (about
2009). With a CPA, I led a multi-hour workshop focused on reading and
understanding tax returns, and using the data from tax returns in Family Court.

(4) JCLE for Family Court Judges (about 2007). I presented on the topic of
pleadings in Family Court.

(5) At one seminar (I do not recall the specific one or date), I presented on the topic
of representing foreign nationals in Family Court.

(6) Video CLE led by former Family Court Judge Leslie Riddle called “Whipping
Up Some Justice” on the topic of pleadings and temporary hearings in Family
Court.

(f) SC Association of Public Accountants Seminar (about 2011). I served on panel focused
on business valuations in Family Court.

(g) New Judge Orientation School (about 2002). I presented on the topic of equitable
apportionment at this school for new Family Court Judges in South Carolina.

(h) Greenville Technical College, Paralegal Program. In the early 1990°s I taught a few
courses to paralegal students. To the best of my recollection the courses I taught were
family law and real property.

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.

My CLE reports for the requested period are attached.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of
publication for each.

(a) South Carolina Practice Manual (Howard/Moise ed. 2000), author of chapter titled
"Marital Dissolution and Child Custody"

I also served on the Editorial Board for the Third Edition of Marital Litigation in South
Carolina: Substantive Law, Roy T. Stuckey (SC Bar CLE, first published in 1991,
subsequent editions published through 2010 with annual supplements).

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
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Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

The following documents are attached:

(a) Final Order and Divorce Decree dated September 8, 2014, entered in civil action 2012-
DR-23-3232

(b) Order (Regarding Plaintiff’s Contempt Complaint filed February 20, 2019), dated June
17, 2019, entered in civil action 2014-DR-23-5441

For each of these documents I received instructions from the judge and wrote the order
according to these instructions.

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawvers, Chambers, Legal 500. Martindale-Hubbell, Who’s Who Legal. Super
Lawyers, Million Dollar Advocates Forum. etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

(a) Best Lawyers in America. Included in the area of family law each year since 2001.
Recognized as Lawyer of the Year in Greenville in family law (2012 and 2020, to be
announced August 15, 2019).

(b) Super Lawyers (South Carolina). Included in the area of family law each year since
2008. Recognized as one of the “Top 25” in the state in two non-consecutive years.

(c) Martindale-Hubbell. AV rating.

(d) Greenville Business Magazine. Included in the Legal Elite edition since 2012.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give

the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.

(a) South Carolina Bar. Member, House of Delegates (1990-2004)

(b) Greenville County Bar Association

(©) American Academy of Matrimonial Lawyers. Board of Governors (2014-2016),
South Carolina Chapter President (2010-2012), Chapter Vice President (2008-2010),
Chapter Secretary (2006-2008), and Chapter Treasurer (2004-2006)

(d) American Bar Association

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.
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(a) South Carolina Education Lottery Commission. 2001 to 2016. Chair (2006-2016),
Vice Chair (2001-2006). Appointed.

(b) South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank Board. 1997 to 2001. Vice Chair.
Appointed.

(c¢) Greenville County Transportation Committee. 1993 to 1997. Elected by Greenville
County Legislative Delegation.

To the best of my knowledge I timely filed my reports with the State Ethics Commission
when and as required.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

No

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

No. I have, however, invested in a few small, closely-held businesses.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business
enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

I serve as the managing partner of the Greenville office of my law firm, Nelson Mullins
Riley and Scarborough LLP, and have held this position since 2011. My duties include
serving as a liason between the firm’s Executive Committee and our office, administering
the office marketing budget, lateral recruiting, monitoring productivity, and related matters.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.

Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

No

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that
itemizes in detail:

11





(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have
been satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

35.

36.

37.

A complete, current financial net worth statement was provided to the Commission.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

No

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

No

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

To date my only expenditure is about $45 (I have not yet received an invoice) for Federal
Express charges to obtain some of the original letters of reference which are included with
this application.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.

(a) By me individually:
(1) Senator Ross Turner, 2016, $50
(2) Senator Scott Talley, 2016, $250
(3) Representative Chip Huggins, 2016, $500

12
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(4) Representative Jason Elliott, 2016, $250
(5) Representative Jason Elliott, 2018, $250

(b) By a business with which I am associated. By the terms of the partnership agreement at
Nelson Mullins Riley and Scarborough, LLP, part of my compensation is contributed to
the NMRS State/Local PAC. I do not control the amount contributed, or have any role
in the contributions made by this PAC. When contributions are made to members of
the General Assembly, a portion is reflected in my name according to South Carolina
Ethics Commission filings. That portion is not itemized by candidate. The total dollar
amount of my contributions to the PAC by year for the requested period is as follows:

(1) 2019, $200
(2) 2018, $551
(3) 2017, %615
(4) 2016, $651
(5) 2015, $640

The recipients of the contributions are detailed in the PAC’s filings with the South
Carolina Ethics Commission. After declaring an intention to become a judicial
candidate, I ceased participation in this PAC.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of
the solicitation.

No

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

Partner, Nelson Mullins Riley & Scarborough LLP.. I will recuse myself from hearing
matters involving attorneys from this firm for several years.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(a) in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

(c) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

None

~

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable
the:

(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

13
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44,

45.

46.

47.

(©) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting

such property.
Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

None

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office?

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.

No
Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or
professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,

give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.

[ do not recall any client ever filing suit against me.
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I have been a named defendant in some civil proceedings as a result of being awarded
attorney’s fees on behalf of a client. These civil proceedings did not seek any relief from
me (I was named because of the attorney’s fee lien created by the award). I remember this
occurring less than five times in the course of my career. As far as [ know none of these are
currently pending.

[ may have been named a defendant in my official capacity as a member of the South
Carolina Education Lottery Commission when [ served on that Commission in one or more
cases filed during that time. If so, the relevant time period is 2001 to 2016. I cannot recall
specifically and do not have any records. If 1 was named in this manner, all such cases were
resolved without a trial and there were no judgments entered against me.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.

Yes, | am covered by malpractice insurance and have been covered since I started
practice in 1988.  When I closed Wilkins & Madden, PA and joined Nelson Mullins
Riley and Scarborough, LLP in 2006, I obtained tail coverage to provide coverage for my
work and that of partners and associates in the old firm. Currently, the coverage limits
of the policy on which I am covered is $100 million per claim and the deductible is $1
million per claim.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.

No

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c);
(2) JMSC Rule 24, (3) Memo of Guidance, and (4) informal opinions and letters
concerning pledging prohibitions, with which third parties acting on vour behalf, as
well as vou, must comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
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screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

No. Thave not asked anyone to campaign on my behalf. I am not aware of anyone who has
campaigned on my behalf. As of the date of this application my only actions which might
be classified as “campaigning” consist of letting a few members of the General Assembly,
colleagues and friends know of my intent to seek this position.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

Yes

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.

No

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to_include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation _in_your packet when you submit it will render vour packet
incomplete. Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission
directly. You must return the five (3) original letters of recommendation to the
Commission with your application packet.
(a) Thomas W. Traxler,
b) S. Alan Medlin,
(c) David H. Wilkins,

(d) Nancy Cannon,
(e) William Hogan Brown,
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With the permission of Chief Counsel to the Commission, the attached letters of reference
which were compiled when I intended to seek the position of Family Court Judge,
Thirteenth Judicial Circuit, Seat 5 are submitted for this position of Family Court Judge, At-
Large, Seat 2.

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

Yes. If I am elected judge, I will update my occupation on LinkedIn, will continue the
private restrictions on any other social media accounts 1 maintain, and will not post
public messages on any social media account.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or

have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,

any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed

elsewhere.

(a) Compleat Lawyer Award, University of South Carolina Law School Alumni
Association

(b) Distinguished Service Award, Wofford College Alumni Association

(c) Liberty Fellow

(d) Westminster Presbyterian Church, Greenville, South Carolina. Previous service as
Elder and Chair, Weekday School Committee.

(e) Welvista, Columbia, South Carolina. Board of Directors, 2008-2014.

® Upcountry History Museum, Greenville, South Carolina. Board of Directors, 2010-
2013.

() South Carolina Student Loan Corporation, Board of Directors, 2004-2007

h) Greenville Country Club

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how vour life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

(a) As referenced in response to question number 11 above, in my family law practice I
represent clients in trials and appeals. This experience provides additional benefits
which will be beneficial as a Family Court Judge. Some of these cases involved unique
legal issues, including at least one case of first impression. By practicing at both levels
of the court system I believe 1 developed a deeper understanding of how to build a
proper record at the trial level, and the importance of properly drafted orders. The
significant family law appeals in which I served as counsel of record are:

(1) Conits v. Conits, 417 S.C. 127, 789 S.E.2d 51 (Ct. App. 2016), cert. granted.
decision rev'd, 421 S.C. 391, 807 S.E.2d 695 (2017), opinion withdrawn and
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superseded on denial of reh'g, 422 S.C. 74, 810 S.E.2d 253 (2018), and cert.
granted. decision rev'd, 422 S.C. 74, 810 S.E.2d 253 (2018), and Op. No.
2018-UP-185, 2018 WL 2058196 (S.C. Ct. App. May 2, 2018)

(2) Moore v. Moore, 414 S.C. 490, 779 S.E.2d 533 (2015), and subsequent
appeal, Moore v. Moore, Op. No. 2019-UP-208, 2019 WL 2372477 (S.C. Ct.
App. June 5, 2019)

(3) Wilburn v. Wilburn, 403 S.C. 372, 743 S.E.2d 734 (2013).

(4) Dickert v. Dickert, 387 S.C. 1, 691 S.E.2d 448 (2010)

(5) Gilfillin v. Gilfillin, 334 S.C. 213, 512 S.E.2d 534 (Ct. App. 1999), rev'd, 344
S.C. 407, 544 S.E.2d 829 (2001).

(6) Gaffney v. Gaffney, 401 S.C. 216, 736 S.E.2d 683 (Ct. App. 2012)

(7) Myers v. Myers, 391 S.C. 308, 705 S.E.2d 86 (Ct. App. 2011)

(8) LaFrance v. LaFrance, 370 S.C. 622, 636 S.E.2d 3 (Ct. App. 2006)

(9) Powell v. Powell, Op. No. 2005-UP-595, 2005 WL 7084864 (S.C. Ct. App.
Nov. 21, 2005), rev'd, Op. No. 2008-M0O-038, 2008 WL 9881746 (S.C. Sept.
8,2008)

(10)  Greene v. Greene, 351 S.C. 329, 569 S.E.2d 393 (Ct. App. 2002) (I was
not trial counsel)

(11)  Kisling v. Allison, 343 S.C. 674, 541 S.E.2d 273 (Ct. App. 2001)

(12)  Wheeler v. Gill, 307 S.C. 94, 413 S.E.2d 860 (Ct. App. 1992)

(13)  Pirkle v. Pirkle, 303 S.C. 266, 399 S.E.2d 797 (Ct. App. 1990)

(b) My work in a small firm and a large firm gives me appreciation for the demands and
stressors placed on all lawyers. I understand what is required of a solo practitioner and
small firm lawyer to meet overhead and make a payroll, and manage the daily stress of
client relationships. I appreciate the pressure on lawyers in larger firms to be a producer
and meet firm-required goals. This background will help me be patient and
understanding in addressing administrative issues.

(c) For a few years, I served as a volunteer prosecutor of domestic violence crimes in a
program created by the South Carolina Attorney General. In addition to refreshing my
knowledge of some aspects of criminal law, this role provided insight into the challenges
faced by law enforcement in domestic disturbances.

(d) From time to time, in addition to my law practice, Itook financial risks by investing in a
few closely-held businesses (none of which remain active today). 1 gained an
appreciation for the challenges faced by those who open and operate a business.
Although I rarely made any money from these ventures, being a part of them helps me
understand and appreciate the same struggles and benefits experienced by many Family
Court litigants who operate small businesses.

(e) As one of the original members of the South Carolina Education Lottery Commission,
and as Chair of this Commission for ten years, I gained a working knowledge of a
billion-dollar a year business from its infancy to successful maturity. I learned both
how to organize and launch a large-scale business enterprise, and how to set and guide
policy for this organization, all within the confines of the statutory authority created by
the General Assembly. The business aspects of this experience will be valuable in
understanding issues presented in the Family Court. The policy and administrative
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aspects of this experience will be beneficial in working with Court Administration and
the transition from the private sector to government service.

Every year I gave a part of my time and experience to those who could not afford to pay
me. By spending time with those who do not have the resources to fight, I was
constantly reminded of the tremendous impact any case — but particularly one in Family
Court — has on the litigants. As a result of this pro bono work, I will always bear in
mind that no matter the legal significance (or lack thereof) of the issue which is in
dispute in any given case, the practical and personal importance of the issue, and the day
in court to those litigants is paramount.
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YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

IHEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Notary Signature) .

(Notary Printed Name)
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires:
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JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION |
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings i

Family Court
(New Candidate)

Full Name: Timothy Eugene Madden

Business Address: 104 South Main Street, Ninth Floor, Greenville, South
Carolina 29601

Business Telephone: 864-373-2279

1. Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

| want to serve as a Family Court Judge to fulfill a personal commitment to
public service, to give back to the profession, to help as many people as |
can find reasonable solutions to the most difficult of personal challenges,
and to meaningfully improve the Family Court experience.

The focus of my entire 31-year career as a lawyer has been serving
clients in Family Court.  Although | had several attractive opportunities to
leave this area of law to work in other areas in private practice, a
government setting, or in the corporate world, | remained committed to
family law. | continued as a family law attorney because every day | was
helping a client get through what was likely the most difficult challenge of
his or her life. There is no trial-level court in our legal system which has
the depth and breadth of impact comparable to the Family Court. As a
Family Court Judge, | will be able to use my lifetime of experiences,
training, knowledge, and abilities to help hundreds if not thousands of
adults and children find solutions to problems they cannot find without the
help of the court system. Now is time for me to give back to the
profession and community which has given greatly to me, and to spend
my professional time for the greater good of our state.

2. Do you plan to serve your full term if elected?
Yes

3. Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?
No
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4. Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice?

Yes

5. What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parte communications
being tolerated?

Ex parte communications are improper and should not occur except and
unless specifically permitted as detailed in Canon 3(B)(7) of the Code of
Judicial Conduct. | can envision infrequent circumstances like those
described in this Canon 3(B)(7) where such communications may be
authorized.

6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such
a motion?

I would grant the motion to recuse. Judges should avoid even the
appearance of bias or impropriety.

7. How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the
financial or social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

| would recuse myself and not hear the matter.

8. What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of
gifts or social hospitality?

| would not accept gifts or social hospitality except as permitted by Canon
4(D)(5) of the Code of Judicial Conduct.

9. How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

If I acquired personal knowledge of facts of professional misconduct or
infirmity of a lawyer | would report the facts to the Commission on Lawyer
Conduct and/or Office of Disciplinary Counsel, and may, under
appropriate circumstances, confront the lawyer. If | acquired personal
knowledge of facts of professional misconduct or infirmity of a fellow judge
I would report the facts to the Commission on Judicial Conduct and/or
Office of Disciplinary Counsel, and may, under appropriate circumstances,
confront the judge.
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10. Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on any basis.

No

11. Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe.

Since becoming a judicial candidate | have not engaged in any such
activities.

Prior to becoming a judicial candidate over the course of my life the
following sentences answer this question. At various times in conjunction
with various local, state, and federal elections, | assisted political
candidates by donating money and time and encouraging others to donate
money. Through the Community Foundation of Greenville, | established
a donor advised fund and regularly contribute to that fund and make
recommendations for grants to be made from that fund to qualified
charitable organizations. Each year for at least the last thirteen years, |
donated money to the United Way of Greenville. | assisted my church,
Westminster Presbyterian Church in Greenville, in raising funds for capital
campaigns by donating money and time. | assisted my alma mater,
Wofford College, by donating money and encouraging others to donate
money. In addition to these specific charitable causes, over my adult life |
have assisted various other charities through donations.

12. Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining
involved with if elected to the bench?

No.

13.  Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle
the drafting of orders?

Depending on the circumstances, | would either (a) announce a ruling in
open court and ask counsel for one of the parties to prepare a proposed
order, share the proposed order with opposing counsel, and submit the
proposed order to me for consideration and review; or (b) issue a
memorandum to all counsel with appropriate instructions for the
preparation and submission of a proposed order as outlined in (a) above;
or (c) draft my own order.

14. If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff
meet deadlines?
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15.

16.

17.

| would create and implement substantially the same system | successfully
used as a practicing attorney to monitor and comply with deadlines in
litigation.  The system which serves me best is a shared Microsoft
Outlook electronic calendar for which one person has primary
responsibility for the entry and monitoring of entries, and every member of
the staff and | have constant access to all entries. On this calendar every
deadline is entered, and in advance of every deadline there is a reminder
of the upcoming deadline. Where appropriate color-coding is used to
differentiate the type of entry. A member of staff is responsible for
identifying upcoming deadlines and deadlines each day, and for follow up
with me for instructions on the action to be taken. In a judicial setting, if
the action to be taken involves obtaining documents or information from
lawyers (such as a proposed order), | expect my staff would be required to
routinely follow up with the responsible lawyer(s).

If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the
pendency of a case?

When issuing an order which appoints a guardian ad litem, | would include
in the order requirements which track the guidelines of the applicable
statutes. When conducting any hearing in a matter in which a guardian
was previously appointed, | would inquire as to the guardian’s progress in
meeting the statutory guidelines and requirements, and, if necessary,
enter such orders which are necessary for this purpose. Prior to or at the
commencement of any final hearing in which a guardian is involved, |
would make the necessary inquiries to become satisfied the relevant
guidelines and statutes were followed, and if not, issue the necessary
order(s).

What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

| believe each case should be decided on the merits based on the
admissible evidence and applicable law. | do not believe judges have the
authority to set public policy, nor should judges attempt to do so. To the
extent there is established public policy which is relevant in a particular
case, | believe a judge should consider such policy and issue rulings
which are consistent with and not contradictory to such public policy.

Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal
system, and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?
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19.

20.

21.

| plan to continue to teach and present at continuing education seminars
and programs, and to participate in whatever mentoring opportunities
which are allowed and appropriate to aid in the education and
development of less-experienced lawyers and law students. To the
extent there are committees or task forces which exist or from time to time
are created for particular purposes, | plan to volunteer for service when |
believe | can add value or meaningful input.

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you
plan to address this?

| do not necessarily believe serving as a judge will “strain” personal
relationships among family and close friends, but certainly believe judicial
service could have an impact on some aspects of these relationships.
Over the past 31 years | have worked long hours under significant stress
to serve the needs of clients and manage the demands of a busy law
practice. In order to have healthy family and personal relationships, | set
boundaries, remained diligent in my commitment to the confidentiality of
my work, created regular opportunities to be with family and friends
without the distractions of work, exercised regularly, and looked for and
explored outside interests and activities. If elected judge, | expect to
spend significant time learning from those who have successfully
balanced family and personal relationships, apply the lessons learned in a
way which works for me and my family and friends, and otherwise
continue doing what | did as a practicing attorney.

Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family
court?

| would treat a pro se litigant in family court, like all litigants, with dignity
and respect. | would be patient with the pro se litigant’s lack of legal and
procedural training, while at the same time avoiding any prejudice to the

opposing party.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive
additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?

No

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved?

No
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23.

24.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for the past reporting period?

Yes

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

| believe a judge should always be dignified, courteous, and patient when
acting in an official capacity.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant?
Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?

No

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

(Print name)
Notary Public for South Carolina

My commission expires:
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NELSON MULL!NS NELSON MULLINS RILEY & SCARBOROUGH LLP

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW

164 Sotth Main Street | Ninth Fioor

Timothy E. Madden Greeaville, 8C 29801
T 864.373.227% F 864.373.2381 T 864.250.2300 F 864.232,2925
tim.madden@nelsonmullins.com nslsonmullins.com
October 10, 2019
Erin Crawford
Chief Counsel

Judicial Merit Selection Commission
Post Office Box 142
Columbia, South Carolina 29202

Re:  Judge of the Family Court, At-Large, Seat 2
Supplement to Personal Data Questionnaire

Dear Ms. Crawford:

Please consider this letter a supplement to question 47 of the completed Personal Data
Questionnaire (“PDQ") signed by me on July 29, 2019, and submitted to the Commission on
August 1, 2019, as follows:

One of the cases in which I was named as a defendant was “Bank of New York As Trustee, Plaintiff,
vs. Yancey Johunson, et al, Defendants”, civil action 2001-CP-23-00607. This civil action was a
foreclosure matter and filed in 2001. I'was named as a defendant because the award of attorney’s
fees awarded to me in the Family Court in a case in which Mr. Johnson was the defendant (and
adverse party to miy client created a lien against the real estate owned by Mr. Johnson and which
was the subject of the foreclosure proceeding. When I became aware of the foreclosure
proceeding I notified the atiorney for the plaintiff that the fees.due to me had been paid and that |
would not file an answer or otherwise respond to the lawsuit. 1do not know the disposition of the
lawsuit but know the communication with the plaintiff’s attorney was my last involvement in it.

Another case in which I was a named defendant was “GBH Enterprises, Plaintiff, et al vs. RHD
Enterprises, Defendant”, filed in Spartanburg County in 2001, civil action 2001-CP-42-02212. To
the best of my recollection the circumstances of this case were the same as those described in the
preceding paragraph.

In another matter involving attorney’s fees ordered by the Family Court, I was the plaintiff in civil
action 2013-CP-23-05386 filed in Greenville County in Oectober, 2013, which is captioned
“Timothy E. Madden, Plaintiff, vs. Joseph Alford Crews Beeson, Defendant”. This civil action
number was assigned for the purpose of recording a transcript of judgment issued by the Family

CALIFORNIA | COLORADO | DISTRICT OF COoLLMBIA | FLORIDA | GEORGIA | MARYLAND | MASSACHUSETTS I NEw YORK
MORTH CAROLINA | SOUTH CAROLINA | TENNESSEE | WEST VIRGINIA





Erin Crawford
Oetober 10, 2019
Page Two

Court in Anderson County in-a divorce case in which Mr. Beeson was the defendant. In the
Family Court action, the Family Court judge ordered Mr. Beeson to pay attotney’s fees and costs
to me and my firm. 1 filed the transcript of judgment in Greenville County because Mr. Beeson
owned real property in Greenville County. Mr, Beeson paid the court-ordered fees, and I filed a
satisfaction of judgment in October, 2013, which ended the civil action in Greenville County. It
is possible I filed similar documents in other counties in which Mr. Beeson owned property, but if
so all were identical and all were resolved in the same manner as the one in Greenville County.

Subsequent to the filing of my original PDQ, the Commission’s staff provided me with information
from the SLED background check which identified “Timothy Madden™ as a party to several
lawsuits filed in Laurens County. The “Timothy Madden” named in those lawsuits is not me and
1 know nothing about those matters other than the information reflected on the documents given
to me by the Commission’s staff.

If you have questions or there is anything else you need from me please let me know. Thank you.
Very truly vours,

Jomhy & PMokter

Timothy E, Madden
TEM:tm






JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
PERSONAL DATA QUESTIONNAIRE

Court. Position, and Seat # for which you are applying: Family Court, At-Large, Seat 2

1.

Name: Ms. Rebecca West

Name that you are known by if different from above
(Example: A Nickname):

Are you currently serving in some capacity as a judge? If part-time, please note.
(Includes Municipal, Magistrate, Etc.)
No.

Home Address: SN,

Business Address: 203 W. Main St. Suite B Lexington South Carolina 29072

E-Mail Address: [N

Telephone Number:  (home):
(office): (803) 957-0889

(celd): |
Date of Birth: ||l 1975
Place of Birth: Biloxi, Mississippi
Social Security Number: i
Are you a citizen of South Carolina? Yes.
Have you been a resident of this state for at least the immediate past five years? Yes.

SCDL# or SCH
Voter Registration Number:

Have you served in the military? If so, give the dates, branch of service, highest rank
attained, serial number (if applicable), present status, and the character of your discharge or
release. Please provide a copy of your DD214 concerning your discharge.

No.

Family Status: In the space below, (a) state whether you are single, married, widowed,
divorced, or separated; (b) if married, state the date of your marriage and your spouse’s full
name and occupation; (c) if you have ever been divorced or are in the process of obtaining a
divorce, state the date, name of the moving party, court, and grounds; and (d) state the
names of your children and their ages. If your children are old enough to work, include the
occupation of each child.





10.

(a) Married

(b) June 1, 2018, Matthew Timothy Page, owner of MTP Homes, LLC and permanent,
part-time employee at United Parcel Service.

() Divorced on September 2, 2011, from William Britton West, Fifth Judicial Circuit
Family Court, Richland County, South Carolina. The divorce was granted on the ground of
continuous separation for one year. Rebecca West was the moving party.

(d) Two children

List each college and law school you attended, including the dates of your attendance, the
degrees you received, and if you left an institution without receiving a degree, the reason for
your departure.

(a) Lander University, 1993-1997, Bachelor of Science

(b) University of Mississippi School of Law, 1997-1999, Juris Doctor (2000)

(c) University of South Carolina School of Law, 1999-2000. I attended the University
of South Carolina School of Law as a visiting student. My law degree was granted by the
University of Mississippi.

List the significant activities in which you took part during your attendance at law school.
Give the years you were involved in these activities and list any leadership positions you
held.

(a) Phi Delta Phi law school service organization 1998.

List the states in which you have been admitted to practice law and the year of each

admission. Also list any states in which you took the bar exam but were never admitted to

the practice of law. Please indicate the number of times you took the exam in each state.

(a) South Carolina 2000. I took the bar exam one time and I only took the bar exam in
South Carolina.

Describe chronologically, since graduation from law school, your legal experience. Please
include a list of all positions held in which you worked in a legal capacity. Describe the
general character of your practice and divide it into periods with dates if its character has
changed over the years. Please also describe the extent to which you were involved with the
administrative and financial management of each of these entities, including management of
trust accounts.

Justices/judges applying for re-election to their current position may omit Questions 11-17.
If yvou are a full-time judge seeking a judgeship different than vour current position.
Questions 11-17 should be answered based on your experience prior to serving on the
bench.

(a) Oswald Law Firm, L1.C
West Columbia, South Carolina
November 2000-May 2004





I worked as a law clerk for this general practice firm during my final year of law
school and joined the firm after graduation. I represented clients in personal injury
actions, workers’ compensation claims, Family Court actions, Probate Court and the
Federal Bankruptcy Court. I was sole trial counsel in many cases in the Court Of
Common Pleas, Magistrate’s Court and Family Court. 1 also regularly represented
claimants before the South Carolina Workers” Compensation Commission. [ was not
involved with the administrative or financial management of this firm.

(b) Masella Law Firm, P.A.
Columbia, South Carolina
June 2004-June 2009
I was initially hired as an associate and became a partner in the firm in approximately
2008. Upon joining the firm, I immediately focused my practice on family law and
transitioned away from my common pleas and bankruptcy practice. [ ended my
association with the firm upon receiving an offer to practice family law in Lexington,
South Carolina. I was not involved with the administrative or financial management of
this firm.

(c) Law Office of Richard Breibart, LLC

Lexington, South Carolina

July 1, 2009-May 31, 2012

I practiced solely in the Family Court during my time with the firm. During my time
with this firm I began handling Family Court appeals and practicing in the South
Carolina Court of Appeals. I served as the family law group supervising attorney
and was an employee of this firm. I supervised as many as three family law attorneys
and three staff members. I resigned my position upon learning of Mr. Breibart’s
criminal activities. The firm dissolved upon Mr. Breibart’s suspension from the
practice on June 1, 2012. I was not involved with the administrative or financial
management of this firm.

(d) Rebecca West, Attorney at Law, P.A.
Lexington, South Carolina
Formed May 31, 2012; Dissolved April 5, 2013
I formed this entity immediately upon resigning from the Breibart firm. I practiced
for approximately one week under this firm name. I stopped practicing under this
firm name upon becoming partners with Jonathan Harling and forming my current
firm, Harling & West, LLC. I was the sole administrative and financial manager of
this firm and I managed and oversaw the trust account.

(e) Harling & West, LLC
Lexington, South Carolina
June 7, 2012-present
My practice is dedicated solely to family law. I primarily represent Family Court
litigants and I continue to practice in the South Carolina appellate courts. I also have
a family law mediation practice and I currently mediate several times each month.





11.

My partner is Jonathan Harling. I am the administrative and financial manager of our
firm and I manage and oversee the family law trust account.

Please answer the following:

(@) If you are a candidate for Family Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience within each of the following Family Court practice areas: divorce
and equitable division of property, child custody, adoption, abuse and neglect, and
juvenile justice. Include information about cases you have handled in each of these
practice areas, or if you have not practiced in an area, describe how your background
and procedural knowledge has prepared you to preside over such matters as a Family
Court Judge. Please also indicate the frequency of your appearances before a Family
Court Judge within the past five years.

I have practiced solely in the Family Court for more than fifteen years and I have been a
certified Family Court mediator for more than thirteen years. I typically appear before a
Family Court Judge more than five times each month.

I have represented clients in divorce actions that involve fault based grounds and no fault
grounds. Divorce and/or separate maintenance are typically alleged in cases I handle. I
have proven and defended allegations of adultery, habitual drunkenness and physical
cruelty.

The majority of cases I handle involve equitable division. I have litigated cases that
involve marital estates with a wide range of size and complexity. Most of my clients
have average to high average net worth, but I have also represented clients who have
negative net worth. I have extensive experience with division and valuation of retirement
and investment accounts, real estate and businesses. I have worked with Certified Public
Accountants, Certified Valuation Analysts and appraisers as experts and consultants in
divorce matters.

I have represented fathers, mothers, grandparents and non-relatives in contested custody
and visitation matters. My cases regularly involve a guardian ad litem and many cases
involve therapists and psychological experts. I have represented clients in initial custody
determinations and custody modification actions.

I have a mastery of the Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Enforcement Act and the
enforcement and modification of out of state custody and support orders. I have
successfully registered, enforced and modified orders from other states. I have served as
South Carolina counsel in cases where an out of state resident sought dismissal of a
custody action brought in our state.

My experience in abuse and neglect cases includes representation of clients from the
earliest stages of the Department’s investigation through merits hearings on the finding of
abuse or neglect to permanency planning hearings and judicial review. I have intervened
in Department cases on behalf of parents and non-parents, negotiated treatment plans on
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13.

behalf of clients and helped clients navigate the social services system during an open
case. | have represented clients before the foster care review board in the past. On a
limited number of occasions I have served as a guardian ad litem which required me to
conduct an investigation and reported my findings to the Court.

I have been involved in several termination of parental rights matters, both in private
actions and in the context of a Department of Social Services abuse and neglect case. |
have limited experience in adoption cases, but I am familiar with the law in this area and
I stay current on the appellate decisions related to adoption. I have not represented
juvenile defendants in Family Court, though I have observed juvenile court proceedings.

(b) If you are a candidate for Circuit Court, please provide a brief written description of
your experience in criminal matters, including any cases handled over the past five
years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Further, please provide
a brief written description of your experience in civil matters, including any cases
handled over the past five years and include a brief description of the types of
matters handled, issues involved, and procedural history. Please include information
such as the primary areas in civil court in which you practice, whether you represent
plaintiffs or defendants, or both. You may go back further than five years if you feel
it would assist the Commission with its assessment of your experience. If you lack
experience in an area, describe how your background and procedural knowledge has
prepared you to preside over such matters as a Circuit Court Judge, or how you
would compensate for your lack of experience in this area. Please also indicate the
frequency of your appearances before a Circuit Court Judge within the past five
years.

(c) If you are a candidate for Master-In-Equity, please provide a brief written
description of your experience in the Master’s court, including any cases handled
over the past five years and include a brief description of the issues involved. Please
include the frequency of your appearances before a Master-In-Equity or a Circuit
Court Judge within the past five years.

(d) If you are a candidate for Administrative Law Court, please provide a brief written
description of your experience before an Administrative Law Judge, including any
issues discussed and the frequency of your appearances before the Administrative
Law or Circuit Court within the past five years.

What was the frequency of your court appearances during the past five years or in the five
years prior to your election to the bench?

(a) federal: None. _

(b) state: I typically appear in Family Court more than five times each month and I have

done so for the past five years.

What percentage of your practice involved civil, criminal, domestic, and other matters
during the past five years or in the five years prior to your election to the bench?
(a) civil: 0%
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15.

(b) criminal: 0%
© domestic: 100%
(d other: 0%

What percentage of your practice in trial court during the past five years or in the five years
prior to your election to the bench involved matters that went to a jury, including those that
settled prior to trial?

(@  jury: 0%

(b) non-jury: 100%

During the past five years, did you most often serve as sole counsel, chief counsel, or
associate counsel? Sole counsel.

List five of the most significant litigated matters you have personally handled in either trial
or appellate court or before a state or federal agency. Give citations if the cases were
reported and describe why these matters were significant.

(a) McComb v. Conard

394 S.C.416, 715 S.E.2d 662 (Ct.App. 2011)

The successful trial of this case was a significant accomplishment in my legal
career. I was sole trial counsel for an un-wed mother who sought to relocate to Florida
with her child over the father’s objection. Both parents were college students when they
had their daughter. They chose not to marry, but shared in the child’s upbringing. Father
eventually moved near Charlotte for work, but maintained a home in Columbia. Neither
party filed for custody until Mother indicated that she wanted to move to Florida upon
graduation. Mother prevailed at trial and was permitted to relocate to Florida with the
child. The South Carolina Court of Appeals upheld the Family Court’s award of joint
custody and permission for my client to relocate with the child. This was one of the first
cases where the appellate court applied the Latimer relocation factors to an initial custody
determination. Father benefitted from a trust valued in excess of $1,000,000.00. This
case was significant for me for several reasons. The parties had a substantial income
disparity and we were forced to build our case using modest resources. This case
involved a psychological expert, extensive discovery, an experienced opposing attorney
and a multi-day trial.

(b) Sanderson v. Sanderson

391 S.C. 249, 705 S.E.2d 65 (Ct.App. 2010)

I was appellate counsel for Mr. Sanderson. I was not involved in the trial of the
underlying case. Mr. Sanderson lost his job due to a force reduction during divorce
litigation. The trial court imputed substantial income to Mr. Sanderson and set alimony
and child support based on the imputed wage. I successfully challenged the amount of
the imputed wage. The South Carolina Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the case
to the Family Court. I continued my representation on remand and was successful in
reducing the imputed annual wage from $64,000.00 to $15,072.00. I did not have the
advantage of having tried the divorce case and several issues had not been preserved for
appeal by trial counsel. This case was significant because, despite the significant
limitations of the record, I was able to obtain substantial financial relief for my client.






(c) Montgomery v. Montgomery
Op. No. 2019 MO 027 (S.C.Sup.Ct. filed May 29, 2019)

I am appellate counsel for Mrs. Montgomery. My client is the Respondent in Mr.
Montgomery’s appeal of a Family Court temporary order. My role in this case began
when Mr. Montgomery filed a Petition for Writ of Supersedeas seeking a stay of the
Family Court’s temporary order requiring him to submit to a specific psychological test.
Mr. Montgomery argued that the Family Court’s temporary order was unconstitutional.
The Writ was granted over my client’s objection and portions of the temporary order
were stayed pending appeal. Soon after the Writ was granted by the South Carolina
Court of Appeals, the case was certified for review by the South Carolina Supreme Court.
I was solely responsible for drafting the lengthy brief, drafting responses to two highly
contested motions filed by the Appellant, arguing the case before the South Carolina
Supreme Court and filing a post-hearing motion. I succeeded in defeating the two
motions filed by the Appellant. My representation of Mrs. Montgomery was successful
and Mr. Montgomery’s appeal was dismissed. The case was remanded to the Family
Court with specific instructions from the Supreme Court. This case was significant
because it involved a highly contested issue of great importance to Family Court
practitioners. I found the issues involved in this case to be difficult and interesting. The
subject of the appeal required me to expand my understanding of an area of the law that
is not typically contested in divorce litigation.

(d) Mrs. W v. Mr. W

In 2011, I was retained by a wife who suspected that her husband was committing
adultery. Husband operated a successful government contract procurement business and
the couple had a net worth of more than $7,000,000.00. I was able to prove adultery
after a lengthy out-of-state investigation. Late in the litigation, husband challenged the
tax treatment of the support payments he was making to wife and I successfully defended
the motion which confirmed that the payments were non-taxable to my client. I
employed a certified public accountant and certified valuation analyst to value husband’s
business and analyze wife’s need for alimony. A consulting CPA attended mediation to
assist me in analyzing the tax consequences of property division scenarios and support
arrangements. This case was significant because of the size of the marital estate, the tax
issues and the business valuation. In addition to the property division, I negotiated an
alimony award of $8,500.00 per month for my client and full reimbursement of her
attorney fees and costs.

(e) Mrs Bv. Mr. B

I represented Mrs. B in a highly contested divorce that involved a fault ground of divorce,
an initial custody determination, my client’s request to relocate with the child to her
home state of California and whether certain assets and debt was marital or non-marital in
nature. I was sole trial counsel for Mrs. B. Discovery was extensive and I took more
than twelve depositions of lay and expert witnesses. A guardian ad litem conducted an
extensive investigation. After a four day trial where seventeen witnesses testified, three
of whom were experts, I succeeded in achieving my client’s goal of obtaining sole
custody and relocating to California where her extended family lived. I also prevailed on





16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

the property issues and my client received a substantial fee award. This case is
significant because of the volume of discovery involved and the wide range of issues I
had to be prepared to successfully litigate.

List up to five civil appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court, the

date of decision, and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) McComb v. Conard, 394 S.C. 416, 715 S.E.2d 662 (Ct. App. 2011)

(b) Sanderson v. Sanderson, 391 S.C. 249, 705 S.E. 2d 65 (Ct. App. 2010)

(©) Montgomery v. Montgomery, Op. No. 2019 MO 027 (S.C.Sup.Ct. filed May 29,
2019)

(d) Gordon v. Gordon, Op. No. 2017 UP 276 (Ct.App. filed July 5, 2017)

() Boyce v. Nelson, Op. No. 2015 UP 420 (Ct.App. filed August 12, 2015)

List up to five criminal appeals you have personally handled. Give the case name, the court,
the date of decision and the citation if the case was reported.

(a) None.

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

Have you ever held judicial office? If so, list the periods of your service, the courts
involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Describe the jurisdiction of each of
the courts and note any limitations on the jurisdiction of each court.

No.

If the answer to question 18 is yes, describe or list five of your most significant orders or
opinions and give the citations if they were reported. Also list citations to any appellate
review of these orders or opinions.

@

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

List all courts in which you have been admitted to practice and list the dates of your
admission. Give the same information for administrative bodies that require a special
admission to practice.

(a) State of South Carolina on November 13, 2000

(b) United States District Court, District of South Carolina on January 18, 2001.

Have you taught law-related courses or lectured at bar association conferences, educational
institutions, or continuing legal or judicial education programs? If so, briefly describe each
course or lecture.





22.

23.

24.

(a) Family Law Essentials, Effective Use of Discovery and Subpoenas in Domestic
Litigation; Temporary Hearings: Meeting Your Client to Prepare. Sample Hearing.
Q&A Session with Attornevs and Judge
August 11,2017
SC Bar CLE
Presented materials and participated in mock Family Court temporary hearing.

(b) Family Law Essentials, Organizing and Presenting Your Case
March 21, 2014
SC Bar CLE
Authored and presented materials

(¢) Family Law Seminar, Just When You Thought It Was Over: Appellate Practice in
South Carolina
August 4, 2016
South Carolina Association for Justice Annual Convention
Authored and presented materials

(d) Hot Tips for the Coolest Domestic Law Practitioners, Grandparent Visitation
September 16, 2011
SC Bar CLE
Authored and presented materials

(e) Non-parent Rights to Children
March 2011
SC Bar CLE—Distance Learning
Authored materials and presented

() “What is your Expert Giving You?” Deposing Psychiatric and Psychological
Professionals
March 2007
SC Bar CLE
Authored and presented materials

Provide, as a separate attachment, your continuing legal or judicial education report from
the past five years.
See attached reports.

List all published books and articles you have written and give citations and the dates of

publication for each.

(a) CLE materials I prepared in 2014 were used in Chapter 13 of Family Law
Essentials: A Primer for Private Practice Before the Family Court in South Carolina
(South Carolina Bar CLE Division 2018).

Please furnish as a separate attachment, two examples of legal articles, briefs, orders, or
other legal writings for which you can claim sole or primary authorship. If you cannot claim
sole authorship, please explain the extent to which you are the primary author, to include a
description of the other authors and their contributions. The writing samples are for the
Commission’s use only and will not be published. (If you are a judge and are not seeking a
different type of judgeship, this question is inapplicable.)

(a) Writing Sample (1) Final Brief of Respondent






25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

(b) Writing Sample (2) Decree of Divorce and Final Order

What is your rating or membership status, if any, by any legal rating organization, such as,
Best Lawvers. Chambers, Legal 500. Martindale-Hubbell. Who’s Who Legal, Super
Lawyers. Million Dollar Advocates Forum, etc.? If you are currently a member of the
judiciary, list your last available rating, if any.

I am a top rated family law attorney in Lexington, South Carolina by Super

Lawyers.

List all bar associations and professional organizations of which you are a member and give
the titles and dates of any offices you have held in such groups.
(a) South Carolina Bar Association (2000-present);

(b) Fellow, American Academy of Matrimonial Lawyers (2015-present);

(c) Certified Family Court Mediator (2006-present);

(d) South Carolina Bar Continuing Education Committee (2007-2008);

(e) Lexington County Bar Association (Member 2012-present; President 2014);

(f) South Carolina Association for Justice (2014-present);

(g) American Bar Association, Family Law Section (2012-present);,

(h) South Carolina Woman Lawyers Association (2012-present); and

(i) South Carolina Bar House of Delegates (Delegate, Eleventh Judicial Circuit 2018-
present).

Have you ever held public office other than judicial office? If so, list the periods of your
service, the office or offices involved, and whether you were elected or appointed. Also,
state whether or not you have timely filed your report with the State Ethics Commission
during the period you held public office. If not, were you ever subject to a penalty? If so,
give details, including dates.

No.

For sitting or former judges, list all employment you had while serving as a judge (whether
full-time or part-time, contractual or at will, consulting or otherwise) other than elected
judicial office. Specify your dates of employment, employer, major job responsibilities, and
supervisor.

Have you ever been an unsuccessful candidate for elective, judicial, or other public office?
If so, give details, including dates.

Yes. I was a candidate for Family Court Judge, Eleventh Judicial Circuit, Seat 1 in
the Spring of 2014. I was found qualified and nominated. I withdrew from the race on May
15,2014,
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30.

31.

32.

33.

Have you ever been engaged in any occupation, business, or profession other than the
practice of law, teaching of law, or holding judicial or other public office? If so, give
details, including a description of your occupation, business, or profession, the dates of your
employment, and the name of your business or employer.

No.

Are you now an officer or director or involved in the management of any business

enterprise? Explain the nature of the business, your duties, and the term of your service.

(a) Harling & West, LLC
Jonathan Harling and I formed this partnership in June 2012 and we practice law out
of this entity. We are equal owners and members. I am the managing partner.

(b) West Main Family Law, LLC
I formed this S-corporation on January 2, 20135, for payroll, tax, health insurance and
retirement investment purposes. I am the sole member. I do not practice law from
this entity.

Are you now or have you ever been employed as a “lobbyist,” as defined by S.C. Code § 2-
17-10(13), or have you acted in the capacity of a “lobbyist’s principal,” as defined by S.C.
Code § 2-17-10(14)? If so, give the dates of your employment or activity in such capacity
and specify by whom you were directed or employed.

No.

Provide, as a separate attachment, a complete, current financial net worth statement that

itemizes in detail:

(a) the identity and value of all financial assets held, directly or indirectly, including, but
not limited to, bank accounts, real estate, securities, trusts, investments, and other
financial holdings; and

(b) the identity and amount of each liability owed, directly or indirectly, which is in
excess of $1,000, including, but not limited to, debts, mortgages, loans, and other
financial obligations.

(A net worth statement form is provided with this questionnaire and you must use this
format for submission of your financial statement.)

NOTE: The Commission may require written confirmation that financial obligations have been
satisfied or that the parties have agreed upon a payment schedule.

34.

A complete, current financial net worth statement was provided to the Commission.

Has a tax lien or other collection procedure ever been instituted against you by federal, state,
or local authorities? Have you ever defaulted on a student loan? Have you ever filed for
bankruptcy? If so, give details.

There has never been a tax lien or other collection procedure instituted against me by

any federal, state, or local authority.
I have never defaulted on a student loan.
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

I have never filed for bankruptcy.

Since filing with the Commission your letter of intent to run for judicial office, have you
accepted lodging, transportation, entertainment, food, meals, beverages, money, or any other
thing of value as defined by S.C. Code § 2-17-10(1) from a lobbyist or lobbyist’s principal?
If so, please specify the item or items you received, the date of receipt, and the lobbyist or
lobbyist’s principal involved.

No.

Itemize (by amount, type, and date) all expenditures, other than those for travel and room
and board, made by you, or on your behalf in furtherance of your candidacy for the position
you seek. If you have spent over $100, have you reported your expenditures to the House
and Senate Ethics Committees?

[ have not spent any money in furtherance of my candidacy for this position.

List the recipient and amount of all contributions made by you, a member of your immediate
family, or by a business with whom you are associated, to members of the General
Assembly within the past four years.
(a) Micah Caskey $250.00 on April 12, 2016;
(b)  Doug Brannon $100.00 on April 23, 2016;
() Nathan Ballentine $100.00 on April 23, 2016;
(d)  Rick Quinn $100 on April 23, 2016;
(e) Micah Caskey $300.00 on June 15, 2016;
® My firm donated $500.00 to Micah Caskey’s house campaign on June 20, 2017.
I contributed one-half of this donation and my law partner, Allison Bullard McNair
contributed one-half of this donation.
(2) Mia McLeod $100.00 on September 21, 2016;
(h) Luke Rankin $100.00 on September 26, 2016; and
(1) My law partner, Jonathan Harling, donated $250.00 to Mia McLeod on
September 27, 2016.

Have you or has anyone acting on your behalf solicited or collected funds to aid in the
promotion of your candidacy? If so, please specify the amount, solicitor, donor, and date of

the solicitation.
No.

Describe any financial arrangements or business relationships you have, or have had in the
past, that could constitute or result in a possible conflict of interest in the position you seek
or currently hold. Explain how you would resolve any potential conflict of interest.

The following business relationships could constitute or result in a possible conflict
of interest in the position I seek to hold. I would analyze potential conflicts of interests
Rule 501 Canon 3(E) and always be mindful of the requirement that I must disqualify
myself from matters in which my impartiality might reasonably be questioned.

(a) Oswald Law Firm, LLC
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40.

November 2000-May 2004

I was employed as an associate attorney with the firm. I was never a partner. The
attorneys in the firm during my time there were: Billy R. Oswald, Gene Stockholm,
Robin R. Mcl.ean and W. Wesley Johnson, Jr.

(b) Masella Law Firm, P.A.

June 2004-June 2009

I was initially hired as an associate and later became a partner in the firm. The attorneys
in the firm were Robert M.P. Masella and Reynolds Blankenship. [ was partners with
Robert M.P. Masella from approximately May 2008 until my departure from the firm.

(¢) Law Office of Richard Breibart, LLC

July 1, 2009-May 31, 2012

I was employed as an attorney with the firm. 1 was never a partner. The attorneys in the
firm during my time there were: Richard J. Breibart, Nancy Todd Jordan, Alyssa H.
Richardson, James B. O’Connor, Michael Turner, Bryn C. Sarvis (now Bryn Sarvis
Rice), Maura Dawson (now Maura Dawson Baker), Derrick Mobley, Jesse Near, Reid
Quattlebaum, Shannon A. Davis, Stephen “Chip” Burn, David Scott, Jonathan Harling
and Allison Bullard.

(d) Harling & West, L1.C

June 7, 2012-present

I am a one-half owner of this firm. I am partners with Jonathan Harling. Allison B.
Bullard was of counsel with the firm initially and she became a partner in approximately
2016 until her separation from the partnership in approximately March 2018.

(e) MTP Homes, LL.C

October 12, 2018-present

My husband, Matt Page, buys distressed real estate and rehabilitates the property for
resale. He recently purchased a home out of foreclosure and the occupant refuses to
vacate the premises despite no longer having the legal right to live in the home. My
husband filed a case in the Magistrate’s Court to eject the occupant and this case is
pending. Although I do not have an ownership interest in my husband’s business, I
would be mindful of the need to recuse myself from Family Court matters involving any
litigant against whom my husband had business dealings.

Describe any interest you or a member of your immediate family has in real property:

(@ in which there is a potential conflict of interest with your involvement in a South
Carolina state or local public agency;

(b) in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more that adjoins property
in which there have been public improvements of $200 or more; or

(c) which was sold, leased, or rented to a state or local public agency in South Carolina.

List the interest you hold and the value and location of the property. Identify as applicable

the:
(a) nature of any potential conflict of interest;

13





41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

(b) nature and value of any public improvements; and

(c) South Carolina state or local public agency which purchased or is leasing or renting
such property.

Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

None.

Identify any personal property interest you or a member of your immediate family sold,
leased, or rented to a South Carolina state or local public agency. Identify the property, its
amount or value, and the name of the agency. Attach a copy of any contract or agreement.

None.

For sitting judges, if you currently hold an interest in stock or other securities or have held
such an interest, list each stock you currently own or owned during the prior calendar year.
If you prefer, you may attach broker or account records containing the requested
information instead of listing it here.

For sitting judges, have you ever accepted anything of value from an attorney or litigant in a
matter currently or previously before you or your court? If so, please give the details,
including the name of the attorney or litigant and the thing of value you received.

For sitting judges, have you used the services of your staff, for which you did not pay, while
campaigning for this office?

Have you ever been arrested, charged, or held by federal, state, or other law enforcement
authorities for violation or for suspicion of violation of any federal law or regulation, state
law or regulation, or county or municipal law, regulation, or ordinance, or any other law,
including another country’s law? If so, give details but do not include traffic violations
which are subject to a penalty of $125 or less. You must include any and all arrests,
including, but not limited to, offenses for driving under the influence or similar traffic
offenses. Include all arrests that resulted in expungement, which will be redacted. If you
have questions regarding whether to include an offense, please contact the Commission.

[All answers have been received and considered by the Commission, and as noted above,
any expunged matters are redacted from the record.]

Have you, to your knowledge, ever been under federal, state, or local investigation for
possible violation of a criminal statute? If yes, explain.

No.
Have you ever been sued by a client? Have you ever been a named party (personally or

professionally) in or had a pecuniary interest in any civil or criminal proceedings? If so,
give details, including, but not limited to, dates, and resolutions.
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(a) Rebecca West and William West v. Flooring by Cogdill

2006 CP 40 1591

This suit was a subrogation claim my husband and I filed against a company that
installed carpet at our home. The installation contractor was negligent and started a
fire that caused damage to the home. My homeowners’ insurance carrier pursued the
subrogation claim on our behalf and the case settled at mediation. The Defendant
paid us $8,000.00 in damages and the case was dismissed on April 2, 2007. The
Defendant did not file a counterclaim.

(b) Stella K. Black v. Harold Whitney Black. Whit-Ash Furnishings. Inc.. Jim Edwards,
Amanda Phillips. Rebecca West, The Masella Law Firm. Spector Soft Corporation
2007 CP 40 2204
During ongoing Family Court litigation, Mrs. Black filed a civil action against her
estranged husband, his business, his private investigator, his employees, me, my law
firm and a computer software corporation. My law firm represented Mr. Black in the
divorce action. Mr. Black ultimately settled the civil action with Mrs. Black and the
case was dismissed on June 19, 2008. None of the other defendants, including me,
contributed to the settlement and Mr. Black never sought contribution from me or the
other defendants.

(c) Rebecca West v. Todd Morehead. Columbia City Paper. LLC and Paul Blake
2008 CP 40 0074
396 S.C.1, 720 S.E.2d 495 (S.C.App. 2011)
This matter was a defamation claim I made against a writer, newspaper and publisher
for an article published in 2007. 1 was the Respondent on appeal. The newspaper
published an article about the Stella Black v. Harold Whitney Black divorce case
where Mrs. Black claimed that I had a conflict of interest. The jury determined that
the article defamed me and awarded me actual and punitive damages. The
Defendants appealed. The South Carolina Court of Appeals upheld the award of
actual damages, but reversed the award of punitive damages. Both parties petitioned
the South Carolina Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari which was granted on
March 5, 2013. The matter settled immediately after certiorari was granted and the
Defendants paid me damages of $30,000.00. The case was disposed of on June 15,
2009. None of the defendants filed a counterclaim against me,

(d) Harriet A. Craig v. Law Office—Richard J. Breibart, LLC, Richard Breibart and
Rebecca West
2012 CP 32 3679
Ms. Craig was a client of the Law Office of Richard Breibart. Ms. Craig was the
victim of Mr. Breibart’s scheme to defraud clients of money. On August 12, 2013,
Richard Breibart pleaded guilty in the United States District Court of mail fraud
related to his theft of Ms. Craig’s money. On March 5, 2014, the United States
District Court imposed the maximum sentence of 63 months imprisonment and
ordered him to pay $2.4M in restitution. In this lawsuit, Ms. Craig alleged that I was
negligent in my failure to discover Breibart’s fraud. After a four day trial, the jury
found in my favor. No post-trial motions were filed and the Plaintiff did not appeal.
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(e) Samuel M. Corley. as Trustee of the Martin L. Corley Marital Trust v. Rebecca B.
West
2015 CP 32 0618
Mr. Corley, as trustee of a marital trust, retained the Law Office of Richard Breibart.
Mr. Corley was a victim of Mr. Breibart’s scheme to defraud clients of money. I was
not involved in Mr. Corley’s case. I did not know Mr. Corley. I did not do any legal
work on behalf of Mr. Corley and I did not work on this case in any capacity. Mr.,
Corley alleged that I committed legal malpractice and breached a fiduciary duty to
him in my failure to discover Mr. Breibart’s fraud. On August 5, 2016, the Plaintiff
voluntarily dismissed the case against me pursuant to Rule 41(a), S.C.R.C.P. I did
not pay any money to the Plaintiff and each party agreed to pay their own attorney
fees and costs.

(f) Rebecca B. West v. Torus Specialty Insurance Company, First Indemnity Insurance
Group. and John Doe Insurance Company
2017 DR 32 1223
I filed this claim against my professional malpractice carrier and the policy producer
for breach of contract and bad faith in their denial of coverage in the Corley matter.
The case was dismissed on February 9, 2018, and Torus paid me $20,000.00 and First
Indemnity paid me $5,000.00 in satisfaction of my claims against them.

(g) William  Britton West  (Defendant/Petitioner) v. Rebecca Brown West
(Plaintiff/Respondent)
2011 DR 40 1969
My former husband filed a pro se contempt petition alleging various violations of the
Marital Settlement Agreement related to his contact with our children. This contempt
action was dismissed with prejudice on August 3, 2016. As part of this action, we
agreed to modify the child support obligation and our agreement was approved by the
Family Court on August 3, 2016. The Family Court also granted our request to seal
the Rule to Show Cause filed by my former husband.

(h) Rebecca West (Plaintiff/Petitioner) v. William Britton West (Defendant/Respondent)

2011 DR 40 1969

I filed this contempt action against my former husband on May 24, 2018, seeking
enforcement of his child support obligation and his obligation to contribute to our
children’s uncovered medical expenses. The Family Court held my former husband in
contempt and sentenced him to ninety days in jail which could be purged by his
payment of $2,620.37. The Family Court also added $1,500.00 to my former husband’s
child support arrearage and required him to pay my attorney fees and costs of $1,959.80.
The order in this enforcement action was issued on August 22, 2018.

If you are in private practice, are you covered by malpractice insurance and, if so, how
long have you carried malpractice insurance? If applicable, have you ever been covered
by a tail policy? If so, please explain when you were covered by a tail policy. Also, if
applicable, indicate your coverage and deductible for your current malpractice policy.
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49.

50.

51.

52.

I am covered by a malpractice insurance policy with limits of
$1,000,000.00/$1,000,000.00. The policy deductible is $5,000.00. 1 have been covered
by malpractice insurance continuously since I was licensed in 2000.

I am covered by an unlimited individual tail policy related to the Breibart firm
policy.

Have you ever, in South Carolina or any other jurisdiction, as a lawyer, judge, or other
professional, been sanctioned or disciplined for lawyer, judicial, or other professional
misconduct or has any jurisdiction found that you committed any misconduct? If so, give
the details and describe any final disposition. Include any and all confidential and public
sanction, discipline, or finding of misconduct of any kind.

[Yes and no responses are redacted for all candidates unless there is a public discipline.]

Have you ever been investigated by the Department of Social Services? If so, give the
details and the resolution. Has your name ever been enrolled on the Central Registry of
Child Abuse and Neglect? If so, give the details.

No.

Note: The flash drive with vour application materials contains (1) Section 2-19-70(c): (2)
JMSC Rule 24. (3) Memo of Guidance. and (4) informal opinions and letters concerning
pledging prohibitions. with which third parties acting on vour behalf. as well as vou. must

comply.

Have you directly or indirectly requested the pledge of any member of the General
Assembly as to your election for the position for which you are being screened or have you
been offered a conditional pledge of support by any legislator pending the outcome of your
screening? Have you received the assurance of any public official or public employee that
they will seek the pledge of any member of the General Assembly as to your election for the
position for which you are being screened? If so, give details.

No.

Have you requested any third parties to contact members of the General Assembly on your
behalf before the final and formal screening report has been released? Describe the
campaigning you have done for this election and include a list of those individuals you have
asked to campaign on your behalf and, to the best of your knowledge, those who have
campaigned for you on their own initiative.

No.
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53.

54.

55.

Are you familiar with the 48-hour rule, which prohibits a candidate from seeking pledges
until after the draft report becomes final, which occurs on the day and time specified on the
Commission’s published screening schedule?

Yes.

Since submitting your letter of intent to become a candidate, have you or has anyone acting
on your behalf contacted any member of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission about
your candidacy or intention to become a candidate? If so, give details.

No.

List the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of five (5) persons from whom you are
providing references.  Also, provide the Commission with original letters of
recommendation from each person listed herein, including their signature (preferably in
blue ink). The Commission will not accept a photocopy or electronic submission of a
letter of recommendation and failure to include all five (5) original letters of
recommendation in your packet when you submit it will render your packet incomplete.
Please do not have references mail your reference letters to the Commission directly.
You must return the five (5) original letters of recommendation to the Commission with
your application packet.

(a) Brent M. Takach, Esquire
Thomas Law Firm, LLC

(b)  Bryn C. Sarvis, Esquire
Sarvis Law, LLC

(c) Jonathan Harling, Esquire
Harling & West, LL.C

(d) David C. Shea, Esquire
Shea & Barron
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56.

57.

58.

(e) Ashby Lawton Jones, Esquire
Kinard & Jones, LLC

Are you active on or a member of a social media or Internet site or have you, to your
knowledge, been featured or depicted on a social media or Internet site, such as,
Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, etc.? If so, how would your use of social media or other
similar types of Internet sites be affected if you were serving in a judicial capacity?

I currently have a Faccbook and Twitter account and a law firm website,
www.harlingandwest.com, for professional marketing. If I am elected, I would limit my
presence on Facebook and limit my connections to family members. I am not active on
Twitter, but I would limit my connections to family and national news outlets. If elected,
my firm website would be removed and the hosting agreement would be terminated.

List all civic, charitable, educational, social, and fraternal organizations of which you are or

have been a member during the past five years and include any offices held in such a group,

any professional honors, awards, or other forms of recognition received and not listed

elsewhere.

(a) School Improvement Council, River Bluff High School (2018-present);

b) Secretary, River Bluff High School Choral Booster Club (2018-2019); and

(©) The Leukemia & Lymphoma Society Man & Woman of the Year Campaign
Leadership Committee (Chair 2018-2019; Member 2017-2018).

Provide any other information that may reflect positively or negatively on your candidacy,
or which you believe should be disclosed in connection with consideration of you for
nomination for the position you seek. This information may include how vyour life
experiences have affected or influenced the kind or type of judge you have been or plan to
be.

The sudden loss of my mother to injuries sustained in an automobile accident was an
event that shaped my temperament and personality. When I was six years old, my father
began raising my younger brother and me on his own. We were taught to be independent
and to persevere. My father managed to provide us with stability despite the devastation we
all experienced. When my father remarried, we formed a new family that proved to be as
loving and stable as my first family. I have never considered my mother a “step” mother,
but rather my “second” mother. She raised me as her own and modeled for me an
exceptional work ethic. She taught me how to have a successful career and simultaneously
provide a nurturing home for my children.

Because of these experiences, [ developed the desire to work hard and I learned how
to be calm and resilient when faced with difficult circumstances. These personality traits
have served me well in my law practice and will undoubtedly be an asset to me if I am
elected to serve in the judiciary.
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YOUR SIGNATURE WILL BE HELD TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF THE
CONFIDENTIALITY OF ANY PROCEEDING BEFORE A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OR
ANY INFORMATION CONCERNING YOUR CREDIT.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT MY ANSWERS ARE TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE.

Signature:

Swomn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Notary Signature)

Donna W. Gordon
Notary Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expires: May 30, 2027
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‘ JUDICIAL MERIT SELECTION COMMISSION
Sworn Statement to be included in Transcript of Public Hearings

Family Court
(New Candidate)

Full Name: Rebecca Brown West

Business Address: 203 W. Main Street, Suite B, Lexington, South Carolina
29072

Business Telephone: (803) 957-0889

1.

Why do you want to serve as a Family Court Judge?

| firmly believe that public service is required of those who have the
talent, skill and temperament to serve. | believe my skillset and
temperament are particularly well-suited to the position | seek to hold. My
career has been dedicated to learning the craft of trial practice and family
law. The field of family law has held my fascination for many years and |
have a genuine curiosity about the issues that come before the Family
Court. | have used my personal and professional experiences to mature
as a practicing lawyer and | have developed the skills | believe are
necessary to sit in judgment of the issues that come before the Family
Court. It is my sincere desire to serve my community and my state in this
capacity.

Do you plan to serve your full term if elected?
Yes.

Do you have any plans to return to private practice one day?
No.

Have you met the statutory requirements for this position regarding age,
residence, and years of practice?

Yes.
What is your philosophy regarding ex parte communications? Are there
circumstances under which you could envision ex parte communications

being tolerated?

In order to perform the duties of judicial office impartially and with
integrity, ex parfe communications must be limited to those circumstances
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described in Canon 3B(7)(a)-(e), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR. My belief is
that judges must not engage in ex parfe communications except as
specifically allowed for scheduling or administrative purposes or as related
to emergencies such as those before the court on a temporary basis in
accordance with Rule 65(b), S.C.R.C.P. and Rule 21, S.C.R.F.C. Ex parte
communications are permissible under other limited circumstances as
stated in Canon 3B(7), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR, but | would be mindful of
my obligation to impartially perform the duties of the office and would
interpret the exceptions narrowly.

6. If you disclosed something that had the appearance of bias, but you
believed it would not actually prejudice your impartiality, what deference
would you give a party that requested your recusal? Would you grant such
a motion?

In order to preserve the integrity of the judiciary, | would likely defer
to the request for recusal despite my belief that | could render an impartial
ruling. | would be mindful of the potential adverse effect that delay could
have on the parties and use reasonable efforts to transfer the case to
another member of the judiciary as soon as possible. There are
circumstances that may require immediate action such as an emergency
removal action. If no other judge was available to hear the matter, | would
disclose the basis for possible disqualification on the record, rule on only
the issues that required immediate attention, reserve the other issues for a
decision by another judge and direct the scheduling clerk to set the matter
for a hearing before another judge as soon as possible. 1 would also
direct the clerk to avoid placing the matter before me in the future.

7. How would you handle the appearance of impropriety because of the
financial or social involvement of your spouse or a close relative?

Canon 2 requires that judges avoid even the appearance of
impropriety. If | determined that an appearance of impropriety existed and
that my close relative’s financial or social involvement was more than de
minimis, | would disqualify myself. In the event that my ability to hear the
case was called into question due to my family’s financial or social
involvement and | felt that their involvement was de minimis, | would have
the ability to ask the parties and their attorneys to consider waiving my
disqualification and would ask that they consider this outside of my
presence. If they were willing for me to proceed, | could do so. | would be
required to place the agreement on the record.

8. What standards would you set for yourself regarding the acceptance of
gifts or social hospitality?
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I would comply with the requirements of Canon 4D(5) and not
accept gifts or social hospitality that could be perceived as an attempt to
influence me in the performance of my duties. Doing so would call into
question my ability to be impartial and might require disqualification as a
result.

9. How would you handle a situation in which you became aware of
misconduct or appearance of infirmity of a lawyer or of a fellow judge?

My response would depend on whether | have direct or indirect
knowledge of the conduct of the lawyer or fellow judge. | would also
consider the nature and severity of the conduct prior to determining my
response. | would review my obligations under Canon 3(D)(1) and (2). If |
have actual knowledge of a judge’s violation of the CJC or a lawyer's
violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct which raises a substantial
question as to fitness, | must inform the appropriate authority. If | receive
information of a judge or lawyer’s violation, | would communicate directly
with the judge or lawyer or consider reporting the violation to the
appropriate authority if | thought the conduct warranted such a report.

If | have a reasonable belief that the performance of the lawyer or
judge is impaired by drugs, alcohol, or by a mental, emotional or physical
condition, | must take appropriate action pursuant to Canon 3(G).
“Appropriate action” is described in the CJC as “action intended and
reasonably likely to help the judge or lawyer address the problem and
prevent harm to the justice system.” After careful consideration of the
nature of the conduct or infirmity, | would decide whether it is appropriate
to speak directly to the judge or lawyer, speak to the individual's
supervisor or make a referral to Lawyers Helping Lawyers or the South
Carolina Bar. If the lawyer or judge’s conduct is egregious or poses a
substantial harm to the justice system, | would report the individual to the
appropriate disciplinary authority pursuant to Canon 3(D)(1) and (2).

10.  Are you a member of any organization or association that, by policy or
practice, prohibits or limits its membership on the basis of race, sex,
religion, or national origin? If so, please identify the entity and explain if
this organization practices invidious discrimination on any basis.

No.

11. Have you engaged in any fund-raising activities with any political, social,
community, or religious organizations? Please describe.

Yes.
During the 2018-2019 academic year, my daughter participated in
her school’'s women’s honor choir and | served as the secretary of her
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high school’'s Choral Booster Club. The club held several fundraisers for
the choirs’ trip to sing at Carnegie Hall in New York City. These
fundraisers included “Pictures with Santa,” a Krispy Kreme discount card
sale and solicitation of local businesses for concert program sponsorships.
| participated directly in these fundraisers by assisting with recordkeeping
and event organization. My law firm was a Grand Patron and we also
purchased an ad in the concert program. | estimate that my firm
contributed approximately $300.00 in the past academic year to the
Choral Booster Club.

| also engaged in fund-raising for my son’s middle school football
team by helping him sell discount cards at the beginning of the 2018-2019
and 2019-2020 season. | estimate that | helped him raise approximately
$60.00 each season by selling cards to our friends and family.

In 2017-2018 | served on the Leadership Committee of the
Leukemia & Lymphoma Society Man and Woman of the Year Campaign.
In this role | did not solicit donations directly, but | did schedule and attend
meetings with potential Man/Woman of the Year candidates where the
local LLS campaign director explained the program and asked for their
participation. In 2018-2019 | served as chairperson of the Leadership
Committee of the Leukemia & Lymphoma Society Man and Woman of the
Year Campaign. In this role | conducted monthly meetings of the
committee, but | did not schedule or attend any meetings with potential
candidates. My firm donated to the Man and Woman of the Year
Campaign in 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 through contributing raffle items
worth approximately $150.00 and by purchasing an advertisement in the
Gala program.

12. Do you have any business activities that you would envision remaining
involved with if elected to the bench?

No.

13.  Since family court judges do not have law clerks, how would you handle
the drafting of orders?

The complexity of the case will guide how | handle drafting orders.
In my years of family court practice, | have encountered and had
experience with nearly all forms of orders issued by the family court.
Certain cases lend themselves to the issuance of a form order. In the
majority of hearings, including temporary hearings and certain procedural
motion hearings, | intend to ask that the prevailing party draft the order
and allow opposing counsel to review the proposed order prior to
submission. | would enforce Rule 5(b)(3), S.C.R.C.P., regarding the
service of proposed orders. In complex or highly contested cases, | would
issue a memorandum outlining findings of fact and conclusions of law and
ask one party’s representative to submit a proposed order for my review
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and revision. There may also be circumstances where | will draw on my
extensive experience in practice to write my own order.

14.  If elected, what method would you use to ensure that you and your staff
meet deadlines?

As a practicing lawyer and business owner, | use an electronic
calendar, an electronic reminder system and a paper back-up for both.
This system has worked well for me and my staff. | anticipate that | would
use a similar system as a judge. | would also rely on my staff to follow up
with attorneys who have failed to submit proposed orders as | requested.
| would schedule a regular review of outstanding orders and maintain
regular communication with my staff to ensure that we meet all deadlines.

15.  If elected, what specific actions or steps would you take to ensure that the
guidelines of the guardian ad litem statutes are followed during the
pendency of a case?

If it is necessary to appoint a guardian ad litem in a matter, | would
require that a separate Order be prepared that clearly states the
guardian’s statutory authority and responsibilities in the litigation. In
practice, | find that having a separate order of appointment is more
practical for the guardian and is easier to enforce than when the
appointment language is imbedded in a temporary order. This separate
order would place the parties on notice of the guardian’s role in the case.
If a party determines that the guardian is not following the statutory
requirements, the party could file a motion and seek judicial intervention. |
would also set a cap on the guardian’s billing that could not be exceeded
unless the parties agree or a judge feels that an increase is necessary.
This would allow for periodic review of the guardian’s work. In complex
cases | would consider making a scheduling order that would include
reporting deadlines for the guardian and/or the parties.

16. What is your philosophy on “judicial activism,” and what effect should
judges have in setting or promoting public policy?

A judge must interpret and apply the laws of the jurisdiction. This is
a central tenant of the separation of powers. Activism has no place in the
judiciary and a judge does not create public policy. A judge shouid,
however, always promote the public policy of the State.

17.  Canon 4 allows a judge to engage in activities to improve the law, legal

system, and administration of justice. What activities would you plan to
undertake to further this improvement of the legal system?
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18.

19.

20.

It is critical for judges to continue learning and participating in the
academic opportunities afforded by the South Carolina Bar and other
similar organizations. | intend to continue teaching at continuing legal
education seminars because this process allows me to research and write
on specific subjects that interest me and it exposes me to subjects that |
am unfamiliar with. If elected, | look forward to learning more about court
administration so that | can help improve the Family Court’s efficiency.

Do you feel that the pressure of serving as a judge would strain personal
relationships (i.e. spouse, children, friends, or relatives)? How would you
plan to address this?

| am keenly aware of the strain that the practice of law can have on
personal relationships and | suspect that similar stressors are present for
judges. | plan on approaching these issues much as | have done in my
practice. | am the mother of two active school-aged children, | am married
and | am extremely close to my parents and extended family. [ will
continue to rely on my husband and my parents to assist me in
maintaining continuity and stability for my children when | travel or work
late. If | am elected, my husband and my family will continue to be heavily
involved in my children’s lives. We would continue to coordinate our
schedules to make sure my children are able to participate in extra-
curricular activities, sports and church activities.

| have found that maintaining a healthy lifestyle is critical to
managing stress and nurturing my personal relationships. If elected, |
would continue to make exercise a part of my daily routine.

My spouse, my children and my family understand my profession
and the difficulties it can sometimes present. | consulted with them prior
to making the decision to seek this position and | am confident that | have
their support.

Would you give any special considerations to a pro se litigant in family
court?

All litigants, including those who are self-represented, are entitled to
respect and fairness in the proceeding. | do not believe that special
considerations can be given to those who choose to represent themselves
in family court.

Are you involved in any active investments from which you derive
additional income that might impair your appearance of impartiality?

No.

Form Revised 2019 6





21.

22.

23.

24.

Would you hear a case where you or a member of your family held a de
minimis financial interest in a party involved?

A de minimis interest is one that is so insignificant that it could not
raise a reasonable question as to a judge’s impartiality. Therefore, | would
hear a case where my family member or | held a de minimis financial
interest in one of the parties. If | am aware of the interest, | would
disclose, on the record, the information that the parties might consider
relevant to the question of disqualification.

Have you met the mandatory minimum hours requirement for continuing
legal education courses for the past reporting period?

Yes.

What do you feel is the appropriate demeanor for a judge and when do
these rules apply?

It is imperative that a judge remain mindful that litigants are often
before the Family Court with intimate issues involving their children,
spouses and finances. Litigants deserve a judge that is respectful,
measured, attentive and patient. A judge cannot be flippant or
inappropriately casual. A judge cannot lack discretion.

| would conduct myself at all times in a manner that promotes
public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the judiciary.

Do you feel that it is ever appropriate to be angry with a member of the
public who would appear before you, especially with a criminal defendant?
Is anger ever appropriate in dealing with attorneys or a pro se litigant?

The expression of anger in the courtroom would violate Canon
3B(4), and, therefore, | would refrain from expressing anger to attorney or
any litigant. Likewise, if | encountered a member of the public in my
official capacity, | would be mindful of the requirement to be patient,
dignified and courteous.
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| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ANSWERS TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS ARE
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Rebecca West

Sworn to before me this day of , 2019.

(Signature)

Donna W. Gordon

Notary Public for South Carolina

My commission expires: May 30, 2027
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